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Documents Available
for Inspection

Original copy of the annual report, which has been signed by the chairman.

Original copy of the auditors’ report signed and chopped by the certified public accountant and under the
seal of the accountant firm.

The original copies of all documents and announcements of the Company publicly disclosed during the
Reporting Period in Shanghai Securities News, the website of Shanghai Stock Exchange and the HKEXNews
website of the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Articles of Association of the Company.

The above documents are available for inspection at the Office of the Board of Directors of the Company,
situated at No.2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town, Tongzhou District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of
China.
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VL.

VIL.

VIl

The Board, the Supervisory Committee and the Directors, Supervisors
and senior management of the Company confirm that information
contained in this annual report is true, accurate, and complete
without any false and misleading statements or material omissions,
and severally and jointly accept legal responsibility for the above.

All directors of the Company have attended the meetings of the
Board.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)
has issued a standard audited report without qualifying opinions
for the Company.

Mr. Wang Jun, the person in charge of the Company, Ms. Feng
Yongmei, the Accounting Supervisor and Mr. Wang Yandong,
Accounting Manager (accountant in charge), have declared that
they guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
financial statements contained in this annual report.

Resolutions of profit distribution or capitalisation from capital
reserves of the Company for the Reporting Period examined and
reviewed by the Board

During the Reporting Period, as audited by Shinewing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership), net profit attributable
to shareholders of the listed company was RMB18,302,413.93 and
undistributed profit at the end of the year was RMB-669,031,286.39.
As the Company recorded negative undistributed profits at the end of
the year, the Company proposed not to distribute any profit and not to
capitalize from capital reserves for the year 2022. Such resolutions are
required to be submitted at the AGM for consideration and approval.

Declaration on risk from forward-looking statements

< Applicable [ Not applicable

The content of this annual report involves forward-looking statements such
as future plans and other does not constitute substantial undertakings of
the Company to investors due to uncertainties. Investors are advised to be
cautious about investment risks.

Whether the controlling shareholders of the Company and other
associates have misappropriated the Company’s funds or not

No

Whether any external guarantees are provided in violation of any
specified decision-making procedures or not

No

Whether more than half of the directors cannot guarantee the
truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the annual report
disclosed by the Company

No
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X. IMPORTANT RISK WARNINGS

1.

The risk associated with the implementation of the project of the
non-public issuance of A shares.

On 16 November 2022, the nineteenth extraordinary meeting of the
tenth session of the Board of the Company considered and approved
the “Resolution in relation to the Proposal for the Company’s Non-
public Issuance of A Shares” and other resolutions, pursuant to
the relevant requirements of the “Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Securities Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Administrative Measures for the Issuance of Securities by
Listed Companies”, “Detailed Implementation Rules for the Non-
public Issuance of Shares by Listed Companies” and other laws
and regulations, the Company proposed a plan for the non-public
issuance of A shares. Currently, there is uncertainty regarding the
issuance of A Shares of the Company. The Company will strictly
perform the information confidentiality work and fulfil its information
disclosure obligations under relevant laws and regulations according
to the progress of the matter, so as to announce the progress of the
matter in a timely manner.

XI.  Others

[ Applicable v Not applicable
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Definitions

Unless otherwise stated in context, the following terms should have the

Definition

following meanings in this report:

Company

Beiren Holdings

BN

Group
REE

means

means
&

means
i<

Jingcheng Holding or Jingcheng means

Machinery Electric (controlling
shareholder and beneficial

controller)
TR PR RR S R S (1R
AR~ BRRIZESHIA)

Beiren Group

EAEE

Tianhai Industry or Beijing
Tianhai

RBIEFHIRKE
BYTQ
EFRE

Jingcheng HK
P EE

Tianjin Tianhai
REXRE

Board
HEE

Supervisory Committee
EES

AGM

RERAE

First EGM

ER S N

First A Share Class Meeting
FE—RABIERIRR K&

First H Share Class Meeting
FERHBRIERIRR A E

Director(s)

5=

Supervisor(s)

E=E

means
B

means
B

means
B

means
B

means
=
B

means
B

means
B

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERTHEERDERAF

— 8%
EABEED  BIEXESHME - TIIFE
BEEWMTEE

Definition of frequently used terms

ERFAEER

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited (1t 5 R E f% (B R A 7)),
a joint stock company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the SSE
IRRHEERMNERAR - —HRPEEMKZ 2 ROBRAE - HRO B
FIRR ERFT LT

Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited (the former name of the Company)

AR D BR AR (EEAARE)

the Company and its subsidiaries

ENS)E N

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. b R RIREBIZBREREL A
7]), a company established in the PRC and the controlling shareholder of the Company,
holding approximately 45.32% equity interest in the Company

IRFEMEEIERERETAT  —HRPEKRIL AR ARARZIEBREE - #
BARNTIHA5.32% 2 f%HE

Beiren Group Corporation (1t A%E /A F]), a company incorporated in the PRC and a
subsidiary of Jingcheng Holding (the former controlling shareholder of the Company)
it/\ijﬁi AR AT RIIER B F AR (RARRR Z1E
AR AR

Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. (At R KF T B2 ), a subsidiary of the Company
IRKEIEAR AT (KRB ZFRAE)

Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company
SEILFRBHBERER AR (RRRIZFRRA])

Jingcheng Holding (Hong Kong) Company Limited (R (F%E) AR A A, a
subsidiary of the Compan

y
PR () BR AR (KRR ZFRF)

Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd, an indirect subsidiary of the Company
RABEARKRERNEREBEREERETAT

the board of directors of the Company

KRABEES

the supervisory committee of the Company

ARREES

the 2021 Annual General Meeting convened on 9 June 2022
7202256 A9R BRAKI2021FERFAFAE

the 2022 First Extraordinary General Meeting convened on 24 February 2022
202242 A24B BRAM2022F E—REERIRERE

the 2022 first A share class meeting convened on 24 February 2022
7202242 A24 B BHM2022F E —IRARERIRRAE

the 2022 first H share class meeting convened on 24 February 2022
202242 A24 A BRM2022 65— RHIRZERIR R A

the director(s) of the Company
RRREE

the supervisor(s) of the Company

ARFES



Section 1 Definition IR

£ B=H

1. Definitions (Continued) " *%%(%E)

Definition of frequently used terms
ERAEESR

Shareholder(s) means the holder(s) of shares

IRER & R FFEA

Connected Person means has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

FAEE AL & BR FHRARE T %A RE

Share(s) of the Company means Unless otherwise stated, share(s) of the Company, including A share(s) and H share(s)

SIS 5 KRR - BIEARRHAR - 56 kRSN

Reporting Period means the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022

HEH & 20221 H1HE2022F12A31H

SSE means the Shanghai Stock Exchange

AR 5 EBBHFZ S

Stock Exchange means The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Bt 32 BT & EEBMARIMBRIR

CSRC means China Securities Regulatory Commission

PEEES 5 HRESFEEERLEY

Beijing SASAC means State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Beijing Municipal
Government

ERTEESR & IRTARBNEEEEEEERZES

Beijing Securities Regulatory means Beijing Securities Regulatory Bureau under the CSRC

Bureau

I REER 18 PRHBESEEEREZECILREER

Controlling Shareholder(s) means has the same meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

PEARAR SR & BR FHRARE T %A RE

Equipment base means the base for production of liquefied natural gas cylinder for vehicles and cryogenic

_in Huo County equipment (LNG\industry)

TSR A EE LMD, ¥ BHRBRCRATMEE R F M E (INGE ) it

Listing Rules means the Rules Governing the Listing of Stocks on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

Al ¥ BRSSP LT AR BIFNE R ARE 5 AR Al

PRC Accounting Standards means PRC Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

for Business Enterprises

hE Y ethER)| ¥ PRI SRR

RMB means Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR 5 HEVEEEB AR

HK$ means Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT = BEEEEEAT

usb means United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

FEIT & ENREREETEERET

DOT means abbreviation of US Department of Transportation

DOT = Z[RAED (US Department of Transportation) H)3 X 4%

LNG means abbreviation of liquefied natural gas

LNG g WAL RIRR (liquefied natural gas) IR X AR

CNG means abbreviation of Compressed Natural Gas

CNG = 4R R IR R (compressed natural gas) B2 4R

2022 ANNUAL REPORT | 5
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I Scction 1 Definition

- BH

1. Definitions (Continued) - *%%(E)
Definition of frequently used terms
ERAEESR
Station, filling station means the station where automobiles are filled with LNG or CNG
piliE=8v 5 HBRIE R AR S BEAER AR T E B4
Industrial Gas Cylinder means collective name for the cylinders that are filled with industrial gas
TESM & EE T ERBHINE
Type IV Cylinders means plastic tank full-winding compound gas cylinder (J8#} RFEH 4 24245248 & FUM), mainly

used for vehicle fuel storage, for filling natural gas or hydrogen

ukibith ¥ EHAEGE2ESESTN  FTERREAMBRERR - ARRARIER
Construction project of means the construction project of intelligent numerical control production line for plastic tank
intelligent numerical control full-winding compound gas cylinder (32 EHAREE 4 2 42 1518 A RUR)
production line for type IV
cylinders
PURDIAS s L B A AR & EHANEEE 2 ESES NSRBI ERERIAR
ERIAHR
This Reorganisation means the issue of shares and payment of cash in consideration of acquiring certain equity
interests in Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd. (5 &1L F X F &L L H
f 2 ]) and fund raising y
NRER ¥ ARSEHRETENEINRSEESTSILFRFTHMEERRIFND BELEE
EREENTR
Non-public Issuance means the non-public issuance of A shares to not more than 35 specific investors, including

Jingcheng Machinery Electric, being the controlling shareholder and de facto controller
of the Company

RIRFERFAEST ¥ AR A B HE A A4 B A RN B R 4% 5l A R U A A MB35 B A TR IR B & JF AR
BITARRIRENITAR

Beiren Intelligent means Beiren Intelligent Equipment Technology Co., Ltd.
JEAEEE & EABRRBRIRAR A

Jingcheng Haitong means Beijing Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture Development Co., Ltd.
REER & IR B RS R AR A A

Beijing Nengtong means Beijing Nengtong Lease Company

Bl & B ii =N

Beiren Equipment means Be!i_ng Beiren Printing Equipment Co., Ltd.

b AR & AL ABIRIR BB R A A

Shanghai Tianhai means Shanghai Tianhai Composite Cylinders Co., Ltd.
FEXE & FEREBEERMABRAF

Tianjin Tianhai means Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd.
REXRE 5 RERNBRBARERETAT

Unless otherwise specified, all amounts stated in this report are denominated in Renminbi.

BIES AU - RRENFESRIAARKEEE -

6 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators
ETEH ARBENNEIENBES

l.  Information of the Company — AAEEER
Chinese name of the Company I FR IR ERRS BRA A
NG LD €T
Chinese abbreviation TR
NGIEL QT
English name of the Company BEIING JINGCHENG MACHINERY ELECTRIC COMPANY LIMITED
NEIEOE S &
English abbreviation JINGCHENG MAC
NEIMIN R BAER
Company’s legal representative Mr. Wang Jun
RAMEERRA FEEE
ll. Contact Persons and Contact Methods —BEANBELSN
Representative in charge of
Secretary to the Board securities affairs
EESUE BHBEHAK
Name Luan Jie Chen Jian
14 B8R BR i
Contact address No. 2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town,  No. 2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town,
Tongzhou District, Beijing Tongzhou District, Beijing
Bt IE LR N (2 SR SR SR R = 57 255% JE RN R B SR S SR FE = 72557
Telephone 010-87707289 010-87707289
et 010-87707289 010-87707289
Facsimile 010-87707291 010-87707291
BE 010-87707291 010-87707291
E-mail jcgf@btic.com.cn jcgf@btic.com.cn
EF{E4E jcgf@btic.com.cn jcgf@btic.com.cn
lll. Basic Information = EREREN
Registered address of the Company Room 901, No. 59 Mansion, Dongsanhuan Road Central,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
NI aiip:ik:l IR EAGE R =R 5952901 =
Historical changes in the Company's registered address Registered office from 13 July 1993 to 6 January 2004 as: No. 44,

Guangqu Road South, Chaoyang District, Beijing, China
Registered office from 7 January 2004 to 31 October 2013: No.
6 Rongchang East Street, Beijing Economic and Technological
Development Area, Beijing, China
Changed to the Company's current registered address on 1 November
2013

NAEFEMIE A E S B R ER 199347 B 13 £20045F1 A6 Bttt & - PEHL R TG RE
SRR fl445%
20041 A7H %2013 10431 Htffibit & - A B R LR
Bt e B [ 48 & SR 65
20135 1M A1 A2 E RARR M

Office address of the Company No. 2 Huo Xian Nan San Road, Huo Xian Town, Tongzhou District,
Beijing

YNSIEEN il AR BN [ RS SRR B = A7 2557

Postal code of the office address of the Company 101109

RN EV PRI E TR AR 101109

Company’s website www.jingchenggf.com.cn

NCIESHES www.jingchenggf.com.cn

E-mail jcgf@btic.com.cn

EF{E4E jcgf@btic.com.cn

2022 ANNUAL REPORT | 7
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I Scction 2 Company Profile and

Key Financial Indicators
AARFNNEEZHKIEE

= — s

5 —BH

IV. Dissemination of Company Information and
the Place for Preparation and Reference

Name of media and website for the disclosure of
the Company's annual report

NEHBEFERENERE R RA

Website of the stock exchange for the disclosure of
the Company's annual report

NEBBFERENE R AEUL

Place for inspection of the Company’s annual report

AAFERSHEDEH

V. Basic Information of the Company’s Shares

M~ SRR E R A E R,

Shanghai Securities News

(LEEHFH

WWW.S5e.com.cn

WWW.S5e.com.cn

Office of the Board of the Company
ROREEGRAE

F - REIRE-BR

Basic Information of the Company’s Shares

AFREBR
Securities

Stock abbreviation

Type of shares Place of listing of the shares abbreviation Stock code before change
RESR REETR 5 REEE BREAT BE AR REE
A shares the Shanghai Stock Exchange RIS 600860 TR
AR LBRESFRBM 4 600860 e d)
H Shares The Stock Exchange of JINGCHENG MAC 00187 JINGCHENG MAC
Hong Kong Limited
HA% EEMERHMBR AR R E R 00187 P E R
VI. Other Related Information N> HiiEREE R
Name of the accounting firm engaged Name ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
by the Company (domestic) Partnership)
NEIEFEN G RV ESFT CEA) ey Bk S EERHR R EBRAR)
Office address 9/F, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion, No. 8 Chao Yang Men Bei Da Jie,
Dong Cheng District, Beijing
/Nl IERM R E AR R ESSR EE A EAREIE
Names of signing Ma Chuanjun, Yan Huan
accountant
BEFGtE 5EE B8
Name of the accounting firm engaged Name Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
by the Company (internal control Partnership)
reporting and audit) B REGETANEEA (R Eme %)
AR BN SR EISET Office address 8/F, Xihai International Center, Building 1, No.99 Courtyard,
(R EER) Beisanhuan West Road, Haidian District, Beijing City
N bl LRI E 1L =R PR R 9955 bt 1 5 E PR G B R P L 88
Names of signing Zhang Xinfa, Bai Lihan
accountant
FEF GRS SRETE - BB
Name of the domestic legal adviser Name Beijing Kang Da Law Firm
engaged by the Company E bR T RERRE AT

NG R e o

Office address

8th, 9th, and 11th floors of Emperor Group Center,
No.12 Jianwai Street Ding, Chaoyang District, Beijing

/Nl IRMEHAGERIARE T 12RE2KEHRL8E - 98 - 18
Name of the overseas legal adviser Name Woo Kwan Lee & Lo
engaged by the Company HiE PARA R AR AT
ANRBE BRI INEERER Office address 26/F, Jardine House, Central, Hong Kong
N bl BBERIRBTIAE261E

8 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI.

Other Related Information (continued)

Section 2 Company Profile and

Key Financial Indicators

EZH RABNNEEZMBIER

7~ HiEEE R @

Sponsor continuously performing its Name Zhong De Securities Company Limited
supervisory function during the E PEBAFBEREEAR
Reporting Period Office address Floors 22-23, Deutsche Bank Tower China Central Place, No. 81
WMEMNEITHEESERENREEE Jianguo Avenue, Chaoyang District, Beijing
Ptk RS EEEESIREE R OVEELRITAE 22 - 238

Name of sponsor
representatives as
signatories

BFORBRRALS

Period of continuously
performing its
supervisory function

FEBEHEE

Financial adviser performing continuous ~ Name
supervision duties during the Reporting %7
Period Office address
REPARTHEBSRAENMBKER At
Names of signing
organizer of financial
advisor
B I TSR
FRALE
Period of continuously
performing its
supervisory function
HEE R

Other basic information of the Company

Hao Guodong, Miao Xingwang

TOEAR - B EAE
Delayed due to uncompleted fund raising projects

EERIR B AR AEIRIEHA

CSC Financial Co., Ltd.

PERIREFRNBRAF

Block B, E, Kaiheng Center Building, Dongcheng District, Beijing
IERARIMBIEH OB - EE

He Chengda, Hou Shun

BrAcE - &R

From the date of completion of the reorganisation of major assets
t0 2023

HEABESHEMTRZ HEE20235F K

Reception of shareholders’ enquiries: 10th and 20th day of each month (or on the

following business day if it falls on a public holiday) (Closed on Saturdays and Sundays) 9:00
a.m. to 11:00 a.m., 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

fREEFH  §A108 %208 (BB EIEL) (RRIE2E/5 - 2HEKE) £F9 : 00-

11 : 00~42 : 00-4 : 00

RAEEMEARER

2022 ANNUAL REPORT | 9
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I Scction 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators
ETH ARBNNEIZNBES

VIl. Major Accounting Figures and Financial +t A=FFXESEEMITKE

Indicators for the Past Three Years =
(i) Major accounting figures (—) TEEHEE
Unit: Yuan C urrency: RMB
By o BE - ARK
Changes over
the same
period of the
preceding
Major accounting figures 2022 2021 year (%) 2020
REN LF
IEEHEE 2022% 2015 REEIR(%) 2020
Operating income BEWA 1,372,261,232.14  1,182,664,494.03 1603 1,088,296,501.51
Operating income after deducting income from ~ SIBEE 4 K ERHEFRIA
non-principal business and revenue that MTARAEEENRAEHN
was not considered as commercial in nature BEBA 1,336,112,109.68  1,148,503,206.55 1634 1,054,328,126.39
Net profit attributable to shareholders FERLMARRRNFHNE
of listed company 18,302,413.93 -23,282,271.43 - 156,431,757.57
Net profit attributable to shareholders BER LHARBRRAOMRFELR
of listed company after extraordinary items BRI FHE -4,859,898.19 -34,816,036.55 - -127,558,167.27
Net cash flows generated from operating BeEPELNRENETE
activities 5223,758.74 -32,694,712.35 - -27,911,136.21
Changes over
the same
period end of the
At the end At the end preceding At the end
of 2022 of 2021 year (%) of 2020
AR LF
PIPYEFS 215K AR %) 20006 K
Net assets attributable to shareholders FEREMARRENTEE
of listed company 1,072,265,062.63 677,655,614.84 58.23 699,472,630.04
Total assets BEE 2,434,589,099.53 1,568,448,757.50 55.22 1,705,430,862.39

10 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
TR ERDERA R




Section 2 Company Profile and IR
Key Financial Indicators
EZE RAENNEIENBIEE

VIl. Major Accounting Figures and Financial +t A=FFXESEEMITKE

Indicators for the Past Three Years (continued) = (#)
(i) Key financial indicators (Z) FEHRBER
Changes over
the same
period of the
preceding
Key financial indicators 2022 2021 year (%) 2020
RELEF
IEHBER 202F WNE AL %) 20205
Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) ERBRE (/%) 0.04 -0.05 N/A 7B A 0.34
Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share) HESRLE /&) 0.04 -0.05 NA TER 034
Basic earnings per share after extraordinary MpFHEEHERENER
items (RMB/share) B (/) -0.01 007 NIA TR 028
Returns on net assets on weighted average METFEENEE%) Increase of 5.53
basis (%) percentage points
215 338 EiBS3EENE 30.13
Return on net assets on weighted average ARFERERRRONETS Increase of 4.49
basis after extraordinary items (%) FEERGRE(%) percentage points
-0.57 506 E44EEHE -24.64
Explanation on the major accounting data and financial indicators of WMEMRABA=ZFEEG BB
the Company at the end of the Reporting Period for the past three ISR R
years
[ Applicable ' Not applicable O@A JTEA
VIIl. Accounting Data Differences Under Domestic N\~ SRR EFHEA T EHEE
and Foreign Accounting Standards =
(i) Difference in net profit and net assets attributable (—) FARFRBEESHEREZRDE
to shareholders of listed company in the financial SRR BENT B RE FFER
statements disclosed simultaneously pursuant to BNBEBRLTARRRNFEE
the International Accounting Standards and the PRC EERFER
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
1 Applicable v Not applicable O:@Em N TER

2022 ANNUAL REPORT | 11
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I Scction 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators
B_E RARAENNETEHBIEE

\ - ji\

VIIl. Accounting Data Differences Under Domestic N\~ BN EA T EEE

and Foreign Accounting Standards (continued) 7= (1)

(i) Difference in net profit and net assets attributable (=) FARFRBRINETHERBEZDE
to shareholders of listed company in the financial S EREEN B BRE PFR
statements disclosed simultaneously pursuant to BNBEBRLTARRENEE
the Foreign Accounting Standards and the PRC EEER/R
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
[0 Applicable v Not applicable O:@Em TER

(iii) Description of differences between PRC GAAP (2) BRIETTERZZMHA

d foreign GAAP: N N
aDnAppI(i-::gﬁllgn\/ Not applicable O@Em T EA
IX. Major Financial Data of 2022 By Quarter N 20228 ZEEEHMHRIE

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T BE:ARK

First quarter Second Third quarter Fourth quarter
(January to quarter (July to (October to
March) (April to June) September) December)
E-3E - £=ZE ENFE
(13R4) (4-6R1) (19R1%) (10-12343)
Operating income ELION 279,765,054.92 357,911,961.85 400,494,865.43 334,089,349.94
Net profit attributable to shareholders of listed company ~ $3ER LA EIREREFFIH -1,250,153.46 11,827,150.88 10,143,425.27 -2,418,008.76
Net profit attributable to shareholders of listed GER EMRRRRIR
company, after extraordinary items FERI RGN FHE -1,648,484.82 8,905,082.31 5,958,718.64 -18,075,214.32
Net cash flows generated from operating activities ReFYEANBEERE R -42,316,254.26 23,400,663.07 -24,747,496.49 48 886,846.42
Description of differences between quarterly data and data in disclosed FEBBHECRETHREBIRERHAN
regular reports
[J Applicable ' Not applicable O@m N TEm
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Section 2 Company Profile and IR

Extraordinary Items and Amounts

\ Applicable  CINot applicable

Key Financial Indicators
AARFNNEEZHKIEE

B —

= P ]

-3
4

FEEMIERERNETE

WA O TEA

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By o BEARK

Amount Note (where Amount Amount

Extraordinary items of 2022 applicable) of 2021 of 2020
FEEHARER WNELH it (@A) 201588 2000548
Gain or loss on disposal of non-current assets FrRYEERERR 324,288.25 19731756 277,928,30045
Unauthorized or informal approval documents or one off  ##£&4t + SiEEA B - 5ifE

tax returns and exemptions on tax BROTLRE - A%
Government subsidies included in current profit or loss, ~ sf AZ EIERAHTHE - BELF

other than on-going government subsidies whichare ~ EEELEHHIAE - FAER

closely related to the Company's normal operation, BRAT - RR-TRETELT

meet the requirements of government policies and are ~ EREZZMHFRIH N

subject to certain limits or conditions 15,296,825.69 10,065,386.91 4,201,931.19
Capital occupation fee received from non-financial SARBERNH L RAE LML

entities included in current profit or loss EefhRE
Gain from the excess of the fair value of the identifiable ~ MERSTAE - BEMERASD

net assets of investee companies on acquisition of ERRERT P RERERES

the investment over the cost of investment in the ARRABNAHRFAELAR

Company's subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures  HE AU
Gain or loss on exchange of non-monetary assets FEMIEENES
Gain or loss on entrusted investments or asset under R ARAHEREENES

management
Provision for impairment on assets due to force majeure BRI NER - MESEAKEM

events, such as natural disasters SHEME BEERERER
Gain or loss on debt restructuring EHERRR 3,806,900.04 554,913.61
Corporate restructuring costs, such as employee PESABE  NTERTHOZL

relocation expenses and integration costs REERS
Gain or loss on transactions with obviously unfair RAHBREXDLORHELED

transaction price for amount which exceeds fair value A% EEHH#ER
Net gains or losses of subsidiaries for the current period ~ AI—f2#I TAEAHELNTARE

from the beginning of the period to the date of NEEHBMERFER

combination arising from business combination under

common control
Gain or loss on other contingencies which are not ENAIELEEBEENLAEE

related to the Company's normal operations EENER
Gain or loss on changes in fair value from disposal of ~ BARFEFALERERNERE

financial assets held for trading, derivative financial HREEHN - HERSLERE

assets, financial fiabilities held for trading, derivative E fEepEE X5tERa

financial liabilities and other debt investment and B TEeRBBELNDAER

investment income from disposal of financial assets BEiEn  URRER S RE

held for trading, derivative financial assets, financial B ESREE RHMEREA

liabilities held for trading, derivative financial liabilities & * {7 BB ENEMEERE

and other debt investment, except for effective RENREYE

hedging transactions that are closely related to the

Company's normal operation 608,700.53 30,675.01
Reversal of the impairment provision for receivables BEETAEISNELTE -

and contract assets which are tested individually for AREEREEERR

impairment 4,869,414.50 1,818,371.90 4,201,369.81

Gain or loss on entrusted loans

O EXETRENRE
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I Scction 2 Company Profile and
Key Financial Indicators

= — s

A\ = A S FE & 438
FEH ARBNNEEMBER N
X. Extraordinary Items and Amounts (Continued) T R EMIERIEE NERE @
Amount Note (where Amount Amount
Extraordinary items of 2022 applicable) of 2021 of 2020
FEEHERER 00548 sk (oidiF) 2155E 2020525
Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of RRAEE %’Uﬁ?ﬂé ﬁ;ﬁ"]
investment properties under fair value model on REMEHENBEE
subsequent measurement E’%E’]Tﬂ
Effect of one-time adjustment to current profitor loss  1RIEHIA + EEHSIAR < ARHER
according to the requirements of tax and accounting ¥/ & B a7 - IEERL RS
laws and regulations on current profit or loss ?ﬁ E’]?@
Entrusted fee income from entrusted operations R ENEMTE %W)\
Investment income from disposal of long-term equity J}ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁx E&ﬁﬁi FElE
investment -270,300.00
Other non-operating income and expenses apart from B Eill &TE.2 SMOE b E EIMIA
the aforesaid items il 8,873,633.76 -438,510.72 -840,278.62
Other gain or loss items falling within the definition of ~ A& AR EREFEN
extraordinary items B IEE 0.00
Less: Effect of income tax e F’ﬁ ShyEE 234,165.76 296,085.76 63,432.64
Effect of minority interest (after tax) PERR AT ZE (R 10,383,284.89 398,303.39 1,167,665.35
Total At 23,162,312.12 11,533,765.12 283,989,924.84
For the non-recurring profit and loss items defined by the Company HARBBCARETIESN RS S IRER

according to the definition of “Explanatory Announcement No. 1 on
Information Disclosure by Public Issuers — Non-recurring Profit or Loss
ltems” ((RARABETESFNAREERERBELEREE 19 —FLEBHMLE
#)), as well as the non-recurring profit and loss items listed in “Explanatory
Announcement No. 1 on Information Disclosure by Public Issuers — Non-
recurring Profit or Loss Items” ((AFEITESFH AR SRBHBIEAS
P15 — IS HHIBZE)), the reasons should be explained.

O Applicable v Not applicable

Xl. Items Measured at Fair Value
[ Applicable v Not applicable
XIl. Others

0 Applicable v Not applicable

14 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

2022 was a crucial year for the implementation of the 14th Five-
Year Strategic Plan. The Company was determined to carry out the
general requirements of “stabilizing the economy, developing in a safe
manner”, and implemented various decisions and deployments around
the strategic plan and the annual budget, and strived to overcome the
impact of objective and unfavorable factors such as the short term market
fluctuation, the Russo-Ukrainian conflict, energy crisis, and the aggravation
of international trade risks, striving to grasp the daily operational works,
completing the annual operation target in a better way and laying a solid
foundation for achieving high quality development in the 14th Five-Year

Plan.

1.

Complete BYTQ's acquisition and reorganization
project to enhance the profitability of the listed

company
The BYTQ acquisition project was successfully completed. BYTQ
focuses on the field of industrial automation and informatisation,
and is a leading enterprise in the field of intelligent manufacturing
equipment in the home appliance industry, with the ability to
provide customers with comprehensive intelligent manufacturing
solutions of automation and informatisation and overall application
solutions of industrial internet smart factory. The acquisition enables
the Company to fully utilise the accumulated technology and
advantageous resources of BYTQ in automation system integration,
intelligent manufacturing and intelligent factory construction, to
strengthen its position in the intelligent manufacturing industry,
promote the development of intelligent manufacturing and
information technology construction business, accelerate the process
of promoting the Company’s business towards “precision and high-
tech”, optimise the business structure and expand the business
scope and market precision and high-tech of the Company, helping
the Company to form a diversified equipment manufacturing
industry and achieve complementary advantages in its business,
which will help the Company to accelerate the transformation and
upgrade of its business.

Keep an eye on the annual budget and making
progress on market development in a stable

manner
Gas Storage and Transportation Segment:

The steady growth in the revenue from export business indicates
that the Company overcame the impact of anti-globalization and the
short term market fluctuation to achieve certain growth in export
market. The Company has achieved multiple deliveries for hydrogen
energy products. The Company has also focused on developing
lightweight and high-pressure series products in the industrial gas
and fire services and completed batch delivery of Type IV cylinders
for the field of natural gas applications.

Intelligent Manufacturing Segment:

By expanding the home appliances business market and grasping
the core customers, the Company can give full play to the brand
advantages and expand the high end market share. Jingcheng
Machinery Electric established strategic cooperation with Haier
Group and concentrated on developing core customer resources,
achieving breakthroughs in the field of intelligent manufacturing
of air conditioners, refrigerators (cabinets), washing machines and
stamp lines in water heaters, which provided order guarantee for the
realization of BYTQ's annual operation target.

Section 3 Management Discussion

and Analysis
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and Analysis
EEENWEDT

. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(Continued)

3.

Continue innovation-driven development and

intensively undertaking key projects

The hydrogen energy product completed various research and
production of products such as type IV cylinders and hydrogen filling
station. The digital automation transformation has been carried out
in an orderly manner. Shanghai Tianhai automation transformation
project has completed pre-inspection with its work efficiency
increased significantly; Tianjin Tianhai intelligent transformation has
completed overall adjustment and the production capacity has been
steadily improved, and the production capacity and efficiency have
reached the target value.

BYTQ, the subsidiary, has obtained the title of the first batch of
“Specialized and New"” small and medium-sized enterprise in
Qingdao City in 2022. By increasing the technological innovation
and upgrading of intelligent manufacturing and the construction
of integrated intelligent factory, BYTQ will gradually improve the
Company'’s technical competitiveness of intelligent manufacturing
and make the intelligent products deeply integrate into the domestic
circular economy, which will be conducive to broaden the business
scale of the Company, improve the profitability of the Company and
promote synergy and efficiency in the businesses of enterprises.

Strengthen the lean management and standardize

the system process

By using reducing costs expensed in procurement, production,
technology and management and reducing the percentage of
accounts receivable and inventory in total assets as the grasp, and
promoting the “three cutting, one reduction and one improvement”
special action as the opportunity to implement the whole process of
production and operation and the whole chain of lean management,
the Company comprehensively improved its operation quality.

To implement the requirements of the three-year reform of state-
owned enterprises, the Company clarified compliance management
requirements in key areas and included them in the evaluation of
internal control compliance, guided its subsidiaries to determine
the main points and achieve full coverage of the compliance
management system by combining the actual compliance plan.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Situation of the industry in which the
Company operated during the Reporting
Period

(1

Gas Storage and Transportation Segment

Industrial gas industry

In recent years, the national and local governments have successively
issued a series of policies to encourage the development of
industrial gas industry. New energy, new materials, electronics,
semiconductors, environmental protection, biopharmaceuticals and
other emerging industries have a growing demand for industrial
gases, which further expand the room for development of the
industrial gas industry, and the development prospects of China’s
industrial gas industry continues to show positive sign.

Fire industry

The 14th Five-Year National Fire Work Plan issued by the Work Safety
Committee of the State Council points out that by 2025, the fire
safety risk prevention and control system and the fire rescue force
system with Chinese characteristics will be basically established, and
by 2035, a fire governance system with Chinese characteristics will
be established to match with the basic realization of modernization.
Under the continuous promotion of national policies, governments
at all levels attach high importance to fire work and continuously
promote the rapid development of the fire industry, the future
demand for fire products will continue to expand, and it is expected
that the fire industry will continue to show a growth trend in 2023.

Natural gas industry

In 2022, due to the slowdown in domestic economic growth and
the impact of high international natural gas prices, the demand of
natural gas industry market has been suppressed to certain extent.
The data recently published by the National Bureau of Statistics of
China shows that natural gas which rapid rose showed simultaneous
negative growth in total consumption and consumption structure for
the first time in 2022. The demand for natural gas in China is mainly
industrial, chemical, transportation and residential gas, and natural
gas power generation will also increase in the future, therefore, the
long-term trend of natural gas consumption will still return to the
growth track. In 2023, with the recovery of the national economy,
energy prices maintain a low and stable confidence growth, China’s
natural gas consumption is expected to return to positive growth,
coupled with the promotion of a series of policies such as domestic
low-carbon environmental protection, energy-saving and emission
reduction subsidies and the long-term development is expected to
remain optimistic.

Hydrogen and fuel cell industry

The medium- and long-term plan for the development of the
national hydrogen energy industry and the “14th Five-Year Plan”
for the development of hydrogen energy in various provinces and
municipalities have clearly defined the important position of the
hydrogen energy industry in the future national energy system. In
2022, the domestic hydrogen energy industry grew at a relatively
fast pace and the domestic hydrogen fuel cell vehicle has formed
an regional industrial clustering effect, however, in the short term,
due to the high costs of hydrogen products production, storage and
transportation, the annual sales volume of hydrogen-fueled vehicles
has not met the expectations. Recently, various provinces and cities,
including Beijing, Shanghai and Guangdong, have formulated
policies and plans related to the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry,
with detailed layouts for the planning and construction of hydrogen
filling stations, the promotion and application of hydrogen fuel cell
vehicles and the core industrial chain. The sales volume of hydrogen
fuel cell vehicles is expected to achieve growth in 2023.
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Il. Situation of the industry in which the
Company operated during the reporting

period (Continued)

(2) Intelligent Manufacturing Segment
Automation Equipment Industry:

In 2022, the robotics industry companies showed a trend of rapid
growth in market size, operating income and profits, and the market
size of automation equipment is expected to further expand in the
future as the level of automation in China’s manufacturing industry
continues to increase. In addition, the industry nationalisation
rate such as industrial robotics and work monitoring system is
still relatively low and the industrial robotics market is a blue
ocean market. In the future, there will be a huge room for the
future growth of the domestic market share, and there is plenty
of opportunity and space for the development of intelligent
manufacturing enterprises.

Home appliances industry:

Qingdao City focuses on building strong linkage of key industries
to accelerate the cultivation of world-class intelligent home
appliance advanced manufacturing clusters, and promote the quality
development of the manufacturing industry. The Industry and
Information Bureau has formulated the “Qingdao City Intelligent
Home Appliance Key Components Investment Guide Catalogue
(2022)" to guide the investment of core enterprises such as Haier,
Aucma and Hisense. The largest project invested by Haier in China is
located in Jiaozhou, Qingdao, and the Haier Kaaosi industrial internet
cemeteries project has commenced construction in the core area of
SCODA, and the future development of the industry is promising.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

A}

(2)

WREHANABRMETERR @

R RERIR
ABLRETE

2022F MBATERRRBEMISR
BRI B ERIERABY
RRBEE B EERE B BOKFRIRE
RE - BRLREMSAEDEEE—
FA - HERIHBE T EMEA - T
RESTEBECEDRIE - TEHER
ATIZERE ST - RKANEM SN
HERAZEHEEAX  DRslEr ¥ NER
e MEMEIETEM -

NN
i
HE

MRESHEXZE R - IR
RMEREREFEREXER -
HEEXEERRE T IEMEELR
HEIKEEM SR EERTIITIRES
[ B 8% (20225 A)) - 5| 8/FH B
BOBEEROLERE - BRAETH
RERKBRZRPESBM  BEARR
BT EEMMELEREIRE £ LSRR
BT - ITRERARAH -

ooy
Fim @




Section 3 Management Discussion IR
and Analysis
E=H BEEWESN

REHA R BEENERIBER

[1]
HH

lll. Businesses engaged by the Company during
the Reporting Period

Business scope: ReEEE

Licensed items of operation: general logistics; professional contracting. FTAIACEIER - TBEE  HEAE -
General scope of operation: development, design, sales, installation, —MRACEIER ¢ R RE - HE 2R
adjustment and trial, maintenance of cryogenic containers for storage and 2 BRERARERS  BiEg(EEARE
transportation, compressors (piston compressor, membrane compressor o PRIR AR R R AR R
and nuclear-grade membrane compressor) and accessories; machinery MR - BRERME - BRINHH - RWRE
equipment and electrical equipment; technical consultancy and technical EY#EED - RigER 0 - RIEEE A - B
services; import and export of commodities, import and export of FEAE (P ERERERE) ERAREEE
technology and acting as an agency for import and export. Manufacturing (TET A EEXRERIE) WA
of general equipment (excluding special equipment); manufacturing of HWBEHE S AMalERERE B
special equipment (excluding manufacturing of licensed professional HEER ANROBRE - T2EMEE ABUE ¢ FREHEBA
equipment); research and development of machinery and equipment; SHE  TEMBAMEE ) THEMRSATE -4
sales of machinery and equipment; manufacturing of intelligent basic & RIBRIEGIMIERE - ATEREIHE
manufacturing equipment; research and development of intelligent THEEHEFHRGEERE  TEFEEHR
robotics; manufacturing of industrial robotics; sales of intelligent robotics; SRBHE SRR RMEMEEE  BTIRE
sales of industrial robotics; installation and maintenance of industrial BRE  BFIREEEHE  AhmBRERR
robotics; manufacturing of servo control unit; sales of artificial intelligent ERE  AmEREAREEE  TRENE
hardware; manufacturing of industrial automatic control system devices; BLRERE  EEFMERRG - NIFFRE
sales of industrial automatic control system devices; sales of intelligent BUHE S ERIMTEARE - BirhRiE - &
storage equipment; manufacturing of ocean engineering equipment; %« BITEH - BN - Tz - &
sales of ocean engineering equipment; manufacturing of oil drilling and T TREEBBEUERE  BWELR
production equipment; sales of oil drilling and production equipment; RIGEHA @BV ERE  SBMEHHE -
installation services of general machinery and equipment; information (FRECEALSHOERIER SN - BB EHREOEE
system integration services; software development; sales of software; FTHERLLEE)FFAIER - ERTER -
information technology consultation services; technical services, technology (BORZEEHEMIER - &MERIBPIHLER A
development, technology consulting, technology exchange, technology FEQEEE) - AL LIa R AR B PIft &
transfer, technology promotion; industrial internet information services; ST AR M RRE) o

import and export of commodities; import and export of technology;
manufacturing of metallic products; sales of metallic products. (Other than
the items subject to approval according to laws, operating activities shall
be operated by itself based on the business license and in accordance with
laws) Permitted items: electrical installation services. (For items subject
to approval in accordance with laws, operating activities can only be
conducted upon approval by relevant authorities, and the specific business
items are subject to the approval documents or licenses issued by relevant
authorities).

Main products: FTEER:

1. Gas Storage and Transportation Segment: 1. SREFERR
Main products include: liquidified natural gas (LNG) cylinders for FEERBE  ERRIERARLNG)E
vehicles, compressed natural gas (CNG) cylinders for vehicles, - ERARERARCNGRIA - HEE
seamless steel gas cylinders, welded insulated cylinders, carbon fiber RN - BEBERM - RAE T ES
full-winding compound gas cylinders, ISO tank containers, cryogenic BARMA - 1SOEA LR KRR -
tanks, aluminum carbon fiber full-winding compound gas cylinders RIS AR NEMEE S EEEAR
for fuel cells, plastic carbon fiber full-winding compound gas i BRI RA A DR RS R
cylinders as well as filling station equipment. INE|IL B -
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lll. Businesses engaged by the Company during

the Reporting Period (continued)

2. Intelligent manufacturing segment:
Main products include ground conveyance and assembly system
products, suspension chain air conveyance system products,
integrated robotic applications and stamping lines products, non-
standard automation machine products, etc.

IV. Analysis of core competencies during the

Reporting Period
\ Applicable  TJ Not applicable

() Gas storage and transportation segment
After years of development, the Company has the following
competitive advantages in terms of scale and brand, technology,
sales network, human resources, etc.:

1. Scale and Brand Advantages

The Company is a group company consisted of eight production
bases for the manufacture of professional gas storage and
transportation equipment and a company located in the United
States. With 20 years of operation development, the Company has
established a corporate image of fine technology foundation and
product stability and reliability in the industry; and the Tianhai brand
has become one of the well-known brands.

2. Technology Advantages

After continuous technology research and development, the
Company has A1, A2, C2 and C3 level pressure vessel design
qualifications and A1, A2, B1, B2, B3, C2, C3, D1 and D2 level
pressure vessel manufacturing qualifications currently. It can
produce over 800 types of seamless steel gas cylinders, winding
gas cylinders, accumulator shells, asbestos-free acetylene cylinders,
welded insulated cylinders, carbon fiber full-winding compound
gas cylinders (including those for vehicles), plastic carbon fiber full-
winding compound gas cylinders, cryogenic tanks and filling stations;
the Company'’s products are widely applied in automotive, chemical,
fire-fighting, medical, petroleum, energy, urban construction, food,
metallurgy, machinery, electronics and other industries.

Meanwhile, with an accurate grasp of the clean energy market,
the Company has combined different aspects of technologies in
respect of LNG cylinders for vehicles, CNG cylinders, cryogenic
tanks and natural gas vehicle filling stations and is able to provide
customers with LNG/CNG system solutions. The Company is also
capable of designing and manufacturing cryogenic tanks and IMO
tank container products of different volume and pressure level in
accordance with China pressure vessel standards, EU ADM and
97/23/ECPED and Australia/New Zealand AS1210 standards.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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IV. Analysis of core competencies during the
Reporting Period (continued)

3.

Sales Network Advantages

The Company has established a complete sales network equipped
with over 30 distribution offices scattering across the country,
achieving a full geographical coverage nationwide, and is capable of
offering components to largest-scaled automobile manufacturers of
the national automobile industry in the supply chain of components
for domestic mainstream automobile manufacturers. The Company
has also set up eight overseas sales offices which are mainly located
in the United States, Singapore, Korea, India, Australia and other
countries. Relevant products have been accepted by seven out of
the world’s top eight influential gas companies. To build a bridge
between the basic unit and the market, and to increase the vitality
of the strategy execution unit and results of operation, the Company
carried out transformation and upgrade of the internal management
and control so that each of its subsidiaries could establish a business
model of unifying research, production, supply and sales, so as
to fully unleash the potential of the organization, make flexible
and quick responses to the changes in the market and effectively
enhance the results of operation.

Leveraging on advanced technology, outstanding management,
reliable products and completed aftersales services system,
the Company is keeping its pace of becoming a global leading
manufacturing and service enterprise of energy gas storage devices.

Human Resources Advantages

In order to provide a career development platform for its
management and employees to grow with the Company and share
the fruits of development and to create a good corporate culture,
the Company has established an internal organizational system
and operational mechanism, performance appraisal mechanism
and salary and welfare system which meet the requirements
for market competition. It aimed to retain talents with strong
prospects, competitive remuneration and loyalty. It has established
a team of talents with ability and integrity, core competence and
professional quality in respect of in research and development, sales,
management, operation and production.

()  Intelligent Manufacturing Segment
After years of development, BYTQ, a subsidiary of the
Company, has the following competitive advantages in terms
of technology, sales and talents:

1. Technology advantages: the company focuses on
the industrial automation field and deeply engages
in the home appliances industry. With the enterprise
informalization business module as the driving core and
customized intelligent manufacturing equipment as the
base, the company has the ability to provide industrial
automation, digitalization, networking and intelligent
products and services to customers by connecting the
equipment with the control system, operation and
decision making.

2. Sales advantages: The company has established a
strong sales team which focuses on core customers,
understands customers’ needs in depth, fully releases
the vitality of the team, and can quickly adjust the
marketing model in response to market changes. With
advanced technology, reliable quality and excellent
sales management team, the company has targeted at
the home appliances business sub-market and steadily
expanded its market share.
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IV. Analysis of core competencies during the
Reporting Period (continued)

4. Human Resources Advantages (Continued) 4- HERES @)
() Intelligent Manufacturing Segment (Continued) (Z) EHreEmRR (&)
3. Human resources advantages: The company has set up 3. ANERED : ATRHERET
an efficient and professional staff team, established a EMEEHABEK - 2T
performance appraisal and salary and welfare system to T BB AN B AR )

B FZO#EPETHE A
MBS - BB THREH
e 533 HWEE’JEFA R

fully mobilize the employees’ innovation initiatives, and
provided a platform for employees to grow together
with the enterprise. The company cultivates excellent

22

talents with high professional quality in core positions Tﬁ HE - fﬁ’% B &
such as technology, production, sales, management %> F‘§§¥§T£
and operation. iﬂﬁfﬁﬂ’ﬂgﬁ/\ﬁ

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting

Period

During the Reporting Period, the Company realized operating income of
approximately RMB1.372 billion, representing an increase of approximately
16.03% as compared with the corresponding period of the previous year.
Net profits attributable to shareholders of the Company was approximately

RMB18.3024 million.

(i) Analysis of principal business

1. Table of movement analysis on the related items in

income statement and cash flow statement

- HEHREELESER

HEHA -

LE 3 R ’]16 03% ;

fﬁ%%ﬂ&z)\%@w.n%ﬁ ' [A
558 LN RIRCR B

#9731,830.24& 7T ©

(=) EEXBIM

1.

MERRRERERMEBENE R
ok

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By o BEARK

Corresponding

period of
Item Current year last year Change (%)
NE NG LERBY BELLPI(%)
Operating income EELON 1,372,261,232.14  1,182,664,494.03 16.03
Operating cost SRR 1,186,461,657.86  1,053,267,942.82 1265
Selling expense HEER 31,940,023.66 34,036,511.06 -6.16
Administrative expense EREBA 101,820,649.76 95,132,712.12 7.03
Finance cost Eﬁ%ﬁﬂ% 9,165,646.57 12,816,032.83 -28.48
R&D expenses e B 47,649,016.32 26,536,621.86 79.56
Net cash flows generated from operating activities & EBELNHLHEFE 5,223,758.74 -32,694,712.35 Not app#czibgg
NE
Net cash flows generated from investing activities & EEELMALTEFE -63,409,608.31 -59,371,985.68 Not appqh_cab}%zej
NE
Net cash flows generated from financing activities ~ &2 EBELHMREREFH 242,886,708.61 -71,190,178.01 Not app%l_ca%%g
NE
Taxes and surcharge B& R 7,512,492.91 5,534,307.59 35.74
Other income Hb s 15,304,144.59 10,065,386.91 52.05
Investment income Tﬁﬁuﬁlﬁé 25,075,531.62 19,146,786.10 30.96
Profit arising from changes in fair value DR EEZEYE - 30,675.01 -100.00
Credit impairment loss ERRER 3,594,695.68 199,499.78 1701.85
Incomes of assets disposal EEREWE 324,288.25 197,317.56 64.35
Non-operating revenue =ELIVION 12,213,843.95 872,734.66 1,299.49
Non-operating expenses SENT 3,340,210.19 1,311,245.38 154.74
Income tax expenses BHER 7,298,542.11 4,158,891.52 75.49
Net of tax of other comprehensive income Hipira anpie#E 3,486,077.88 -773,087.38 Not applicable
NEm
REFRRIFEGHE - FUBREK

Details of the material changes in type of business, profit
components or income sources of the Company in the current

period

[J Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting o REFAFELE B @
Period (continued)
Analy5|s of principal business (Continued) (—) EEXEBIM @
Analysis of income and cost 2. H&A*ﬂﬁkﬂﬁﬂ 76‘?
\ Applicable [ Not applicable VER O TEA
The Company continued to optimize its product structure. NAITEHBLERERE - ~@E
During the Reporting Period, operating revenue increased B AL S R AR IS hn 49
by approximately RMB189.5967 million and operating 18,959.67& 7T * EHEKALL L5
costs increased by approximately RMB133.1937 million as [EIHAE AN%Y13,319.378 7T »
compared to the corresponding period of the previous year.
(1)  Principal business by industry, by product, by (1) ZFEEBSTHE > 7ER-
region and by sales model THE - FHEEIER

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
Bl T B ARE

Principal business by product

TEERAERER
Increase/ Increase/
decrease in decreasein  Increase/decrease in
Operating Gross profit operatingincome ~ operating cost gross profit margin
income  Operating cost margin (%) over last year (%) over last year (%) over last year (%)
EEPA EXAHA %S
By product PER BEHA BEHA ENEC)  HEFEE%)  HLFEE%) b (%)
(as storage and transportation product REREED 1,163,154,426.08  1,067,783,011.85 820 24 422 Decrease of 1.59
percentage points
A1 50EF %
Automatic manufacturing equipment system BEICUEREZ 12951717072 73,292,666.20 8341 - -
integration HER
Others Hth 31,870,104.51 8,200,219.98 7427 - -
Total At 1,324,541,701.31 1,149,275,898.03 133 16.63 12.18 Increase of 3.4
percentage points
B MEESY
Principal business by region
TEEHAHERER
Increase/ Increase/
decrease in decreasein  Increase/decrease in
Operating Gross profit operating income ~ operating cost gross profit margin
income  Operating cost margin (%) over last year (%) over last year (%) over last year (%)
EXPAL EXAAL k71 Ed
By region HE BEHA BERA ERIE(%) LEH (%) LE#H (%) LEER(%)
Domestic An 751,446,463.47  632,911,260.37 15.77 12.00 633 Increase of 4.49
percentage points
i 49EARG
Overseas i 573,095,237.84  516,364,637.66 9.90 2331 2029 Increase of 2.26
percentage points
EM.26EE A
Total At 1,324541,701.31  1,149,275,898.03 13.23 16.63 12.18 Increase of 344
percentage points
B3 4EASS
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting - REHRNETELLBFR@
Period (continued)
(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued) (=) FEEBRI @
2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2. WARRAE DT (E)

(1)  Principal business by industry, by product and by (1) ZFEEBESTE > 7ER-
region (Continued) THE I AT S ()
Description of principal business by industry, by product FERBITE - DED
and by region DU ISR
Domestic market: Adjusting the product structure, BAm : HEEMREE
focusing on improving cost control and product delivery SRR RN I fn 32
capability, and actively expanding into the fields of new 887 - ARAR IR R T A FE P
application, the revenue from the domestic market CEf - AmEHABEA TS
grew by 12% year-on-year during the Reporting Period. WA ER12% ©
International market: Growing steadily in revenue, BIFR T WARERE K
overcoming the impact of counter-globalization and the AR R IR RIS BT 5K
short term market fluctuation, the Company achieved B R  FIk - ENED
substantial growth in the North American and Asian S TRARBEER - K
markets. The revenue from the international markets WS HARER M S AR
grew by 23.31% year-on-year during the Reporting ER23.31% °
Period.

(2)  Analysis of production and sales volume (2) E#HBREISHE
\ Applicable 1 Not applicable ViER O TEA

Increase/ Increase/

decrease in decrease in
production  sales volume Increase/decrease in

Production Inventory  volume over  overlastyear inventory volume
Principal product Unit volume  Sales volume volume last year (%) %)  over last year (%)
tEE HESL BrE
TEER Efy EEER HER BEE  LEEH(%)  LEEHE%) LEZRE(%)
Seamless steel gas cylinders Unit 868,108 1,190,959 148 584 -132% 3.2% -24.6%
RERERM £
Compound gas cylinders Unit 117,327 121,777 6,524 9.2% 11.9% -42.1%
BARA £
Cryogenic tanks Unit 262 280 34 -46.1% -374% -34.6%
Eabh £
Cryogenic gas cylinders Unit 8426 1,758 969 5.0% -2.0% 19.5%
1&‘/5%1 g
Description of production and sales volume e S
The production volume declined in 2022 due to the 2022 F S HTIS R EE
factors such as the short term market fluctuation, HEBEe 5 N -
however, with the continuous growth in demand from BREZEITISE L
overseas market, the sales volume increased by 3.2% e, SUEFE L IEE
year-on-year and the finished goods inventory volume 3.2% - B ER AR
declined significantly. 7 o
The production volume and sales volume are not EHLE R SE S A e s
comparable as the products of BYTQ are non-standard L LINETESR 85
customized equipment, its production is based on sales B BEAESEELS
and there is no inventory and every product scale and EAE EERIERET
amount are different. [T
3) Per_formance of major purchase contracts and (3) BAFELE  EAHES
major sales contracts BTSSR
[J Applicable ' Not applicable 0@/ N Em

24 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting # - HEHAETELLHER @
Period (continued)
(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued)

(=) FEEKDT @

2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2. WARRAEDH (HE)
(4) ~ Cost analysis (4) HEZIE
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T R ARK
By Product
AERER
Proportion over
Proportion total cost for the
over total cost  Corresponding  corresponding Change in
Current forthe current  period of last  period of last  amount over

o period period (%) year year(%)  lastyear(%)  Description
RARH AliE L IERHE ABSEELE .
By product PER Component of cost & H TESE  HALA%) RAHeE  ERRLA%) BELBLA%) RS
Gasstorage and transportation ~~ REFEER  Materias T 67946942671 63.63  664,659,988.19 6488 13
products Labour cost AIE 90,598,033.89 849 90,571,010.61 884 0.03
Manufacturing cost 2% 297,715,551.25 2788 269,270,367.19 26.28 1056
Total At 1,067,783,011.85 100.00 1,024,501,365.99 10000 a0
Automatic manufacturing equipment £ 3 2HERE  Materidls 1 61451,642.01 8385 - - -
system integration s Labour cost ALE 5939,800.78 8.10 - - -
Manufacturing cost ~ 54% 5901,223.41 8.5 - - -
Tota A 73,292,666.20 100 - - -
Others L) Leasing cost HENA 8200,219.98 100 - - -
Total El 8,200,219.98 100 - - -
Other information on cost analysis KA E A 185
During the Reporting Period, the Company further HEHA ﬁjﬁjﬁ/@ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ
reduced the procurement cost of raw materials and %77— \%EPH{E\E =) ME?Z“#'J
auxiliary materials by developing new suppliers, ST SIRHERMEA K
implementing centralized procurement and cooperation %MT%E%EXZK ’ ﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁ%‘l i
negotiation, so as to effectively control the rapid FREBR A IBIR F3R o
increase in procurement cost.
(5) Change in scope of consolidation due to change 5) # f::‘:%i_?‘:'g F L AR EEE
in shareholding of major subsidiaries during the A HEER
reporting period . .
\ Applicable [ Not applicable ViR O TEA
1. Change in the scope of consolidation due to the 1. W%jﬁ/if FEHA
acquisition of BYTQ HEEZE

During the Reporting Period, the Company
acquired 80% equity interest in BYTQ through
the asset acquisition by way of share issuance.
On 27 June 2022, the Company issued the
“Announcement in relation to the Issuance
Results of the Asset Acquisition by way of
Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising
of Supporting Funds and Change in Share
Capital”. According to the documents such
as the business licence issued to BYTQ by the
Qingdao Administration for Market Regulation
(where BYTQ is located), as at the date of the
announcement, all the target assets of the
transaction have been changed and registered
in the name of the listed company and the listed
company directly holds 80.00% equity interest
in BYTQ and the transfer of the target assets
involved in the transaction has been completed.
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting

Period (continued)

(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued)
2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued)

(5) Change in scope of consolidation due to change
in shareholding of major subsidiaries during the
reporting perlod (Continued)

2.

Change in the scope of consolidation due to the
acquisition of 2% equity interest in Jingcheng
Haitong

During the Reporting Period, the Company
acquired 2% equity interest in Jingcheng
Haitong. On 6 July 2022, the Company issued
the “(1) Completion Announcement in relation
to the Acquisition of Further Interest in a Joint
Venture Company (2) Continuing Connected
Transactions pursuant to Rule 14A.60(1) of
the Listing Rules” announcement. Jingcheng
Haitong has completed the industrial and
commercial change registration procedures such
as change of capital contribution and the equity
ratio of shareholders and filing the “Articles
of Association”, and obtained a new business
license. The capital contribution and equity ratio
of shareholders of Jingcheng Haitong has been
changed as follows: Tianhai Industry contributes
RMB40.80 million, with a shareholding of 51%,
and Beijing Nengtong contributes RMB39.20
million, with a shareholding of 49%. The
Company indirectly controls Jingcheng Haitong
through its subsidiary Beijing Tianhai.

(6) Significant changes or adjustment in businesses,
products or services of the Company during the
Reporting Period
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

(7) Information on major customers and major
suppliers

A

Sales to major customers of the Company

\ Applicable I Not applicable

Sales to five largest customers amounted to
RMB284.3870 million, representing 20.72%
of total annual sales, of which sales to related
parties were RMBO million, representing 0% of
total annual sales.

During the Reporting Period, the proportion of
sales to a single customer exceeds 50% of the
total amount, there are new customers among
the top 5 customers or there is heavy reliance on
few customers

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting
Period (continued)
(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued)

T HEHRFTELLEET @

(—) EEEKD T @

2. Analysis of income and cost (Continued) 2. WARRAE DT (E)
(7) Information on major customers and major (7) iﬁ%g)gﬁﬁi"gﬂ?ﬁﬂ?
pAC)

suppliers (Continued)
B.

Major suppliers of the Company B. A AFEMEREA
\ Applicable I Not applicable VER O REA
Procurement from the five largest suppliers Al T4 (7 PR e

amounted to RMB397,151,700, representing
43.47% of total annual procurement cost,
of which procurement from related parties
were RMB99,175,800, representing 10.86%
of total annual procurement cost, and
procurement from the largest supplier amounted
to approximately RMB131,337,817.53,
representing approximately 14.38% of total
annual procurement cost.

None of the directors, their close associates, or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had interests in any of the
above five largest suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the proportion of
purchase from a single supplier exceeds 50% of
the total amount, there are new suppliers among
the top 5 suppliers or there is heavy reliance on
few customers

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Other information
Not applicable

FAR®39,715.17
B hEERE
AEBA3.47% ¢ H
Al A% L e i BR B
BB REE
AR#9,917.588
T B FEREERE
10.86% : MR AR
[ERRBREOARE
131,337,817.537C
HEERBAEY
14.38% ©

B HETBEA
HEFMBR (REE
PR A AR R B %%
TR ABIB5 % %) I
BN LA B A E
PR A (R o

R &R 7] 2 ] ¢
BIHIERAE L DIEE i 48
BEHI50% ~ FI54 H#
BB PR RIS IE
B HERBLRER LB
RIERHIIETE

O@Em TEms

HAth &t 8
TEA

3.  Expenses 3. EBH
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable ViER O TEA

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o K ARK

Corresponding

Current year period of last year Change (%)
Item A TEEHY BB BI(%)
Selling expense HEBR 31,940,023.66 34,036,511.06 -6.16
Administrative expense BB 101,820,649.76 95,132,712.12 7.03
Research and Development expenses ~ E & 47,649,016.32 26,536,621.86 79.56
Finance cost BBER 9,165,646.57 12,816,032.83 -28.48
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F * EHATELLE B @
Period (continued)

(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued) (=) FEXEBIT @
4.  Research and development expenditure 4. HTRERA
(1) Breakdown of research and development (1) HERAERF
expenditure

\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

ViEsR O @A

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o BEARK

Research and development expenditure recorded AEAE AR A 47,649,016.32
in expenses during the period

Research and development expenditure capitalised REFE AR A
during the period

Total research and development expenditure HERAEE 47,649,016.32

Percentage of total research and development B AR L & WAL (%) 3.47
expenditure over operating income (%)
Percentage of research and development expenditure HERAE R L E (%) 0.00
capitalised (%)
(2)  Research and development staff (2) WEASRRE
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable ViEA OTEA
Number of research and development staff NRAMEABNEE 159
Number of research and development staff over total HEE A B HEIEARBAZBBLLHI(%) 11.6
number of staff (%)
Academic structure of research and development S AEE2FEE
staff
Category of academic structure BREEEER Number of staff
with academic
structure
BRERAR
PhD student i 0
Postgraduate B Ae 22
Undergraduate AR} 98
Specialties g 31
Senior high school graduates and below SEVAYN 8
Age structure of research and development staff % A BFEREHE
Age structure category FiRiEBER Number of staff
with age structure
FHER AL
Under 30 (exclusive) 305% A T (‘& 305%) 52
30 (inclusive) to 40(exclusive) 30-405% (2305% © T~ =405%) 67
40 (inclusive) to 50(exclusive) 40-505% (#4075% * T &505%) 34
50 (inclusive) to 60(exclusive) 50-605% (&505% + 6057 5
60 and above 6057 & bA_E 1

(3) Description
O Applicable v Not applicable

3) 1EXRHY
O@Em s

(4) Reasons for the significant changes in the (4) HEASEBHEBRELEEALE
composition of the research and development N E T ¥
staff and the impact on the future development TE

of the Company

[ Applicable v Not applicable O@EA JTEA

28 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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V. Principal Operatlon during the Reporting T~ FREHRFTELLIE R @

Period (continued)

(i) Analysis of principal business (Continued) (—) EEEBRD 7@
5. Cash flows 5. BER
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable ViER O TEA

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
Bl T BB ARE

Current Corresponding
period period of last year Change (%)
Item ME rEY LEEHY BEHI(%)
Cash inflows from operating activities & &/EEIRERA 1,259,985,741.75  1,086,666,026.03 15.95
Cash outflows from operating activities &2 EE)RE R 1,254,761,983.01  1,119,360,738.38 12.10
Net cash flows generated from BEEDEANRSRETE 5,223,758.74 -32,694,712.35 Not Applicable
operating activities TiER
Cash inflows from investing activities ~ &ZEEFERERA 62,869,752.60 996,336.65 6,210.09
Cash outflows from investing activities & /EEIRE R 126,279,360.91 60,368,322.33 109.18
Net cash flows generated from RETHEANRSTEFE -63,409,608.31 -59,371,985.68 Not Applicable
investing activities TiER
Cash inflows from financing activities ~ S&EFBHRE A 425,165,977.40 113,870,000.00 273.38
Cash outflows from financing activities Z&/FERE T 182,279,268.79 185,060,178.01 -1.50
Net cash flows generated from EEEHEANRESTETE 242,886,708.61 -71,190,178.01 Not Applicable
financing activities TiER
Description: 1. Net cash flow from operating activities increased B EEBIR & FRER LI NN4Y3,791.85
by approximately RMB37,918,500 compared with Bt TERAHGEEHRSTAL
the corresponding period last year, which was e EABSEEER R EFREIG
mainly due to the increase in cash inflow from s
operating activities, which increased the net cash
flows from operating activities during the period;
2. Net cash flow from the investing activities 2. REZHEANBRSRSFHERLRD
decreased by approximately RMB4,037,600 #7403.76 87t - TERAHERETE
compared with the corresponding period last year, BE EBREENMEMRAEES N
which was mainly attributable to the increase in WEIBMPTEL :
the cash paid for the purchase of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long term assets
during the period;
3. Net cash flow from financing activities increased 3. BETHELANRSTEFERLLILM

by approximately RMB314,076,900 compared
with the corresponding period last year, which
was mainly due to the funds received from
issuance of shares and special funds allocated
by controlling shareholders for research and
development during the period.

(ii) Description of material change in profit due to

non-principal business
[ Applicable v Not Applicable

#)31,407.69B T 2 EARHBITHRER
BFES - RSERRRBNNAESR
HEGPTE -

(Z) kFEXBEHFBERBLN

g

& B

O@Em Y 1Em
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F=E EREEFWESH

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F ~ :REHR

Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities

3 QALK NEST (g
FELKEEN @

(=) BE - 8EBRDWT

VB

\ Applicable [J Not Applicable O A
1. Assets and liabilities 1. EBEREGMRR
Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T BEARK
Balance at Balance at
the end the end Change in
Balance at  of the current Balance at of the previous  amount over
theendofthe  period over the end of the period over total the previous
Name of item current period total assets (%) previous period assets (%) period (%)  Description
FHARELE LHAARE  AHEREE
BEEN BEEN BLOEAZE
B4R AHHRE wOl%)  LEERE (%) KAl ERAE
Monetary funds 336,627,993.24 1383 105,776,763.72 6.74 21824 Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
LR during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ
and Jingcheng Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated
statements
IERABAHAREREE TR LERE  RUERHALE
Al EREEYERY
Financial assets held for - 0.00 30,675.01 0.00 -100.00  Mainly due to the forward exchange settlement and sales in the
trading previous period
LolteRERE 1ER I HARRLEERY
Notes receivable 8,603,853.52 035 - 0.00 100.00  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
[ es during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ in
the scope of the Company's consolidated statements
IERABAHAREERE TR WEREDALTRKERE
B ERY
Accounts receivable 315,652,015.26 1297 175,225,19163 11.17 80.14  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
FeMEE during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ
and Jingcheng Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated
statements
IERAHCOEREERA TR LERE  RAERAALT
Al RREEYERY
Receivable financing 29,790,417.72 122 10,465,061.76 0.67 184.67  Mainly due to the increase in hank acceptance bil planned to be settled
RERE in advance during the current period
IERAH R S ENFTR R ERENAH
Other receivables 4,809,858.44 020 9,636,026.09 0.61 -50.08  Mainly due to the decrease in the intercourse funds during the current
AN period
TERABARTRLHY
Other current assets 10,221,016.45 042 27386,862.15 175 -6268  Mainly as a result of the impact of tax refunds retained by subsidiaries
EfthgAE IZRTETRRBERRTENY
Construction in progress 59,457,140.18 244 38592,075.56 246 5407 Mainly due to the increased investment on type IV cylinder project
fEIR during the current period
TERAHOAREREMRARR
Right-of-use assets 220,518,068.16 9.06 - 0.00 100.00  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
fFREsE during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ
and Jingcheng Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated
statements
TERAMGUBREBLE TR LERE  RASAHALE
ARREEYENY
Intangible assets 192,378,307.38 790 120,037,115.68 765 60.27  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
BVAE during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ in

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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the scope of the Company's consolidated statements
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Section 3 Management Discussion IR
and Analysis
E=H BEEWESN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F * EHATELLE B @
Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities (Continued) (Z) BE - EaBEBERD T @
1.  Assets and liabilities (Continued) 1. EERESERRGE
Balance at Balance at
the end the end Change in

Balanceat  of the current Balance at of the previous  amount over
theendofthe  period over the end of the period over total the previous

Name of item current period total assets (%) previous period assets (%) period (%)  Description
FHARELE LEAREE  AHEREE
RN BEEN BLHHFEE
EEAR TEHRY Ehle)  LEERH HA(%) fhice)  EREE
Goodwill 168,996,039.10 6.94 - 0.00 100.00  Mainly as a result of the cost of acquiring the equity interest in BYTQ
L being greater than the share of the fair value of the identifiable net assets

based on the percentage of shareholding

IRANEERBREMRA AN R M S DR EE

M EENHEFR
Long-term deferred expenses  16,622,473.45 068 437274588 0.28 280.14 Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
RHGAER during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of Jingcheng

Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated statements
IERAMAMBREREL TR WUSRAALT SRS
EFEnH
Other non-current assets 26,835,176.42 1.10 - 0.00 100.00  Mainly due to the prepayment for equipment by subsidiaries during the
Eftngaz current period
IERAHTETAREMNRENY
Deferred income tax assets 8,340,599.88 034 51,632.65 0.00 16,053.73  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
EEmEHAR during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ
and Jingcheng Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated
statements
IZRAHLHAREREE TR LERE  RUERAALE
AlRREEYENY
Notes payable 77,497 454.43 318 50,693,681.14 33 52.87  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
EfRE during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQin
the scope of the Company's consolidated statements
TERAHGURABERLE TR HERENALRGHERE
EFEfu
Taxes payable 21,834,560.15 090  6,186,73262 039 25293 Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
EXHE during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ
and Jingcheng Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated
statements
IERAEAIRRGERE TR LERE  RUBBAALT
AEREEYERY
Other payables 63,942,916.44 263 25960,072.78 166 146,31 Mainly attributable to the amount payable to the former shareholder
EHERT of BYTQ for the transfer of equity interest and the deposits payable by
Jingcheng Haitong
;i&h@ﬁt#ﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%’é%%&W‘}iﬁh@ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ%
Non-current liabilities due 21,127,930.84 087 7,000,000.00 045 201,83 Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
within one year during the current period and the lease liabilities due within one year
—FRISNEREEE from Jingcheng Haitong
E%Mﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@ft SR -ERIBNEER
g8
Other current liabilities 6,677,447.44 027 461393002 0.29 4472 Mainly due to the reclassification of value-added tax in contract
EthRBaE liabiltes for the current period
IR AR EREN BT
Lease liabilities 248,801,063.86 10.22 - 0.00 100.00  Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
REak during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQ
and Jingcheng Haitong in the scope of the Company's consolidated
statements
IZRAHLHAREREE TR HERE  RUERMALR
AbRRERTERY
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I Scction 3 Management Discussion
and Analysis
E=H BEEWESN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F - #|%& HWEE?““F?R(%)
Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities (Continued) (2) BEE - BEBRD T @
1.  Assets and liabilities (Continued) 1. EERESERRGE
Balance at Balance at
the end the end Change in

Balanceat  of the current Balance at of the previous  amount over
theendofthe  period over the end of the period over total the previous

Name of item current period total assets (%) previous period assets (%) period (%)  Description

FHARELE LEAREE  AHEREE

“EEN BEEN BLHHFEE
B4R TEHRY Ehle)  LEERH HA(%) B  EREE
Long-term payables 113,207,700.00 465 30,000,000.00 191 27736 Mainly due to the acquisition of specific payables by subsidiaries during
REENH the current period
IERTAFLANGERENTAY

Estimated liabilities 8,020,131.96 033 5794470.12 037 3841 Mainly due to the change in the scope of the consolidated statements
BiaE during the current period and the impact of the inclusion of BYTQin

the scope of the Company's consolidated statements

IERAHAMRRNERA TRE  LEREMALTAHHES

EFEnH
Deferred incomes 358,604.17 001 531887905 034 -93.26  Mainly due to the carrying over from a subsidiary to other income
it during the current penod

TERAHTETARSEH AR
Capital reserves 1,151,11,016.32 4728 835,353,861.68 53.26 3780 Mainly due to the dlfference between the consideration for the
B purchase and merger of BYTQ and the consideration of share issuance

and cash payment during the current period

IERAMEELERFANHERI RO AR HENZE

e
Other comprehensive income  2,128,736.81 009 -1,030,19420 -0.07 -306.63  Mainly due to the impact of exchange differences arising from
Efttrals translation of foreign currency statements
IERIBRRARERYENT
Special reserves 124,960.21 0.01 - 0.00 100.00  Mainly due to the provision of production safety expense by subsidiaries
vty Other comprehensive income
IERTRTRAMRRREERMY
Other information E b7
Nil E
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Section 3 Management Discussion [N
and Analysis
E=H BEEWESN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F * EHATELLE B @
Period (continued)

(iii) Analysis of assets and liabilities (=) ﬁis BEBERD @
2.  Overseas Assets BINEERBR
\ Applicable [ Not applicable VER O TEA
(1)  Size of assets (1) EBEHRE )
Including: overseas assets of 220,032,623.37 (Unit: H &F - 35 N EE
Yuan Currency: RMB), accounting for 9.04% of the 220,032,623.37 (8417 : JT
total assets. E : AR®) - 50EE
L1 79.04% ©
(2)  Details of the higher proportion of overseas assets (2) BIEEEHESHIEET
%
] Applicable v Not applicable O @A~ FEm
3.  Properties held for investment purposes 3. BERERRNWE
Beijing Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture Development BIA E&%iﬁﬁftﬂﬁXﬂi%)ﬁ
Co., Ltd. is located in No. 9 Tianying North Road, Chaoyang BRAF R EMEEGEXR
District, Beijing, and is mainly used for an integrated industrial E’itﬂi%ﬁ REZANBGE - 2
park with transformation, construction and operation of BRI XTKE‘J“
technical innovations, cultural creativity and business office ?ﬁﬁ%#})# /‘*E%ZE HEEERE -
with long-term leasing. Such property is not a freehold. EHRAREELHE - aZW%TE
TR A ZERE -
4.  Major restricted assets at the end of the Reporting 4. EBERSHRTIEEEZRER
Period
\ Applicable I Not Applicable ViER O R EA

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
Bl T BEARE

Closing balance Opening balance

Item EH FARERE FHEE
L/C guarantee deposit ERBERES 22,374,406.22 3,551,143.00
Deposits of bank acceptance bill RITEHEZRES 46,822,813.02 22,000,000.00
Litigation freeze SRR R4S 3,625,647.23 0.00
Bond for letter of guarantee REFIRFE D 2,926.79 2,908.98
Foreign exchange trading margin %lﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ 0.00 330,878.00
Total A&t 72,825,793.26 25,884,929.98

5.  Other descriptions 5. HfhEkeA
[ Applicable  + Not Applicable O @A N EA

(iv) Analysis of industry operation (M) ITEREMESE DM
\ Applicable 1 Not Applicable \/ A DT &

The principal business of the Company is the manufacturing of gas
storage and transportation equipment and intelligent equipment

EI

AEEEBRRE ﬁﬁkiéﬁiz_&%”
RS (TEAEMARERERR

&
B} S

manufacturing. For specific industry-related information, please refer WERIE=EEE miﬁi’yﬂﬁj
to the sections headed “Section 3 Management Discussion and AR

Analysis” in this annual report.

Analysis of investments REMR DT

General analysis of external equity investments HIOMNRREREEBE DT

[ Applicable v Not Applicable O@Em N TEs
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I Scction 3 Management Discussion

and Analysis
E=H BEETWESAT

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F * EHATELLE B @
Period (continued)

(iv) Analysis of industry operation (Continued) (M) TERKREMEES2TE@
1.  Material equity investments 1. BAHRERE
< Applicable ] Not Applicable ViR OTER

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By o BEARK

Whether
the subject
is mainly Financial Progress Effect on
engagedin statement Cooperation Durationof asofthe  Estimated profitor ~ Whetherany Date of
Name of investee ~~ Main investment  Investment  Investment Whether ~ item Sourcesof  partner investment balance  eamings lossforthe lawsuitis disclosure  Index of disclosure
company business business ~ method  amount  Shareholding consolidated (if applicable) fund (if applicable) (if any) sheetdate ~ (if any) period ivolved ~ (if any) (ifany)
BhRE BEER
fiRE E-200 #ENE Gl RESR BBRR  EfUE  AHER BERE it EE]
NHER TERE # REFA  RESE  RRMH  RAMR  (ER) &SRR ER) @A) HERER (18 ] BA¥E R (&)
Qingdao BYTQUnited  Automatic No Acquistion 2464 milion 80% Yes / Sharelssuance / Completed ~/ 043 N Firstdisclosed ~~ The webste of the SSE
Digital Inteligence manufacturing millon on 17 August (tp:fwwww sse.com.cn) and the
(o, Ltd equipment system 200 HKEXNews website of the Stock
Integration Bichange
(www hkexnews hk)
ESMERENERE ABBEREEE A e 000 80% z / ke | BEl LI0NET B W0FAITA LARHE ity e omn
BRAT L En vt BREERSEE
i hkexnews ik
Qingdao BYTQ United  Automatic No Capttl 30milion ~ 81.45% Yes / Share issuance / / Completed ~/ / No Firsdisclosed ~ The webste of the SSE
Digita Itellgence Co, ~ manufacturing ncrease on 17 August  (nttp:fwwsse.com.cn) and the
1td. equipment system 200 HKEXNews webste of the Stock
ntegration Bxchange
(1w Pkexnews, k)
EBERENNEY EBNEEREAE T 8 J0ET 8% R / S O / Bk / z W0F8F1T8 LRSI htphwwnssecomn
BRAA £ Bl TRE S
i hkenews. ik
Beiing ingcheng Hattong Property management, No Acquistion ~ 0.4617 51% Yes / prately-~/ / Completed ~/ 135708 Mo Fistdiscosed on - The websiteof the SSE
Technology Culture~~ property leasing milion onned milion 28 Aprl 2022ty ey s5¢.com.cn) and the
Development Co, Ltd. funds of the HKEXNews webste of the Stock
subsidiary Exchange
(wnw kexnews k)
ABRSEENARY H2ER BERE 7 Wi BT 5% 3 | FAEE / Bsf 13570887 & WELERE LRSS bty sse coman
IRARAT & Bt BRfERAEL
i hkenews ik
Total / / / 068617/ / / / / / / / Mot/ / /
millon milion
27,686.17 549721
it / / / En / / / / / / / / En / / /
2.  Material non-equity investments 2. EBEANEBRERE
[ Applicable V' Not Applicable O@EA TEA
3.  Financial assets measured at fair value 3. UAAEEIFENESREE
[ Applicable v Not Applicable D@EA N TNEs
Securities investment BHIEEBER
[ Applicable v Not Applicable O@EA TEA
Private fund investment FEESIREER
[ Applicable v Not Applicable D@EA N TNEs
Derivatives investment PTHERIRERR
[ Applicable v Not Applicable O@EA TEA

34 | Beijing Jlingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE



Section 3 Management Discussion [N
and Analysis
E=H BEEWESN

V. Principal Operation during the Reporting F * EHATELLE B @
Period (continued)

(iv) AnaIyS|s of industry operation (Continued)

Specific progress of major asset reorganisation and
integration during the reporting period
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

In order to enhance the Company’s ongoing operation
and profitability, the Company started implementing the
acquisition of 80% equity interests in Qingdao BYTQ United
Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd. in August 2020. On 15 December
2021, the Company issued the “Announcement on Obtaining
Conditional Approval for the Asset Acquisition by Way of
Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting
Funds from the Listed Company Merger and Reorganization
Vetting Committee of the CSRC and Resumption of Trading
in A Shares”, the Listed Company Merger and Reorganization
Vetting Committee of the CSRC convened the 33rd working
meeting of the MRVC for the year of 2021, at which the
reorganization was vetted and conditionally approved. On
24 March 2022, the Company received from the CSRC
the “Approval for the asset acquisition by way of share
issuance and raising of supporting funds by Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery and Electric Company Limited to Li Hong and
Others”, approving the matter of the asset acquisition by way
of share issuance and cash payment and raising of supporting
funds by the Company. On 17 June 2022, the Company issued
the “Announcement in relation to the Transfer of Assets of
the Asset Acquisition by Way of Share Issuance and Cash
Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds”, all the target assets
of the transaction have been changed and registered in the
name of the listed company and the listed company directly
holds 80% equity interest in BYTQ and the transfer of the
target assets involved in the transaction has been completed;
the asset acquisition by way of share issuance and cash
payment and raising of supporting funds of the Company
was completed, and the Company will strictly comply with
the regulations on the use of the proceeds and perform its
obligations of information disclosure in strict accordance with
relevant laws and regulations.

RS ER DN W

%}EHA A B LS R B A R
11 REIAR202058 A LA %"mﬂ%
= %it/$iﬁ§k HEREFR A
AI80%MAETBH » 202112 A15
B REEMAERETRD kX
Hfﬁ‘i\ﬂﬁ EFI%E@EEE%
HIRES EPIﬁEQQ NEIE
BEMAEZZ @ﬁw%v
BEN AR E @R DS -
FEEES FHARMHBEASR
BMEEBeRH2021FE 5331616
EHRETESEARANEHEHEE
TTER RREHEHEESE
122 123BIB - 202293 A24H
A RS EEE S (R ZOfEdL
FREBEER D AR AR A4
ERTRNBELEESTEERE
BEemBLE) - ERBBEITRG
LENESHEBEEEYEERE
B4 EIE 2022064178 &
A1 (AR BTG kRS
RELEVTBERELECVEE
@ﬁla/ﬁm/“i>$/kx%mm
MEEEEPEEERELTA
AT EtmaaEEEEdF
F80%HIIRIE - NIRZ 5 &
T?E@ﬁ?%ﬂﬁ%aﬁ;ﬁﬁﬁn
CRRIANREBETRG RE AR
Aﬁﬁ,\é??jr%’i@aﬁﬁilﬁa
B RABEEETESE
SFEARE - BEILRBRRLE
FREKBITEERBEET -

%3%&1

Independent Directors’ opinion ﬁ_é EFER

We have carefully examined the relevant information provided 1M E CAEEEEEEHRL
by the Board prior to the meeting of the Board, and have fully Al REESESSRHEMNIEH
understood the background information of the Company's ﬁﬂ IE}ET 3 NS FIN

transaction, and have conducted necessary communications
regarding the relevant information and our prior approval was
obtained.

The “Resolution regarding the Proposal on the Asset
Acquisition by Way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and
Raising of Supporting Funds by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited” and other relevant resolutions
of the Company in relation to the transaction have been
submitted to the fifth extraordinary meeting of the tenth
session of the Board of the Company for consideration and
approval.

FHMESERRRT @ $THE
ﬁﬂLTTTM\gE’J% CEBT
ﬁ?1?39’]$ﬁ\ JAnR] °

(R R R BRND FR A A
BITROREINEGHEEET
REREESHENER) MAF
Zli/’ﬂx%ﬁ'\]ﬁ@*ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁaﬁﬁ

ARAETEEFEERIRGERS
u%%;%@;@ ©
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V. Principal Operation during the Reporting

Period (continued)
(iv) Analy5|s of industry operation (Continued)

Specific progress of major asset reorganisation and
integration during the reporting period (Continued)
Independent Directors’ opinion (Continued)

The counterparties of the Company's asset acquisition by way
of share issuance and cash payment are 17 natural persons
such as Li Hong and Qingdao Eternal Economic Information
Consulting Co., Ltd. The target subscribers for the Company's
share issuance and raising of supporting funds will be no more
than 35 specific qualified investors, according to the relevant
provisions of the “Administrative Measures for Major Asset
Restructuring of Listed Companies” and the “Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Shanghai Stock Exchange”,
the above-mentioned counterparties are not associates of
the Company. The asset acquisition by way of share issuance
and cash payment and raising of supporting funds does not
constitute a connected transaction, and the Board will not
abstain from voting on these resolutions.

In summary, the convening and voting procedures of the
meeting of the Board of the Company to consider the
transaction were in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations and the relevant provisions of the “Articles of
Association”.

ﬂ S

WMEHRNETELE SN @

(E9) ﬁ%*“"“ﬁ{:ﬁﬁ}*ﬁ L)

ﬁ*?ﬁﬁikﬁéé%ﬁg%ﬁﬂ

EERBER (@

ﬁzﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ (4B)
RARRBETRBRINREE

Eﬁ?%%%ﬁﬁﬁ?q 51718

BAALBENERECEEESR
HBERAR - RBIARREBEITRD
BEEREES \%’”‘ﬁﬂ?ﬂ%?i
BISHFAKRENEERESE -
BE(ETAREREESHER
WEI(EBBHERHBRELT
EH‘JM’HE%%@LE iz S
WIERAIRREE S - AREEITRRAD
&S'ZHEEQE% S EETSERE
BeTEREMRS  EEEE
SRR ETRABT S RE

ST Ak o AE

HFRR o

fR LR - REIRE AR FH)
BExamdR  RAEFTA
BARE AR R(RAFER) M
RAME

(v) Material disposal of assets and equity interest () EREENREHE
[0 Applicable v Not Applicable Em N T EA
(vi) Analysis of major subsidiaries and associates (R) EEEZERSR AT
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable VER O FER
Company name Business nature Principal products or services Registered capital Total assets Net assets Net profit
ARER £HnE IZERIRE B BEE FEE A
Beijing Tianhai Industry Co,, Ltd. ~ Production Production and sale of gas cylinders, accumulator 15$83,386,300 1,842,402,792.24 583,765,360.22 -24,242,320.97
she\ls pressure vessels and auxiliary equipment,
IRRETIEERAT) a3 F‘ iﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁ g8 BNPEREERES 833863EXTT 1,842,402,792.24 583,765,360.22 -24,242,32097
Jingcheng Holding (Hong Kong) ~ Trading and Import and export trade, investment holding and HK$1,000 167,877,27134 163,496,471.70 6776181
~ Company Limited investment consultancy services, etc.
REERERARLT g7RA #HO0ES  RERRRERRES 1,000%7C 16787727134 163496,471.70 67,761.81
Qingdao BYTQ United Digital ~ Production Rabots and automation equipment products etc. RMB21,418,633 315,149472.18 203,040,951.89 48,042,819.15
Intelligence Co,, Ltd.
ESIAREUHRHERLT HE BB EEPLEES 2141863387 315,149,472.18 203,040,951.89 48,042,819.15
(vii) Structured entities under the control of the () DEESIEER{L TEER

Company

[0 Applicable v Not Applicable O@ER N TEA
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VI.

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the
Company

Industry structure and trends
\ Applicable  [J Not Applicable

()

Gas Storage and Transportation Segment:

1.

Industrial cylinders and natural gas products

The fierce low price competition of conventional industrial
gas cylinders is difficult to change in a short period of time.
The application field of special gas is wide, and its market
size will continue to maintain rapid development. Against
the backdrop of energy transformation, energy conservation
and environmental protection policies have sped up the
construction of a low-carbon energy system and driven the
growth of natural gas consumption in China while market
demand for automotive cylinders is also expected to rise. In
the future, it will be necessary for the Company to strengthen
cooperation with large-scale gas companies and establish a
full-service chain consisting of sales, technology and quality
management to meet increasing market service demand.

In the context of energy saving and environmental protection,
the construction of a green and low-carbon transportation
system and the development of clean transportation
equipment are conducive to driving the market demand for
cryogenic products. The essence of carbon emission peak is
the substitution of low-carbon clean energy for high-carbon
energy. In the long run, the trend of global promotion of
environmental governance, the Chinese government’s energy
saving and emission reduction, and the gradual proportionate
increase of clean energy consumption will not change, and
natural gas will remain the main force against the backdrop
of energy transformation. The future marine market, natural
gas storage peak shaving market and overseas tank container
market demand will remain positive in the future.

Hydrogen energy products

The development of hydrogen energy has become a global
consensus under the context of “carbon emission peak
and carbon neutrality”. It can be used in a wide range of
traditional energy applications, including transportation,
industrial fuel and power generation. The “14th Five-Year
Plan” states that China will actively develop the hydrogen
energy industry and deploy a number of key hydrogen
energy projects, formally determining the overall foundation
for development of the hydrogen fuel cell vehicle industry.
With the release of the “14th Five-Year Plan” and the strong
support for the hydrogen energy industry from all regions,
China’s hydrogen energy technology continues to make
breakthroughs and the industry system is gradually being
improved. As for hydrogen filling stations, more than 270
stations had been constructed and put into operation in China
by the end of 2022. The industry predicts that the number of
hydrogen filling stations in China will exceed approximately
400 stations by 2023. As for fuel cell vehicles, 4,463 units of
hydrogen fuel cell vehicles were sold in 2022, with a year-
on-year increase of 135.64%, and the hydrogen energy
industry will achieve rapid growth with the tilt of national
policy. The Company will adhere to the guiding principles
of market orientation, independent innovation and leading
development, and continue to improve its technology to build
its leading position in the field of hydrogen energy equipment.
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(i) Industry structure and trends (Continued)
Intelligent Manufacturing Segment:
Intelligent equipment manufacturing
In recent years, the production of industrial robotics in China
has continued to grow and is one of the few industries which
continue to maintain rapid growth under the influence of the
downward economic cycles and the impact of macroeconomic
conditions. In the process of the gradual development of
future intelligent cities and intelligent factories, a large
number of industrial robotics are needed for intelligent
operation, and industrial robotics will play a very important
role, and the accelerated construction of 5G, loT, industrial
internet and other technologies are of great significance to
the development of industrial robotics. In accordance to the
survey and analysis of the Qianzhan Industry Institute, it is
expected that the market size of industrial robotics in China
will continue to expand in the future.

(ii) Development strategies of the Company
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

1. Gas Storage and Transportation Segment

Positioning: A global leading enterprise in the manufacturing
and services of gas storage and transportation equipment.
Strategy: continuously strengthening the leading position and
market position of Industrial Gas Cylinder and fire-fighting
gas cylinders to enhance its profitability; focus and optimise
the product structure of natural gas business, maintain an
appropriate scale, innovate the operating model and enhance
its competitive edge; accelerating the industrialisation and
batching process of Type IV Cylinders to seize the opportunity
to develop the hydrogen energy industry and occupy the
leading position in the market.

2. Intelligent Manufacturing Segment

Positioning: An industry leading comprehensive intelligent
manufacturing solutions provider

Strategy: focusing on the industrial automation equipment
manufacturing field and deeply engaging in the home
appliances industry, industrial automation, robotics integration
applications, intelligent manufacturing equipment and other
product production and manufacturing as well as integrated
applications, providing comprehensive solutions for enterprises
in the intelligent manufacturing industry, maintaining the
competitive advantages of existing products and actively
expanding new markets.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI.

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the
Company (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Operating plan
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

The year of 2023 is a crucial year for the implementation of China’s
14th Five-Year Plan. By focusing on promoting the high quality
development of the Company, taking the “14th Five-Year Plan”
strategic plan as the guiding principle, reform and innovation
as the main line, improving asset efficiency and enhancing
profitability as the core, and “three cutting, one reduction and one
improvement” and benchmarking against first-rate enterprises as
the main starting point, the Company will deepen the reformation
of state-owned enterprises, accelerate the adjustment of product
structure, expand the scale of intelligent manufacturing equipment
business, focus on resources, mainly develop the hydrogen energy
business, strengthen the core technology, continuously enhance the
independent innovation capability, continue to make great efforts
to improve quality and efficiency, integrate sales resources, reduce
costs throughout the process, and make all-out efforts to push the
Company to a new level of high quality development.

Potential risks
\ Applicable I Not Applicable

1. Risk associated with the implementation of the non-
public issuance of shares
On 16 November 2022, the nineteenth extraordinary meeting
of the tenth session of the Board of the Company considered
and approved the “Resolution in relation to the Proposal for
the Company’s Non-public Issuance of A Shares” and other
resolutions, pursuant to the relevant requirements of the
"Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”, "Securities
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Administrative
Measures for the Issuance of Securities by Listed Companies”,
“Detailed Implementation Rules for the Non-public Issuance of
Shares by Listed Companies” and other laws and regulations,
the Company proposed a plan for the non-public issuance
of A shares. Currently, there is uncertainty regarding the
issuance of A Shares of the Company. The Company will
strictly perform the information confidentiality work and fulfil
its information disclosure obligations under relevant laws and
regulations according to the progress of the matter, so as to
announce the progress of the matter in a timely manner.

2. Risk of deterioration of the international situation
On the one hand, the Russo-Ukrainian conflict in 2022 led
to tightened European energy supply and soaring prices,
resulting in the revenue of our products in the European
market not meeting the expectation and the revenue of
the entire European market has declined significantly, the
continuation of the Russo-Ukrainian conflict this year led to
greater uncertainty in the European energy supply and prices;
on the other hand, the escalation of the competition between
China and the U.S. and the intensification of trade conflicts
between China and the U.S. have led to greater uncertainty in
the U.S. and even in the entire export market revenue.
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(iv) Potential risks (Continued)
3. Industrial policy risks

Gas Storage and Transportation segment: First, factors such as
oil and gas price differences and new energy industry policies
resulted in significant change to market demand for natural
gas storage and transportation, impacting the natural gas
storage and transportation sector, which is the Company’s
principal business. Second, the Company’s hydrogen energy
storage and transportation segment is categorized as a “new
industry”, which may easily be affected by national policies,
economic environment, upstream and downstream industrial
chain development, and other factors. Therefore, in response
to these risks, the Company will grasp the national macro
policies in a timely manner, identify industrial development
trends, broaden areas of product application, at the same
time strengthen core technology development, expand
new markets, minimize risk factors associated with industry
policies, and reduce the impact on the Company.

Intelligent Manufacturing Segment: The industrial automation
industry is a strategic industry that provides technical
equipment for all sectors of the national economy, and is
highly valued by the government and strongly supported by
national regulations and policies, with a huge and diversified
market demand. The current national policy actively supports
the intelligent manufacturing industry and predicts that the
policy of encouraging the research and development and
application of industrial robotics and promoting the innovative
development of industries such as industrial robotics will
remain unchanged in the short term. In terms of traditional
industrial technology transformation, factory automation and
enterprise information development, the demand in industrial
automation market will continue to increase. If China's
economic development is restricted by the macroeconomic
trend and the the down-stream, which accounts for a large
proportion of the industry demand will be affected by the
cycle, which will lead to a reduction in its new fixed asset
investment and will have an adverse impact on the production
and operation of the Company. The Company will keep
abreast of the macroeconomic situation, pay attention to
upstream and downstream development, broaden product
application areas, while strengthening core technology
development and expanding new product markets to keep
industry policy risk factors to a minimum level and reduce the
impact on the Company.

4. Risk of intensified market competition

Although the overall gas storage and transportation and
intelligent equipment manufacturing market has been
showing a steady rising trend, competition in the industry is
intensifying. The product market may change in the future,
which will bring some uncertain factors and influences to the
Company'’s business development. Therefore, in the future,
the Company must focus on technological self-reliance,
continue to improve its independent innovation capability,
make scientific arrangements, and make every effort to drive
scientific and technological innovation. The Company will
also enhance market and competition awareness, highlight
the direction of professional development, and consolidate,
expand and enlarge market share.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

REFERR : 2
= *ﬁﬁb/ﬁé%ﬁgﬁgﬁ
mﬂg’i%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ*

Ei
- JH 3 W ma

Tﬁwf&a@gam
%Fﬁ?% AHZH .
KBRS tTﬁE%% ‘%
liﬁ']?/g LH: ﬁ'ﬁ‘fﬁﬂ@.
B RElREE E%f%ﬁlﬂ(
% E’ﬁ&ﬁ%?‘)ﬁiﬁ% BE
on FE FR <E 1 - HETjJD‘gﬁT?/D&TTT
BE - %E%Emﬁ%'%ﬁ%
ﬁ%q I%u@EFJﬁE'

B HF & o

3 I ¢ S O A
&

éﬁ}
u‘B’S‘)ﬂ'ﬁﬁﬂ \\}H{Ea

HRERE IR - I%E@kﬁ%
mﬁlﬁﬁ%%ﬂ%k{&m
EOBBEEE  FHBNSE
%ﬁﬂl%iﬁﬁ*mﬁﬁi
CHBRAZ LR TS
I B ATE R BUREIG S 155
%ﬁﬁ% TER AN B T ¥
% = NBFF 3 1% FE A RO 8 T 4
BASEXAFTEENRET
%'E%ﬁliﬁmﬁﬁ~lﬁ
E@mu&@%%%m%@%ﬁ
E'I¥§Qmm =R
%ﬁﬁ BERH %@i A58 AR
%ﬁ%%x@ TR R LK
Mﬁiﬁixﬂﬁgm'h%ﬂ
HEgErTEERERD - BY
NEMEELEERTFTE -
NEEREEREREBCERR -
BEETHERSE  HEEMR
FEFR B - B BF hnos A% O B Al B
BHRMERTS  BITER
REBREZEGER/NESE R
DENBIRFE

ul

W
?%“n? 3

%mmmm
%L&%%%ﬁ@ﬁ
%ﬁ%¢ﬁﬂ%

m};ﬁﬂg
o

ﬁ%ﬁﬂl%?ﬁ%ﬁ
%E’*ﬁgﬂﬁg
LN
S
%
r:
EE

-\ e
1 e

EE DA 2§

> Iy
v

ﬁ%ﬁ & B% Aﬂﬁ
ﬂ&a‘J%ﬁIf’E o MR T 5 B A
I 3 5 B ﬁﬁikﬁﬁﬁ
C EE %@‘ﬁﬁm%

S o 2 HE R A DD S Ao S B S

o



VI.

Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Company (Continued)
(iv) Potential risks (Continued)

5.

Development risk on new business and new market
Hydrogen energy and fuel cells are currently dominated by
commercial vehicles in China, are mainly used in logistics,
public transportation and large buses, and are still at the stage
of gaining momentum. Due to national and local policies and
other sources of uncertainty, the Company has encountered
unexpected risks in the development of new business and new
markets. The Company will continue to drive the development
of hydrogen energy business and enhance core technology to
improve its core competitiveness track.

The Company’s intelligent equipment manufacturing market
is mainly focused on the home appliances industry, and the
market development products are gradually developing in the
direction of medicines, electronics and automobiles, etc. The
market for new products may change in the future, which will
bring certain uncertainties and influences on the Company’s
operation and development. The Company will continue to
improve its innovation capability, develop new products and
gradually expand its market share to other industries based on
the home appliances industry.

(v) Others
\ Applicable I Not Applicable

1.

Analysis of operating results

During the Reporting Period, total profit of the Company
increased by approximately RMB58,429,700 as compared
with the corresponding period of last year; operating profit
increased by approximately RMB49,117,600 year-on-year;
and net non-operating revenue and expenses increased by
approximately RMB9,312,100 year-on-year. Operating income
increased by approximately RMB189,596,700 as compared
with the corresponding period of last year; operating cost
increased by approximately RMB133,193,700 as compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

During the Reporting Period, expenses increased by
approximately RMB22,053,500 as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, of which, selling expenses
decreased by RMB2,096,500 as compared with last year,
or 6.16%, mainly due to the decrease in after-sales service
fees of subsidiaries; management expense increased by
RMB6,687,900 as compared with last year, or 7.03%,
mainly due to the increase in the scope of the consolidated
statements during the year resulting in the corresponding
increase of management expense; research and development
expenses increased by RMB21,112,400 as compared with last
year, or 79.56%, mainly due to (1) the increase in research
and development expenses as a result of the increase in the
scope of the consolidated statements during the year and
(2) the Company's increased investment in research and
development during the year; financial expense decreased by
approximately RMB3,650,400, mainly due to the decrease
in loan bears interests during the year and the decrease in
interest expenses and the increase in net foreign exchange
gains as compared with last year.
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(v) Others (Continued)
1. Analysis of financial position (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, taxes and surcharges increased
by RMB1,978,200 as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, mainly due to the corresponding increase
in taxes and surcharges as a result of the increase in the scope
of consolidated statement during the year and the increase in
supplementary tax as a result of the increase in value-added
tax of subsidiaries.

During the Reporting Period, the credit impairment losses
increased by approximately RMB3,395,200 as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the
increase in provisions for bad debts as a result of the increase
in the scope of consolidated statement during the current
period, the inclusion of BYTQ and Jingcheng Haitong and
increase in accounts receivable.

The investment income during the Reporting Period increased
by approximately RMB5,928,700, mainly due to the increase
in profits of the associate and the increase in gains arising
from debt restructuring.

During the Reporting Period, non-operating income increased
by approximately RMB11,341,100, mainly due to the
compensation income received by a subsidiary.

During the Reporting Period, non-operating expenses
increased by approximately RMB2,029,000, mainly due to the
payment of the compensation by a subsidiary.

2. Analysis of assets, liabilities and shareholders’ equity
As at the end of the Reporting Period, total assets and
total liabilities increased as compared with the beginning
of the year due to the effect of the scope of consolidated
statements.

Total assets were approximately RMB2,434,589,100,
representing an increase of approximately RMB866,140,300
or 55.22% as compared with the beginning of the year.

Total liabilities were approximately RMB1,028,107,600,
representing an increase of approximately RMB421,070,900
or 69.36% as compared with the beginning of the year.

Total shareholders’ equity amounted to approximately
RMB1,406,481,500, representing an increase of approximately
RMB445,069,400 or 46.29% as compared with the beginning
of the year.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company 7~ QAR ABRKEENH
Concerning the Future Development of the B2 AT @)
Company (Continued)
(v) Others (Continued) () Eft@
Analysis of financial position 3.  BBMRRSHR
By implementing its prudent financial policies, the Company NEIEMEEN M EBR - His
established a strict risk control system for investment, E BEARRSEREZERI TR
financing and cash management to maintain a sound capital & E ?%‘I R —BRIFE
structure and solid financing channels. The Company kept ﬁuﬂ’] EZJS & *DEHE’J@EEZE
its loan scale under strict control such that it can satisfy ' 7!?*%? [EFAE - £
the capital need of operating activities while minimizing its /%E AR ES AT RNMA
finance cost and preventing against financial risks in a timely 51 ' %ﬁﬂﬁﬁirﬂilﬂ)}%%ﬁ
manner by fully utilizing financial instruments, for purposes B 15 B R AN D 6 B 1 E By
of achieving sustainable development of the Company and L‘XEEEQET?%E%EﬁHiL%EE
maximizing its shareholders’ value. AL
Liquidity and capital structure THEMFELRGHE
2022 2021
20224 20214
(1) Gearing ratio MEEBEXR 42.23% 38.70%
(2) Quick ratio (2)EREN L 3 121.39% 71.25%
(3) Current ratio QmE = 171.54% 131.75%
4.  Bank loans 4. fE _1’*
The Company prudently implemented its annual capital ﬁiﬂﬂi eWEEE
budget plan in accordance with the market conditions and IMZZ T)ﬁ 5 RIE ”1tf 15P2
requirement of customers to control the bank loan scale Ko BRI %‘Jfﬁﬁ% KRR o TE
strictly. The Company fully utilized financial tools to make e R ”“%xﬁ?bﬁ%ﬁﬁ?’ﬁ’]ﬂ
timely efforts to reduce finance cost and prevent financial S ﬂFﬁimﬂIE&E LR
risks. In so doing, the Company improved the profit of the L E R ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁfxﬂ& tr
Company and shareholders while satisfying the capital need SARRBREKE - MEBHKRA
of operating activities of the Company. As at the end of 7'&3}315 FX#710,000.008 7T * Lt
the Reporting Period, the Company had short-term loan FHEE19.29% °
amounting to approximately RMB100,000,000, representing
an increase of 19.29% as compared with the beginning of
the year.
5.  Foreign exchange risk management 5. SERBERE
The Company is mainly exposed to foreign exchange risk RN E AR INE BB E R
relating to US dollars and euro. The Group’s main operation T BUTEE  BRARRMNTE
is settled by RMB, except Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., FRAGRRBRAGF  KBEM
BTIC AMERICA CORPORATION and Jingcheng Holding (Hong NAE > REIER (BAE) BRAF
Kong) Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the Company, which use US IAZET M ETIREREE
dollars and euro for procurement and sale. Accordingly, it N REEAH M E E f%)ﬁiﬁ

may be exposed to foreign exchange risks arising from the
changes in the exchange rate between US dollars, euro and
RMB. The Company actively adopted such measures to reduce
the foreign exchange risk.
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company
Concerning the Future Development of the

Compa Ny (Continued)

(v) Others (Continued)

Principal Sources of Fund and Its Use

1. Cash flows from operating activities
Cash inflows from operating activities of the Company during
the Reporting Period were mainly derived from the income
of product sales. Cash outflow was mainly used in expenses
related to the production and operating activities. The cash
inflows from operating activities during the Reporting Period
amounted to RMB1,259,985,700, while cash outflows
amounted to RMB1,254,762,000. Net cash flows during
the Reporting Period from operating activities amounted to
RMB5,223,800.

2. Cash flows from investment activities

Cash inflows from investment activities of the Company during
the Reporting Period amounted to RMB62,869,800, mainly
due to the net cash paid by subsidiaries and other business
entities obtained during the period while cash outflows from
investment activities amounted to RMB126,279,400 which
was mainly used for asset expenses such as the purchase and
construction of fixed assets. Net cash flows from investment
activities during the Reporting Period amounted to RMB-
63,409,600.

3. Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from financing activities during the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB425,166,000, which was mainly
derived from capital increase in raised funds, bank loans,
special funds for research and development funds allocated
by the controlled shareholder. Cash outflows from
financing activities during the Reporting Period amounted
to RMB182,279,300, which mainly due to the repayment
of loans and interest and the direct costs of the raising
of funds by non-public issuance. Net cash flows from
financing activities for the Reporting Period amounted to
RMB242,886,700.

In 2022, net cash flows from operating activities increased
by approximately RMB37,918,500 as compared to the
corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the increase
in cash inflow from operating activities during the period,
which increased the net cash flows from operating activities
during the period. Net cash flows generated from investing
activities decreased by approximately RMB4,037,600 as
compared to the corresponding period of last year, mainly
due to the increase in cash payment for the purchase and
construction of fixed assets, intangible assets and other long
term assets during the period. Net cash flows generated
from financing activities increased by approximately
RMB314,076,900 as compared to the corresponding period of
last year, mainly due to the funds obtained from the issuance
of shares and the special research and development project
funds allocated by the controlling shareholder during the
period.

During the current period, net cash flows from operating
activities were RMB5,223,800 and net profit amounted to
RMB14,054,200. The Company mainly financed its operations
through cash flow generated from operating activities, and
loans and issuance of shares.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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VI. Discussion and Analysis of the Company 7~ QAR ABRKEENH
Concerning the Future Development of the B3 4T (@)
Company (Continued)

(v) Others (Continued) () Eft@
Capital Structure BRER
The Company’s capital structure consists of shareholders’ equity RERRAEREHEBERRERTA
and liabilities during the Reporting Period. Shareholders’ equity B - IR #E2140,648.1587T
amounted to RMB1,406,481,500, of which minority interests Hep - DHIRREZ33,421.648 7T ¢
amounted to RMB334,216,400, and total liabilities amounted to BfE4%102,810.76 BL - EEH
RMB1,028,107,600. Total assets amounted to RMB2,434,589,100. #H243,458.918 7t I RAEABX

As at the end of the year, the Company’s gearing ratio was 42.23%. 42.23% -

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
Bl T BEARE

Capital structure by liquidity BRBME S EREE

Total current liabilities MEBEAR RMB619,685,000  Percentage of assets 25.45%
61,968.50& T HEELE

Total shareholders’ equity MRS E R RMB1,406,481,500  Percentage of assets 57.77%

140,648.158 7T HEELE

Of which: minority interest Hep - DR R RMB334,216,400  Percentage of assets 13.73%
33,421.6487C HEELE

Contingent Liabilities REEE

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company did not have REMARRNAEFTERBNEANES

any significant contingency that requires to be disclosed. 18

Details of the Group’s charge on assets SEEERTHE

Book value at
the end of year

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
Bl T BEARE

Reasons for restriction

Item HE FREEEE =ZREREEA
L/C guarantee deposit
22,374,406.22 PR N
Margin for bank acceptance bill
46,822,813.02 e o T o i
Monetary funds gEE E%TT%’D“I}EWﬁ"“ﬁ
3,625,647.23  sJalonireeze
e FEAREE
Bond for letter of guarantee
2,926.79 (R HR TS
Total &&f 72,825,793.26 -

VII. Description of and explanations for disclosure £+ 2 & E & B2 AR E S =
not in compliance with standards due to WE - BMEWRZEHRER
standards not applicable or special reasons AR 3% 25 Bl 47 55 9 18 0 A TR (R &R

including state or business secrets BH
[J Applicable ¥ Not applicable O@Em N TEm

>
\
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Review

2022 was an extraordinary year, with the changing international situation,
the Russian-Ukraine conflict, energy crisis and high inflation, and the
domestic economy was “weakly stabilized” under the overlapping of
“threefold pressure” and the diminishing demand and other unexpected
impacts, the economic development was facing serious challenges. In the
face of many unfavorable factors, the Company overcame the difficulties
and made great efforts for the normal operation of its production and
operation by vigorously performing reformation and adjustment, and
carrying out various tasks in a solid manner to protect the fundamentals
of the Company’s operation. In terms of principal business, the Company
always adheres to market orientation and strengthens the building of
products diversification structure. The Company actively integrated
resources and seized the market shares. The Company also made full
use of the advantages of the capital market, laying a foundation for
the Company’s sustainable and healthy development. The Company
strengthened the optimization and integration of internal management
of the Company, and management was strengthened while operational
efficiency was enhanced, business synergy level was increased to better
complete the annual operation target.

During the Reporting Period, the Company focused on the following works:

1. Further enhancing market development and
moving forward in both gas storage and
transportation and intelligent manufacturing

sectors

a) Gas storage and transportation
In the international market, revenue from export grew steadily.
The Company achieved certain growth in export markets by
overcoming the impact of de-globalization and the short term
market fluctuation. Except for the resuming growing trend of
various traditional products, the Company actively developed
the hydrogen energy products market to make a necessary
pavement for future sales product restructuring.

In the domestic market, the results of lightweight high-
pressure products from the industrial cylinders market
increased. By locking up annual orders from some large
customers in China and gradually developing new major
customers, the revenue from the sales of industrial cryogenic
gas cylinders increased year-on-year. By further optimizing
product performance, improving product diversification,
the delivery of civilian liquid oxygen tanks is completed.
The Company seized the opportunity of rising demand in
the CNG market and made great efforts to develop new
customers while retaining existing ones, as a result there is
a year-on-year increase in revenue. As for Type IV cylinders,
the Company completed the delivery of cylinders for export
vehicles and provided CNG sample cylinders to various
customers. The Company completed the delivery of various
orders of hydrogen storage cylinders for vehicles.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

NS
3

Q02 RBAEEN—F  BEFEREE
7] mEEE - ReEK  BReD  BAKL
B[ BN | MR R E S Bia &2 & m
TER[BERE]  CEERAGRRELS - @
HHRZAFAE AR TRREER#E A
EREEFEEMETERE N - RIlKE
AR REHESIEIERRE  REQARLE
HEAWE - TEREBKHHE - BREFUTISAE
M RERZTCERESR  BEREAE
B BIETS  AOFAEATSBES AR
RIS EREERETER  MAARAIER
BELES LB - MREEHE - BB
EBHRKTE - B T 2FEERIEZ -

— [EIER

WEHAN - ERFERTATIE:

1 E-SEmEke  fRRMHE
RERERERR BRI E

a) SREMHE

B miZ L HORBEARE
BE  mREDRECREHRTS
BB E  EHOTSHRET —
TEE BRISBEEGERE
RIEBIN - TREFIMEREERT
5 0 RARRGHE B A B
HBER A -

BAmE L T¥ERmMS &4
SRR EMELEER  HEE
NEDABENFEERIE - BEE
HEBARP,  TERBMREE
WA RIELIE N - 3 — BB E R
e IRREMEZ L BRE
RARAEARZA o RAIIECNG
MHHE R RS - K HFE
wEmERR - WARLLEN -
VAR - SERCH A B AR
- AZEREPRECNGEESR
w ERZERFEAFKEEN
HESSNK




P
< *A ; L 4/}

l. Review (Continued)

1.

Further enhancing market development and moving
forward in both gas storage and transportation and

intelligent manufacturing sectors (Continued)

b) Intelligent manufacturing
BYTQ, a subsidiary of the Company, met the expected
revenue targets after the completion of the acquisition
and reorganization project and the profit was better than
expected. The assembly line assembly systems, suspension
chain transfer system, stamping lines project, integrated
robotic applications and metal products business had
all achieved the established goals. It also improved the
management efficiency through means such as project lean
management to gradually catch up with the project revenue
and profit affected by the short term market environment and
other factors.

Raiding major research and development project by
cohesive strength to accelerate the Company’s digital

transformation and upgrade

Beijing Tianhai, a subsidiary of the Company completed the
preparation of the “14th Five-Year Plan” for the Transformation
to Informatization and Digitalization and IT Plan, which is designed
to fully support the Company's strategic deployment in building a
digital platform and transforming and upgrading to digitalization
in four aspects, including assessment on the current state of
informatization, overall design plan, digitalization construction and
implementation plan and implementation on safeguard measures.
The automation transformation project in Shanghai Tianhai has
completed pre-inspection and the intelligent transformation
project in Tianjin Tianhai has completed the overall adjustment,
the automation equipment is running in a stable manner with its
production capacity increasing steadily, the production capacity and
efficiency have reached the target value.

BYTQ, a subsidiary of the Company, was the first batch of
enterprises awarded with the title of “Specialised and New"” small
and medium sized enterprise in Qingdao City for 2022, and is
currently awaiting the issuance of certificate. By strengthening the
technological innovation, the upgrading of intelligent manufacturing
and the construction of integrated intelligent factories, BYTQ has
gradually improved its technological competitiveness in intelligent
manufacturing and made its intelligent products deeply integrated
into the domestic circular economy.
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Review (Continued)

3.

Making use of the advantages in the capital
market to successfully complete the acquisition

and reorganization project

Since the Company'’s disclosure on the suspension announcement of
the preparation of the acquisition and reorganization on 3 August
2020, the Company'’s acquisition of the material asset reorganization
transaction of BYTQ was approved in writing by the CSRC on 21
March 2022 after being reviewed and approved by the Board of
the Company, the general meeting, Jingcheng Machinery Electric,
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the
Beijing SASAC, the CSRC and the MRVC. The Company and BYTQ
jointly promoted the asset delivery arrangement and completed the
transfer and industrial and commercial registration of the equity
interest in BYTQ on 17 June 2022 and the issuance and listing of
shares relating to the asset purchase was completed on 27 June
2022. The core work of this major asset reorganization transaction
was successfully completed within 2022 and BYTQ officially became
a controlling subsidiary of the Company.

The acquisition enables the Company to make full use of BYTQ's
technical accumulation and advantageous resources in automation
system integration, intelligent manufacturing and intelligent
factory construction to layout the intelligent manufacturing
industry, promote the development of intelligent manufacturing
and information construction business, accelerate the Company’s
progress of “high-end, precise and advanced” industrialization,
optimize the industrial structure, expand the Company’s business
scope and market space, which helps the Company in forming a
relevant diversified equipment manufacturing industry pattern,
achieving complementary advantage in businesses and facilitating the
Company to accelerate the promotion on industrial transformation
and upgrade.

Exploring the Company’s needs in transformation
and upgrading in-depth and initiating the non-
public issuance project

In order to implement the national and Beijing’s industry policies and
decisions and deployments, promote the strategic plan of Jingcheng
Machinery Electric to construct and improve the “precision and
high-tech” industrial structure, actively promote the expansion of
the equipment manufacturing industry to high-end, intelligent and
core basic technology solutions, the Company has formulated the
investment project of the raised funds of the non-public issuance in
accordance with relevant national industrial policies and the overall
strategic future development direction of the Company to optimize
the structural layout of the equipment manufacturing industry on
the basis of the overall enhancement of the business scale, so as to
facilitate the Company in accelerating the industrial transformation
and upgrade, optimizing the financial structure, enhancing
profitability and comprehensive competitiveness, so as to build a
leading domestic listed platform for the equipment manufacturing
industry.

The proceeds to be raised under the non-public issuance will not
exceed RMB1.17 billion, which will be invested in four projects:
the industry development of hydrogen energy frontier technology,
intelligent manufacturing industrial park, acquisition of 100% equity
interest in Beiren Intelligent and replenishment of working capital.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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l. Review (Continued)

4,

Exploring the Company’s needs in transformation
and upgrading in-depth and initiating the non-
public issuance project (Continued)

In the gas storage and transportation segment, the non-public
issuance will comprehensively enhance the hydrogen energy product
commercialization of the Company, create strategic growth points,
rapidly increase the production capacity of Type Il and Type IV
cylinders, improve the research and development of hydrogen
energy product, expand the scope of hydrogen energy products and
commercialization capability, maintain and improve the Company's
technological leadership, competitive advantage and market position
in the hydrogen energy industry, create future strategic growth
points for the Company.

In the intelligent manufacturing segment, through the non-public
issuance, the Company will invest some of the raised proceeds in the
intelligent manufacturing industry park project, which will effectively
enhance the production capacity and customer service capacity
of the Company’s intelligent manufacturing business segment
and improve the business scale and profitability of the intelligent
manufacturing business segment. Meanwhile, the non-public
issuance will acquire high-quality equipment manufacturing assets
of Beiren Intelligent to further build a competitive listing platform for
equipment manufacturing industry and enhance the business scale
and profitability of the listing company.

The non-public project will provide RMB240 million raised proceeds
to replenish the working capital of the Company, which can increase
the liquidity of the Company’s assets, enhance the Company’s
solvency and reduce financial expenses.

Standardizing systems and processes and
strengthening internal control and compliance

construction

The Company has implemented the three-year reform of state-
owned enterprises, which clarified compliance management
requirements in key areas and included them in the evaluation
of internal control compliance, instructed subsidiaries to clarify
their focus and formulate compliance plan in line with actual
practice to achieve full coverage of the compliance management
system of the Company. The Company coordinated and promoted
the interconnection of policies of BYTQ. The interconnection of
policies covers key areas and business segments such as financial
management, information disclosure and strategic investment.
Taking into account the patrol inspection, auditing, legal disputes
and the actual situation of the Company in recent years, the
Company formulated work plans, organized special training and
conducted several rounds of communication to continuously
optimize the system and process. At the same time, it strengthened
the centralized management of the system and process, the new
or revised system and process are subject to legal and compliance
auditing. The Company has completed the compilation and revision
of the Compliance and Internal Control Management Manual,
which covers important areas of production and operation, presents
business risks and control measures in an intuitive and systematic
manner, clarifies duties and authorities and strengthens legal and
compliance operations.
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l. Review (Continued)
6. Continuing to reduce costs and increase efficiency

and control costs

In terms of budget, the Company has further strengthened the
overall budget management by strictly auditing the cost and
expenses and monitoring the implementation of the budget so
as to formulate financial budget protection measures that are
more specific, strengthen procedural control, and realize the full
dynamic management of cost and expenses, cost and expenses
during the period were effectively under control and being reduced
significantly. In terms of cost, the Company further strengthened
its cost analysis by regularly comparing the actual and expected
gross profit of products sold, and developing sales strategies with
business departments to improve product gross profit. The Company
continued to promote standard cost management, and refined the
staffing of product processes.

7. Issuance of shares by the Company

1. According to the “Certificate of Securities Change
Registration of Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited” issued by the Shanghai
Branch of CSDC on 24 June 2022, the listed company has
completed the registration of the additional shares for this
asset acquisition by way of share issuance. 46,481,314 new
shares were issued non-publicly by the listed company under
the transaction for this asset acquisition by way of share
issuance, all of which are shares with trading restrictions
with an issuance price of RMB3.42 per shares. According
to the “Certificate of Securities Change Registration of
Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited” issued by the Shanghai branch of
CSDC on 19 August 2022, the listed company has completed
the registration of the additional shares for this raising of
supporting funds. 10,784,674 new shares were issued non-
publicly by the listed company under the transaction for
this raising of supporting funds, all of which are shares with
trading restrictions with an issuance price of RMB14.74
per shares. The issuance of shares was used to pay the
cash consideration, tax and intermediaries fees, and the
replenishment of the liquidity of the listed company and the
underlying asset for the acquisition of 80% equity interest in
BYTQ from the counterparty,.

2. On 16 November 2022, the Company held the nineteenth
extraordinary meeting of the tenth session of the Board and
the twenty-seventh meeting of the tenth session of Supervisory
Committee, respectively, and considered and approved
relevant resolutions in relation to the Company’s issuance
of shares to specific targets in 2022, which are intended to
issue shares to specific targets, and the shares to be issued are
domestically-listed and RMB-denominated A ordinary shares.
The price for the issuance will be determined by way of book-
building, and the pricing benchmark date shall be the first day
of the issuance period. The pricing principles are set out in the
announcement of the “Proposal for 2022 Non-public Issuance
of A Shares”. The total proceeds to be raised from the non-
public issuance shall not exceed RMB1,172,000,000 (inclusive),
which will be used mainly for the following projects: industrial
development project for hydrogen energy frontier technology,
intelligent manufacturing industrial park project, acquisition of
100% equity interest in Beiren Intelligent and replenishment
of working capital.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Outlook

Under the influence of multiple factors such as Russo-Ukrainian conflict,
energy crisis, inflation and interest rate hikes by the Federal Reserve, the
global economic data will be under pressure in 2023. In the face of the
complex and severe external environment, the Company will continue
to adhere to the equipment manufacturing as the main business. While
maintaining the steady development of the main business, it will actively
explore new business segments, expand the scale of the Company through
non-public issuance, strengthen the Company’s risk resistance capacity. At
the same time, it will strengthen lean management, further reduce costs
and increase efficiency to lay a solid foundation for the Company’s high-
quality development.

For 2023, the Company's specific objectives include the following:

1.

Continuously grasp the market development
and consolidate the “fundamentals” of economic

indicators

Gas storage and transportation segment:

On international market:

The Company will stabilize the market scale of traditional products,
focus on international market, retain major customers while actively
developing new customers; expand customer services, try to develop
new business models and enhance customer adhesion. Meanwhile,
the Company will vigorously explore new product markets and
develop new customers to create new incremental volume.

On domestic market:

The Company will focus on the annual sales target, intensify its
efforts to actively explore the market, determine key industries,
key customers and key areas, and improve the market allocation
mechanism for sales staff by improving or adjusting the
organizational structure and reduce product manufacturing costs to
enhance its core competitiveness in the product market, and find
new incremental markets while stabilizing existing market share.
The Company will also increase product differentiation, improve
added value, enhance customer adhesion, and expand new areas.
By seizing the opportunity of hydrogen energy development, the
Company will build strategic partnerships in key regions, and target
annual orders from key customers to maintain both market share
and operational continuity.

Intelligent manufacturing segment:

To expand the production capacity of the Company's intelligent
manufacturing segment, increase the market share of high value-
added products to further broaden the source of profit based on
the steady development of the original research and development,
production and processing and sales business, and strengthen the
Company's sustainable operation capacity through the continuous
expansion of the automation manufacturing equipment system
integration business. Secondly, optimize the Company's production
process layout to improve the efficiency of product production and
the degree of intelligence of the production process, realize the
refinement of product production, and further enhance the market
dominance of high-end products.

Promote non-public issuance of share project to

help industrial upgrading of the Company

The Company is striving to ensure the key works of the non-public
issuance of shares project are completed to effectively promote the
successful completion of the non-public issuance of A share. The
non-public issuance of shares can further optimize the Company’s
capital structure, reduce financial risks, enhance the Company’s
overall competitiveness, and strengthen its sustainable profitability
and risk resistance capacity, laying a solid foundation for the
Company'’s long-term sustainable development.
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Outlook (Continued)

3.

Promote the transformation and upgrading of the

industry

The Company actively pursues the development strategy of both
endogenous growth and external expansion in order to promote the
optimization of the Company’s industrial structure. The Company
will broaden its horizons and seek opportunities to increase the
exploration of high-end intelligent manufacturing products, and
extensively collaborating with companies in the key industries that
are in line with the Company'’s strategic focus and the functional
positioning of Beijing. The Company will establish a strategic
partnership mechanism to promote the strong alliance of enterprises
and enhance the profitability of the Company. The Company will
realize the sound and sustainable development of its operation
results and capital operation to serve the strategic transformation
of the Company and facilitate the Company to achieve leapfrog
growth.

Continue innovation-driven development and

continue to foster “new drivers” for development
The Company will strengthen the management of research and
development projects, further implement the mechanism of “taking
the lead” and firmly grasp national policies and opportunities for
scientific and technological innovation by increasing investment in
scientific and technological research and development, overcoming
difficulties and solving bottlenecks, constantly seek breakthroughs
in key technologies and process bottlenecks for new products, so as
to continuously promote the optimisation and upgrading of existing
products and enhance the innovation capability of enterprises and
the core competitiveness of products. The Company will insist on
the innovation-driven development strategy, constantly improve its
research and development system, to explore, attract and integrate
all kinds of innovation resources at all levels on the basis of self-
development. The Company will also accelerate the process of
industrialisation and commercialization of main products, take the
market as the guide, optimise product design and technology in a
timely manner, continuously improve the design concept and quickly
develop products to meet market needs, transforming the first-
mover advantage into a competitive advantage.

Determined to strengthen risk management and
deepen the implementation of safe production
responsibilities

The Company shall strengthen its compliance and internal control
management. By deepening the construction of the compliance
system, the Company will promote the full coverage of the
compliance system together with all subsidiaries. The Company will
also strengthen audit supervision and application of the results.
The Company will also enhance the maintenance and authorization
management of trademarks and patents to improve the ability to
protect intellectual property rights. By strengthening audit supervision
in key areas, the Company will increase supervision on overseas
enterprises, enhance guidance, supervision and training on contract
management of subsidiaries to further strengthen legal compliance,
implement continuous legal compliance audit requirements, and
improve the quality of the audit. Through implementation of the
three audit items, the Company will strengthen the prevention of
legal compliance risks in contracts, systems and major decisions to
ensure the Company'’s development.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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[I. Outlook (Continued)

5.

Determined to strengthen risk management and
deepen the implementation of safe production

responsibilities (Continued)

2023 is the opening year of the full implementation of the spirit of
the 20th National Congress and is the year for the Company to strive
for the implementation of China’s “14th Five-Year Plan” as well as
the motto of the year, which is simplicity and solid work is above all.
The Company will continue to focus its resources in promoting the
industrial transformation and upgrading, accelerating the process
of industrial “high-end, precise and advanced”, and adjusting its
operation ideas in a timely manner so as to unswervingly implement
the new development concept and integrate into the new
development pattern. By insisting on high-quality development, the
Company will continuously reach new breakthroughs and achieve
the sustainable profitability of the Company, as well as keep on
firmly confident and double its efforts, creating a better future for
the Company.
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FHET NENAE

I. Information on Corporate Governance
\/ Applicable [ Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and managers of the Company have well defined
power and responsibilities, which allows them to maintain checks and
balances and coordinate with each other. The Board of the Company and
its strategic committee, audit committee, remuneration and monitoring
committee and nomination committee and the Supervisory Committee
carried out their work according to their responsibilities. The information
of the Company was disclosed on a true, accurate, complete and timely
basis. The actual situation of the Company’s governance complied with
the “Company Law” and the requirements of China Securities Regulatory
Commission.

During the Reporting Period, the major aspects of corporate governance
are as follows:

1. Shareholders and general meetings

The Company was able to treat all Shareholders equally with due
respect and to safeguard their interests. In particular, medium-sized
and minority Shareholders were entitled to their status and to fully
exercise their rights with their legal interests being protected. The
Company ensured that Shareholders were entitled to their right of
access to information and right to participate in decision-making
in respect of material events of the Company as required by laws
and administrative rules and regulations. In accordance with the
relevant requirements set out in the “Rules of Procedure for the
General Meeting”, it could be ensured that general meetings were
convened and held in a legal, regulated and orderly manner and, in
respect of voting for connected transactions, the relevant persons
were arranged to abstain from voting pursuant to the relevant
requirements in such manner that connected transactions are open,
equal and fair.

2. Directors and the Board

The Board of Directors of the Company comprises 11 Directors, of
whom 4 are independent non-executive Directors. The Board set
up the strategic committee, the audit committee, the remuneration
and monitoring committee and the nomination committee. During
the Reporting Period, all Directors were able to strictly perform
their duties of good faith and due diligence. The Board exercised its
power and authority in strict compliance with the requirements of
the laws and regulations and the “Articles of Association” to ensure
the regulated operation of the Company. Resolutions put forward
at the Board meetings were sufficiently discussed and resolved in a
scientific, prompt and cautious manner. Directors of the Company
were selected and appointed in strict compliance with the required
procedures set out in the “Articles of Association”. According to the
requirements of the “Standard of Corporate Governance for PRC
Listed Companies”, the Company gave full play to the functions
of the special committees of the Board and the four independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to the relevant requirements of
the “Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors”, “Detailed
Implementation Rules for the Special Committees of the Board of
Directors” and “Working System for Independent Directors”.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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I. Information on Corporate Governance
(Continued)

3.

Supervisors and the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee of the Company comprises three
supervisors, of whom one is the supervisor for staff representative.
The Supervisory Committee appointed one secretary for the
Supervisory Committee. The Supervisory Committee of the Company
is committed to being accountable to all Shareholders. Taking
the financial controller as the core, the Supervisory Committee
supervised the Directors, general managers and senior management
officers of the Company to protect the safety of the assets of the
Company, reduced financial risks and safeguarded the legal interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee
has the capacity to carry out extensive communication with
Shareholders, staff and other stakeholders so as to ensure the launch
of the supervisory work. “The Rules of Procedure for the Supervisory
Committee” formulated by the Company facilitated the exercising
of power of all supervisors. The Supervisory Committee convened
regular meetings and extraordinary meetings in strict compliance
with the rules and procedures.

Stakeholders

The Company can fully respect and protect the legal interests of
stakeholders so as to achieve a coordinated balance among the
interests of various parties including shareholders, staff and the
community for purposes of jointly facilitating the continuous and
healthy development of the Company.

Information disclosure and investor relations

The secretary to the Board of Directors was designated by the
Company for being responsible for handling information disclosure,
and receiving shareholders’ visits and enquiries. The Company
disclosed the relevant information in a true, accurate, complete and
timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange to practicably
ensure that investors will be able to obtain the relevant information
equally.

The Company has always attached importance to communication
with investors and has established various channels to disclose
relevant information of the Company to investors in a timely manner
and to respond to investors' comments. The existing communication
policy includes, but not limited to, timely disclosure of relevant
company news on websites such as the Stock Exchange, responding
to investors' questions on the investor platform, organizing and
receiving investor surveys and keeping relevant records. The Board
has reviewed the effectiveness of the shareholders' communication
policy. During the Reporting Period, the Company has received
numerous telephone inquiries and offline surveys etc. from investors.
Therefore, the Board considers that the implementation of the
Shareholders’ communication policy is effective.

Whether there are significant differences between corporate governance
and the laws, administrative regulations and the provisions of the CSRC on
the governance of the Listed Company; please indicate the reasons if there
are significant differences.

[ Applicable v Not applicable
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Specific measures for ensuring the
independence of the assets, personnel,
finance, institutions and business of the
Company, and the solutions, work progress
and consequential work plans affecting the
independence of the Company, that are taken
by the Controlling Shareholders and actual
controllers of the Company

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Whether the Controlling Shareholders, actual controllers and other units
under their control are engaged in the same or similar business as the
Company, and the impact of horizontal competition or major changes in
horizontal competition on the Company, the measures taken, the solution
progress and the consequential solution plan
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[ Applicable v Not applicable

lll. Introduction to the General Meetings

Index for details on

O@m TEm
= RRASEREN

websites designated for  Date of disclosure
Meeting Date of Holding publishing resolutions of the resolutions  Meeting Resolution
EBER BRAH FETBNEEANENZD ABHRNRERS e3R8
First Extraordinary 20222.24 The website of the SSE 2022.2.25 1. The resolution in relation to the “Extension of the Validity Period of the Resolutions of the General Meeting in
General Meeting of (www.sse.com.cn) and respect of the Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds of
2022 the HKEXNews website the Company” was considered and approved; 2. The resolution in relation to the "Request to the General Meeting
of the Stock Exchange to Extend the Validity Period of the Mandate Granted to the Board of Directors to Deal with Matters Relating to the
(www. hkexnews.hk) Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds” was considered
and approved; 3. The resolution in relation to the “remuneration of a director of the tenth session of the board of
directors of the Company and entering into of a written contract” was considered and approved; 4. The resolution
in relation to the "election of Mr. Man Huiyong (&%) as a non-executive director of the tenth session of the
board of directors of the Company” was considered and approved.
MEFE-REE 2000224 RGitoh 2022225 1 EFERERD SRR VAL RREETESRER L SARR AR RAANANER) 2 B2
hEAg Wi Sse.com.cn (ERRERE A RREEZOIEANETR RN SRR AR IR SR EA SIRBE TN
ARFTRE AR %3 BR(AVETEESCESHUTUZAARMER) 4 BR(EEREERLALTETEES
www.hkexnews.hk SFNTESNEER) -
First A Share Class 2022.2.24 The website of the SSE 2022.2.25 1. the resolution in relation to the “Extension of the Validity Period of the Resolutions of the General Meeting in
Meeting of 2022 (www.sse.com.cn) and respect of the Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds of
the HKEXNews website the Company” was considered and approved; 2. The resolution in relation to the "Request to the General Megting
of the Stock Exchange to Extend the Validity Period of the Mandate Granted to the Board of Directors o Deal with Matters Relating to the
(www. hkexnews.hk) Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds" was considered
and approved.
NREE-RAR 2022224 RGitoh 2022225 1 EERERDAETRN R VAL RREETBERER L SARRARRAANANER) 2 B2
BRRRAS wnw.sse.com.cn (B RERE e RREE S MEARETR RN SRR AR IR SR EA SIRB ST INE
BRI g
www.hkexnews.hk
First H Share Class 2022.2.24 The website of the SSE 2022.2.25 1. the resolution in relation to the “Extension of the Validity Period of the Resolutions of the General Meeting in
Meeting of 2022 (www.sse.com.cn) and respect of the Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds of
the HKEXNews website the Company” was considered and approved; 2. The resolution in relation to the” Request to the General Megting
of the Stock Exchange to Extend the Validity Period of the Mandate Granted to the Board of Directors to Deal with Matters Relating to the
(www. hkexnews.hk) Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds" was considered
and approved.
NREE-FHR 2022224 RGitoh 2022225 1 EERERDAETRN R VAL RREETBERER L SARRARRAANANER) 2 B2
BRRRAS wnw.sse.com.cn (B RERE e RREE S MEANETR RN SRR AR IR SR EA SIRBERA NN
BRI R
www.hkexnews.hk

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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lIl. Introduction to the General Meetings (continued)y = > BRERAZEREN @

Index for details on
websites designated for  Date of disclosure

Meeting Date of Holding publishing resolutions of the resolutions ~ Meeting Resolution
ERER EHAH FETBNEEALNENRD ABHRNRERN e3R8
2021 Annual General - 2022.6.9 The website of the SSE 202269 1. The full text and the summary of annual report for A shares and annual report for H shares of the Company
Meeting (www.sse.com.cn) and for 2021 were considered and approved; 2. the 2021 work report of the Board of the Company were considered
the HKEXNews website and approved; 3. the 2021 work report of the supervisory committee of the Company was considered and
of the Stock Exchange approved; 4. the 2021 audited financial reports of the Company was considered and approved; 5. the internal
(www. hkexnews.hk) control audit report in the financial report of the Company for the year 2021 was considered and approved; 6.

the 2021 work report of the independent non-executive directors of the Company was considered and approved;
7. the re-appointment of ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the auditor
for the Company's 2022 financial reports and to propose at the general meeting to authorise the Board to sign
an appointment agreement with it and determine its remuneration was considered and approved 8. the re-
appointment of Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the auditor for the Company's
2022 internal control audit report of the financial report and to propose at the general meeting to authorise the
Board to sign an appointment agreement with it and determine its remuneration was considered and approved;
9. the resolution of the Company not to distribute any profit for the year 2021 was considered and approved; 10.
the resolution to propose for the amendment of the "Fund Raising Management Measures” was considered and
approved; 11. the resolution of Befiing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. to acquire 2% equity interest of Bejing Jingcheng
Haitong Technology Culture Development Co., Ltd. held by Bejing Nengtong Lease Company was considered and
approved; 12. the resolution in relation to grant of general mandate to the Board to issue H shares by the Company
was considered and approved.

WIEFERRAE 202269 ERE 202269 1 EFLONFARFERE2NAEES  HREEHE 2 BELFAVERESCTIERS 3 55
WWW.Sse.com.cnJ% RERONEEESETHRS 4 BRATNNVEREEHOIBES 5 BELENNEEHBEREND

BRHRES AN PHEHRE 6 BEOMNFRBEIESURRE 7 BREREK PN ASHA (BHEA

ww.hkexnews hk AR BRI EHBRENETEE  TRERAACERESCRRRERZRABENATENE S

B8 ERERAROHIEHN BRLRAD) AATONENKELAPLHB T BENETRE TR

ARRAEREEZQEARZEARAINATENESE 0 FRRA0N ERTETNENRMAR :
10 BFRAC(EREALERNONER 11 FRIRRSIEARA MBI R RRALTREAL
;;Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ&m%ﬁﬁ RATSHEEENZR 12 BEHELABRNRTESREIHR—RIEEREN
3%

Shareholders of preferred shares with recovered RREMENELARBRRBREHE

voting rights request to convene an extraordinary BEREAS

general meeting of Shareholders

0 Applicable v Not Applicable O@EA N TER

Descriptions on general meetings IR K E1E 75 B

[ Applicable v Not applicable O@EA N TER
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of
current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management Officers during the

Reporting Period
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

mES - EEASRERALN
R
(—) RERBREHAREIES ES

MNEREEABFREE) KRN
B

ViR OTEm

Unit: share
By K

Total

remuneration

before tax
received Whether
from the receiving

Number of Company  compensation

sharesheld ~ Numberof Change in the during ~ from related

atthe  sharesheld  number of the Reporting parties of the

Date of Dateof ~ beginning  attheend shares held in Reason Period  Company or

Name Position (note) Gender Age  appointment expiry of office  oftheyear  of the year theyear  for change (ng!gg% not
RATERH RBE

EERRY BARMEE  LABEE

5] B G #H R EHERANE  EHALRE  FORRE  ERERE EN2DE EHRIRR  (ARMED) Engn
WangJun  Chairman Male 52 2015-12-11 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
IE EER 3 1512818 2023456A9A =
Li Junjie Executive Director Male 45 2014-06-26 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 70.03 No
FRA fifrgs 3 014565268 202356A9A 3
Zhang Jikeng  Executive Director Male 48 2017-06-26 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 7003 No
FiEE HTEE 2 01756A268  200356A9A &
Wu Yanzhang - Non-executive Director Male 59 2019-09-09 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
REE FhES 3 0199898 20356598 3
Xia Zhonghua  Non-executive Director Male 59 2014-06-26 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
EhE FHES 3 01456A26F  2023%6A9A &
Li Chunzhi ~ Non-executive Director Female 46 2016-06-26 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
FER FER : 016568268 202356A9A ?
Man Huiyong - Non-executive Director Male 45 2022-02-24 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
WeE FEE E ANEIRUR - 200356A9A ?
Xiong Jianhui  Independent non-executive Director  Male 48 2020-06-09 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 8 No
Fi??ﬁ BuyEs E 00056798 203F659A A
Zhao Xuguang  Independent non-executive Director - Male 44 2020-06-09 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 8 No
allind BurynEs E 00056898 203F659R i
Liulingtai ~ Independent non-executive Director  Male 59 2020-06-09 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 8 No
355 BUnE: e 00056R98  203F6R9R z
Luan Dalong ~ Independent non-executive Director  Male 59 2020-06-09 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 8 No
SRE BUHTESR 3 006A98  20235679A z
Tian Dongoiang Chairman of Supenvisory Committee  Male 57 2020-09-21 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 0 Yes
BR% LEeTR E 00598218 20235679A ®
Lizhe Supervisor Male 57 2017-06-26 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 58.51 No
2 £% E 01756A26F  2023%6/9A g
Wen Jinhua ~ Supervisor Female 44 2020-06-09 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 309 No
X&tk £ L 20046798 200356A9R g
Feng Yongmei - Chief accountant Female 44 2021-10-28 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 60.68 No
Bkl fete ' 215106288 2023%6A9A ]
Shi Fengwen  Chief engineer Male 52 2015-10-23 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 5930 No
ABX BT b 015510838 2023F679A &
LiXianzhe ~ General counsel Male 37 2022-01-19 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 05 No
31 BEEER e W02F1A198 2003%6A9A &
Luan Jie Secretary to the Board Male 42 2016-11-08 2023-06-09 0 0 0 - 69.49 No
A - 3 W16E11A8E  202346A9A g
TAoza\ / / / / / 0 0 0 / 49252 /
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers (Continued)
Change in shareholding and remuneration of

0]

cur

rent and the resigned Directors, Supervisors

and Senior Management Officers during the

Reporting Period (Continued)
Note:

(1

Executive Directors (except the Chairman of the Board) do not receive
directors’ emoluments, but have the right to receive remuneration
according to their respective positions in the Company and its
subsidiaries (except the position of Directors). Chairman and non-
executive Directors do not receive emoluments and Supervisors do not
receive supervisors’' emoluments in the Company, but have the right
to receive remuneration according to their respective positions in the
Company and its subsidiaries (except the position of Supervisors).

During the Reporting Period, no Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company were granted any incentive shares by

ERHE QEDAE

M= - EENSREEAEN

IEDAG )

(—) BERBEHARTES - BE=E
NEREBEAEFRE B R RN
15 (&)

et

m

POEF (BRESEIN TEREFHR
& BERREBEREEALFRMEA
BIPTERTS (R E RIS EEF B -
ESERMIFVTESTHE ARG
B - EETEMEENRS - BERRE
EBEARRRKE QB AERS R
B R BGON) EEGHEA o

BEPRAEE  EF SREBAR
RERARRR T RESBAER

Section 5 Corporate Governance IR

the Company.

(3)  Save as disclosed above, during the Reporting Period, no Directors, B)  BEMMEREEIN  REHANLATE
Supervisors and senior management of the Company hold any interests F EE SREEABREBREAR
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of Akt - BN R EF B &%

the Company. Ao

Name

e

Main work experiences

FTETFEER

Wang Jun Chinese, male, aged 52. He is a senior economist with a bachelor’s degree in economics and MBA. Mr.
Wang was a sales clerk, director of export department, director of international business department and
deputy general manager of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., party secretary, chairman of the board of
Beijing Beikai Electric Co., Ltd., head of the office, head of the office of the board of directors, director of
the legal affairs department, secretary to the board of directors, member of the party of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. and a standing committee member deputy general manager and
deputy secretary of party committee. He served as an executive Director of the eighth session of the Board
of the Company and the Chairman of the eighth session of the Board of the Company. He also served as
an executive Director of the ninth session of the Board of the Company, and Chairman of the ninth session
of the Board of the Company. Currently, he is an executive Director and chairman of the tenth session of
the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd..

RIS - B 525 AOBESE24  THEEEL - EaRAER - TEABELRKNETEAGRAT
HEMBEHKE HORER  BREBBIR 2R  ERIABRENERAAEZEL  &F
R IRRHBEERERBEEARMPAZTEL  EFSRLETEME  EZEFHHHE  EFawE -
EELZZE5 EZRE  AEKE  ERREL - ARRE/\EEZTENTEE ARAEN\EEFEE
ER -ARAENEEFSUTESR  ARAFNEEFEEER - BAULRRUBERNHEBERLAE
TEESENTES EFK-

IF

Li Junjie Chinese, male, aged 45. He has a bachelor’s degree in economics and a master’s degree in business
administration. Mr. Li was an accountant of finance department, salesman of marketing department,
deputy secretary of the national committee, secretary of the national committee, deputy manager of
human resources department, secretary to the board of directors, deputy general manager, deputy party
secretary and general manager in Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. He served as an executive Director of
the seventh, eighth and ninth sessions of the Board of the Company from 16 December 2013, and served as
the general manager of the Company from 26 June 2014. He is currently the party secretary and chairman
of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. He is an executive Director and general manager of the tenth session of
the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

HEIRIES - 55 455% c BESEL  ITHEEELT FEEREIRKNEIEEGRARVBHLE - M
BE%EBE BERIEL  BEERL  ANERBEINE  F=gWE  BAKE  EZEIERL 48
B 201312 A16HBREARAELEEEENTES - F/\EEFEWNTES  FLEEESNT
BF 201456 A26 A RERAAKE - RELRKNEIEXARARREEER EFR - IRRPHEE
BOBRARETEEESHTES - B2 -
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEWN

Officers (Continued) 155 (&)

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of (—) BERBRTHARTIES - BES
current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors MEREBEAERFRE B KRN
and Senior Management Officers during the 155 (@)

Reporting Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences

HE FETERE

Zhang Jiheng Chinese, male, aged 48. He is the holder of a bachelor’s degree and a senior engineer. Mr. Zhang served

as a the technician, head of the first production division, deputy minister of the production department,
assistant of general manager, minister of the supply department, and deputy manager of Beijing Tianhai
Industry Co., Ltd., the general manager of Langfang Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. and the
general manager of Beijing Minghui Tianhai Gas Storage and Transportation Equipment Sales Co., Ltd.. He
is currently the party deputy secretary, general manager and vice chairman of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co.,
Ltd. and an executive Director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited.

SR#EE REIEEE - 55 485K 0 KEAR  SRTERM - RAEEEFILRXNETIXEBARAADEE—BEIE -
B - EEAREIERE - RLIEIT - HEHE - BIRKE - BITKEa B RAR A FLREE - bR
PAEXGREMEREHEARAAALE - RALRKETIEERATEZRIER K518  BIES
R ARTHEEROERARNETEEETSYTES -

Wu Yanzhang Chinese, male, aged 59, He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Machinery Manufacturing Management at
Hefei University of Technology and is a postgraduate EMBA at China Europe International Business School.
Mr. Wu served as the dispatcher of the production department, the deputy department head, assistant to
factory head, the director of office and the director of the new office of Beijing No. 1 Machine Tool Plant (1t
R —HERER), the Sino General Manager of OKUMA-BYJC (Beijing) Machine Tool Co. Ltd (it —KE2Q 7)),
the director of Communications Office, the director of office, the head of Legal Department, the head of
Non-financial Corporate Management Department and the head of Asset Management Department and
Strategy and Investment Department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., secretary
of the party committee of Beijing Crane Factory, director of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Asset
Management Co., Ltd., director and chairman of Beijing Xihai Industrial and Trading Company, chairman
of Beijing Zhongdu Electric Co., Ltd., director and the general manager of Jingcheng Compressor Co.,
Ltd. Currently, he is head of investment and development department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Holding Co., Ltd., and non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited.

RIE PEEE 5595 AEIEASUMBEERTIRIZSE L  fRERIHERSMRARE - R
FRELRE-HRBEELRALEES  BER BMERBE WAEXE - FEREE  L—RKRAFH
FHRAEIE RS BIEREREER AP AEEIEE  EMEET PAEEME  EBIEHE - I
KERERIER AETHEIANR  BRERENHR IR EERBHREZER LR RHEEE
EERAREERARES  IRABIERRER EF K IRPHERERAFNERER - W
AR ERATIES « 84638 - BELRRHMESEERERETATRAERLHE - LR RHEER
NERATETEESSIFRNTES -

Xia Zhonghua Chinese, male, aged 59. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering from Hefei University of Technology.
He is a senior engineer. Mr. Xia was designer of construction of Beijing Metal Structure Factory (new factory)
of Beijing Machinery Industrial Engineering Contract Corporation (At S it T #7238 Ti2/4& %8 A 7)) and
its technical director, project assistant manager and project manager, director in basic construction of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., director of the construction project planning department
of Beijing Jianji Real Estate Co., Ltd. (At 2 F 10 22 B]) (Part-time), head of Resource Allocation and
Restructuring and head of project investment of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd.,
vice-president of Party School of Beijing Machinery Industry Administrative Bureau (At R4 TEEHE BE
), deputy minister of the management department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co.,
Ltd., deputy minister (taking charge of works) of the securities and reform department and the head of the
securities and reform department of Jingcheng Holding. He served as a non-executive director of the Board
of the Company from 26 June 2014. He is currently the head of the property resource department of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. and a non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board
of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

B PEEE - 5595 ETEASISES SR TERM - BEAE St RmER T EEZRTRAER
REHE RS BABFRZRRTE BRI E  BREKE BALE  IRAIREEREREE
NARIERERTE  EREREHEL R TIERIZRMIRGR) @ ERRHESEREREEARE
FREEERENEE  REEAFE  LtRERIXEERERBIRE IR RWEEIERERETATF
EIRERIF R - ErEA R R (ERIE) BHFENEIREK - 2014F6 A26 HEER QA ES
EIPTES - RELRRHBEIERERETAFFEHERDBE - LR RWMEERDERAFTET
[EE=GIFNTES -

0
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers (Continued)

Change in shareholding and remuneration of

current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors

and Senior Management Officers during the
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Reporting Period (Continued)

Name

a2

Main work experiences

FETHEER

Li Chunzhi

FER

Man Huiyong

3
i3
I8l

Xiong Jianhui

Zhao Xuguang

BB

Chinese, female, aged 46. She is the holder of a MBA degree and a middle-grade economist. Ms. Li served
as the manager of translation and project of Beijing Mechanical Industry Automation Research Institute,
product manager of of product service department of Beijing Century Yinghua Information Technology
Co., Ltd. Qb Rt BEE AR AR A 7)) and investment management manager and vice department
head of the strategic and investment department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd..
She is the vice department head of the investment asset and management department of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd.. She is currently the vice general manager of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Industrial Investment Co., Ltd. Qb R R BE ¥R EBR AR, supervisor of Beijing
Jingcheng Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. and a non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board
of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

FEIRIEE - 22 46p% - TEERELT - PARKER - Tt BEIEREW T LMEHEE - 1HE
1539 o b AR R EE (S SR A PR A B M AR A% S0 M ASIE o A U B 1R AR A IR B AT A ) BIR BTk
BHREEETE BRI RRAHEEIZREREEAFIREEESEIEIBR « BRI RINHE
z%igﬁggﬂﬂgﬂﬁﬁﬁ AERFHE R RERARES  IRRHEEROBERARE T EE

= TT ©

Chinese nationality, male, aged 45, Bachelor of Management, Accountant. Mr. Man once served as the
director of the Accounting and Financial Management Center of the Finance Department, the Deputy
director of the Comprehensive Budget Management Office of the Enterprise Management and Planning
Department, the deputy director of the Asset Financial Management Department, the Director of the Asset
Financial Management Department, the deputy chief accountant, the chief accountant and the director
of Beijing BEIZHONG Steam Turbine Generator Co., Ltd. He is currently the deputy director of audit of
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. (presiding over the work of the audit department),
the director of Beijing Heavy Motor Factory Co., Ltd, the director of Beijing BEIZHONG Steam Turbine
Generator Co., Ltd. and the non-executive director of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company
Limited.

HEIRIES - 55 455% 0 BIEE2EL - FEA o MAE ST Rt EARERERETARMBI S
BHEEPLIME  CERIMEEBFEEEFR M  EEMKEERIENE  BEV KSR
& BIESEAN BB BF - RELRRBEZEREREETRARFARIMBE (ERFAILT
1) It RBRERBAREERATNESE bR ETRERERETARES IR RHMEERG GR
NEFEITES -

Chinese, male, aged 48. He is a certified public accountant and a certified public valuer. Mr. Xiong has
worked in Nanchang Municipal Engineering Management Office, Zhonglei Certified Public Accountants
and Crowe Horwath Certified Public Accountants. He is currently a partner of WUYIGE Certified Public
Accountants LLP and an independent non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

HEIEISE - 5 - 48p% - st @EthD « EMEETMAD - RREACHBNBEETRIIZEER - PR
EVERSPT - BIEAEGSTAMERA - REXGESMEBRA(FREBER) SBA - LR RHEER N
BRARFETEEFGBEILIFNTES -

Chinese, male, aged 44. He obtained a doctoral degree in law from Renmin University of China. Mr. Zhao
was an associate professor, an assistant to the dean of the School of Humanities and Social Sciences,
and the person in charge of undergraduate and master programs of law in North China Electric Power
University. He is currently the deputy dean, professor, and tutor of master programs of the School of
Humanities and Social Sciences in North China Electric Power University; he is also a director of the Legal
Writing Association of China Law Society, the executive vice president of the Beijing Legal Negotiation
Society, and an independent non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited.

HEIEAS - 5 4457 PRIARKEESIEL o BAEBEFILENAZRIHE - AL GRIBST
RBIE EESRBETHATA c REENLTHIREAEL S ELEREIR R - #0% BX4E
b PENEZEEERENESMAEFESF  LEER ARG EBHESR  IRAMBERHER AR
ETEESESBEUIENTES -
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers (Continued)

Change in shareholding and remuneration of

current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors

and Senior Management Officers during the
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Reporting Period (Continued)

Name

et

Main work experiences

FETHEER

Liu Jingtai

=g

Luan Dalong

AR

Tian Donggiang

FE R 54

Li Zhe

=t

Chinese, male, aged 59. He obtained a doctoral degree in engineering from Nankai University. Mr. Liu was
an associate professor of Nankai University, the deputy director of the Institute of Robotics and Information
Automation of Nankai University and external director of Tianjin Zhonghuan Electronic Information (Group)
Co., Ltd. He is currently a professor and tutor of doctoral programs of the School of Artificial Intelligence
of Nankai University, director of the Institute of Robotics and Information Automation of Nankai University,
and an independent non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited.

HEIEIEE - 55 595% c mMRAZ IR - 254 B ERMAARSEIZR  ERAASKSEALEEaE L
MEFFEIR  REPREFELEEEGRARIINGES - BEMAARBEATRESRIK  BL4E
ﬁgﬂj CERARPEBALRGEEEMCHEMAR R RBERERNERARETEEFSELIERNTE

Chinese, male, aged 59. He obtained a doctoral degree in management science and engineering from
Northwestern Polytechnical University. Mr. Luan was a researcher at the Academy of Military Science. He is
currently an independent director of Aerospace Hi-Tech Holding Group Co., Ltd. and DHC Software Co.,
Ltd, and an independent non-executive Director of the tenth session of the Board of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited.

HEIEAS - 550 595% c B TERSPERRIBETIZEL - RXBELAEBHEFTENEHRMRE - RE
AR EIEREERNHERARELES  REFUHRGARBILES  ERTHBERDERAFE
TEEEEBELIFNITES

Chinese, male, aged 57. He is a professor level senior engineer. Mr. Tian graduated from the School
of Energy and Power Engineering of Xi'an Jiaotong University, majoring in thermal turbines, and from
the Business School of Renmin University of China, majoring in EMBA. Mr. Tian is an expert entitled
to government allowance from the State Council. Mr. Tian was the chief engineer and deputy general
manager of Beijing BEIZHONG Steam Turbine Generator Co., Ltd., and the general manager, party
secretary, director and chairman of the board of Beijing Jingcheng New Energy Co., Ltd. At present, Mr.
Tian is a despatched supervisor of the board and supervisory office of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Holding Co., Ltd., as well as a Supervisor and the chairman of the tenth session of Supervisory Committee
of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

HEIRIES - 55 0 575%  HEBSMTIZAD - AAFRERALIMASIRES H TIRZA N RGHE
¥ PREARARSHBREMBAE X - EXEBEBMENER - EILRIEEBSHAREETARE
TR0 - BIARACER - bR R AR AR EAE BLRER EF  FFR - RELRRMBEE
RAEREARANEESNATINEESE - IR MK EROERAFETEESSHE  HETER -

Chinese, male, aged 57. He is a engineer with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Li had served as the
technician, class leader, head of the first production division, deputy director and director of production
division, assistant of general manager and deputy general manager of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., the
general manager and chairman of the board of Beijing Minghui Tianhai Gas Storage and Transportation
Equipment Sales Co., Ltd., deputy party secretary and secretary of the discipline inspection commission
of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., supervisor of Shanghai Tianhai High Pressure Containers Co., Ltd.,
and supervisor of Langfang Tianhai High Pressure Containers Co., Ltd. He is currently the deputy party
secretary, secretary of discipline inspection commission and chairman of labour union of Beijing Tianhai
and a Supervisor of the tenth session of the Supervisory Committee of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited.

RBIEEE - B 5758 T2+ TR - TAASFURKEIEARABEE—EREME - K
B HEEBEBE - BR - ALEHE - BIRLE ITRABXEREFRERBHEARA ALK
B EBERCUIRAGIEERATEZREZR  £ZEL DERNEaBEERERAFES  BHK
BEBERRERARES RELRKEIXERAFNEZRER  £EE%  TEEFE - LR
BROHBERAAETEEFTESE -

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
Officers (Continued)

Change in shareholding and remuneration of

current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors

and Senior Management Officers during the
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Reporting Period (Continued)

Name

a2

Main work experiences

FETHEER

Wen Jinhua

XEAE

Feng Yongmei

e

Shi Fengwen

ARX

Li Xianzhe

FH

Chinese, female, aged 44. She has a bachelor degree in engineering. Ms. Wen served as the deputy
division head of the technology department, secretary of the general branch of the Communist Youth
League and head of personnel of Beijing Modern lJingcheng Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. (At FIBHK
I T2 A AR A 7)), the head of integrated management department and secretary of the board of
directors of Beijing Jingcheng Nagano Construction Machinery Company Limited (1t 5 53k & BF T A2 #in;
BBR/AF]), the listing management director of the securities department of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Holding Co., Ltd., and the deputy head of the human resources department of Beijing Tianhai
Industry Co., Ltd.. She currently serves as a member of female employees committee of the labor union of
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd., and the vice chairman of the labor union, director of
the female employees committee and secretary of the party committee (party and mass human resources
department) of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and a Supervisor of the tenth session of Supervisory
Committee of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

PEIEIE - & 4dpx 0 T2E2+ o XL TBHRIERBERRRTEERERATRMHEIE R BEE
o ARRE R ETIEEMAERARGEEERAEE E2eWE - ERFUNKEZRAR
EERARBEAFHLEMEREE  ERRXNEIEBRATANEARIDBEIER - BAELRTINESIZERER
EFRARIERIEZESELE kRKXGIEBRARICEERF  KIZESEM EBEANESS
Ei IREHMBERNERARE TEESTES -

Chinese, female, aged 44, holds a master’s degree in accounting and is a certified public accountant, senior
accountant and lecturer. Feng Yongmei served as an accountant at Suzhou Wuzhong District Housing
Construction and Development Corporation (&)1 T R & FEiE %2422 7)), a teacher at Nanjing
Audit University (R =251 E30%), an auditor at Reanda Certified Public Accountants, a financial controller at
CIFCO Group Co., Ltd. (FEAEEEIB R A &), a financial manager at Beijing Machinery & Electricity Institute
Machine Tool Co., Ltd., the head of finance department and chief account at Beiren Group Co., Ltd.. She
currently serves as the chief financial officer at Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and the chief accountant
of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited (the financial controller).

REIRIAS - % 0 4457 0 BT 2L AMEEE RS - B o SKEEEFMNTRIRERER
BHEBANEEH  BRETERBED - MRESHEEBAEAMN - PHERERANUBEE - 4t
PHEREKRERAFGKERE  SEAKERRFBEHE A - RELRKXGTEBRRAMG
e R ERNER AT (MBEaEA) -

Chinese, male, aged 52. He is a senior engineer with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Mr. Shi was as
assistant engineer, engineer, vice-chief and chief of technical department, deputy chief engineer, vice
director of technology and quality department, manager representative, assistant to general manager,
director of technical department, director of technology and quality department of Beijing Tianhai Industry
Co., Ltd.. Currently, he is the chief engineer, director of technology and quality department and director
of new product research and development department of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., and chief
engineer of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited.

PRI - 550 525 0 T2+ SRR - AXEBEILRKETEGR A ARITEHIETIZA -
TiERD - RTGEIGER - BitERR - BIATIRA  RINESNEIIE EEENRRE  QKENE K
R - HTEEE K - BEILRKETEBRAREIZN RINEEEEHHR - HERHE
HEbR - SRR E R G AR A R A TIZED o

Chinese, male, aged 37, Bachelor of Management from China University of Geosciences (Beijing), Master
of Civil and Commercial Law from Beijing University of Chemical Technology, with legal professional
qualification, enterprise legal consultant practice qualification and securities practice qualification. Mr. Li
used to be the legal specialist of Beiren Group Corporation, the deputy director of the audit legal sector of
the Printing Machine Business Department, the Clerk and deputy chief clerk of Beijing Miyun Commission
for Discipline Inspection, and the deputy director of the Case Supervision and Administration Office. He
is now the general counsel of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited.

MEEES - 5 3758 PEMERBULR)EREE L - IRt ITREREESEL - AWEEREE
1 PEEAZBEPNEER FHREER FTEEREIAKBRGEKES  IIREEREEH
HEIE - IREELENE BIEAENE  RUEEERZERFESE - RELRKNETIEERAF
@EERER - LR RIBEERND AR A REEERERM -
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEWN

Officers (Continued) 155 (&)

(i) Change in shareholding and remuneration of (—) BERBRTHARTIES - BES
current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors MEREBEAERFRE B KRN
and Senior Management Officers during the 155 (@)

Reporting Period (Continued)

Name Main work experiences

HE FETELE

Luan Jie Chinese, male, aged 42, holds a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Luan was a staff in the legal department

of Beijing Chaopi Trading Co., Ltd., lawyer in Beijing Jingdu Law Firm, deputy manager and manager in
securities and legal department, officer and secretary to the board of directors of Beijing Jingkelong Co.,
Ltd. legal director of Gloden Harvest (Beijing) Cinema management Consultancy Company Limited. He has
been the secretary to the Board of the Company since 18 November 2016. Currently, he is the secretary to
the Board of the Company.

BN HEIRIES - 55 0 4257 c ABE2 L o REL DA RBMEERG AR D ADEAEHEE - bR R AR
HEAER - AR REERNEEERNERAREFEFIEIET - FF - EFFWE - ERFRTH
ERHABRAREBSEE - 2016F 11 A 18HREARAEFEWEES - RIELRHAKERH AR
NREEEGWE -

As at the date of this report, the Company is not aware of any RARE B - BARAFA - SLER
change in the information of Director, Supervisor or chief executive B EMMRBIEE13.51B(1)IEATHEL
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing AMES EELAETHRASERE
Rules. B
Other information HA 1SR
[ Applicable ' Not applicable O N TEA
(i) Positions of current and the resigned Directors, (o) RERBEHRBREIES  BES
Supervisors and Senior Management Officers MEREEAENERBER
during the Reporting Period
1. Positions in Shareholder Entities 1. ERRECEBER
\ Applicable (1 Not applicable ViER DO7TER
Date of Date of expiry
Name Name of shareholder entity Position(s) held at shareholder entities appointment of office
ERASHS RREMER ERREMEENES 53 Tl pek R LERE
Wu Yanzhang Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Head of the investment and development May 2015
Co., Ltd. department
REE FRREEERAREALT REERIPR 201555A -
Xia Zhonghua Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Head of the property resource department April 2015
Co., Ltd.
EpE FRRBEEERAREALT BERHHR 201554R -
Man Huiyong Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Deputy head of audit October 2021
Co., Ltd.
WER SRRAREERERALLA EiEER 2021104 -
Tian Donggjang Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Despatched supervisor of the board and April 2020
Co., Ltd. supervisory office
ET FRRBEEERAREAL EESHOEINEES 202054R -
Description of Positionsin  Not applicable
Shareholder Entities

ERREMARBRNTS TER
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Officers (Continued)

(ii) Positions of current and the resigned Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management Officers
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during the Reporting Period (Continued)
2. Position(s) in Other Entities

g ~

ERHE QEDAE

EE  ESNSHEEBAERN

155 (@)

(Z) RERKREHABTES B
HNEREEAENTRER @

2. THEEMBEMERER

\ Applicable I Not applicable ViR OTER
Position(s) held Date of Date of expiry
Name Name of other entity at other entities appointment  of office
ERABES Hitt B £ ERMECEENERE AMEREH  ABLLEH
Wang Jun Beijing Jingcheng Zhitong Robot Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman October 2020 -
% ERFREBRSZARRBR AR BER 20204107
AVIC Maite Additive Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.  Chairman January 2022 -
PREREM R (LR BRAF EER 202241R -
Li Junjie Beiging Zhichuang (Beijing) New Energy Director August 2020 -
Automobile Technology Co., Ltd.
FEA B A GER) R TER AR AR Ex 20208
Wu Yanzhang Beijing ABB High Voltage Switch Gear Co., Ltd. Director May 2019 -
RIE JERABBEEHEREER AT B 20195573
Beijing ABB Switch Co., Ltd. Director May 2019 -
It RABBFBBR A S 2019554
Xia Zhonghua Beijing Shuangcheng Real Estate Development Director February 2020 -
Co., Ltd.
B ITrEHEXREBRAR B3 202052
Beijing BEIZHONG Steam Turbine Generator Co., Ltd. Director June 2020 -
IRt ERRERBREMEAR e 2020%6AR
Beijing Heavy Motor Factory Co., Ltd. Director June 2020 -
IR ERERBERE TR 5% 2020%6AR
Babcock & Wilcox Beijing Company Ltd. Director December 2019 -
ERERH AN R BR AR B= 20195123
Beijing B.J. Electric Motor Co., Ltd. Director December 2020 -
R EERRNHERAF B= 20205121
Beijing Jingcheng Heavy Industry Co., Ltd. Director March 2019 -
ErRBEIRMAEREERR % 2019534
Beijing Jingcheng Zhidi Co., Ltd. Director October 2018 -
IR EARAR 2 2018410
Beijing Jingcheng Electrical Engineering Co., Ltd. Director March 2019 -
TR ERTIRERAT Ex 2019534
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E%E - EENSHEEAEY

Officers (Continued) 155 (&)

(i) Positions of current and the resigned Directors, (o) RERBEHRBTES - E=S
Supervisors and Senior Management Officers MEREEASNERBER @)
during the Reporting Period (Continued)

2. Position(s) in Other Entities (Continued) 2. HEHMHENEBRER (@
Position(s) held Date of Date of expiry
Name Name of other entity at other entities appointment  of office
EBABHE HipEU AR EEMEMRENREY EHERAE EHLALRH
Li Chunzhi Beijing Jingcheng Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. Supervisor November 2018 -
FEN RS RER AR Ex 201851173
Man Huiyong Beijing BEIZHONG Steam Turbine Generator Director May 2019 -
Co., Ltd.
WEE IR EAREREREAAR B3 2019%5A
Beijing Heavy Motor Factory Co., Ltd. Director June 2020 -
EREVERBERELLT B3 2020%6A
Xiong Jianhui WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP Partner April 2013 -
e KEEHMEBH (FHRERER) aRA 201354 A
Zhao Xuguang North China Electric Power University Member and deputy dean of ~ September 2018 -

Party Committee of the School
of Humanities and Social

Sciences
iy EBNRE A%%E@ﬂ%?ﬁ%ééé + 2018597
]l
Liu Jingtai Institute of Robotics and Information Automation Director October 2007 -
of Nankai University
E%R HRAREAIERERKSARES Pk 20074107
BENLERZER
Luan Dalong Aerospace Hi-Tech Holding Group Co., Ltd. Independent director April 2017 -
EIN AR EREBRNERAH BUES 201744A
DHC Software Co., Ltd. Independent director March 2016 -
REGMHRIHAF BUES 2016%3A
Hunan Valin Co., Ltd. Independent director September 2019 -
HEEERNBBRLF BUES 2019494
Suzhou Ruikea Connection System Co., Ltd. Independent director March 2017 -
FMmmEEE XN AR AT BUEE 201743A
Description of Positions  Nil
in Other Entities &
TEMBMERERN
Ll
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IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Officers (Continued)

(iii) Remunerations of Directors, Supervisors and

Senior Management Officers
\ Applicable 1 Not applicable

Decision making process of remuneration of Directors,

Supervisors and Senior Management

B EF - SREEABRBRMORKER

Basis for determination of remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management

B EF - oREEABRBMETRE

Actual payment for the remuneration of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management Officers

B EEVSAEEARBMNERNER

Total actual remuneration of all Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management Officers at the end of the
Reporting Period

MEPRTBEES EENSRERABETRESD
HEEET

ERHE QEDAE

M-E5 - ESASREEAEN
185 (#)
(Z) BE - B35 - SREEASEH
&R
ViER O EA

Resolution on the remuneration of directors and senior management
officers is prepared by remuneration and monitoring committee of
the Board. The remuneration of senior management officers is to
be considered and approved by the Board while the remuneration
of directors and supervisors are to be considered and approved
by the Board and the supervisory committee, respectively, and
reported to the general meeting through the Board and the
supervisory committee, respectively, for consideration and approval.

RAEE  aRBEEAESRMEEFTSFMEEREZEeRTES
B SAEEBABNRMEEEERAIE  EFORMBES
SEZBBRFERRANSIME  EFNBHAEFIEZRAR
R AGHA

The remuneration of directors, supervisors and senior management
officers is determined in accordance with the remuneration
standard of directors, supervisors and senior management officers
formulated by the Company, as well as the annual assessment
indicators.

RBARGIENES  EERRREEAEHFNRE  £5FEZ
ZIER  WMEEF  EFREMTEABRMH -

Please refer to the above table headed “Change in shareholding and
remuneration of current and the resigned Directors, Supervisors
and Senior Management Officers during the Reporting Period”.

REMRMRERBRERARIES  EENESREEAERREDR
HENME (R)

RMB4.9252 million

AR#5492.528 7T

2022 ANNUAL REPORT |

Section 5 Corporate Governance IR

67

2022 FERE



I Scction 5 Corporate Governance
FHET NEDRE

IV. Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management - E% - EEMNSREEAEWN

Officers (Continued) 155 (&)
(iv) Changes in Directors, Supervisors and Senior (O) XAES - ES - SREEAE
Management BEER
[ Applicable ' Not applicable O:@Em T ER
(v) Description of penalties imposed by securities (B) F=FSRBLFEEHUBEING
regulatory bodies in the past three years e B
[ Applicable v Not applicable O ER N TEm
(VI) Others (%) HAfty
[ Applicable v Not applicable O ER T Es
V. Relevant information of the Board of A - BREHAECHNEEZSERHE
Directors held during the Reporting Period o
Session Date of Convening Meeting Resolution
EEENR BEAH VS
Fourteenth Extraordinary 2022.1.19 1. The resolution in relation to the “Amendments to the Strategic Investment Management Related System of the
Meeting of the Tenth Company” was considered and approved.
Session of the Board 2. The resolution in relation to the “Election of Member of the Audit Committee of the tenth session of the Board of

the Company” was considered and approved.
3. The resolution in relation to the “Appointment of General Counsel of the Company” was considered and approved.
4. The resolution in relation to the “Signing of Agreement related to Property Leasing, Renovation and Property
Services of Yichuang Park and Connected Transactions” was considered and approved.

FTEEZEETER 202241 3198 1 FRRB(ENET ARBRREAEEARNENER)
(i 2 BERBBENEELTETEES SR EERRENER
3. BRARENEARAELEERNEER
4 FEBBBREEMAEREREEE  RERVERBORBHEEEHIINZER
Fifteenth Extraordinary 2022.1.28 1. The resolution in relation to the “Extension of the Validity Period of the Resolutions of the General Meeting in
Meeting of the Tenth respect of the Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds of the
Session of the Board Company” was considered and approved.

2. The resolution in relation to the “Request to the General Meeting to Extend the Validity Period of the Mandate
Granted to the Board of Directors to Deal with Matters Relating to the Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance
and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds"” was considered and approved.

3. The resolution in relation to “Convening Extraordinary General Meeting, A Share General Meeting and H Share
General Meeting"” was considered and approved.

FTEEZEETIR 202251728H 1 FRAB(ANERARFTRND A NALREAET S REL S SERRAGAAEWHINGR)

(i 2° %%ui;Fﬁb"é%%ﬂﬁ%K@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%@%ﬁmﬂﬁfﬁﬂ%&iﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁéﬁ%%@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁEﬁ%ﬁ‘ﬁ‘iﬁl
u?ﬁ?K
3. EEBB(ANCRRRREAS  ARERIREAE RHEERIRRA 8RR
Sixteenth Extraordinary 2022.2.25 The resolution in relation to the change in the members of the audit committee of the tenth session of the Board of the
Meeting of the Tenth Company was considered and approved.

Session of the Board
ETEEFEET R 2022%2A258 BARBENAAE TEEFERAREGAEREINER

i+ S
Ennﬂ'f ] n§
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V. Relevant information of the Board of
Directors held during the Reporting Period

(Continued)

Session

EHER AHAH

Date of Convening Mee

&
a8

Section 5 Corporate Governance IR
EHE NEDRE

I HREHANEHNESSERRE
4=

)

NS4
off #

ting Resolution

Seventh Meeting of 2022.3.17
the Tenth Session of

the Board

EtEESCELNEE 202243A178

Nowvhkwh

The full text and abstract of the 2021 Annual Report and the H shares results announcement of the Company were
considered and approved

The 2021 Annual Work Report of the Board was considered and approved

The 2021 audited Financial Report of the Company was considered and approved

The 2021 Internal Control Assessment Report of the Company was considered and approved

The 2021 Audit Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting of the Company was considered and approved
The 2021 Social Responsibility Report of the Company was considered and approved

The resolution on the “Corporate Governance Report” (draft) required to be disclosed in the H shares Annual
Report of the Company and authorisation of the secretary to the Board to be responsible for subsequent review of
and amendment to the “Corporate Governance Report” was considered and approved

The resolution on the 2021 “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” (draft) of the Company and
authorisation of the secretary to the Board to be responsible for subsequent review of and amendment to the 2021
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” was considered and approved

The resolution on the 2021 Annual Work Report of the General Manager was considered and approved

. The resolution on the Report of the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company for the year of 2021 was

considered and approved

. The resolution on the performance of the audit committee of the Board for the year of 2021 was considered and

approved

. The resolution on the payment for the audit fee for the year of 2021 to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants

(Special General Partnership) was considered and approved

. The resolution on the payment for the audit fee for the year of 2021 to Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special

General Partnership) was considered and approved;

The resolution in relation to the re-appointment of the auditor of the Company’s 2022 financial reports was
considered and approved

The resolution in relation to the re-appointment of the auditor for the 2022 audit report on internal control over
financial reporting of the Company was considered and approved

The 2022 audit plan of the Company was considered and approved

FARBRTR0NFEERERIRBE  HIRFERSE

© BEBAATRVEEEEETHERE
© BEBEBARRFEEEHNSERE

FZRBATRNFERDETERS

EZRBLARRONEERERE ML B RS

FEBBLTNEEHEEARE

EZRBRAAHREHEN(CEERRS) (BR) URHESSNEAEREBRGEI(CEEARS) NER
EZBALARVIFEGE BERERYE) BR)  TREEESNERRREEREIRVFGHE  BE
RERRE) MR

EZBBLAVIFEEALETERENGE

C BERBARRIFEEFRTESRRRS
CBRRREEOEARR AN FERBENNAR

BB NIRRT NEHNERHR (BRTAAY) 201 FRELBANER
CBRRBINAEGHMERN R TRAY) 01 FEEHBRNER
 BRRBERLRONFENBRE R RENER
 BRBBERAR0DFEYBRE NSRBI RETHRBNER
 BHBBRR02FEE
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V. Relevant information of the Board of T -HEHAEBHNEEZTSEEE
Directors held during the Reporting Period T ()
(Continued)

Session Date of Convening Meeting Resolution

BEER BHAH BRRE

17. The 2022 assessment plan of the Company's internal control was considered and approved
18. The resolution in relation to the Company's Special Report on the Deposit and Use of Raised Funds in 2021 was
considered and approved
19. The resolution in relation to the 2021 internal audit report on the deposit and use of raised funds of the Company
was considered and approved
20. The proposal of the Company not to distribute profit for the year of 2021 was considered and approved
21. The resolution on provision for impairment of the Company for the year of 2021 was considered and approved
22. The 2022 financing guarantee plan of the Company was considered and approved
23. The resolution in relation to the obtaining of bank credit facilities from Pudong Development Bank by way of
security guarantee and the application for bank acceptance in tranches of up to RMB80 million by Tianjin Tianhai, a
subsidiary of the Company was considered and approved
24. The 2022 business plan of the Company was considered and approved
25. The 2022 research and development plan of the Company was considered and approved
26. The results of remuneration and performance assessment for the senior management members of the Company for
the year of 2021 were considered and approved
27. The "Performance Assessment Contract for Senior Management” of the Company for the year of 2022 was
considered and approved, and the chairman of the Board is authorized to enter into those contracts with the senior
management members
28. The resolution to be submitted to the 2021 annual general meeting for approving the authorisation of the Board to
issue new H shares not exceeding 20% of the total issued H shares was considered and approved
29. The resolution in relation to the amendment of the “Fund Raising Management Measures” was considered and
approved
30. The resolution in relation to the purchase of directors, supervisors and senior management members liability
insurance for the year of 2022 by the Company was considered and approved
31. The resolution on the convening time of the Company's 2021 annual general meeting was considered and approved
17 FRRBAR0RFEABEGFESR
18- BRBBENL RN FEEEASTHAFABRNEERE AR
19 BEBBENL AN FEREEESFHEACBERABEARENER
20 FRRARANONFETETIBIENER
21 BEBBRARNEENRAELENER
22 - BRBARA02FE A RRE
23 ﬁﬁﬁi@%ﬁﬁé@ﬁ?%i%%Fﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁiﬁi@@ﬁﬁ%f%ﬁ%%iﬁﬁT‘%Eﬂl’ﬁﬁtiﬁﬁﬁEﬁ%)@i%ﬁiET\ﬁ?@&OOO%ﬁﬁ
IEES
24 BEEBNF02FEEEE
25 BERBAR02FEWEE
26 FRBBRANFERRERASFMEENERLER
27 BEBBRTONF(SREEASBNEREEAR)  WREEERERNERASEERAANEE
28~ i%ﬁ%@ﬁ’iﬂEZONifﬁﬂﬁ%?@iﬁ@ﬁt)&ﬁ%%$§E$ﬂi@€§§ﬁH%%1‘%@@@%20%%%%%%{%
EES
29 ERRBANE(ERERERINE) MR
30 BEBAENATRRNFEEESZRHNERASELRBOER
31 ZRBBLRNFERRBFAGARKENER
Seventeenth Extraordinary 2022.4.1 The resolution in relation to the external investment of the Company's subsidiary Tianhai Industry in Beijing Tianteng Data
Meeting of the Tenth Technology Co., Ltd. (tentative name) was considered and approved
Session of the Board
%g@% SETLR 202264718 BABBANARIFARRNGIEHIMIE L RRBREENBER AR (TR 8) NER
EnHTI EIE
Eighth Meeting of the Tenth  2022.4.28 1. The resolution in relation to the Company's 2022 first quarterly report was considered and approved
Session of the Board The resolution in relation to the adjustment on the Company's financing guarantee plan for the year of 2022 was
considered and approved
3. The resolution in relation to the application for a bridging loan of RMB40.00 million by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co.,
Ltd. to Jingcheng Machinery Electric was considered and approved
4. The resolution relating to the acquisition of 2% equity interest of Beijing Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture
Development Co., Ltd. held by Beijing Nengtong Lease Company by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. was
considered and approved
BARBENAA0D2FE-FERENEER
© BRRBENARLRRORFERERRTEANER
- BRBAERNIRANE IR BRI MRMEE R F B ER40008 THER
' %Eﬁ%i@%ﬁﬁéib?%@l%ﬁKﬁﬁﬁﬂuﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ B R RS BRIEUE BR AR A 2%k IEE
EREER

N

EtEESSE\REE 202244 5288

S w o —
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V. Relevant information of the Board of T -HEHAZHNEEZSEEE
Directors held during the Reporting Period (4
(Continued)

?—?
E

Session Date of Convening Meeting Resolution

EHER BHEH VT

Eighteenth Extraordinary 2022.8.2 1. The resolution in relation to the Conclusion of the Construction Project of the Type IV Cylinder Automation Digital
Meeting of the Tenth Control Production Line was considered and approved
Session of the Board 2. The resolution in relation to the Loan of up to US$4 million from Cathay United Bank to BTIC America Corporation (a

subsidiary of the Company) was considered and approved

FTEEZEET/UX 2022820 1 BSRAEAIURE R BEAERERERAENER

s 2 FRRBERD TTE%S% NARIMBRBTER T BBI00EETNER
Ninth Meeting of the Tenth ~ 2022.8.11 1. The resolution in relation to the Establishment of a Designated Account for the Raised Funds and the Entering into
Session of the Board of a Custody Agreement for the Designated Account for the Raised Funds was considered and approved

2. The resolution in relation to the Full text and abstract of the 2022 A Shares Interim Report and the H Shares Results
Announcement of the Company were considered and approved,
3. The resolution in relation to the Provision for Impairment of the Company in the First Half of 2022 was considered
and approved
4. The resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Deposit and Actual Use of Raised Funds of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Company Limited in the First Half of 2022 was considered and approved
FTEEFEENRES 2022%8A11R 1 ERRBERNR USRS A EARP IR AR AL EMRPEEMENER
2 FAEBBBENARRORFARFERENNAE  HRFELENER
3. EREAENER0NET I RAEEENEE
4 BEBBERNIRRBEEROERATRFLFEESASTNEFAERANEERENER
Tenth Meeting of the Tenth ~ 2022.10.28 1.
Session of the Board 2

The resolution in relation to the 2022 Third Quarterly Report of the Company was considered and approved
The resolution in relation to the Adjustment of the Audit Service Fee for the 2022 Financial Report of the Company
was considered and approved

3. The resolution in relation to the Adjustment of the Audit Service Fee for Internal Controls of the Company for the
Year of 2022 was considered and approved

FTEESSETNEE 20225108288 1 ERBBRUAARDFE=ZFERENZER

2. BRBABRARATONFENEREFAREERNER

3. ERRABRAERATRFERNDEHEREERNER
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V. Relevant information of the Board of
Directors held during the Reporting Period

(Continued)

I Scction 5 Corporate Governance

N

EHAERNESSAEE

42

)

ﬂ\

NS4
off #

Session Date of Convening Meeting Resolution
EEER BEAEH Ry
Nineteenth Extraordinary 2022.11.16 1. The resolution in relation to the Company's Fulfilment of the Conditions for Non-public Issuance of A Shares was
Meeting of the Tenth Session considered and Approved
of the Board 2. Each of the sub-resolutions under the resolution in relation to the Proposal for the Company’s Non-public Issuance
of A Shares was considered and approved
3. The resolution in relation to the Company's Proposal for Non-public Issuance of A Shares was considered and
approved
4. The resolution in relation to the Feasibility Analysis Report on the Use of Proceeds Raised from the Non-public Issuance
of A Shares for 2022 of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited was considered and approved
5. The resolution in relation to the Report on the Use of the Company's Previous Raised Proceeds was considered and
approved
6. The resolution in relation to the Non-public Issuance of A Shares for 2022 which Constitutes Connected Transaction
of the Company was considered and approved
7. The resolution in relation to the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement Entered into Between the Company and
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. was considered and approved
8. The resolution in relation to the Conditional Asset Acquisition Framework Agreement by Way of Cash Payment
Entered into between the Company and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. was considered and
approved
9. The resolution in relation to Dilution of Immediate Returns by the Non-public Issuance of A Shares, Remedial
Measures and Commitments of Related Entities was considered and approved
10. The resolution in relation to the Shareholders’ Return Plan for the Next Three Years (2022-2024) of the Company
was considered and approved
11. The resolution in relation to No Penalties or Regulatory Measures Imposed by Securities Regulatory Department and
the Stock Exchange in the Last Five Years was considered and approved
12. The resolution in relation to the Proposal on Authorizing of the Board of Directors to Handle All Matters in relation
to the Non-public Issuance of A Shares was considered and approved
13. The resolution in relation to the Suspension of Putting the Non-public Issuance of A Shares for Consideration at the
General Meeting was considered and approved
FTEEZQE TR 025118168 1 BIREENAANAFARETARKERINEE
(i 2 BEESRBERATFAHBTARRE I RNZER
3. BRAAENRAFLRBRITARREERNER
4 FREBEMIRIEERNERAT02FEFARETARREESECERTTEANRENZR
5 BRBBERATRAEEESERBEAEERENER
6 BRBBENAT02FEHFARETARKR S KB Z02R
7 BEBAERNATERARERRERETARESIEHEMNROBERENER
8 FRBBENARE AR ERREREALABRBMNEGEINI AR BEAEERHENER
9 BRAAENFLRBITARREHENREE  ARBEMEATBAENER
10+ BHBBWRN R AIRR=F(2022-20245F) RREFHRENHER
N EEBRENRI I F M EREFEE PN S MRS IRREEHENER
12 FRRBEN AR REEF S 2EME A RARETARRSEHFENZR
13 BEBRERARFERARBTARREEFZRE TRIBRRAGEZNER
Twentieth Extraordinary 2022.12.22 1. The resolution in relation to the Unilateral Capital Injection of RMB30 million by the Company to Qingdao BYTQ
Meeting of the Tenth Session United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd. and the Amendment of the Articles of Association of BYTQ was considered and
of the Board approved
2. The resolution in relation to the Participation in the Establishment of Hubei Jingyuan Xihai Automobile Technology
Co., Ltd. and the Implementation of the Construction Project of 10,000 sets of CNG Supply System Master
Production Line for Vehicles per year by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. was considered and approved
FTEESEE TR 2022F12R228 1 FEEBERLRRESIFRAEEHERERAREHILE3 0008 T MESIFRAEERNEER
(S 2> FBBANMRRNEIEERRAISRR AL EREE ENRERARNBERFE I BEEAINGHERRS
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VI. Performance of Duties by Directors N EEETHBERR
(i) Attendance of directors at the Board meetings (—) EEZNMEEENRRAEHE
and the general meetings p
Attendance
at general
meetings
Attendance at Board meetings SRR
SmESERR KERER
Absence
from two Number of
Required Attendance by consecutive attendance
Independent attendance Attendance  communication Attendance Number of meetings at general
ornot  during the year in person equipment by proxy absence or not meetings
EEESN HERA RAEEMR  HERRAS
Name of Director(s) ~ EZ#% REBUES EZERE  REdERY SMRE  ERLEAE RERE  ARESNEE it
Wang Jun 1% No 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
g g
Li Junje X No il 0 l 0 0 No 4
g g
Zhang Jiheng FEE No 11 0 il 0 0 No 4
g g
Wu Yanzhang REE No 11 0 il 0 0 No 4
g g
Xia Zhonghua Bz No il 0 1 0 0 No 4
& &
Li Chunzhi FER No 11 0 11 0 0 No 4
& &
Man Huiyong WER No 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
& &
Xiong Jianhui R Yes 1 0 i 0 0 No 4
I &
Zhao Xuguang fellins Yes 1 0 11 0 0 No 4
] T
3 =]
Liu Jingtai #27 Yes 1 0 il 0 0 No 4
& &
Luan Dalong LN Yes 1 0 11 0 0 No 4
E =~
Description of absence from two consecutive Board meetings EEMIAREHEESESRNFSH
in person
(1 Applicable v Not applicable O:@Em N TER
Number of Board meetings during the year 11
FRNEHEEZERAY
Of which: number of meetings convened on-site 0
Hep - S @RAH
Number of meetings convened by communication equipment 11
iR WAl k=N
Number of meetings both on-site and by communication equipment 0

BSEaBA T dRERRH
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VI.

VII.

Performance of Duties by Directors (Continued)
(ii) Objection of Directors to the Relevant Matters of

the Compan

] Applicable v Not applicable

(iii) Others
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Special Committees under the Board of

Directors
\ Applicable  [J Not applicable

(1) Members of Special Committees under the Board
of Directors

Category of Special Committee Name of Members

EERERTREBI®
(Z) EEYH LA RIEHEEEEHERN

B
O @R Tl

(Z) Hftb
O@A T Em

t EFETREMZESENR

ViER O TER
(1) ES=ETREMZEERERBR

EMZEEEER MEESE

Audit Committee Xiong Jianhui, Zhao Xuguang, Man Huiyong

ETLER RRIZIE - HIBYE - MEE

Nomination Committee Zhao Xuguang, Luan Dalong, Li Junjie

REEE® B - BKEE - FEN

Remuneration and Monitoring Committee Liu Jingtai, Xiong Jianhui, Wang Jun

FEREZEE S 2155  REE IE

Strategy Committee Wang Jun, Li Junjie, Zhang Jiheng, Wu Yanzhang, Liu Jingtai
HEELZE® TE e RME - REE - BRE
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EZEZETREMZEEER @
Directors (continued)

(2) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee (2) BMEHRAETZESEHIRE
held 9 meetings &

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEER EftEeT
BHEH BERA Gl BERR
2022/1118 1. The resolution in relation to the Signing of Agreement related to Property Leasing, Renovation and Property Services of Considered and -
Yichuang Park and Connected Transactions was considered; approved
2. The resolution in relation to the Appointment of the Head of the Secretariat of the Audit Committee was considered.
20221118 1. %mfa REENEIEERERS - “*MWHWE@WW“EEH RPRGER ) -
2 EARMESEEZAGNERIANER
20221118 Review the consolidated financial statements for 2021 and the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries before ~ Considered and -
auditing. approved
20221118 %Bﬁzon EOGEBNE  SARRARTARNMBER (B - S -
20221316 The full text and abstract of the 2021 Annual Report and H Shares Results Announcement of the Company were considered; ~ Considered and -
2. the 2021 audited financial reports of the Company was considered, approved
3. The 2021 Internal Control Assessment Report of the Company was considered;
4. the internal control audit report in the financial report of the Company for the year 2021 was considered,
5. The 2021 Social Responsibility Report of the Company was considered;
6. The resolution on the Corporate Governance Report (draft) required to be disclosed in the H Shares Annual Report of the

Company and authorisation of the secretary to the Board to be responsible for subsequent review of and amendment to the
Corporate Governance Report was considered;

7. The resolution on the 2021 Environmental, Social and Governance Report (draft) of the Company and authorisation of the
secretary to the Board to be responsible for subsequent review of and amendment to the 2021 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report was considered;

8. The resolution on the performance of the Audit Committee of the Board for the year 2021 was considered;

9. The resolution on the payment for the audit fee of the financial reports for the year 2021 to ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) was considered;

10. The resolution on the payment for the audit fee for the year 2021 to Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) was considered,

11, The resolution in relation to the re-appointment of the auditor of the Company's 2022 financial reports was considered;

12, The resolution in relation to the re-appointment of the auditor for the 2022 audit report on internal control over financial
reporting of the Company was considered;

13, The 2022 audit plan of the Company was considered;

14. The 2022 assessment plan of the Company's internal control was considered,

15. The resolution in relation to the 2021 report on the deposit and use of raised funds of the Company was deliberated;

16. The resolution in relation to the internal audit report on the deposit and use of the raised funds for the year of 2021 of the
Company was deliberated;

17. The proposal of the Company not to distribute profit for the year of 2021 was considered;

18 The resolution in relation to the provision for impairment for the year of 2021 of the Company was deliberated;

19, The 2022 financing quarantee plan of the Company was considered;

20.  The resolution in relation to the obtaining of bank credit facilities from Pudong Development Bank by way of security quarantee
and the application for bank acceptance in tranches of up to RMB80 million by Tianjin Tianhai, a subsidiary of the Company was
considered;

21, The 2022 business plan of the Company was considered;

22. The 2022 research and development plan of the Company was considered;

23. The resolution to be submitted to the 2021 annual general meeting for approving the authorisation of the Board to issue new H
shares not exceeding 20% of the total issued H shares was considered;

24. The resolution in relation to the amendment of the “Fund Raising Management Measures" was considered.
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of EEETREMZEESHER @
Directors (continued)
(2) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee (2) BMEHRAETZESEHIRE
held 9 meetings (Continued) = ()

Important Other

opinionsand  performance
Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties

EERER AfbEeT
BHAH EERA il £ RERBR

20221316 BN EFERELNRRE  HREERE 8B -
= NS E g i

B2 NAD0N EERLHEH T ERS

BENA0NFEMBRENDAEH B RE

BENANNEEHEETRE

BENIHRERBEN(CEEREE) (BR) TREERSNEERREENER(CETRRE) NEE:

ERNER0IE(HE  RERERES) (BR)  URESSENEREREERBRF(HE  BRERERRS)H

R
8. §§§$§%ﬁ§a@mmﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ﬁm%
9. EEXMAEATHE ﬁm$%ﬁﬁ%%aLu%nm1¢F$ﬁ§ﬁwa
10. BESOAERADERA (BHEBLT) 200 FEERANZR
1. EREELTINFENBREEHENEE
12. BEERLRNNEENBRENE hﬂ%dﬁi§ﬁﬁﬁm%¥?
13, EHRR0REEEHNE
14, B2RA002EENETERR
5. FRARRER0FEESESTHECAEANSERSNER
16. EZBRLTNNEFEEEFECHFHARREARNDES REMHR -
17. BERERNEFEMETHBARNES :
18, BRRA0NERHPAEERNEER
19. FRRF0RFERALRRSE
0. BEBALATERERSMERRITRARRERIVERIRENA HMRRTA R BE T RIS 000ETHHEE
2. BRAAONEEEEE:
2. BENANODEFHESE:
3. BERRATNFERRBFASH EREEECATRBD ETHRBAEREN20% B THRAMRAER |
6. BEENET(BEALERMDNER
2022/427 1. Theresolution in relation to 2022 first quarterly report of the Company was considered; Considered and
2. The resolution in relation to the adjustment on the Company's 2022 financing guarantee plan was considered; approved
3. The resolution in relation to the application for a bridging loan of RMB40.00 million by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. to
Jingcheng Machinery Electric was considered;
4. The resolution of Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. to acquire 2% equity interest of Beijing Jingcheng Haitong Technology
Culture Development Co., Ltd. held by Beijing Nengtong Lease Company was considered.

2022/4127 1. BEERATDORFE-ZERENEE: 2R -
2 BEERARLEORFERERRIENGR
3. EBENRREIERRA TH?Wﬁaﬁmﬂ%E F4,000BTHER ;
4 BRERIERREIZERAANEL REBRELTRANE R BN ERAR AT %REEANEE «
2022/8/2 The resolution in relation to the loan of no more than US$4 million from Cathay Pacific Bank by BTIC America Corporation, a Considered and -
subsidiary of the Company, was considered. approved
2022/802 FEER DA TEBREEN A ARBRRTEF TR BA0ERTNER « =il -
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EEETREMZEEE L@
Directors (continued)

(2) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee 2 HEHANBTZESEHIRE
held 9 meetings (Continued) = ()
Important Other
opinionsand  performance
Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEZER EfbmeT
EHAH EERR ngs BERER
20221811 1. Theresolution in relation to the establishment of a designated account for the raised funds and the entering into of a custody ~ Considered and -
agreement for the designated account for the raised funds was considered; approved
2. The resolution in relation to the full text and abstract of the 2022 A Shares interim report and the H Shares results
announcement of the Company were considered;
3. The resolution on the Provision for Impairment of the Company in the First Half of 2022 was considered;
4. The resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Deposit and Actual Use of Raised Funds of the Company in the First Half
of 2022 was considered;
5. The internal audit report on the deposit and use of the raised funds in the half year of 2022 of the Company was deliberated.
2022/8/11 1. BEERRUBRECERRFPURITASECEMBPEEhRNER BRRA -
2. BEERATRNEARYIEREXRRE HEFELENER
3. BEER0RFTHRNEERNER
4. BEENATORELEEREECHHARDEINZERSNRE
5. BEERLINFHFRESECEHARARARNDEN RS -
20221917 1. The audit work plan for the 2022 internal control audit report was considered; Considered and -
2. The 2022 financial report audit work plan was considered. approved
20220977 1 BRNFRENEENREEH IS ) -
2 BRNDFEMHREES IR
2022110127 1. The resolution in relation to the Q3 2022 report of the Company was considered; Considered and -
2. The rgsohétion in relation to the adjustment of the audit service fee for the 2022 financial report of the Company was approved
considered;
3. The resolution in relation to the adjustment of the audit service fee for internal controls of the Company for the year of 2022
was considered.
202211007 1. BREERLANNEFE-FERENGE BRR -

2 BEAENBBARORFENBRSEARERANER
3. BEENEBARNREENBEETREERNER -
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EZEZETREMZEEER @
Directors (continued)

(2) During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee (2) BEHABFTZEESARIRE
held 9 meetings (Continued) = ()

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
ERER Efb/E1T
BHEH EERR ngd BERR
202211116 1. The "Resolution in relation to the Company's Fulfilment of the Conditions for Non-public Issuance of A Shares” was considered; Considered and -
2. Each of the sub-resolution under the “Resolution in relation to the Proposal for the Company's Non-public Issuance of A approved

Shares” was considered;

3. The "Resolution in relation to the Company's Proposal for Non-public Issuance of A Shares” was considered;

4. The "Resolution in relation to the Feasibility Analysis Report on the Use of Proceeds Raised from the Non-public Issuance of A
Shares for 2022 of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited” was considered;

5. The “Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Use of the Company's Previous Raised Proceeds” was considered;

6. The "Resolution in relation to the Non-public Issuance of A Shares for 2022 which Constitutes Connected Transaction of the
Company" was considered;

7. The "Resolution in relation to the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement Entered into Between the Company and Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd." was considered,

8. The "Resolution in relation to the Conditional Asset Acquisition Framework Agreement by Way of Cash Payment Entered into
Between the Company and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd." was considered;

9. The "Resolution in relation to Dilution of Immediate Returns by the Non-public Issuance of A Shares, Remedial Measures and
Commitments of Related Entities” was considered;

10. The "Resolution in relation to the Shareholders’ Return Plan for the Next Three Years (2022-2024) of the Company” was
considered;

11, The "Resolution in relation to No Penalties or Regulatory Measures Imposed by Securities Regulatory Department and the Stock
Exchange in the Last Five Years” was considered;

12. The “Resolution in relation to the Proposal on Authorizing of the Board of Directors to Handle All Matters in relation to the
Non-public Issuance of A Shares” was considered;

13, The "Resolution in relation to the Suspension of Putting the Non-public Issuance of A Shares for Consideration at the General
Meeting" was considered.

2022111716 1 BRERAIREFLRETARBRE MER Fiae -
2. BEEZ(ERRAER %ﬁ%’é‘ﬁAﬂ%%&%E% MER
3 BR(ERATFER Eﬂ%’*ﬁAﬂx FRRMEFR
4 BRERSRRIBER ﬁE TZOZZEF?F Eﬂ%ﬁAﬂxﬁxﬁgﬁﬁéuﬂTﬂE ATRES) BER
5 ER(BRATMAESELRABATERE) MER
6 FR(ERLANREFEHER %ﬁ%*fTAﬂxﬂxTﬁ&E%H 580
7+ ER(ERARERRREERAREEAR %MW wmﬂx WRBIRE) O
8 BE(ERLRELRRAREERAREEAAEZNAT RN ﬂﬁéﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ[éﬁﬁi YRR
9. EH(BRELREOARREEINLER fﬁ%ﬁ aﬁﬁ&mﬁﬂﬂ% YHER
10+ ESERAARRZF022-2045) RREHRFE) M E
1 F2 (AR LF T FERE A E RPN SRS WMWMT )RR
12 B2 (ARNREREASREEEG L EIBARRETARRERB SR HER |
13+ SR ERARFAREARRSAEARE TR RR AT HAE -
(3) During the Reporting Period, the Nomination () BEHMAEZEEEZHIRE
Committee held 1 meeting =
Important Other
opinionsand  performance
Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEER Efb/m1T
BHEH EERA ngd BERR
20221119 1. The resolution in relation to the election of members of the Audit Committee of the tenth session of the Board of the Company ~ Considered and -
was considered; approved
2. The resolution in relation to the nomination of Mr. Li Xianzhe as a candidate for general counsel of the Company was
considered.
20221119 1 EEEREELASTEEZERHRAERENEE: e -

1 BERAIHERTALAQEEERREANZR
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of + EBE2TRIEMZELHE L@
Directors (continued)

(4) During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration 4) BEPAFHEZEZZESEHN
and Monitoring Committee held 2 meetings 2R 8

Important Other
opinions and  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEZER EfbmiT
BHEH EERR ngs BERER
202211128 The results of remuneration and performance assessment for the senior management of the Company for the year of 2021 were Considered and -
considered. approved
20221128 ZALEFRRER A RFHEENERARNER - G -
202213117 1. The resolution in relation to the basic annual salary and position coefficient of the senior management of the Company was Considered and -
considered; approved
2. The 2022 Performance Assessment Contract for the Senior Management of the Company was considered.
2022317 1 E2RIERERBABEAEF BN ASORE G -
2 BARFRONF(SREEARGHELEERR) -
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VIl. Special Committees under the Board of +t EZEZETREMZEEER @
Directors (continued)

(5) During the Reporting Period, the Strategy (5) HEHRNBHREZEESEMIRE
Committee held 4 meetings &

Important Other
opinionsand  performance

Date of convening Meeting content suggestions  of duties
BEER EftEeT
EHEH EERA il RERR
20221411 The resolution in relation to the external investment of the Company's subsidiary Tianhai Industry in Beijing Tianteng Data Technology ~ Considered -
Co., Ltd. (tentatlve name) was considered. and approved
2022/41 EEENARFRAREIRHIMRAIL RABS BRI EARAR (HER) 02K - BoEh -
2022/4/28 The resolution in relation to the acquisition of 2% equity interest of Bejjing Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture Development Co., ~ Considered -
Ltd. held by Beijing Nengtong Lease Company by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. was considered. and approved
2022/428 ﬁmfﬁ/‘f‘it/? REIFARATNE R BEEATRANL R RSB BRBR A% REAR HEE - G -
2022111116 The "Resolution in relation to the Companys Fulfillment of the Conditions for Non-public Issuance of A Shares” was considered;  Considered -
2. Each of the sub-resolution under the “Resolution in relation to the Proposal for the Company's Non-public lssuance of A and approved

Shares” was considered;

3. The "Resolution in relation to the Company's Proposal for Non-public Issuance of A Shares” was considered,

4. The "Resolution in relation to the Feasibility Analysis Report on the Use of Proceeds Raised from the Non-public Issuance of A
Shares for 2022 of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited” was considered;

5. The "Resolution in relation to the Special Report on the Use of the Company's Previous Raised Proceeds” was considered;

6. The “Resolution in relation to the Non-public Issuance of A Shares for 2022 which Constitutes Connected Transaction of the
Company” was considered;

7. The "Resolution in relation to the Conditional Share Subscription Agreement Entered into between the Company and Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd." was considered;

8. The "Resolution in relation to the Conditional Asset Acquisition Framework Agreement by Way of Cash Payment Entered into
between the Company and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd." was considered;

9. The “Resolution in relation to Dilution of Immediate Returns by the Non-public Issuance of A Shares, Remedial Measures and
Commitments of Related Entities” was considered;

10. The "Resolution in relation to the Shareholders' Return Plan for the Next Three Years (2022-2024) of the Company” was
considered;

11, The "Resolution in relation to No Penalties or Regulatory Measures Imposed by Securities Regulatory Department and the Stock
Exchange in the Last Five Years" was considered;

12, The "Resolution i relation to the Proposal on Authorizing of the Board of Directors to Handle All Matters in relation to the
Non-public Issuance of A Shares” was considered;

13, The "Resolution in relation to the Suspension of Putting the Non-public Issuance of A Shares for Consideration at the General
Meeting" was considered.

2022111116 1. BEERAIREFLRETARBRE MEE il -
2. BEEZ(ERRAER Frﬁ‘%‘é‘ﬁAﬂ%?ﬁ% BE:
3. BE(ERATFER Eﬁ%’*ﬁAﬂx SRRNER
4. BERERIRRARERNE E TZOZZEF F/N %ﬁ%%?AH&HQ%‘%%%ﬁ@@WT THAMEES) NEE
5. ER(BRATMAESELRABATERE) MER
6. B (ERRAT0EEER %ﬁéffﬁAﬂxﬂxTﬁ&FﬁH X%)E’]m%
7. BR(ERAAELRRIREERAREALAEZMAHERNOROAR RS NE
8. BE(ERLRELRRAREERAREEANEZNAT RN ﬂﬁéﬂ%aﬁ@[m YER
9. EH(BRELREOARREEINDER fﬁ%ﬁ aﬁfﬁ&mﬁﬁﬂ% YHER
10. ESERRAARRZF022-2045) RREHRIFE) M E
1. FR ARSI LT FEREAE BRI SRS uﬂmﬁiﬁ*m? AIEE
12. B (ARNREREASREEEG2ENBARRETARRERB SR NER |
13 E2 (AR AR AR B RE T RE AR TR 5 -

2022/12122 1. Theresolution in relatlontotheum\ateralcaplta\ |mectlonofRMBEOmlIIlon by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company  Considered -
Limited to Qingdao BYTQ United Digital Intelligence Co., Ltd. and the Amendment of the Articles of Association of BYTQwas  and approved
considered;

2. The resolution in relation to the participation in the establishment of Hubei Jingyuan Xihai Automobile Technology Co., Ltd. and
the implementation of the construction project of 10,000 sets of CNG supply system master production line for vehicles per year
by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. was considered.
2022112122 1 BRI B R ER AR B R RSB ATE F A3 BT RERIFREERNEE BEEB -
2 ﬁm@ﬁiﬂbﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁﬂ AEBRR M A RR ST ENRAR D AEERFE 1 BEEANGIRARREN EERRE
E E =
(6) Details of objections (6) FHEEZSHEHMWARER
] Applicable v Not applicable O:@Em TER
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VIIl.Supervisory Committee’s description on risks

identified in the Company
[J Applicable v Not applicable

The Supervisory Committee has no objection to the supervision matters
during the Reporting Period.

Details of staff of the Parent Company and
major subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

ERHE QEDAE

N BEBERBRAFERBAGR

BH
O@Em N TEs

EFSHREPRANNEEFHRERE -

N BEMREGRRANMEZF QA
METHER

period
(i) Details of staff —) BIER

Number of existing employees of the parent company

NEEBETINEE 22
Number of existing employees of major subsidiaries
ITEFRAFEREINHE 1,352
Total number of existing employees
BB THEESET 1,374
Number of retired staff who incurred expenses of the parent company and major subsidiaries
BRARFEFRRAFAEEBNBR MBI AR 376
Type of professions

B

Professions Number of persons
BEXERER EEBHAH
Production staff EEAB 741
Sales staff HEABR 83
Technical staff BiTAE 159
Financial staff MBAB 26
Administrative staff THAE 214
Other staff HAE 151
Total &t 1,374

(i)

Educational Background

BERE

Education level Number of persons
BEEREER HEAN)
University graduates or above RERBRIA L 340
Associate degree AE 186
Secondary technical graduates P 261
Senior high school graduates and below [SLEYS VAN 587
Total = 1,374

Remuneration Policies
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company implemented diversified salaries system based on
the performance of positions as the main remuneration system. On
the basis for performance-based salary standards of positions, the
salary level of each position is determined by job evaluation with
reference to labour market for confirming the relative value of the
post, so as to ensure the internal and external fairness of salaries
level. On this basis, the remuneration policy is to be implemented
subject to different personnel and nature of work to undertake a
diversified salaries system such as the implementation of broadband
compensation and technological innovation incentives for technical
staff; the sales commission approach for marketing staff; piecework
wage system for production workers and annual salary system for
the senior management.

(2) FHMBUR
ViR O TR

NEBEMAEUERNTEATENSZ T
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FHE NEDAE

IX. Details of staff of the Parent Company and
major subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period (Continued)
(iii) Training Plan
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

A total training hours of 87,147.9 hours involving 4,472 persons
were completed according to the “2022 Annual Training Program”,
and the number of training hours per staff reached 16 hours.
According to the contents of the annual training plan of the
Company, the Company has organized and completed “Training
on Compliance Management System Process”, “Confidentiality
Training for Confidential Personnel”, “Training on Finite Element
Analysis Software”, “Training on Safe Production”, “Internal Auditor
Capacity Enhancement Training”, “SPC & MSA", “Safety Education”
training, etc.

(iv) Labour outsourcing
[ Applicable v Not applicable

X. Profit Distribution Plan or Plan to Convert

Reserves into Share Capital
(i) Formulation, implementation or adjustment of

cash dividend policy
] Applicable v Not applicable

(ii) Special description of cash dividend policy
[ Applicable v Not applicable

(iii) If the Company records profits and the parent
company records a positive undistributed
profit during the Reporting Period but there is
no resolution for cash dividend, the Company
shall disclose the reasons and the usage of the

undistributed profits and the usage plan in detail
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

(iv) Details of profit distribution and transfer of
reserve to share capital during the Reporting

Period
] Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XI.

Share incentive scheme, employee share
scheme or other incentive measures for
employees and their impacts

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Incentives disclosed in extraordinary
announcements without progress or change in

the follow-up implementation
1 Applicable ' Not applicable

Incentives not disclosed in extraordinary
announcements or with progress in the follow-up
implementation

Share incentive
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Other descriptions
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Employee share scheme
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Other incentive measures
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Equity incentives granted to Directors and senior

managers during the Reporting Period
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Establishment and implementation of appraisal
and incentive mechanism for senior management

officers during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

During the Reporting Period, the Board and the senior management
officers of the Company entered into and executed the “Performance
Assessment Contract for Senior Management Officers”. The Board
assesses the performance of the senior management officers every
year. After evaluating and approving the completion in accordance
with the “Performance Assessment Contract for Senior Management
Officers”, the remuneration and monitoring committee reports to
the Board for approval.
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ShE QEaE
XIll. Construction and implementation of internal

XIII.

XIV.

XV.

XVI.

control system during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable "TJ Not applicable

For details, please refer to the “Internal Control Assessment Report”
published on the same day.

Description of material defects of internal control

during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Management and control of subsidiaries

during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

The Company has implemented internal control system in strict accordance
with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations and has conducted
management control over its subsidiaries in accordance with the unified
standards of listed companies, and the overall operation of its subsidiaries
is generally in line with the operation and development plans of listed
companies. During the Reporting Period, the Company's management
control over its subsidiaries was adequate and effective, and there were no
material omissions.

Description of Internal Control Audit Report

\ Applicable  [J Not applicable

See the "Internal Control Audit Report” disclosed on the same day for
details.

Whether to disclose the Internal Control Audit Report: Yes

Type of Internal Control Audit Report opinion: standard unqualified
opinion

Rectification of problems in self-inspection
of special actions for governance of Listed

Company
Not applicable

Other
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVI. Other (continued)

= 8

Corporate Governance Report

The Directors of the Company believe that corporate governance is crucial
to the success of the Company. A good corporate governance is beneficial
to the protection of the interest of the Company and its shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Company and the Board complied
with the “Corporate Governance Code” by making timely information
disclosure and continuously improving the corporate governance system
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance level is maintained.
Currently, the documents related to corporate governance of the Company
include the “Articles of Association”, “Rules of Procedure of the General
Meeting”, “Rules of Procedure for the Board of Directors”, “Rules of
Procedure for the Supervisory Committee”, “Implementation Rules of
the Special Committees of the Board of Directors”, “Code of Practice of
General Managers” and “Code of Practice of the Secretary to the Board
of Directors” etc.. To achieve the highest level of corporate governance,
the Board of the Company has set up four special committees, namely,
the strategic committee, the audit committee, the remuneration and
monitoring committee and the nomination committee.

The Company has established the following mechanisms to ensure that
the Board is provided with independent views and advice. The Board
has appointed four independent non-executive Directors to satisfy the
requirement that at least one-third of the Board members has to be
independent non-executive Directors. The Board and its committees value
the advice from each member and encourage them to seek independent
professional advice on matters relating to the performance of their duties.

Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and the general meetings
during the Reporting Period:

e H

Section 5 Corporate Governance

ERHE QEDAE

R A0

TEERRE

ARABEEHECEERYUARR ZKINIEE
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OF2E o
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(EEeRFHA) (EXeFXZ82EN
BRI ~ BRI TEMAD - (ESEWEIE
AN o ERIE */m\%ﬁ/’cﬂkﬁ PiIN/N
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ZE® FHLZBEE FHHEEXZES®
HEBE -
NEIDEILIA TS AERE = SESEL

MBHNER  EFSRETNEBEIIERT
B mRITBZFEKBEIE=D2—RE
VIFPTEENER  ERERAZEENHE
URBMERETIAER - WHEHBETE
BENEESRBYEXER -

AREPNESSMEFTENRRAENE

»

(i) Attendance of Directors at the Board meetings and the (—) EZ2NESEARRAENER
general meetings

Attendance at

Attendance at Board meetings general meetings

snESERR SHBRAEER
Absence
from two

Required Attendance by consecutive Number of

Independent attendance ~ Attendance  communication  Attendance Number of meetings  general meetings

ornot  during the year in person equipment by proxy absence ornot attended

RERSN HER AR REEERN HERR

Name of Director(s) B3 REEUEE  EZENM  RELRNY SR8 ESHERY RERE  ARASNER KEHRE

Wang Jun IE No 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
g £

Li Junjie B No 1 0 11 0 0 No 4
g £

Thang Jheng FEE No 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
g g

Wy Yanzhang REE No 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
g g

Xia Zhonghua BhE No 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
& g

Li Chunchi FER No 1 0 11 0 0 No 4
& g

Man Huiyong WeE No 11 0 1 0 0 No 4
& 2

Xiong Jianhui KRR Yes 11 0 1 0 0 No 4
& &

Thao Xuguang iliina Yes 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
g iy
x =]

Liu Jingtai f5% Yes 11 0 1 0 0 No 4
R &

Luan Dalong grE Yes 1 0 1 0 0 No 4
& &
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Number of Board meetings during the year 11
FREHEFEERAH

Of WhICh number of meetings convened on-site 0
Heh : RIS®BRY

Number of meetings convened by communication equipment 11
BAAABREZ R

Number of meetings both on-site and by communication equipment 0

RIGHEABATABREZRE

Performance of duties by the Strategic Committee under the Board:

EZETRNERZSSTERER ¢

86

The main duties of the strategic committee are to formulate the strategic
rules of the Company, to supervise the implementation of strategies and to
timely adjust the strategies and the governance structure of the Company.

1.

The main duties and authorities of the strategy committee:

(1

to organise, research and formulate the Company's
development strategies and mid-term and long-term plans,
evaluate the Company’s development strategies and mid-term
and long-term plans, and make relevant recommendations to
the Board;

to conduct research and make recommendations on projects
that must be approved by the Board as required by the
" Articles of Association”, such as major external investments
and financing, mergers and acquisitions and reorganisations,
infrastructure, key technical transformations and
breakthroughs, strategic research and development projects;

to conduct research on mergers, demergers, increase or
decrease in capital, dissolving and liquidation and other key
matters that may affect corporate development, and make
recommendations to the Board;

to conduct research and advise on other key matters that may
affect corporate development and make recommendations;

to inspect the implementation of the items above; and

other matters as authorized by the Board.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued) EERRE @)

Performance of duties by the Strategic Committee under the Board: EEETRNEMZESERER © (8

(Continued)

2. The strategic committee comprises three executive Directors, one 2. AREEEHRZESHEIEHTES -
non-executive Director and one independent non-executive Director. TEIFMITEEMM BB IFFRTEEA
During the Reporting Period, the strategic committee BEHANERESE L FINES
convened four meetings
Date of Important opinions Other performance
convening Meeting content and suggestions of duties
ERBH =6 1ok EEERNESR HitETRERR
2022/41 The resolution in relation to the external investment of Beijing  Considered and -

Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, in approved
Beijing Tianteng Data Technology Co., Ltd. (tentative name) was BB
considered.

BEREN AR FARRELEHIMCEIL R R EIBERERA
A(EER)BRE -
2022/4/28  The resolution in relation to Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd.’s  Considered and -
acquisition of 2% equity interests of Beijing Jingcheng Haitong approved
Technology and Culture Development Co., Ltd. held by Beijing BB
Neutron Leasing Co., Ltd. was considered.
FamN LR T ERR A RIKEILRAEBEHE R RRFARIL
TR ER UL B RB R A R2% MR EE B HHE
2022/11/16 1. The resolution in relation to the Company’s fulfillment of ~ Considered and -

the conditions for non-public issuance of A shares was approved
considered; FErhimmA
Fa(FER QARG IERFAETARKREEMG) EE

2. Each of the sub-resolutions under the resolution in relation

to the proposal for the Company’s non-public issuance of A
shares was considered;
ZIRER (AN R REARBEITARKRES R ESR

3. The resolution in relation to the Company’s proposal for
non-public issuance of A shares was considered;
Fx (N R RBERAHBETARRRIAZR) B35

4. The resolution in relation to the feasibility analysis report on
the use of proceeds raised from the non-public issuance of
A shares for 2022 of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited was considered,;
Fa (BRI R R BRI BIR A R2022F ZIE AR E
TARKRESEEE ERATIED MRS >) ESR

5. The resolution in relation to the special report on the use of
the Company’s previous raised proceeds was considered;
FER(BARRARIAEEECRABRAERRSE) AR

6. The resolution in relation to the non-public issuance of A
shares for 2022 which constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company was considered;
FaZ (BN ARI2022F EIERFRBITARMRTE W K R
ZYHER
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERBME @

Performance of duties by the Strategic Committee under the Board: EEETRNEMZESERER © (8
(Continued)

2. (Continued) 2. &

During the Reporting Period, the strategic committee
convened four meetings (Continued)

Date of
convening

AR AHY

2022/12/22

1.

Meeting content

SEAR

The resolution in relation to the conditional share
subscription agreement entered into between the Company
and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd.
was considered;
=3 (BRAF B ARAREIERERETATDEBH
TR AR D FRE o) BVAR 2R
The resolution in relation to the conditional asset
acquisition framework agreement by way of cash payment
entered into between the Company and Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. was considered;
F& (R AR AR U EE R AR E E R REEN
BRI NI BEEEELR ) BEE
The resolution in relation to dilution of immediate returns
by the non-public issuance of A shares, remedial measures
and commitments of related entities was considered;
i (R IEARBITARMRRESE AN AOI - HiE &
R EAG) HER
The resolution in relation to the shareholders’ return plan
for the next three years (2022-2024) of the Company was
considered;
***<<ﬁw AR R =4 (2022-20244F) IR R B 5 £l 79
u?)z7v< '
The resolution in relation to no penalties or regulatory
measures imposed by securities regulatory department and
the stock exchange in the last five years was considered;
E3 (RS R NI RE S S BN 3R
ARME B ) HESR
The resolution in relation to the proposal on authorizing of
the Board to handle all matters in relation to the non-public
issuance of A shares was considered;
***@%A%E"*Hx%j(A%%%% PRI AR IERF
BEITABRBREIAEE10) SIS
The resolution in relation to the suspension of putting the
non-public issuance of A shares for consideration at the
general meeting was considered.
B (ERRGERRAETARKREEARRE TRIRE
ABEZ)NEE -
The resolution in relation to the unilateral capital injection
of RMB30 million by the Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited to Qingdao BYTQ United Digital
Intelligence Co., Ltd. and the amendment of the articles of
association of BYTQ was considered,;
FEHARN IR B ER N AR AR RS S F RS H
ﬁé‘éﬁl‘ﬁ NAE I E30008 T REBILFRE ERAH
SN
2. The resolution in relation to the Participation in the
Establishment of Hubei Jingyuan Xihai Automobile
Technology Co., Ltd. and the Implementation of the
Construction Project of 10,000 sets of CNG Supply System
Master Production Line for Vehicles per year by Beijing
Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. was considered.
%E%Eﬁﬁéﬁ?%il%ﬁﬁﬁ A2 R OBIL LR
BEREERAREERFEIBEEACNGHRERGHENK
FERER IEE E’in% o

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

HEHNEMZESE L HINE S (F)

Important opinions Other performance
and suggestions of duties

ERBRNER Hitb@ITRERR

Considered and -
approved
FEamia
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERBME @
Performance of duties by the Strategic Committee under the Board: EEETRNEMZESERER © (8
(Continued)
The list of members of the strategic committee and their attendance at the BREZEENBRERSHRLFEF)

meetings are as follows:

Name Description Required attendance in 2022 Actual attendance
H®E L] 2022 FEHES R BEREFESEIH
Wang Jun (Chairman) Chairman of the committee 4 4
BEFRTE ZEgFF
Liu Jingtai (independent non- Member of the committee 4 4
executive Dlrector) ZB®%8
BUNITEERRSR
Li Junjie (executive Director) Member of the committee 4 4
BITEEFEN Z88%8
Wu Yanzhang (non-executive Member of the committee 4 4
Director) ZB8g%8
FEMITESRRAE
Zhang Jiheng (executive Director) Member of the committee 4 4
HITERRERE Z88%8
Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board: EEETENEZESERER :
The authority and power of the audit committee was formulated B ZEeNBESEEKESESMAS
in accordance with the advice provided in “A Guide for Effective B (EZES Eﬁx&L{’E?E.%D)EPﬁﬁ}EﬁE’]
Audit Committees” issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 2 (TR M ES AT ET
Accountants, the “Corporate Governance Code” of Appendix 14 of the EIJ>>LA&EPI{§EQ@§}E%E@((EP B FAREE
Listing Rules and the “Code of Corporate Governance for Listed Companies R MEIETHY o
in China” issued by the CSRC.
1. The main duties and authorities of the audit committee include: 1 EHZESITEBSEAIE:
(1) to make proposals regarding the appointment or replacement (1) RIS FIRINEE TR
of the external auditor;
(2)  to monitor the internal audit system of the Company and its (2) EEBEQANABBIHELEE
implementation; i
(3)  to coordinate with the internal and external audits; ) BEARNIPEEIIIE 2B
B
(4)  to review the Company’s financial information and its (4) BEATNFEEEREEFE
disclosure;
(5)  to review major financing plans submitted to the Board for (5) ELTRISHEFTCEZZMEAR
consideration; EWIES
(6)  to review the Company’s annual budget, final accounts 6) BERIXEZSEAZANLAFE
and major adjustment plans submitted to the Board for B RERHBERARHSIE &
consideration as well as major off-budget items; BEATEEINEE
(7)  to review the internal control system of the Company, (7) BERATRNEBEEIEE - EEA
organise internal control check, assess internal control defects TR o FT(E AR B A L B B B
and oversee rectification; 2R s
(8)  to review major connected transactions; and (8) WE KRB FETER
(9)  other matters as authorized by the Board. 9) RAEESETHHMER -
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued) EEERRE @
Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board: EEETRNENZESERER @ (8
(Continued)
2. The audit committee comprises two independent non-executive 2 EEEEILEGH2EBUINIT
Directors and one non-executive Director. ﬁ% 1BIEMITESEK ©
During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened BEHAESEEEEHINEH
nine meetings
Date of Important opinions Other performance of
convening Meeting content and suggestions duties
EFRBEH B2RE EZERNER HitETHERR
2022/1/18 1. The resolution in relation to the Signing of Agreement Considered and -
related to Property Leasing, Renovation and Property approved
Services of Yichuang Park and Connected Transactions il

was considered;
BRANEZNTEREERE - RIERMERBEH
AR EEGR R HMNER

2. The resolution in relation to the appointment of the
secretariat of the audit committee of the Board was
considered.
EREITEFERHTRESNERTAENER -
2022/1/18 The 2021 consolidated financial statements, and the financial Considered and -
statements (unaudited) of the parent company and its approved
subsidiaries were reviewed. il
Eﬁgﬁﬁioz)r FaRPBEmE  §RRAIRMBFRANMB#RE
al Al
2022/3/16 1. The 2021 Annual Report of the Company and its Considered and -
summary and the H Shares results announcement approved
were considered; EEBR

%E% A0 FEEREEIRBE  HREEA

—

2. The 2021 audited financial report of the Company was
considered;
FR N A0V FEEBANM B ®RE

3. The 2021 Internal Control Assessment Report of the
Company was considered;

EA A B0V FEAREHFFERS

4. The 2021 Audit Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting of the Company was considered,;
TR N A12021 F R wmE N E I E S

5. The 2021 Social Responsibility Report of the Company
was considered;
BHAF02 FRELGEARE

6. The resolution in relatron to the Corporate Governance
Report (draft) required to be disclosed in the H Shares
Annual Report of the Company and authorisation
of the secretary to the Board to be responsible for
subsequent review and amendments to the Corporate
Governance Report was consrdered
EHAFHREHEN (DL ARE) (ER) - W
REFSWEBTREFVEI(REE RS BE

E

90 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVI. Other (continued) +5 Bt @)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERBME @

Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board: EEETRNENZESERER @ (8

(Continued)

2. (Continued) 2. &
During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened BEHAFNESEEFHINES (H)
nine meetings (Continued)
Date of Important opinions Other performance of
convening Meeting content and suggestions duties
BB = TokS EZERNER HitETHERER

7. The resolution in relation to the 2021 Social,
Environmental and Governance Report (draft) of the
Company and authorisation of the secretary to the
Board to be responsible for subsequent review and
amendments to the 2021 Social, Environmental and
Governance Report was considered;
EHEAF021F LR - BEREARE) (BR) 1
REEEeWEBERERTREI2021E(tE K
FREREE) HER

8. The resolution in relation to the performance of
functions by the audit committee of the Board for the
year of 2021 was considered;
ERESCRILEE2NIFERERBERANER

9. The resolution in relation to the payment of the
audit fee for the year of 2021 to ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) was
considered;

TR MEXKT RS EBAH SR EBRER) 2021
FEBAEANZSR

10.  The resolution in relation to the payment of the
audit fee for the year of 2021 to Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) was
considered;

B TRES RSB (FREBAR)20215E
ETBEANZESR

11.  The resolution in relation to the re-appointment of
auditor of the Company for the 2022 annual financial
report was considered;

F B AR 20226 E I SRS B HEN R

12.  The resolution in relation to the re-appointment of
auditor of the Company for the 2022 internal control
audit report was considered;

S IR A 72022 BB SRS NSRS B LR
TR ER

13. The 2022 Audit Plan of the Company was considered;
FENF2022F EFRETE

14.  The 2022 assessment plan of the Company’s internal
control was considered,;

A F20226F ENEIREITE AR ¢

15.  The resolution in relation to the special report on the
deposit and use of raised funds of the Company in
2021 was considered;

FERWN AR FERSEESTHEMERBEANE
TRMENER

16.  The resolution in relation to the internal audit
report on the deposit and use of raised funds of the
Company in 2021 was considered;
FRARNRNARONFFEEEESTFHEERIERA
BEMENZE

17.  The proposal of the Company not to distribute profit
for the year of 2021 was considered,;

EH N FROVFEETNEORCWIES
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board:

(Continued)
2. (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened
nine meetings (Continued)

Date of
convening

ARAEH

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

2022/4/27 1.

Meeting content

FEAR

The resolution in relation to the provision for
impairment of the Company for the year of 2021 was
considered;
FH N 2021 FEHEREEBNRE
The 2022 financing guarantee plan of the Company
was considered;

BHAF202FERMEERE
The resolution in relation to the granting of banking
facilities to Tianjin Tianhai, a subsidiary of the
Company, in obtaining credit facilities by way of
security and guarantee from Shanghai Pudong
Development Bank and applying for bank acceptance
of up to RMB80 million in batches was considered,;
BRER AT TBRERE M HERITRBERER
RS RITIREF D HEPIBIRITAL BB E N BB000E
TUREER ¢
The 2022 business plan was considered,;
BHAAFR0202FEEEE
The 2022 research and development plan was
considered;
T A F2022F RS 5
The resolution to be submitted to the 2021 annual
general meeting for approving the authorisation of the
Board to issue new H Shares not exceeding 20% of
the total issued H Shares was considered;
FHIER AT FERTBFASHEBEESE
ENBBE FETHIRIR A B ER20% B THARF R
BEEE
The resolution in relation to the amendments to the
“Administrative Measures for Raising of supporting
funds” was considered.
BHRENMETT(EEE BRI AR
The resolution in relation to the 2022 First Quarterly
Report of the Company was considered;
EHANRR022FE —FEREMFE
The resolution in relation to adjusting the 2022
Financing Guarantee Plan of the Company was
considered;
ERWNHEAF022F ERE BRABNBE
The resolution in relation to the application of
a bridging loan of RMB40 million to Jingcheng
Machinery Electric by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd.
was considered;
TR BANIERRE T EBR AR R RS R E B
EFRA0008 TTHIES
The resolution in relation to Beijing Tianhai Industry
Co., Ltd.’s acquisition of 2% equity interests of Beijing
Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture Development
Co., Ltd. held by Beijing Neutron Leasing Co., Ltd. was
considered.
FERAMNMERRETIEERATPBIL R REER
ARENIE RGBSV BERERAF2% MK
RIERHER -

2022/8/2 The resolution in relation to the loan of up to US$4 million
from Cathay United Bank to BTIC America Corporation, a
subsidiary of the Company, was considered.
EHAR AR TBREEMNARRBERRITERTEBA00
- . BETHRR o
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

H it @)

EERRE @)
EEETRNBETZESEBER © (@
2 (#8)

HREHANFIZEEEHINEH (H)

Important opinions Other performance of
and suggestions duties

EERRAER Hit@TRERER

Considered and -
approved
EiEBR

Considered and -
approved

EER
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XVI. Other (continued) 5 EHAth @)
Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERBME @
Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board: EEETRNENZESERER @ (8
(Continued)
2. (Continued) 2. &
During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened BEHAFNESEEFHINES (H)
nine meetings (Continued)
Date of Important opinions Other performance of
convening Meeting content and suggestions duties
AEHH = TokS EEZRNER HtETHERR
2022/8/11 1. The resolution in relation to the establishment of Considered and -
a designated account for the raised funds and approved
the entering into of a custody agreement for EiEiER
the designated account for the raised funds was
considered;

BERANRUEESECERRPIRITESEESEA
REEEMENESR

2. The resolution in relation to 2022 A Shares Interim
Report of the Company and its summary and the H
Shares results announcement was considered;

AR RNE2022FABRFFHEXRBE - HEE
%BEE/‘\/_‘I:E/J %;t :

3. The resolution on the provision for impairment of the
Company for the first half of 2022 was considered;
N 2022F F EIFHEREEE R EERE

4. The resolution in relation to the special report on the
deposit and use of raised funds of the Company in the
first half of 2022 was considered;
ERENAAROFXFESEESHFHERRABR
M HIAMERHRSR

5. The resolution in relation to the internal audit
report on the deposit and use of raised funds of the
Company in the first half of 2022 was considered.
FRAR D RRONFFFEEEASTFHESABER
NEBERTRE -

2022/9/7 1. The resolution in relation to the audit work proposal of Considered and -
the 2022 internal control audit report was considered,; approved
TR 2022F ENEETTREST TIETE) kel
2. The resolution in relation to the audit work proposal

of the 2022 financial repor‘t was considered.
E2022F EB M EET TIERTE -
2022/10/27 1. The resolution in relation to the 2022 Third Quarterly Considered and -

Report of the Company was considered; approved
FRANARR0222FE=FERENZER kel
2. The resolution in relation to adjusting the audit service

fees of the 2022 financial statements of the Company
was considered;
%%ﬁﬁf%%}%%@izozzifﬁﬂﬁ%i&%%éﬁﬁ%fﬁﬂ%E’\J
u#ﬁz?t;g ;

3. The resolution in relation to adjusting the internal
control audit service fees of the 2022 financial
statements of the Company was considered.
;‘*Bﬁﬁ/‘uﬂ% NRI2022F E A B ESIEA IR E A
E = o
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board:
(Continued)

2.

94 |

(Continued)

T E At

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened
nine meetings (Continued)

Date of
convening

ARAEH

2022/11/16 1.

Meeting content

FEAR

The resolution in relation to the Company’s fulfillment
of the conditions for non-public issuance of A shares
was considered;
=3 (HRDAGEEDHBITARREELE) M
=
Each of the sub-resolutions under the resolution in
relation to the proposal for the Company’s non-public
issuance of A shares was considered;
%§15$S§<E§E§’Aﬂ3£’&ﬁﬁ%’é‘ﬁA%ﬂﬁ%‘fﬁ¥>E’UE%
%= ;
The resolution in relation to the Company’s proposal
for non- publlc issuance of A shares was considered;
E (N ARBEARBEITARBRRETRR) 8935
The resolution in relation to the fea5|b|I|ty analysis
report on the use of proceeds raised from the non-
public issuance of A shares for 2022 of Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited was
considered;
23 (IR <t TR ERNERAT2025 3
NAFTARRESEEESERNITESTRES) B

BE
The resolution in relation to the special report on the
use of the Company’s previous raised proceeds was
considered;
FAC(ARDFIRIASRESERABRFERS) 0H
S
The resolution in relation to the non-public issuance
of A shares for 2022 which constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company was considered;
FZa (R ARI2022F FIFERAFETARKRE S & H
5?5&%>E’]nﬁ7’< ;
The resolution in relation to the conditional share
subscription agreement entered into between the
Company and Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Holding Co., Ltd. was considered;
T (AR AR R R EIERBREER AR
E IR RIB 1 5) EVE S
The resolution in relation to the conditional asset
acquisition framework agreement by way of cash
payment entered into between the Company and
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd.
Was considered;

(R AR B R U EEREREER
%Mﬂlﬂiix&ﬂ’]ﬁﬁfﬁéﬁ%“é?*[ékﬁ%pﬂE!’h%

%ﬁ}

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

EERRE @)
EEETRNBETZESEBER © (@
2. (@

HREHANFIZEEEHINEH (H)

Important opinions Other performance of

and suggestions duties
EEZRNER HtETHERR
Considered and -
approved
B S )
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Performance of duties by the Audit Committee under the Board:
(Continued)

2. (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the audit committee convened
nine meetings (Continued)

Date of
convening Meeting content
BB B2RE
9. The resolution in relation to dilution of immediate

returns by the non-public issuance of A shares, remedial
measures and commitments of related entities was
considered;
i (N IFAREITARKEESERI DR - HE
e K AR B £ B ARGE) HIRR S

10.  The resolution in relation to the shareholders’ return
plan for the next three years (2022-2024) of the
Company was considered;
2= (AR A AR R =4F (2022-20244F) IRE B3R 47
B EVEE

11.  The resolution in relation to no penalties or regulatory
measures imposed by securities regulatory department
and the stock exchange in the last five years was
considered;
Fa (NI A F MFERB FEEMFINMZZ
BRENS IR EL BT ) B R

12.  The resolution in relation to the proposal on authorizing
of the Board to handle all matters in relation to the
non-public issuance of A shares was considered;
(AN EERRASEEE TG 2 RIIEARNRIE
NHRBETARREABEIR) HESR

13.  The resolution in relation to the suspension of putting
the non-public issuance of A shares for consideration
at the general meeting was considered.
Fak (ARARERAFBETARBREERSE R TREX
BRARGER) HHE -

The list of members of the audit committee and their attendance at the
meetings are as follows:

SERET ATRE

A Hittom

EERRE @)
ESeTROSHZS2ERER - @

2 (®

HREHANFIZEEEHINEH (H)

Important opinions Other performance of

and suggestions duties
EEERARE  HUETREER
ETREeRERENERHEEN

Name Description Required attendance in 2022 Actual attendance
i A 2022 EHEERRE BEREEEEY
Jin Chunyu (non-executive Member of the committee 9 9

Director) ZB®%8

FRTEZSEE

Xiong Jianhui (independent non- Chairman of the committee 9 9
executive Director) ZEEER

BYIFMITESREE

Zhao Xuguang (independent non- ~ Member of the committee 9 9
executive Director) Z88%8

B IFITE R BB

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28 October
2021 and 19 January 2022, the audit committee only had two members
during the period between 28 October 2021 and 18 January 2022, which
failed to fulfil the requirement of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. Through
the approval of the election of member of the audit committee on 19
January 2022, the Company has fulfilled the minimum number of members
of the audit committee as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company complied with the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the audit committee.

SANZAN A EH B A20219F10 8288 202241
A19BBRERER - FrZB8ER20219F10
F28HZE2022F1A18HHIM R EMAKE -
REETFE FHRBIEI2UEZIRFE - AATR
2022 1R19R BAMERITEZEEL 8L -
ERA FTHRAEI2NIGEEESEEE
BIEASZHET B EXFEZEEN  BE
202F12A31AEFE - AR —EHMA LT
RAEI2VEEN BN ZE ST -

I8 )
=
o
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Performance of duties by the remuneration and monitoring

committee under the Board:

1. The main duties and authorities of the remuneration and monitoring
committee:

M

to formulate remuneration plans or schemes with reference
to the main scope, duties and significance of the positions of
directors and senior management as well as the remuneration
levels for relevant positions of other relevant enterprises;

remuneration plans or schemes mainly include but not limited
to the performance evaluation standards, procedures and the
major evaluation system, major incentive and punishment
schemes and systems etc;

to examine the fulfillment of duties by the Company’'s
Directors (non-independent Directors) and senior management
and conduct an annual performance appraisal for them;

(4) to oversee the implementation of the Company’s
remuneration system; and
(5)  other matters as authorized by the Board.
2. The remuneration and monitoring committee of the Company of the

Company comprises two independent non-executive Directors and
one executive Director.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration and
monitoring committee convened two meetings

B

Date of

convening Meeting content

EEAH BBAR

2022/1/28 The resolution in relation to the result of remuneration and

2022/3/17 1.

performance assessment for the senior management of the

Company for the year 2021 was considered.
FBFEAF2021F =

=
o

RERABFHEAREZERNZ

The resolution in relation to the basic annual salary

and position coefficient of the senior management of

the Company was considered; and

i A B S ARSI A B ELANE BN I (R B

The 2022 “Performance Assessment Contract for the

N

B
EE g

Senior Management” of the Company was considered.

FHEAF02F (A RE
Rl e

BABBERERRES

L4t ()

TEERRE @)
E%‘%Tﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁia BRER

1 FHEZEZEIERERER

(1) REBEEE SHEBABEEME
T REE BE  ZEMNU
Ko E At 8 78 £ 5% 481 B e {2 10 565 B
I HIEHBIE BT R

2) FBHFBHSEIERFETR
RAERHERE 27 R 25T
BER BBNEINTIESR
MES

) EERAEZCEEVYEE) &
REBABNEITHREBRILE
HETEEHEMET

(@) " ﬂ A ERITIE N

ITEEE

(5) EFgRENHMER-

2 REFMEEZEBed2RBIIFNAT

B 1 RMTESMAK -
HREHAFHELZRZEEEH2REH

Important opinions  Other performance

and suggestions of duties
EEZRNER Ht@THERR
Considered and -
approved
EaimiB

Considered and -
approved

Eam

The list of members of the remuneration and monitoring committee and

their attendance at the meetings are as follows:

Name

HH

Description

E1

Member of the committee

ZBE%E

Wang Jun (executive Director,
Chairman)

WTEE EFREE

Liu Jingtai (independent non-
executive Director)

BN TERR RS

Xiong Jianhui (independent non-
executive Director)

B IFITE SRS

Chairman of the committee

ZEEXR

Member of the committee

ZBEZ%E8

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Required attendance in 2022 Actual attendance

2022 EH R EHRE BRHFEHERHK
2 2
2 2
2 2
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XVI. Other (Continued) T~ Hith s
Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERBME @
Performance of duties by the Nomination Committee under the EEETRNREZESERER
Board of Directors N
1. The main duties and authorities of the nomination committee: 1 REZEENIZHIEER:
(1) to make recommendations to the Board regarding the size (1) WREAFTKLITEHER  BER
and composition of the Board based on the operations, asset BRI IR AL 18 U 2 F 2 M R
size and shareholding structure of the Company; BRMESSREER
(2) to conduct research on the selection criteria and (2) WRE=EF - LIBOBREBEENE
procedures for directors and general managers, and make Fr- WRESEREER
recommendations to the Board;
(3)  to search extensively for qualified candidates for directors and B) RBEZESERMNES KEOA
general managers; o
(4)  to screen and make recommendations on the candidates for (4) HESRHEREAMLEABRETS
directors and general managers; BRI ER
(5)  to screen and make recommendations on the candidates for 65) HARBEEERIMHEHMSR
other senior management who shall be referred to the Board ERABBITHRSWIRDES
for appointment;
(6)  to define the job description of directors and managers as (6) FREES - ACIR A A 0B
well as their career development path:; HEBRREBEE
(7)  to develop and implement succession and cultivation plans for () HEIAFES EE- - S5EAR
directors, supervisors and senior management; and WL FEE - WASE
i
(8)  other matters as authorized by the Board. (8) EFEREMEMET -
2. The nomination committee comprises two independent non- 2. RAZEBGEABLINGTESE - 14
executive Directors and one executive Director. HITEEHEK
During the Reporting Period, the nomination committee BEHANIREZSEEHINES
convened one meeting
Date of Important opinions  Other performance
convening Meeting content and suggestions of duties
ZAEBH B2RE EERRNER HitETRERR
2022/1/19 1. The resolution in relation to the election of member of Considered and -
the audit committee of the tenth session of the Board approved
of Directors of the Company is considered; FHRAB
g%%%ﬁ%@ﬂ%+@§%§%%§§@§é%%
ES B
2. The resolution in relation to the appointment of Mr.
Li Xianzhe as the General Counsel of the Company is
considered.
RERETUHBORSARAEERERBFEEANS
=
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Performance of duties by the Nomination Committee under the
Board of Directors (Continued)

The list of members of the nomination committee and their attendance at
the meetings are as follows:

T EAth

EERRE @)
ESeTRNEZZEES

RAZEENERE

FERER (8)
S&=E )P

Name Description Required attendance in 2022 Actual attendance

H"A A 2022 EHEERRE BERHESBERE

Li Junjie (executive Director, Member of the committee 1
general manager) ZB8g%8

BITEE  BEEFENR

Zhao Xuguang (independent non-  Chairman of the committee 1
executive Director) ZEgFF

BYFRTERHEEN

Luan Dalong (independent non- Member of the committee 1
executive Director) ZB8g%8

B EMITERRE AR

During the Reporting Period, the Company was in compliance with the RRERA - AARIEE m%ﬁHIJMﬁHE

code provisions stipulated in the “Corporate Governance Code” (the
“Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has adopted the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.

For the purposes of preparation for this report, the Company has enquired
all the Directors specifically and all of them have confirmed with the
Company that they have completely complied with the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” during the
Reporting Period. The Company has received the statement regarding
the confirmation of independence submitted by the four independent
non-executive Directors pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and the Board considers that the said four independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

RIEA - AR A BB TR AR s+
(ETETAERETESZZRESTA

ARBREREBARSHENAMAEEFMHE
FESH  MAEECAARAMRR  EAR
SHAHE 2B (LT ETAEFETE
HRSNFESTA) o AR TR HB T IE
HITESER EMRAE3 3G 2 ERRERH
BYEHRBAE  ARFAEZTSRARNOEE
MERITERHABETIE -
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XVI. Other (Continued) T~ Heith @
Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERME @
Directors and Composition of the Board EERESEHEK
The Board consists of eleven Directors, including three executive Directors, RAARESEH T —BERMAK - AFHiTE
four non-executive Directors, and four independent non-executive Directors B EMTERNG  BUIFRITEEN
and the independent non-executive Directors account for more than one G BAUFRTESABGETEAEN =S
third of the total members of the Board. The members of the Board are as 2L -EEEKEBMT
follows:

Executive Directors

HITESE

Wang Jun Chairman
=& EER

Li Junjie Director and General Manager
FENR EE KR
Zhang Jiheng Director
sR#E %
Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Wu Yanzhang Director
Xia Zhonghua Director
Behi ES

Li Chunzhi Director
FERK 5%
Man Huiyong Director
meR s
Independent non-executive Directors

BIAFHITES

Xiong Jianhui Director
REZENE B%
Zhao Xuguang Director
IR B%

Liu Jingtai Director
Ell=ed B%
Luan Dalong Director
E YN %
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)
Description:

The executive Directors and non-executive Directors of the Company have
rich experience in production, operation and management and they all
are able to make reasonable decisions in respect of the matters proposed
by the Board. Among the four independent non-executive Directors, one
is a experienced person in intelligent manufacturing industry with rich
experience in intelligent manufacturing industry; one is a PRC qualified
lawyer with accomplishments in law; one is a PRC registered accountant
with many years of experience in respect of corporate management
advisory and accounting practice; and one is an industry researcher with
extensive experience in the integration of industry and finance. Such
independent non-executive Directors have full capability of assessing
internal control and reviewing financial report. The composition of the
Board was in full compliance with the requirements of the relevant
domestic and overseas laws and regulations and standardized documents.

During the Reporting Period, to the best of the knowledge of the Board,
there exists no relationship between and among the Directors of the
Board (including the chairman and the general manager) with respect to
finance, business, family and relatives or other material/relevant relationship
required to be disclosed.

The Company is in strict compliance with the relevant binding terms for
securities transactions by directors as set out by the PRC and Hong Kong
regulatory authorities and is always adhering to the principle of being in
strict compliance with terms.

1. Chairman and General Manager
The chairman and the general manager of the Company are assumed
by different persons, and their respective duties are clearly divided.

The chairman is the legal representative of the Company and is
elected by more than half of all Directors of the Board. The chairman
is responsible for corporate planning and strategic decision-makings
and chairing the Board, and ensuring that the Board will examine
and adopt all involved matters in an appropriate manner for
facilitating the effective operation of the Board.

The chairman is entitled to preside over the general meetings, to
convene and chair the Board meetings, to examine and check the
implementation of the resolutions of the Board, and to sign the
securities issued by the Company and other important documents.
Upon authorised by the Board, the chairman can also convene the
general meetings and provide guidance to the Company’s important
business activities during the adjournment of the Board meetings.

The general manager is appointed by the Board and is accountable
to the Board. The general manager leads the management to take
charge of daily production, operation and management of the
Company, and organization and implementation of all resolutions of
the Board. As required by the Board or the Supervisory Committee,
the general manager will report to the Board or the Supervisory
Committee, on a regular basis, regarding the execution and
performance of major contracts, and the utilisation of funds, as well
as the profit and loss.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

T H
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XVI. Other (continued) +5 Bt @)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued) PEERRE @

Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHENE)

2. Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent 2> -?I TEZE FHITEE BUFHT

Non-executive Directors .

Like the remaining Directors, the non-executive Directors and Zl-"/lﬁ#iﬂﬁ%? BV IFRTEST

independent non-executive Directors of the Company have the HEHAREFRER  YRA=ZF - #8R

term of office of three years, commencing from 9 June 2020 to the 2020F6 A9H 2202 F EMEBAF AT
conclusion of 2022 annual general meeting. 1k

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a REEBRREFAS LRATRNES

service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the I 48 RN R R S AE (AT — S A i 4% LE

Company within one year without payment of compensation (other AIZEE B E CEE R ERIN 2 RiEE

than statutory compensation). 7 e

3. Authority and Powers of the Board 3 BERE 3

(1) to convene the general meetings and report its work to the (1) BEBERIRE WARKREAK
general meetings; BIETE

(2)  toimplement the resolutions passed at the general meetings; ()  BITRRARAEADRE

(3)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment (B) RERARAMKETENKEE R
schemes; E

(4)  to formulate the Company’s annual financial budget plan and 4 BIERRANFEMBEERR
final account plan; REFE

(5)  to formulate the Company’s profit distribution plan and loss (5)  HIEA TE’]ﬂ E o Be 77 22 F R
recovery plan; EEAR

(6) to formulate proposals for increase or reduction of the (6) HIERQFIBMKE R D EME A
registered capital and the issue of corporate debentures; MARAREITARESRNEA

2=
=S

(7)  to draw up proposals for important acquisition, purchase of (7) BRI F Ejﬂﬂlﬁﬁ WHEARR
the Company’s share, or combination, division, dissolution BEEAN - 5 ﬁmﬁl&“
and change in the form of the Company; EI/NS| H%JEE!’JTJ“ ;

(8)  to decide within the authorization of the general meeting on @) EBRRAGERBHBEAN RER
external investment, purchase and sale of assets or mortgage AIEIMEE H&E%ﬁ%ﬁ?\ ﬁ
of assets, external guarantee, wealth management, related EER - WIMEREIR - HiTE
transaction and other matters; B BB 5% £

(9)  to determine the establishment of the Company’s internal (9) AREQARAIEBRIENZRE
management structure;

(10) to appoint or dismiss the Company’s manager and secretary (10) BEASKEMRBERAALE FFg
to the Board, to appoint or dismiss as, nominated by the WE - BREBELEMNRS - BE
manager, deputy managers and financial officers of the %ﬁ#» EAF&EEE  VEBeR
Company, and to determine their remuneration; CORTEERINEIR

(11) to formulate basic management policy for the Company; (11) FEARNEAETETE

(12) to formulate amendment proposal to the “Articles of (12)  HIRIKRRIEEMER AR
Association”;

(13)  to manage the Company'’s information disclosure; (13) BEQREEEESE:

(14) to determine the Company’s interim dividend distribution (14) SREIRERFF RIS R
plan;

(15) to propose to the general meeting to appoint or change an (15) MBRRASRBFEFLELRAER
accountancy firm of the Company; RIEET I ET RN = EFT

(16) to listen to the work report by the manager of the Company (16) EEEVAQAACIEA TIEERIIRE
and inspect their work; IR TAE
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)
Authority and Powers of the Board (Continued)

3.

(17)

(18)

to exercise other powers conferred by laws, administrative
regulations, departmental rules or the "Articles of
Association”; and

to exercise any other powers conferred by the general
meetings.

Remunerations of Directors and Senior Management Officers
and Assessment of the Board

M

Service contracts of Directors and Supervisors

The Directors and Supervisors have entered into written
contracts with the Company wherein the main contents
thereof are as follows:

(i) Each contract for the Directors of the tenth session of
the Board and Supervisors of the tenth session of the
Supervisory Committee commenced from 9 June 2020
to and until the conclusion of 2022 annual general
meeting.

(i) An annual salary system is in place for senior
management. The annual salary of senior management
of the Company comprises three parts, being basic
salary, performance pay and special contribution
income. Of which, the basic annual salary is determined
by the remuneration and monitoring committee at
the beginning of each year with reference to factors
such as the industry remuneration level, the results of
operation of the Company for the previous year and
total remuneration. The distribution coefficients are
determined based on position evaluation. Typically, the
distribution coefficient of general manager is 1, and
the distribution coefficients of deputy general manager,
financial controller, chief engineer, general counsel,
secretary to the Board and other senior management
officers range from 0.6 to 0.9.

The basic salary is paid on a monthly basis, while the amount
of performance pay shall be determined in accordance
with the following formula: performance pay = basic
salary x performance coefficient x distribution coefficient,
and the performance coefficient shall be reviewed by the
remuneration and monitoring committee based on the annual
performance of the Company’s business and reported to the
Board for consideration and approval. Special contribution
income may be granted to senior management officers who
have made significant contribution to the implementation
of the strategies of the Company or have received awards
from the government or industry associations for significant
innovation in management, technological innovation and
strong investment income. Special contribution income
shall be reviewed by the remuneration and monitoring
committee under the Board before submission to the Board
for consideration and approval and shall not exceed RMB0.15
million. Chairman of the Board and non-executive Directors
do not receive remuneration in the Company. Supervisors
are not entitled to receive Supervisors’ remuneration, but are
entitled to receive remuneration according to their respective
positions in the Company and its subsidiaries (other than
supervisors' positions). Independent non-executive Directors
will be entitled to receive an annual remuneration of RMB
80,000.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

Remunerations of Directors and Senior Management Officers

and Assessment of the Board (Continued)

(2)  Assessment and Incentive Mechanism for Senior Management
Officers
During the Reporting Period, the Board of the Company
entered into the "“Performance Assessment Contract for Senior
Management” with the senior management officers. The
remuneration and monitoring committee of the Board would
propose the appraisal of the senior management officers to
the Board for examination and approval in accordance with
the completion of the “Performance Contracts” by the senior
management officers.

Duties of the management

Pursuant to the authority and power conferred by the “Articles of
Association”, the management level of the Company undertakes
the major duties as follows: to be responsible for organizing
and implementing the Company’s annual operating plan and
investment plan; to propose the establishment of internal
management institution for the Company; to propose the basic
management mechanism for the Company; to appoint or dismiss
such management members whose appointment and dismissal are
not subject to the Board; to formulate the basic regulations for the
Company.

Remunerations of auditors

At the 2021 annual general meeting convened on 9 June 2022,
the Company re-appointed ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) as the domestic and overseas auditors
of the Company for the year of 2022; appointed Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) as the accountant
for 2022 Internal Control Report and authorized the Board to
determine the remunerations of these two auditing firms.

During the Reporting Period, ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) reviewed the attached financial report
prepared under the PRC Accounting Standards and Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) reviewed the
internal control report of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, none of the analysis on the
remuneration of the auditor for the provision of non-audit services
to the Company was provided by ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants (Special General Partnership) and Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership).

During the Reporting Period, the audit fee payable to ShineWing
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) amounted
to RMB1,000,000. The audit fee includes all fees related to audit
services provided to the Company by the auditors, including audit
fee and review fee. The audit fee payable to Da Hua Certified
Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) amounted to
RMB350,000. The audit fee includes the review fee paid to auditor
for reviewing the effectiveness of the design and implementation of
the internal control contained in the Company’s financial report.
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

6.

10.

Remunerations of auditors (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) had provided auditing services for the
Company for 16 years. A resolution regarding whether ShineWing
Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) and Da
Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) are to
be re-appointed as the Company’s auditors for the year 2023 will be
submitted to the 2022 annual general meeting.

During the Reporting Period, Directors are separately assuming the
responsibilities of preparing the financial report and internal control
report. Please refer to “Financial Report” as set out in Section 12
and “Internal Control Audit Report” as set out in Section 13 of this
annual report, for the particulars of the opinions on the financial
report and internal control report issued by ShineWing Certified
Public Accountants and Da Hua Certified Public Accountants
respectively.

Internal control

Details on the internal control of the Company implemented by
the Board are set out in the section headed “Internal Control Audit
Report” as set out in Section 13 of this Annual Report.

Delegation of authority by the Board of Directors

During the Reporting Period, any implementation of delegation
of authority by the Board to the operation management level
shall be subject to the approval of the Board. Such delegation
also requires the operation management level to regularly report
the implementation results regarding such matters under such
delegation. The Board has not delegated any authority with
respect to managerial or administrative functions to its committees
thereunder.

Corporate governance functions

During the Reporting Period, the Board performed its duties
regarding corporate governance: (1) to develop and review the
Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (2)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (3) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on the compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (4) to develop, review and
examine the staff's manual applicable to employees and Directors;
and (5) to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. Details on the
implementation of the foregoing matters are set out in the section
headed “Internal Control Audit Report” as set out in section 13 of
this Annual Report.

Secretary to the Board
(1) The secretary to the Board is a senior management officer of
the Company.

(2)  The secretary to the Board is appointed by the Board of the
Company and reports duty to the chairman.
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

10.

11.

12.

Secretary to the Board (Continued)

(3)  The main duties of the secretary to the Board include: to assist
the Directors with their handling of the day-to-day business of
the Board; to continuously provide the Directors with, remind
the Directors of, and ensure that the Directors are aware of,
the domestic and foreign regulators’ regulations, policies and
requirements in respect of the operation of the Company;
to assist the Directors and managers in proper compliance
with domestic and foreign laws, regulations, the "Articles
of Association” and other relevant rules in exercising their
power and performing their functions; to be responsible for
organizing and preparing the documents of the Board and
of the Shareholders’ general meetings; to duly keep meeting
minutes; to ensure that decisions made at meetings are made
in accordance with statutory procedure and to know well of
the implementation of the resolutions of the Board; to be
responsible for arranging and coordinating the disclosure of
information, coordinating the relationship with investors and
enhancing the transparency of the Company; to participate
in arranging for capital market financing; to handle the
relationship with intermediary organisations, regulators and
the media, and to promote good public relations.

(4)  The secretary to the Board has confirmed that he attended
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during
the Reporting Period.

Participation in trainings by Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officers

In accordance with the principles of corporate governance, the
Company has provided training and development programmes for its
Directors. A comprehensive, formal and tailored induction is provided
to each newly appointed director upon appointment. A monthly
updates on the Listing Rules, laws and other regulatory requirements
is also prepared by the Company, the latest developments in the
Group's business and the latest news of the relevant industries are
delivered to Directors, Supervisors and senior management officers
to enable them to obtain more comprehensive information in order
to better perform their duties.

At the same time, each Directors, Supervisors and senior
management officers of the Company, during the Reporting Period,
participated in trainings in relation to the “Listing Rules”, “Corporate

Governance”, “Corporate Internal Control”, “Prevention of
Insider Trading”, “Information Disclosure”, “Responsibilities of the
Directors”, as well as “ESG Theme"” etc., and continuously improved

the development of their professional abilities and completed the
training requirements of the regulatory authorities.

Statement regarding Responsibility for financial statements
by the Board of Directors

This statement is made for Shareholders to differentiate the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditors in
connection with service reports which should be read in conjunction
with the statement regarding responsibility by auditors contained in
the auditors’ report set out in the financial statements.

The Board is of the opinion that as the Company’s resources are
sufficient for its operation in the foreseeable future, the financial
statements have been prepared based on the going concern
principle, and that in preparation of such financial statements,
applicable accounting policies were completely implemented,
supporting by reasonable and prudent judgment and valuation,
and that the preparation of the statements is in compliance with all
accounting standards the Board considers applicable.
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XVI. Other (continued) +5 Bt @)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued) TEERME @

Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHENE)

12.  Statement regarding Responsibility for financial statements 12 EFERHBHEFEZETEY (E)
by the Board of Directors (Continued)
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the accounts record EXHEREARRAQFGE ZRE Atk
prepared by the Company reasonably and accurately reflects the BEAE TR - MEREMD IR BR AN A A 2 B K
Company's financial position, and that the financial statements are Mo WHERZABRETEFEREE
in compliance with relating accounting requirements in the PRC and SRR EXK -
Hong Kong.

13. The Company maintained sufficient public float during the 13 ZRGRBEREGCHREHAZEHN
Reporting Period. ;0

14.  Shareholders’ Right 14 KREEZ
(1) To convene an extraordinary general meeting (1) BEBIEREAD

Where Shareholders request to convene an extraordinary RRERBEBRBRREAGHE

general meeting or class meeting, the following procedures HRRREE  EERBTIRE

shall be followed: FriFig

(i) Two or more Shareholders who collectively hold more () A AEZBEITNER
than 10% (10% inclusive) of the voting shares at the J:E%)H%EI’JHX@E aprdun
proposed meeting may make a resolution to the Board UNEEAED 2 T)mEs
on holding an extraordinary general meeting or class %‘ﬁﬁfﬁkiﬂ’\]ﬂ&? C AJLAZE
meeting by signing one or several written requests — sk E G RBEAR
with same content in same format and may define the ”E’]iﬁgﬂi REESE
meeting agenda. The Board shall convene such meeting I N
as soon as possible upon receipt of the aforesaid Hxﬁam WA e
written request(s). The aforesaid number of shares held B EsgnBpmEn
shall be calculated as of the date when the written ET\T& 2 AR A SR ER A AR
request(s) was put forward by the Shareholders. BARREEABE RS -

AR IR ER AR R IR R EE
ERHE -

(i) In the event that the Board fails to give a notice of (iy WMREEESEWSIFELEE
convening such meeting within thirty days upon receipt gifﬁ THAEEELE
of the aforesaid written request(s), the Shareholders EgEMBE  BEZEK
who put forward the request(s) may convene such FIRER A AEZE S EIZ
meeting of their own accord within four months upon xifﬁ@flﬁ A QTT’&%%‘
receipt of the request by the Board, and the procedures - BEWEFES
for convening such meeting shall be the same as those Eﬁ%%@@ %Hﬁi@%ﬁﬁ’\ﬁ%
for convening a general meeting by the Board where S
possible.

The expenses reasonably incurred by Shareholders in R SR A B % R e A B R AR T

convening and holding such a meeting because of the Board's EEMBTASLRITEEN -

failure to hold such meeting at the aforesaid request shall be ﬁﬁﬁ?‘ﬁiﬁ’]éﬁ%ﬁﬁ EEBA
borne out by the Company and shall be deducted from any AIEYE - WHAFTRNRBES
payment due by the Company to Directors of misconduct. BRIBH IR

Where the Shareholders decide to convene a general meeting BREAFEETAERERAZH

of their own accord, it/they shall give a written notice to the EEEERANESE  AKFAAQ

Board and shall simultaneously file the case with the local TFﬁEi&‘:F‘ B 3% B5 & R tH AR A

office of the CSRC and the stock exchange in the locality BEZHHEER -

where the Company operates for record.

Prior to the announcement of the resolution of the general ERRRERFEAEH - BER

meeting, the shareholding by the convening Shareholders REFREOITEERI10% - B&

shall be not less than 10%. When the convening shareholders R 59 FE 71 %% IR PR X & i A0 R B

deliver a notice of general meeting and make the MIREARGRBALER - MAA

announcement of the resolution of the general meetings, the FITAE 4b 7R B 75 B & e o R D 28

convening Shareholders shall submit the relevant evidencing R G TR A FBERAME -

materials to the local office of the CSRC and the stock
exchange in the locality where the Company operates.
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XVI. Other (continued) +5 Bt @)
Corporate Governance Report (Continued) PEERRE @
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHEN @
14.  Shareholders’ Right (Continued) 14 RFEz ()
(2)  The content of such resolution to be submitted to the general 2) RBEASIEZIRFZHAD
meeting

3)

The resolutions shall fall within the scope of authority and
power of the general meeting, have definite topics and
specific resolutions, and comply with the relevant provisions
of the laws, administrative regulations and the Company's
" Articles of Association”.

Shareholders that independently or collectively hold 3% or
more of the shares in the Company may make a temporary
resolution and submit it to the convener(s) in written form
ten days prior to the convening of the general meeting. The
convener(s) shall deliver a supplementary notice of the general
meeting to announce the content of the temporary resolution
within two days upon receipt of the resolution.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after delivering
a notice of general meeting, the convener(s) may not make
any amendments to the resolutions included in the notice or
add any new resolutions. Where the election of directors or
supervisors is proposed to be discussed at a general meeting,
the detailed information about the candidates for directors or
supervisors shall be sufficiently disclosed in the notice of the
general meeting, including:

(i) Personal information regarding educational
background, working experience and concurrent
positions;

(i) Whether he/she has any related relationship with the
Company or its Controlling Shareholders or beneficial
controllers;

(i) The number of shares held in the Company to be
disclosed; and

(iv)  Whether he/she has been punished by the CSRC and
other authorities and penalised by the stock exchange.

A single resolution shall be made for each candidate for a
Director or a Supervisor, except for Directors or Supervisors
elected by way of cumulative voting system.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquires requiring the Board'’s
attention to the secretary to the Board at the registered
address of the Company. The contact details are set out in the
“Company Profile” section of the annual report. Questions
about the procedures for convening or putting forward
resolutions at an annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting may also be put forward to the secretary to
the Board in the same manner.

3)

EEBRRAGRESE A5
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15. During the Reporting Period, there were no material changes 15 HREAANLLAAERMEXHAZLEE
in the documents of constitutional nature of the Company AEE
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

16.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board, through the assistance of the audit committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Board is satisfied that such systems are effective and appropriate
actions have been taken.

The process used by the Company to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks is summarized as follows:

(1) Risk identification: identify risks that may pose a potential
impact on the Group's business and operations through the
audit committee, the management and the internal control
department;

Risk evaluation: evaluate the identified risks based on the
likelihood of the occurrence and impact level of the risk;

Response to risk: according to the evaluation results on
the magnitude of the risk, risk management strategies are
determined by the internal control department, and through
appropriate mechanisms of the Company to ensure the
effective implementation of internal control procedures to
prevent and reduce the risks.

The main features of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are the focus on establishment of a sound internal
control environment, continuous improvement in risks evaluation,
activities control, information and communication, and internal
supervision so as to enhance the Company’s operating efficiency and
ensure the reliability of financial reporting and effective compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, in order to avoid any financial
losses as a result of fraud.

The Board of the Company is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
However, the internal control systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The internal control department of the Group reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
by reviewing the annual internal control audit plan approved by
the audit committee, it identifies internal control defects through
periodic audits and special audits. With the recommendation in the
audit proposal and its status of implementation, the department
keeps track and resolves areas of serious internal control defects.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued) EERESEHERE

16.  Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) 16. [EBRETERASFEL (&)
In relation to the handling and dissemination of inside information B EH R R R E S R E RG] (BBE
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures PIZSTE)RERBEMARBEEME
Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has $‘§IE%EX@%TEWK‘§W%A%%
adopted measures including raising awareness of confidentiality HRE Hﬁﬁé%ﬂﬁg Eigedn
in the Group, issuing notices regarding “black-out” period and ’iﬁﬁﬂ*’*%x%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ MEREM R
restrictions on dealings to directors and employees on a regular BERBIEEMAEEE 5 °
basis to ensure compliance when handling and disclosing inside
information.
According to the relevant laws and regulations, combining with the NEMRBHEBERERLEE R TW*B
internal control system and evaluation methods of the Company, in THIHE M EIE  EARESIAE
respect of the routine supervision and special supervision over the EEMEEEE - RME L F20224
internal control, we have evaluated the effectiveness and adequacy 1ﬂ1 HZE2022912 A31 BRAIBEHH
of the internal control of the Company from 1 January 2022 to 31 R ST T RTE -
December 2022.

17.  Dividends Policy 17. KREHE

The basic principles of the profit distribution policy of the Company:
The Company shall take full account of return to investors and
distribute dividend to its shareholders each year in proportion to
the distributable profit realized in the year concerned (from the
consolidated financial statements). The profit distribution policy of
the Company maintains continuity and stability, and operates for
the long-term interest of the Company, the entire interest of all its
shareholders and the sustainable development of the Company. The
Company shall give priority to dividend distribution in cash.

The manner of profit distribution: The Company may distribute
dividends in cash, in shares, in a combination of both cash and
shares. Subject to conditions, the Company may propose interim
profit distribution.

Specific conditions and proportions of cash dividend of the
Company:

Upon satisfying all below conditions regarding cash dividend, the
dividend distributed by the Company in cash each year shall be
no less than 5% of the annual distributable profits (as stated in
the consolidated financial statements) realized in the year. The
accumulated dividend distributed by the Company in cash in the
past three years shall be no less than 30% of the average annual
distributable profits (from the consolidated financial statements)
realized in the past three years:

(1) if the distributable net profit realized by the Company in the
year concerned (i.e. net profit of the Company net of loss
recovery and allocation of its profits to the statutory reserve)
are positive with adequate liquidity, the Company may
distribute dividend in cash provided that it shall not undermine
the subsequent ongoing operation of the Company;

(2) if the accumulated distributable profits made by the parent
company are positive;

(3)  auditors had issued an audit report with standard unqualified
opinion for the financial statements of the Company for that
year;
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17.

18.

110 |

@)

no special circumstances have occurred to the Company
(excluding financing projects);

The aforementioned “special circumstances” refer to material
investment plans or significant cash expenditures (excluding
financing projects) with accumulated expenditure made by
the Company within the following 12 months amounting
to or exceeding 25% of the latest audited net assets of the
Company; “material investment plans” or “significant capital
expenditures” include external investment, external repayment
of debts or material asset acquisitions.

there is no situation in which the principal and interest of the
bond cannot be repaid on time or the principal and interest of
the matured bond cannot be repaid on time.

Specific conditions for distributing dividends in shares by the
Company

Where the Company’s business is in a sound condition, and
the Company's share price valuation is within a reasonable
range, under the condition that the minimum cash dividend
ratio and the reasonability of the Company’s share capital
could be ensured, dividends in shares can be used for profit
distribution according to the status of the provident fund and
cash flow.

Nomination Policy

According to the nomination policy of the Company (the
“Nomination Policy”), the nomination committee shall consider
the following criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorship:

Character and integrity; qualifications including professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant
to the Company’s business and corporate strategy; willingness to
devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board;

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted for
achieving diversity on the Board; requirement for the Board to have
independent Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules applicable
to the Company and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules; other views that are appropriate to the
Company'’s business or as suggested by the Board.

The procedure of nomination by the nomination committee is
summarised as follows:

The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an
additional director, the nomination committee identifies or
selects candidates as recommended to the committee, with
or without assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out above;

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)
18.  Nomination Policy (Continued)

o If the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
nomination committee shall rank them by order of preference
based on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable);

o The nomination committee makes recommendation to the
Board including the terms and conditions of the appointment;

o The Board considers and decides on the appointment based
upon the recommendation of the nomination committee;

The procedure of re-appointment of Director at Shareholders’
general meeting is summarised as follows:

In accordance with the Company’s “Articles of Association”, every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and shall be eligible for reelection at the general
meetings; the nomination committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring Director.
The nomination committee shall also review the expertise and
professional qualifications of the retiring Director, who offered
himself/herself for re-appointment at the general meetings, to
determine whether such Director continues to meet the criteria as set
out above; based on the review made by nomination committee, the
Board shall make recommendations to shareholders of the Company
on candidates standing for re-appointment at the Shareholders’
general meeting of the Company, and provide the available
biographical information of the retiring Director in accordance with
the Listing Rules to enable Shareholders of the Company to make
the informed decision on the reappointment of such candidates at
general meetings of the Company. The Board will from time to time
review the nomination policy and monitor its implementation to
ensure its continued effectiveness and compliance with regulatory
requirements and good corporate governance practice.

ERHE QEDAE

H )

SEAR S ()

ESRESSAN (B

Eﬂﬂzﬁ(ﬁa)
IMRFZORIZE L — R Z ERAR
EI’HI% LA Tm%i%ﬂﬁffﬁﬁ%ﬁ

RAEINEZ R EEEEAN2E
I;E(ZZD FH)Hz@S‘Ei&?Iﬁi’Eﬁ

. REFEEAEELRBES
EIEE MR R

o EXeRBIEEZEENRERT
FARTE LD

Eﬂx%/“(@ti%ﬁ§&§$&l*ﬁ){

4|

BIBEARANER SREEFEH=
FEBEEEHER  TEERRREA
LEERBE  REZEGREMHEMT
EEUARTNBRBEBNRY - 252
ZEENMARNRAESNEEZNMUR
%%éﬁ'lﬁkﬁﬁﬁtﬁﬁéﬁ
T AETEREBETAN LML
Gl @Fk%%é MWEN EFQE
HARAREAS [ EHETHEEA
AR YR K2 - WARIE EmARAIE R
FRFREEFENERRE - ERR
BEAEANFRRRBFEAG LAEBHNE
EREAELANBERE - EF ST
WA REEFRIBAWER 2 B - AR
%ﬁZﬁ&ﬁpwyﬁﬁm&Eﬁiﬁ
E/DE

2022 ANNUAL REPORT |

Section 5 Corporate Governance IR

111

2022 FERE



I Scction 5 Corporate Governance

112

ERE

NEPRE

XVI. Other (continued)

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
Directors and Composition of the Board (Continued)

19.

Board Diversity Policy

In order to improve the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company recognises the diversification at the Board
level as an important element in maintaining competitive advantage.
The Board diversity policy of the Company is beneficial for enhancing
the performance of the Company. According to the Board diversity
policy (the “Diversity Policy”), the selection of candidates for the
Board will be based on a range of diversified categories, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
race, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments
to the Board shall follow the principle of meritocracy, taking into
account objectively the benefits of diversification of members of the
Board when considering the candidates.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives when
implementing the Diversity Policy and review such objectives from
time to time to ensure its appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives. Current Board members
have varied educational backgrounds and expertises, diverse
perspectives and competencies in areas which are relevant and
valuable to the Group, including accounting, economics, strategic
planning, business development and management. As of the end
of the Reporting Period, the ratio of male employees to female
employees (including senior management officers) was approximately
5:1. The Company will continue to implement measures to support
employee diversity and increase the number of potential gender-
diverse Director successors in recruitment and selection in the future.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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. Environmental Information

Sect|on 6 Environmental and Social Respon5|b|l|ty _

EAE RRHEMEEE

— REEEER

Whether relevant mechanisms of environmental protection is established Yes
B EN BB RERAES =
Funds for environmental protection invested during the Reporting Period (unit: RMB’0,000) 223.69
BERANRARRE S (B - ARBETT) 223.69
() Description on the environment protection of the (—) BRAREBEREBMHAMIVERH
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under FEUNARAREETEFATMN
key sewage emission entities announced by the RIRE A
environment prOtecthn authorities
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable VER O TER
1. Information on emission of pollutants 1. HEER
\ Applicable (7 Not Applicable ViER O R EA
1. Information of wastewater emission 1. BKRHFRER
Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. has RKEXREBRERABRARE
2 comprehensive wastewater discharge ports, the TRFIA 28RS R EER
wastewater is discharged into the urban sewage pipe A BEKUREE A5
network after sedimentation and discharged after KEW  EREBREER)S
being treated by the sewage treatment plant in the IKERIRRBR IR I o 53
Tianjin Port Free Trade Zone. Pollution factors include EFBPHE - 8%
PH value, suspended solids, chemical oxygen demand, ZBESE - AH
petroleum, biochemical oxygen demand, ammonia a5 a4 -
nitrogen.
In 2022, the wastewater has undergone sampling and 20224 - BERKAE KR BB
monitoring through Tianjin Guona Product Testing Fguu ORI R AR TS B PR A &)
Technology Service Co., Ltd., and the results were RERA - BRHTHRX
in compliance with Tianjin Province “Overall Sewage Em CFKEEE FERUREE)
Emission Standard” DB12/356-2018 (Level 3), and all DB12/356-2018(=4%) + &
reached the emission standard. IR -
Table 1-1 Statistical table of emission concentration RI1- VKSR BEBRES
of water pollutants HES
Unit: mg/L
By . 2R/
Emission

concentration
monitoring data
(annual average)

HRORE
ESRBE
(F¥ME)
Pollutants Standard Limit 2022 Emission pattern  Emission flow
TRY BERE 2022F  BERURE BB Em
Regular pollutants PH value 6~9 7.45  Stable and Sewage treatment
BRI PH{E continuous plant in the
chemical oxygen 500 78.5 disposal extended area of
demand TERE AN the Tianjin Port
tERaE bonded area
ammoniac nitrogen 45 3.61 REBRIEITK
R BRIB
suspended solids 400 16.5
L2 )]
total nitrogen 70 13.83
BA
total phosphorous 8 0.57
Fict
Charactenstlc pollutants petroleum 15 0.38
BEUS2 AHR
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l.  Environmental Information (continued) — REEFEEBR®
() Description on the environment protection of the (=) %JFAf—iﬁﬁénx nIZF'EJ’D\ﬁ?E’JEEEEF
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under FEUNARREFEFATN
key sewage emission entities announced by the RIS A @)
environment protection authorities (Continued)

114

1. Information on emission of pollutants (Continued) 1. HSEE (@
1. Information of wastewater emission (Continued) 1. BEKHEMIEXR ()
Table 1-2 Statistics of total emission volume of RI12KSRMHERBER
water pollutant =t
Unit: ton
B
2022
20224
Pollutants Data Source Production volume  Disposal volume
SRY BIERIR EEE HRE
Total disposal volume of wastewater Statistical method 108,675 108,675
FEK BB E REITE
Regular pollutants COD Third-party testing 8.53 8.53
BRI d=-Fot =8 Zatiol
ammoniac nitrogen Third-party testing 0.39 0.39
2R Lt
suspended solids Third-party testing 1.79 1.79
BIZY) Lt
total nitrogen Third-party testing 1.5 1.5
B Lt
total phosphorous Third-party testing 0.06 0.06
“ank Zatiol
Characteristic pollutants petroleum Third-party testing 0.04 0.04
FEUSZEY Al Lt
2. Information of exhaust gas emission 2. ERHMIEX
Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. has 9 ﬁi@mr*“”ﬁﬂﬁffi
exhaust gas ports in total, of which there are 2 spray HEBERFEHDE -

paint exhaust gas ports, 1 manual touch-up exhaust
gas port, 2 heat treatment furnace exhaust gas ports,
2 spinning machines exhaust gas ports, 1 spraying
solidification exhaust gas port and 1 wrapped-up
solidification exhaust gas port. Exhaust gas pollution
factors are smoke and dust, blackness of flue gas, sulfur
dioxide, nitrogen oxides, benzene, toluene, xylene and

EEPH,%%%J%%?}FDN - F
THZERROE - 2
BRI MR EE R B O 218 - hE
Bt R R 218 - E
B AR 1 E - fE
IftFﬁTJFBSZEIHI %ﬁ
RS RE T A EE

VOCS. The total discharge volume of sulfur dioxide, REE - —&/ bk - ﬁ%ﬂ:
nitrogen oxides and particulates are 0.747 tons, 11.223 W)oK BRIR . ZHR
tons and 0.747 tons, respectively. VOCS » &btk - AAft

In 2022, the exhaust gas undergone sampling and
monitoring through Tianjin Guona Product Testing

YR TER A TE MEE RS
S RIA0. 74708 ~ 11.223W8
0.747WE o

20224 » BERAL KRB
EmBARMRBERA

Technology Service Co., Ltd., the results were in AIERERA - HREF/E

compliance with “Emission Standard of Air Pollutants (ITEBEBZERRSRYEENR

for Industrial Kilns and Furnaces” (DB12/556-2015) ZAE)(DB12/556—2015)F0

and “Volatile Organic Compound Emission Control (ITHEAFER \iﬁ%%ﬁt

Standards for Industrial Enterprises” (DB12/524-2020), BRI HIIZ %) (DB12/524—

and all reached the emission standard. 2020) &k - 2F =T
i e
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.  Environmental Information (continued)

)

Description on the environment protection of the

Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the
environment protection authorities (Continued)

2 Section 6 Environmental and Social Responsibility N

Vaxa RS, a

ERE REBHEHAEEME

— REEEBER@
(—) BRREREBPHAMPVERH
FENNARREEEFATIN
RIREREREA @)

1. Information on emission of pollutants (Continued) 1. H5ERE (@)
2. Information of exhaust gas emission (Continued) 2. ERHHIEX (E)
Table 2-1 Statistical table of emission concentration R2-1ARRSERYERERE
monitoring of air pollutant #HatR
Annual
average
of emission
concentration
Maximum monitoring
allowable data Maximum
emission (mg/m?) allowable
concentration 2022 emission rate Actual
(mg/m3)  HERUREESH (kg/h)  emission rate
BeEAT HEFEHEE B A (kg/h)
Pollutants HHRE (mg/m?3) BHEE BREERER
SR (mg/m?) 20224 (kg/h) (kg/h)
Natural gas combustion
exhaust gas port
RARMRERERPER D
Regular pollutants sulfur dioxide 50 3 Nil 0.0091
BIRERY) & ek s
nitrogen oxides 150 235 Nil 0.176
AREy s
particles 20 1 Nil 0.0046
Table 2-2 Statistical table of emission concentration R22RRSERYEREE
monitoring of air pollutant #ratk
Annual Annual
average average
of emission of emission
concentration concentration
Maximum monitoring monitoring
allowable data Maximum data
emission (mg/m3) allowable (kg/h)
concentration 2022 emission rate 2021
(mg/m3)  BERUREEA (kg/h)  HERUBREESH
BEAT HEF¥HEE BeAH HEF¥EHE
Pollutants HHRE (mg/m?3) B R (kg/h)
B (mg/m?) 20224 (kg/h) 20215
Spray paint exhaust gas port
IER TEEER A
Characteristic pollutants benzene 1 0.003 0.2 Nil
LS VEP L) S i
volatile organic compound 50 2.353 0.75 0.15
BRI Y
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.  Environmental Information (continued)

of air pollutant

Emission volume of natural gas combustion

RARREEERBENE

Emission volume of spray paint and winding exhaust gas

W ST BEREENE

Pollutants

VEE L)

Regular pollutants sulfur dioxide

EIRSRY —&abH
nitrogen oxides
Aalty
particles
SERL
benzene
%
VOCS
VOCS

3. Emission control on hazardous waste

N

— RREEBR@
() Description on the environment protection of the (—
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the

environment protection authorities (Continued)
1. Information on emission of pollutants (Continued)
2. Information of exhaust gas emission (Continued)
Table 2-3 Statistical table of total emission volume

185,450,000m?
18,5458 3 7K
299,870,000m?
29,9878 H K
Source

AR

Third-party testing
Ztifl
Third-party testing
Ztifl
Third-party testing
Ztifl
Third-party testing
Ztifl
Third-party testing
Zrtifl

Hazardous waste generated by the Company during
the production process shall be transferred to Tianjin

Hejia Veolia Environmental Services Co.,

Ltd., a

qualified hazardous waste disposal unit for disposal in

accordance with the regulations.

Table 3 Statistical table of the generation and

disposal of hazardous waste

) BREEREDMHAMPERHE
FEMNNARIREFEFATN
RRE A @)

1.  HSEE@E
2. ERHHIER (&)
R2ZARSRYHEHRBE

#ratR
Unit: tons/year
By W FE
2022
20224

Emission volume (tons)

P (Wg)
0.556
4.358
0.185
0.001
0.706

3. BREWHHER
REELEBENELNG
BEEEY)  WRBERBA
BENEREYIEE S —
REAEBLERERGHE
RAFIEITEE

RIBHMENELEREES
REEETR

Unit: tons/year

B E
Generation
volume per year
Form (disposal
Waste Major harmful (solid, liquid, gas) Source of volume) 2022 Disposal
Name categories substance A generation FELEB(EEE) method
=L BRI R FEFEHD E-&-R) EERR 2022 BKEARR
1 HW12 Water base paint Solid Production process 13.51
PINER EERRE
2 HW13 Resin Solid Production process 7.66
Bl EERRE
3 HW49 Oil and water Solid Production process Third-party disposal
base paint ZAERE
KR & HERE 4.67
Total 25.84
A%
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Environmental Information (continued)

)

Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the

environment protection authorities (Continued)
1. Information on emission of pollutants (Continued)

4. Emission control on general industrial solid waste
General industrial solid wastes generated during the
production process, such as tube head and scrap iron,
shall be acquired by Tianjin Qingjianggiang Maoyi

»Section 6 Environmental and Social Respon5|b|l|ty _

Vaxa RS, a

55 7NHM ﬁi%ﬁﬁﬁ TI

— REEEBRI@
()EFPaﬁwJHEWME%ﬁ
FENNARREEEFATIN
RRE M A (@)

1. HEREE@
4. —RIEEREYHAFES
EEBRERELNES
S5 —MRITXEREY - /A
REBTIRESHAR R

Company. i o
Table 4 Emission and disposal of general industrial RA—MRITEFEEEEYHR
solid waste REEBR
Unit: tons/year
B - g E
Name of the Generation Comprehensive Disposal Storage Emission
Year solid waste volume utilization volume volume volume  Emission flow
F4 ERE S ELE REFIRE REE IrFE BHE HRE[
2022 Short tube head 133.23 133.23 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
HER (eI
Small pot head 216.67 216.67 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
NEER B4 A B
Oxide 574.06 574.06 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
=R (54 B4 A B
Steel ring 251.12 251.12 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
] B4 A B
Steel cuttings 388.651 388.651 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
)= (eI
Steel scrap bottle 277.835 277.835 0 0 0  Recycled for utilization
FEM eI
Total (tons) 1941.566
A& ()
5. Emission control on noise pollution 5 BRESZHMEHEL
Table 5 Emission and disposal of noise pollution KERBSEERREER
"
Daytime noise emissions Nighttime noise emissions
(6:00—22:00)/dB(A) (22:00—6:00)/dB(A)
ERRBHK REGBHR
(6B—225%) dB(A) (2285—685) /dB(A)
Measurement Corresponding Noise source
Year location noise source properties Emission limit Result  Emission limit Result
F4 AR E HERER BRRRMEE BEBPRIE ERE BERBRIE #RE
2022 Around the plant area  Production equipment  Mechanical noise 65 60 - -

& A EERE R

2022 ANNUAL REPORT | 117

2022 FERE



I Scction 6 Enwronmental and Social Respon5|b|l|ty
RIBETEEE

118

Vara R S, Va o

5 7NBP

I.  Environmental Information (continued)

Description on the environment protection of the
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under
key sewage emission entities announced by the
environment protection authorities (Continued)

)

2.

Construction and operation of pollution prevention &
treatment facilities
\ Applicable I Not applicable

Tianjin Tianhai installed facilities for prevention and control
of pollution in sewage node on each production facilities;
exhaust gas ports which produce volatile organic compounds
adopted regeneration processes such as dry filtration,
activated carbon absorption, catalytic combustion and
desorption, respectively. It also adopted secondary de-dusting
in shot blasting process. Facilities for prevention and control
of pollution are operating normally and effectively.

Environmental impact assessment of construction
project and other administrative licenses regarding
environmental protection

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Environmental emergency response plan
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

In order to deal with unexpected environmental risk accidents,
the Company has established a sound emergency response
mechanism for unexpected environmental pollution accidents
to handle unexpected environmental pollution accident
occurred in the Company in a timely, high efficiency and
proper manner. In accordance with the relevant requirements
of the Environmental Protection Bureau of Tianjin Province and
bonded area, emergency plans for unexpected environmental
pollution accidents of Tianhai Company was prepared and
filed. Potential environmental risk and possible environmental
pollution accidents of the Company are analyzed, emergency
drill is organized at least once a year, drills are summarized
and evaluated and the plans are revised and refined in view of
the problems found in the drills.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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l.  Environmental Information (continued) — REEEBER@

() Description on the environment protection of the (=) %JFAf—iﬁﬁénx nIZF'EJ’D\ﬁ?E’JEEEEF
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under FEUNARREFEFATN
key sewage emission entities announced by the RIS A @)
environment protection authorities (Continued)

5.  Environmental self-monitoring scheme 5 BIBRTEAFR
\ Applicable [ Not applicable VER O REA
In 2022, Tianjin Tianhai High Pressure Container Co., Ltd. has 20224 - RERBSBERFER
entrusted Tianjin Guona Product Testing Technology Service ERERAREEREENE A
Co., Ltd. to test the discharge port in accordance with the KM ER AR - REAFR
requirements of the monitoring plan. The test results all met zziﬁﬁ ‘“"T@?JFBZDLﬂﬁ/E‘J '
the requirement of the standard. (See Table 1-1, Table 2-2, WABEROTERLEZRK(RE
Table 5). 1-1 - 2’%2-2 ©R5) ©
1. Implementation standard and limit of emission of 1. BEKETHMEERERE
water pollutant
Standard of
Items concentration limit  Source of standard
EAE BERERE BEKE
PH value 6~9  "Overall Sewage Emission Standard”
PHIE (DB12/356-2018 (level 3)
CFKERA HERUTAE) DB12/356 — 2018 = 4%
susgended solid 400mg/L
B2
chem|cal oxygen demand 500mg/L
2
petroleum 15mg/L
o
biochemical oxygen demand 300mg/L
EbEE=
aminoniac nitrogen 45mg/L
total phosphorous 8mg/L
Rt
total nitrogen 70mg/L
BAR
2. Implementation standard and limit of implementation 2. EHTHMEERERE

of discharge of gaseous waste

Standard of

Source of pollution Factors of pollution concentration limit mg/m*  Source of standard
SRR ERETF ZEEREREmMg/M> ZERR
Kilns and furnaces sulfur dioxide 50  “Emission Standard of Air
B2 —&1th Pollutants for Industrial Kilns
nitrogen oxides 300 and Furnaces”
Ek=Rle) (DB12/556-2015)
particles 20 (IEBEERRSTRAMBERIZZE)
EEL kY| DB12/556—2015
blackness of flue gas <1
EREE
Piping benzene 1 "VOC Emission Control Standards
BB PN for Industrial Enterprises”
total toluene and xylene 20 (DB12/524-2020)
RRm—BERAH (TEPEF B R BEUE
NMHC 40 HIZ %) DB12/524—2020
IR 4R
TRVOC 50
TRVOC
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l.  Environmental Information (continued) — REEEBER@

() Description on the environment protection of the (=) BAREBERESBH I MHIERHE
Company and its major subsidiaries falling under FEMNNARRETEFARN
key sewage emission entities announced by the RIS A @)
environment protection authorities (Continued)

5.  Environmental self-monitoring scheme (Continued) 5 BRIBRTEAFR@E
3 The noise level at the boundaries of the plants 3. BREEH{TGB12348-
complies with class 3 and 4 standards of “Emission 2008 (T ¥ LM R IEEZ
standard for industrial enterprises noise at EYHR3 - 4LFIEE S B
boundary” (GB12348-2008), with 65~70dB (A) 65~70dB(A) - BE55dB
during the day and 55dB (A) during the night. (A) »
6. Administrative penalty for environmental problems 6. HEHANERREBEZIITEE
during the Reporting Period ENER
[ Applicable  Not Applicable D@Em N TNEm
7.  Other disclosable environmental information 7. HEEARNERRER
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable VA O TEm
In 2022, the Company had no complaints on environmental 2022 FE - BAFRBEERITMH
issues or pollution incidents. B B 5 RSN -

(2) Description on the environment protection of the () BEEHSENZINARRRE
companies other than those falling under key B
sewage emission entities
1 Applicable v Not Applicable O @R ~EA

(3) Information on efforts conductive to ecological () BARAREBERE - FHARSE B
protection, pollution prevention and control and TRIEEENHEBERER
environmental responsibility fulfillment
1 Applicable v Not Applicable O @R ~EA

(4) Measures adopted for reducing carbon emissions (M) 23 &5 B R RR S H i HE i A%
during the Reporting Period and their effects B EERBR

Whether carbon reduction measures were adopted No

REEREURHRIE I =

Reduced emission of carbon dioxide equivalent (Unit: tons) Not Applicable

A — B htE 8 (BhL ¢ HE) T i@

Types of carbon reduction measures (e.g. Use clean energy for generating electricity, use carbon
reduction technologies in the production process and the research and development of new
products which help reduce carbon emission etc.) Not Applicable
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Specific explanation BB
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Social responsibility work

In 2022, the Company strictly complied with the related requirements of
CSRC to perform its corporate responsibilities and protect the interests of its
Shareholders and creditors. The Company strictly complied with the “Labor

Laws”

and the "Articles of Association” and protected the legal interests

of its staff in accordance with the laws. The Company has established a
healthy and effective safety control system and provided a strong guarantee
for realizing safe operation. In the meantime, the Company, together with
the party, organized various caring activities to listen to the thoughts of
staff and do practical things for staff.

1.

Safe production

In 2022, the Company followed the Xi Jinping Thought on
Socialism with Chinese Characteristics for a New Era as guidance,
solidified the red line awareness that development must not come
at the expense of security, and adhered to safety first, prevention-
oriented combined with comprehensive management approach.
With the goal of preventing all kinds of safety accidents, the main
direction is to formulate dual prevention mechanism and guarantee
the relief, rectification and promotion, and to focus on the safe
production supervision and inspection as well as the comprehensive
assessment and inspection, so as to deepen the implementation of
the responsibility as a safe production entity, continue to perform
well on the training of safety education and improve the emergency
management mechanism. It has provided a strong guarantee for the
Company to realize safe operation.

2023 is the year to strive for China’s “14th Five-Year Plan”. The
Company will highly value the safety and environmental protection,
and continue to strengthen the implementation of safety production
responsibilities. A full-scale investigation and elimination of hidden
dangers for all staff will be carried out by the system from the
bottom to the top and top to the bottom, and the Company will
carry out a comprehensive investigation and elimination of hidden
dangers, and focus on controlling recurring hidden dangers. Starting
with risk identification, risks shall be identified throughout the
process with level-specific control while risk control measures shall
be formulated and taught to be implemented, so as to achieve
prevention first. Emergency management shall be strengthened
with realistic budget and filing, education, drill, summarization and
modification will be carried out in accordance with government'’s
requirements; at the same time, emergency equipment and
facilities will be replaced, repaired and maintained regularly. As
new employees join the Company, the prevention and control
of occupational diseases on the Company’s system and the site
management shall be strengthened.
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Social responsibility work (continued)

2.

Employees’ interests

In accordance with the laws, regulations and rules, the Company
participates in social insurances such as pension, medical,
unemployment, work injuries and maternity insurances and housing
provident fund plan. The Company pays the social insurance
fees on time, fulfils the fees payments obligations on behalf of
the employees, discloses the payment of social insurance fees
every month and accepts the supervision of the employees. In the
implementation of corporate transformation and upgrading, reform
and democratic management of, the labour union of the Company
will firmly implement various regulations on plants affairs disclosure,
strengthen the participation at all levels, adhere to and improve the
system of employee representative assembly, and play a good role in
the democratic management of employees and the participation in
policy-making.

The Company conscientiously performs the functions of labour
protection supervision and inspection, effectively safeguards the
employees' lives, health and rights, and continues to deepen mass
safe production and occupational health activities. In conjunction
with the Company's “Safety into communities, into Rural Areas,
into the Public Places, into the Nature and into the Internet” &
"Safe Month"” safety promotion activities, the Company carefully
planned the activity proposal and launched the “Safety and Health
Cup” competition in 2022. The Company launched a “lecture for all
staff” on safety production, and all employees studied in depth and
thoroughly the important remarks of General Secretary Xi Jinping on
safe production. The Company also launched activities such as the
national “Safety and Health” online knowledge quiz competition,
Tianhai Industry’s “In Company with Safety to Welcome the
20th National Congress” online safety knowledge competition,
the exercise of hidden danger investigation, and the selection
of the safety production model team. Through the activities, the
Company urged the enterprises to fulfill their main responsibility
of safe production, further increase the participation of front-
line employees, enhance the safety skills and accident and hidden
danger detection ability of employees and continuously improve the
occupational health of employees so as to continuously improve the
safe production management of the Company.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

-

TE

N
.

BEEIT/EBR @)
%IE@EE

7@&&@ ERARENRE - 2
m&% B . KECTIE EBZEH
SREBURTEEATES @ R BN
HERRE  KEBTRIIRENE
% gRARGEAIHERRENER
WESBIMNEES - AalefE N aE
AR HEABRNMRIEENEER
o REEREITRS AR EASIE
BE - B{IRELRE  BEMTEET
REASHE BREFEIRFTEEM
LEGEREER

REBITHBREEEBRERLE B
MEER T A EEER ﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
ii%ﬂ%%ﬁ%é@@%*k ®a
Tﬁ%*%ﬁijwﬁ%ﬂLéQ i
/L\%%\J/ﬁbﬁ C BR 20225 [ L B
BHEEZY  RAMETERREEINGE
| 2RETFRABTERELFAE
RERZEEESZRnil AREZEE
FERIBLASHELSE KT
[E=+K%Z %ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%t 2 M
BHE BEHOERESR e E4E
F’f EIASEESE - Liﬁ/ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ’?‘%
BROEBITLEEETREMT  E—
*ﬁm—@glﬂﬁﬁ hﬂglﬁ%

BREEMEMEBHERD - BTHER
BRRBENRE - ARREEETEK
FHEERT -



lﬁmﬁr&. g

LIS
L
. ' E
[ T

Social responsibility work (continued)

3.

Enriching employee’s spare time

Since the beginning of 2022, the Company has continued to
conduct the construction of employee culture and actively organized
and carried out cultural and sports activities that employees would
be pleased to participate in, so as to further meet the spiritual and
cultural needs of employees. During the Chinese New Year and the
Winter Olympics, the Company organized activities like the “Snowy
Winter Olympics and Happy Chinese New Year” online Winter
Olympics knowledge quiz, “Cloud Blessing Chinese New Year” mini-
video and photograph collection to create a unified, harmonious,
friendly and peaceful atmosphere in the year of the Tiger with
wishes in the year of the Tiger, prospect on the Company’s blueprint
and blessings for the Beijing Winter Olympics. On the Women's Day
on 8 March, the Company organized a collection activity on works
with femininity and employees participated enthusiastically. The
outstanding short videos, texts and photographs collected during
the activity were displayed on our Wechat official account. The
Company carried out a series of colorful celebrations, such as fun
activities, bags DIY and Winter Olympics talent shows, which fully
demonstrated the healthy, beautiful and enterprising characteristics
of the females in the Company, and reflected the concern and
attention of trade unions at all levels of the Company to the female
employees. On the eve of Tanabata, the Company organized single
employees in the Company’s system to participate the “Tanabata
Waiting for You” single workers’ social gathering in Kuo town
to build a social platform for single employees to get to know
each other. On the eve of the 20th Party Congress, the Company
launched a series of “Convening of the 20th Party Congress to
Build a New Era” cultural activities and collected works of staffs
singing and flash mobbing, calligraphy, painting, photography
and short video, and the outstanding works were displayed on
our WeChat public account to demonstrate the main trend of the
new era. The Company’s employees teamed up and participated
in the “Convening of the 20th Party Congress to Build a New Era”
badminton tournament and won the fourth place. The Company set
up a basketball team and a soccer team for trainings. On weekdays,
various interest clubs of the labor union carried out small and
diversified sports and cultural activities such as table tennis, billiards,
badminton and walking.
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Social responsibility work (continued)

4,

Public welfare and caring

The Company continues to do a great job in activities such as holiday
gifting, help for difficulties, home visits, care for model workers,
and convenience services. This year, the Company increased the
investment in the inclusive services project, and launched gifting
activities for all members on traditional festivals such as New Year's
Day, Spring Festival, Dragon Boat Festival, National Day and Mid-
Autumn Festival. At the same time, in response to the call to carry
out consumption assistance to help consolidate and expand the
results of poverty alleviation, the Company's labor union has did
its best to increase consumption assistance in the spirit of serving
employees, and all gifts are agricultural products for poverty
alleviation from Beijing ShuangChuang Center, with an investment
of RMB0.572 million.

The Company actively supports employees who are in difficulties.
We applied the Jingcheng Machinery Electric Warmth Fund for the
in-service and retired employees who are in difficulty. 2 employees
of the Company's system of whom their spouses were seriously ill
and faced difficulties in their living. The Company understood the
actual difficulties of the employees and gave subsidies in accordance
with the relevant subsidy regulations. The Company actively
communicated with the superior labor union about the difficult
situation of their family, and applied for RMB13,967 from the
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Warmth Fund for major illness relief.
At the same time, the labor union members called for all staff to
actively donate through the Shuidichu fundraising platform to help
their colleagues overcome the difficulties. During the summer dog
days, we continued to carry out the cool summer activity to send
cool gifts to the front-line employees. The Company’s labor union
sent cool drinks to the front-line employees as much as possible in
high temperature, and equipped mobile thermal boxes for the after-
sales service staffs who work outdoors for long period of time. The
Company organized the “Golden Autumn learning assistance” event
to assist for high school and college entrance examinations and issued
“warm-hearted exam packs” to 26 employees and applied for grants
of RMB13,000 for 1 employee with difficulties and 7 employees
whose children started to study in University. We also distributed
stationaries such as school bag and pencil case to 17 employees who
have children admitted to primary school from kindergarten. The
Company expressed its regards of maternity care and distributed
RMB12,000 birth allowances to 11 employees (12 times). We
organized convenient service activities such as blood pressure
measurement, blood glucose measurement, key distribution, sewing,
and mobile phone screen protection install during National Day.
The Company purchased annual tickets of theme parks for the
employees. In order to better meet the diverse needs of employees
for birthday gifts, a wide range of birthday gifts with the Company's
logo have been carefully customized with RMB161,400 funds to
further enhance employees’ sense of belonging and promote the
construction of corporate culture.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Il. Social responsibility work (continued)

4.
U

Public welfare and caring (Continued)
Whether the social responsibility report,
sustainability report or ESG report is disclosed

separately
\ Applicable CINot Applicable

For details of the social responsibility work, please refer to the
Company's “2022 Enterprise Social Responsibility Report” disclosed
on the website of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn)
on the same day.

The ESG Report will be disclosed on the website of the HKEXNews
website of the Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk) before 30 April.
Please pay attention to the announcement of the Company in due
course.
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Il. Social responsibility work (continued)
4. Public welfare and caring (Continued)

(I) Specific situation of social responsibility work
[ Applicable v Not Applicable

Specific description
[1 Applicable v Not Applicable

[ll. Details on Performance of Consolidation
of Anti-Poverty Achievements and Rural
Rejuvenation
\ Applicable [0 Not Applicable

Poverty alleviation and
rural revitalization project Number/content

KRERBAREEE YE WA
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REETFREIER
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Description

R

Total investment (RMB'0,000) 93.67
BEANARBET)
Including: funds (RMB'0,000) 93.67
Hep: B8 (AREBET)
Material supplies (equivalent in cash) (RMB’0,000)
WERHAREET)
Number of Beneficiaries (people)

ERAE(A)

Alleviation form (e.g. poverty alleviation by industry, purchase of poverty alleviation products

employment, education etc.)
BRI (WEEKE - iEHE - RERRER
HERES)

Specific description
\ Applicable [J Not Applicable

Canteen: RMB358,783.89 is for poverty allevation products.

Labor unions: The total purchase amount of purchasing poverty allevation
products is RMB577,900.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company’s business scope: General freight; development, design, sales,
installation, debugging and repair of cryogenic storage transport vessel,
compressor (piston compressor, membrane compressor and nuclear membrane
compressor) and accessories, machinery equipment and electrical equipment;
technical consulting; technical service; economic trade consulting; goods import
and export; technical import and export; and agency for import and export.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the year and a discussion on
the Company’s future business development are provided in the section headed
“Business Summary of the Company” of this annual report. Description of
possible risks and uncertainties that the Company may be facing can be found
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”. An analysis of
the Company’s performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the section headed “Company Profile and Key Financial
Indicators” of this annual report. Please refer to Part 12 and Part 21 of Section
7 for discussions on the Company’s environmental policies and performance,
key relationships with its employees, customers, suppliers. The Company’s
compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on
the Company is contained in the section headed “Corporate Governance” of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors in office during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors HITES
Wang Jun =

Li Junjie FENR
Zhang Jiheng SRHEE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Wu Yanzhang R

Xia Zhonghua B

Li Chunzhi FEK
Man Huiyong mE R
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Xiong Jianhui RREIE
Zhao Xuguang i)

Liu Jingtai Elle s
Luan Dalong BKEE
Supervisors E=

Tian Donggiang SEL:

Li Zhe i

Wen Jinhua X&E

The Board of the Company held a total of 11 meetings during the Reporting
Period. Please refer to V. Relevant information of the Board of Directors held
during the Reporting Period” under “Corporate Governance” in Section V of this
report for details of the meetings and resolutions.
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Date of appointment

BEENBS

26 June 2017
201796 A26H
26 June 2017
2017%F6H26H
26 June 2017
201756 H26H

9 September 2019
2019F9 H9H

26 June 2017
201756 H26H
26 June 2017
201756 H26H
24 February 2022
202242 H24H

9 June 2020
20206 H9H
9 June 2020
20206 H9H
9 June 2020
2020F6 H9H
9 June 2020
20206 H9H

28 October 2020
20209 10H28H
26 June 2017
2017%F6H26H
9 June 2020
20206 A9H
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Discussion and analysis of the Board
concerning the principal operation during the
Reporting Period

For details, please refer to Section 3.

Discussion and analysis of the Board
concerning the future development of the

Company
1. Competition and development trend within the
industry

For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

2. Development strategies of the Company
For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

3. Operating plans

For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

4. Fund requirement for maintaining existing
business and establishing a project company in

progress
The outstanding project payment can be basically settled with
privately-owned funds.

5. Potential risks
For details, please refer to Part VI of Section 3.

Explanation of the Board on “Non-Standard

Auditors’ Report” issued by the auditors
Not Applicable

Profit distribution proposal or plan to convert

surplus reserves into share capital
For details, please refer to Part X of Section 5.

| Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Financial information

1.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets for the year are set out in the notes to
the financial statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting
Standards.

Construction in Progress

Particulars and movements in construction-in-progress for the
year are set out in the notes to the financial statements prepared
according to the PRC Accounting Standards.

Investments in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in the notes to the financial
statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting Standards.

Interest in Associated Company

Particulars of the associated companies are set out in the notes to
the financial statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting
Standards.

Other Assets
Particulars of other assets are set out in the notes to the financial
statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting Standards.

Reserves

Movements in reserves for the year are set out in the notes to the
financial statements prepared according to the PRC Accounting
Standards.

Bank Loan

Details of bank loans as at 31 December 2022 are set out in the
notes to the financial statements prepared according to the PRC
Accounting Standards.

Tax Relief
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holdings in the Shares.

The Company’s pension scheme

In accordance with the relevant regulations of the “State Council’s
Decisions Regarding Reform of Employee Retirement Insurance Scheme”,
the Company is required to pay the PRC government an amount equivalent
to 16% of the total amount of salary as the basic contribution to the
Employee Retirement Insurance Scheme. The assets under the pension
scheme are held and managed by relevant government authorities and
are independent of the Company's assets. The Company cannot use the
contributions. Apart from the said contribution, the Company has no other
commitments or liabilities related to pensions.

Beijing Tianhai has established enterprise annuities for its employees for the
period from January 2011 to August 2014. The company bore the cleaning
fees and housing allowances for employees who retired before December
2010 at the rates of RMB50 and RMB70 to RMB90 per month respectively.
There is no corporate burden for employees retiring thereafter.
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VIl. Connected transactions

VIII.

XI.

XIl.

(1) Particulars of the connected transactions during the year are set out
in the notes to the financial statements prepared according to the
PRC Accounting Standards.

(2)  Each independent non-executive Director confirmed that all
connected transactions were entered on the normal commercial
terms in the ordinary and usual course of business of the relevant
members of the Company. All the terms were either normal business
terms or not less favorable than the preferential treatments offered
to the third parties, and were fair and reasonable as far as the
Company'’s Shareholders were concerned.

Staff quarters

The Company did not sell any public housing flats to staff in 2022. In
accordance with State policies, the Company contributed to the public
housing fund on the basis for 12% of the average monthly salary of the
existing employees for the previous year, which did not pose any significant
impact on the Company’s business performance. In accordance with the
spirit of the “(2000) Jing Fang Gai Ban, Zi Document No. 080", Notice in
relation to issues of the Increase in Beijing’s Public Housing Rentals and
Allowances, issued by the Housing Reform Office of Beijing Municipal
Government, the Beijing Financial Bureau, the Beijing State Land Resources
Bureau and the Housing Administration Bureau, and the Commodity
Price Bureau of Beijing, as well as integrating with the Company’s actual
situation, the Company provided a housing allowance of RMB70 to RMB90
per month to its staff since 1 April 2000.

Beijing Tianhai issued subsidies for housing rent to non-local employees of
RMB130 to RMB300 per month. The student’s apartment was canceled
and the subsidy of RMB1,000 per month was issued in May 2015.

Employees’ basic medical insurance

Since October 2001, the Company has been implementing the “Provision
regarding Basic Medical Insurance in Beijing”, and implementing
employees’ basic medical insurance system in accordance with the
provisions. The Company is required to pay the basic medical insurance
calculated as 8.8% of employees’ total wages, and the large medical
expenses mutual fund calculated as 1% of employees’ total wages. The
provision of supplementary medical insurance shall be prepared at cost
of the corporation on the basis for 4% of employees’ total wages for
medical expenses in accordance with supplementary qualifications on
reimbursement of medical insurance set out in “Provision regarding Basic
Medical Insurance in Beijing”.

Annual general meeting
The Board of Directors proposed that the annual general meeting for 2022
to be held on Friday, 16 June 2023, for details of which please refer to the
Notice of 2022 Annual General Meeting.

Report on performance of social responsibility

and environmental policy
For details, please refer to Section 6.

Important relationships with employees,

customers and suppliers

The Company focuses on good employee relations and looks for a long
term strategic cooperation with customers and suppliers and aims to
achieve good quality. The Company puts emphasis on quality and supply
of goods management. It has strengthened the construction of mechanism
and tightened the control over product quality and goods supply cycle.
Through holding seminars with suppliers, site assessment, training and
annual evaluation, the Company has innovated the demand and supply
model and continuously improved product quality to ensure that the
products meet the demand of the Company and market.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Xlll. Legal compliance with laws and regulations = B EE RS
During the Reporting Period, the Company operated strictly in compliance EREBRANRRBRIEERBER  EZB (R
with laws, requlations, “Articles of Association” and other relevant BR)RE ’rﬁl %iﬁiﬁﬂ’]gisﬁﬁ%lﬁlﬂf
regulatory requirements with lawful decision-making procedures and IREIRTEE - BIERE -
disciplined operation.
XIV. Management contracts T EEEH
During the Reporting Period, no contract concerning the management and WEBA - RNRB)EET 7 S AFEE R HE AR
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the AR R ERE D EFNEE RITHRE
Company were entered into or existed. &4

—+
=3

R BIERL

XV. Permitted indemnity provision

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ AARIEHHEEFERSNEREAB R ERAHEA
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and EEBEE EAEFAD - REERITHAER
senior management arising out of corporate activities. ZBEERE 2R

XVI.Equity-linked agreement T AN R
Save as disclosed above/in this annual report, no equity-linked agreement BB ARFRARBEIN - SRR
was entered into during the year or is still effective at the end of the year. HERFE R LR FRIIAER ©

XVII. Distributable reserves Tt ARSI
As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company which A :?:_iﬂ' A=+—H &2 Tﬁ—mﬁ
could be distributed to the Shareholders of the Company amounted to DIRFEHEHAREOT IS IRTFARR
RMBO. °
No dividend was declared and distributed to the shareholders of the HZE2022612 A31 B ILFEWERADTRE
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 (Nil for the year ended 31 Bk K AT AR B (BiZE 2021512 A31H 1E
December 2021). FE Mmoo

XVIll.Donations T B3
During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations for charitable WMEBMA - AEEELHNEERAMBR 2
purposes and other purposes amounting to RMBO. EARARKOT °

XIX. Directors’ rights to acquire shares or th EBEERONERER ZER
debentures
At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company, its parent RREBRA - ANAF] - AE QA S EERE
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any AR RRMBRREI AR T - %
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of =] 5 R AR A R S (b AR 9 Sk (B R
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any body MEF F 2 ©
corporate.

-

EEREARS  ZHHEDN

XX.Directors’ interests in transactions, =t

arrangements or contracts of significance HAE R

The Company has not entered into any transactions, arrangements or RARRENTAKERIVEARAESEE
contracts of significance in which any of its directors had a material interest, BELEERAEARGNEERS &
whether directly or indirectly, at any time during the year. 49 o

Save for contracts amongst companies under the Group, no other BRASEQRMEI LA RERIFA
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Eﬁﬁfﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ$@ﬁjiﬁ¥ﬁﬁ NEESE
Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company was NAEIKERR BETV BARRESHES
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, Fﬁ&ﬁ/‘ﬁqﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁémﬂﬁﬁﬂiﬁ” N3
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any B &4 o

time of the year.

XXI. Environmental policies and performance - RRBER R RIA

For details, please refer to Section 6 FERENE
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings — AGBEETER
() Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period WAHESE
\ Applicable 1 Not applicable VA O @A
If not If not
performed performed
Whether in a timely in a timely
Whether  strictly  manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for in atimely the specific plans in
Background undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAKREET DARRN

RERE  RE RARE ERBARH  EOERE
HHRER Hrgl B#EA HERE R EETER  BRET BINARRR T-SHE
Undertaking Settlement Beijing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: As for the connected transactions for us and  Longterm — Yes Yes
relatingtothe  of connected  Jingcheng the companies under our control with the Listed Company and the companies
material asset  transactions Machinery under its control that cannot be avoided or have reasonable grounds, these
reorganisation Electric Holding  connected transactions will be conducted in the principles of openness,
(o, ltd,, a fairness and justice for market transactions at fair and reasonable prices by us
substantial and the companies under our control, and the decision-making procedures
shareholder ~ for and information disclosure obligations in respect of connected transactions
will be performed in accordance the requirements of laws, regulations and
regulatory documents. We warrant that we and the companies under our
control will not obtain any improper benefits or subject the Listed Company or
any of the companies under its control to any improper obligations by way of
any connected transactions with the Listed Company or any of the companies
under its control. We will indemnify the Listed Company and any of the
companies under its control against any losses incurred by them as a result of
any transaction with them in violation of the undertakings above.
SENARER BAEERS  AREERRM ROBRAG : BARARARASHNEMARE HARRESNG <8 £ 7

EELEE KEARARR R ARREZELAAARRAMEENERRGER FOARAAT
fERa) BHHARCERERTARANAR AT AEARE BRAL A
EfmARRETRS  TREERER ERRRENNOATRNE
BRARRER - REROEINESS  ALAREALARALTE
WEMLERTERE IHAARARHNCRNBRRSRELATLE
WHERE L TR AREENNCFAREATERNET - MER LA
RELALARARHACRENRS MR LRAARARHNAREN

B% MALRAERERL -
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Solving Beijing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: In relation to the businesses or business Longterm — VYes Yes
the issues Jingcheng opportunities similar to those of the Listed Company including that we
concerning Machinery and other companies under our control anticipate or substantially in place

competition Electric Holding  to conduct, and assets and businesses of such businesses or business
in the same (o, ltd, a opportunities that may constitute potential competition. The Company will not
industry Substantial conduct and will make efforts to cause the other companies under the control
shareholder of the Company not to conduct businesses which are the same as or similar to
those of the Listed Company in order to avoid direct or indirect competition
with the operation of business of the Listed Company. In addition, if unfair
impact may be made to the Listed Company in the areas of market share,
business opportunities and resource allocation of the Company and the other
companies under the control of the Company, the Company will voluntarily
give up and will make efforts to cause the other companies under the control
of the Company to give up business competition with the Listed Company.
The company undertakes that starting from the date of issue of this Letter of
Undertaking, it will compensate the Listed Company for any losses suffered
or expenses incurred by the Listed Company as a result of the violation of any
provisions of this undertaking by the Company. This Letter of Undertaking
continues to be effective during the period in which the Listed Company
legally and validly subsists and the Company is the Controlling Shareholder (or
beneficial contraller) of the Listed Company.
BRAZRE  ARRIRRN RAEREE  HEHRRANRER BN RO ERRRUESEEL 5
KEARERE BRLTAAREXHUBEFES BUSRHABEREHMVANAEN
AT B TTANMERNEERERENEN  RRARTELENRR
ARTEHOEMAEMEEE FRATRRIBINEE KR LT
LENEBELBRAZIRENRS - Wl ARTARRTEHHAR
PRETSNE  AXHeRERRES MY LHAARRTATH
YER  ANTERRELS IREALARHNELCRHEE FTAF
MEBRE - ARG BARGREARE BELFAIAAARE
REAGERGITERIEENEMBAAFR - RERAELTRA
SEANERARLARIEA LHRANARER (ERAHA) BHHER

m
Alm
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I.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters
EEEIE

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7 WIBAUE QRS EEEER
FERSHARFEIBERA

the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Beijing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: After the completion of this Material Asset Longterm — Yes Yes
Jingcheng Reorganisation, it will warrant the independence of the personnel, assets,
Machinery finances, organizations, businesses of the Listed Company. Jingcheng
Electric Holding  Holding makes concrete undertaking in the areas of personnel independence,
(o, ltd, a asset independence, financial independence, organizational independence,
substantial business independence. That undertaking continues to be valid, cannot be
shareholder altered and is irrevocable during the period in which Jingcheng Holding is
the Controlling Shareholder (or beneficial controller) of the Listed Company.
If Jingcheng Holding is in violation of the above undertaking and causes
economnic losses to the Listed Company, Jingcheng Holding will compensate
the Listed Company.
Efy RERIERRS  RuERAG : AREXEEEATAE  BRELTAIEAR EE- RE 2 R
KEARERE ¥% #E $HSAEMELL - AERANMAREL AEEL
L7 HHEY  BEEY  $RBUSHEIEL ARG  AARERIE

TR LHRANARRR GEREHA) DEARERRATIRR A
HoMERLIAE  YRWRLAAAEREERE - REARRRE LA
ARREFHE

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) 2RIEBREHFA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Beijing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: 1. Within 30 days from the receipt of anoticeon  Longterm — Yes Yes As of the date of
Jingcheng this matter of Material Asset Reorganisation of Beiren Holdings by the creditors disclosure, Jingcheng
Machinery of Beiren Holdings, within 45 days from the date of the first announcement on Holding has urged
Electric Holding  this matter of Material Asset Reorganisation of Beiren Holdings in case of no Beiren Group to repay
Co, ltd, a receipt of the notice, if they demand Beiren Holdings to make early repayment the ligbilties and has
substantial of liabilities or provide security, and Beiren Holdings has not repaid the undertaken that if
shareholder liabilities or provided the security, the Company undertakes that it will bear the Beiren Group cannot
responsibilities of making early repayment of liabilities or providing security; 2. repay fiabiltes in time,
If Beiren Holdings cannot reach the creditors, and for those creditors who have Jingcheng Holding
not expressed clear opinion after the receipt of the notice or the expiry of the will be responsible for
notice period, if they have expressed clearly disagreement opinion before the the repayment and
completion of this Material Asset Reorganisation, and Beiren Holdings has not provide guarantee.
repaid the liabilities nor provided security upon their demand, the Company The Company has not
undertakes that it will bear the responsibilities of making early repayment of suffered from any loss
liahlities or providing security; 3. For those creditors that Beiren Holdings really arising from claims.
cannot reach, and those creditors who have not yet expressed clear opinion Jingcheng Holding
after the receipt of the notice or the expiry of the notice period, if after the has not performed
completion of this Material Asset Reorganisation, the recipient of the Outgoing any act in violation of
Assets cannot repay its liabilities, the Company s in charge of the repayment. the undertaking.

After the Company has been liable for quarantee responsibility and repayment
responsibility, it has the right to seek repayment from the recipient of the

QOutgoing Assets.
£ ABBURRA RABER 1 LARBOREAGEILARGANARE EREE B8 2 & BEREEA R
TERERE EENBNEIRRSIEA ARNENENGLAROREIREAE AEREELA
£07  EEEEEERDEZRENIHAR ZZD%{HU\H;« hﬁ* B S
AR ARG SRIBLERARY  10TRNAATNE o
EREIERIRAAROAR 2 “TﬁAitAHx“ﬂ/iH%%@JEﬁs%A i SRUEEERD
RENRASD IR IREERRE ANEA AR REARE .07
EETHANRRERTREER ML ARDRELERERERLRY BHRERREES
ARY FLTRRRAEISRBRIAEIRAARNRA 3 B0 g% - Al
S ABBERE EBESREA - B A B SRS AhRLBEEY
RERMMEA MEREXARESRAL  BUARMREIAELS EETE

[EREH BARRRERE ALAREEREASEEAMR A
HENEEMARTREARE -
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters

— REBEBITER®

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Beijing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: If, in the future, the production workshops of Longterm — Yes Yes
Jingcheng Tianhai Industry in Mulin Town is needed to be relocated due to real estate
Machinery problems in defects of the lease, the Company wil fully compensate in cash
Electric Holding  the Listed Company after the completion of this transaction for all the losses
Co, ltd, a of Tianhai Industry caused by the relocating process.
Substantial
shareholder
it AREERRE R ERRKEIEANELEERREERREENNENE RS £ &
SHRERE URE ARRDARARRSRAEN LTANRERSRERBIXER
fA7 BRRTEINI PR
Others Bejing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existence Longterm ~ Yes Yes
Jingcheng of the above problems of the Qutgoing Assets, and undertakes that when
Machinery this reorganisation s implemented and the relevant shareholders of some of
Electric Holding ~ the above subsidiaries of Beiren Holdings exercise the pre-emptive right, then
(o, ltd, a the Company wil agree to accept the equivalent cash assets converted from
substantial the long term equity investment in the above Outgoing Assets, and will not
shareholder ~ demand to terminate or alter the Material Asset Reorganisation Agreement
previously signed by all parties due to the changes in the form of the Outgoing
Assets, or demand Beiren Holdings to compensate for any losses or bear any
legal liabilties.
il RERERRA MOERAR  ARTERARABLERENERN LERE AR RE & R
BERRARE TREATHEN ARG LRFI TEADEBRRIRELRER UK
fERR DERERR LRELEEPORERERARE RS EENALER
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Bejing Jingcheng Holding undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existing Longterm — Yes Yes As of the date of
Jingcheng defects of the Outgoing Assets, and the Company will bear any losses or legal disclosure, Jingcheng
Machinery liahilties caused by the defects of the Outgoing Assets, and wil not demand Holding has urged
Fectic Holding Berren Holdings to bear any losses or legal fibiltes due to the defects of the Beren Group o repay
Colid. 3 Qutgoing Assets, and will not urll\atera\ly refuse to sign o request cessation, the liabilities and hqs
- termination or change of the "Framework Agreement in relation to the undertaken that if
substantil Material Asset Reorganisation of Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited Beiren Group cannot
shareholder ith Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Elecric Holding Co, Ltd.", the “Materia repay liabites in time,
Asset Reorganisation Agreement of Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited Jingcheng Holding
with Bejing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. and Beiren Group wil be responsible for
Corporation” and relevant agreements due to the defects of the Outgoing the repayment and
Assets. If the consent for liabilites transfer of the creditors in respect of the provide guarantee.
relevant liabilities involved in the Outgoing Assets (including the liabilities The Company has not
newly arose from the benchmark date to the delivery date) was not obtained, suffered from any loss
Beiren Group Corporation shall bear all relevant obligations, responsibilites arising from claims.
and expenses if such creditors declare rights to Beiren Holdings; Beiren Group Jingcheng Holding
Corporation shall make full compensation to Beiren Holdings f Beiren Holdings has not performed
bear any labilities or incurred any losses due to such liabilites recourse. The any act in violation of
Company undertakes: the Company will be jointly liable for the compensation the undertaking.
obligations of Beiren Group Corporation. N
Afy RERERRA MERAR  ARDRABERELEEENERNGR ALNAE RE £ R %ﬁ%@ﬁ?@ﬁ R
BEZRERE REELERBETELMIARALIRAN TeREELEEEND AEBEERIA
F0R REARGAAFAERUHEEE I ARRELAERREFTEE e
$BIERRL R BEUATUBHRGERO TR SRR AES : ‘gﬁ%ﬁ;
BARREDTBREARZERNERE) - CLADRIRRBARD RBaREER
AR R RERRERECANRI AR ERA EXARERTE) R }EM@%ZMET
BBl - DRRE AR RRRAR (AR R AR A BHRERRER
EENEE) AREREAUEREBORE  ASERARIARNER fEZES 74
B B ASEARRERLRRN-EK  AERER  MRIA ERALZRE
RARZESEREEAL T ENALAER T EMERY A ASHAT HGETTR
M ARGEL 2 BRE « ARFARE  RARBHEARBRANTER
[ERfEAEERRE:
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background undertaking  party Content of undertaking

ARER AREE e T

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
EHR BEAER  BRET BEONRERE TSl

Others Beijing Beiren Group undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existing defects
Jingcheng of the Outgoing Assets, and the Company will bear any losses or legal
Machinery liahilties caused by the defects of the Outgoing Assets, and wil not demand

Beiren Holdings to hear any losses o legal liabilties due to the defects of
the Outgoing Assets. If the consent for liabilities transfer of the creditors in
respect of the relevant liabllities involved in the Outgoing Assets (including
the liabilities newly arose from the benchmark date to the delivery date) was
shareholder not obtained, Company shall bear all relevant obligations, responsibilities and
expenses if such creditors declare rights to Beiren Holdings; the Company
shall make full compensation to Beiren Holdings if Beiren Holdings bear any
liabilities or incurred any losses due to such liabilities recourse.

Electric Holding
(o, ltd, a
substantial

fo ARRERRE SbAREAG: RRARDABRELARANERNRE  A0ARAR
BELRERE RHELAZREMELOINRRLEAEM TERRENARREE
fERA KEARDEEEMBELEREE - PRRELAEDASROERE
[E(RAEEERIZAARNELNAR) - ADGREASRRELIR
B ASERARLARDIREND  hALTEEELARN 5
B BERER DRLARDEASERERARTENELAERTH

XS - MARTRLARDELEERE

Others Bejing Beiren Group undertakes: The Company is fully aware of the existence of
Jingcheng the above problems of the Outgoing Assets, and undertakes that when this
Machinery reorganisation is implemented and the relevant shareholders of some of the

Electric Holding  above subsidiaries of Beiren Holdings exercise the pre-emptive right, then

(o, ltd, a the Company will agree to accept the equivalent cash assets converted from

substantial the long term equity investment in the above Outgoing Assets, and will not

shareholder ~ demand to terminate or alter the Material Asset Reorganisation Agreement
previously signed by all parties due to the changes in the form of the Outgoing
Assets, or demand Beiren Holdings to compensate for any losses or bear any
legal liabilties.

ify ARRERRE SEAREAG : ARTERANBELEEENREN LHAE  TREE

BERRARE AREETERIARG RS TEADEBRRIFELEEE UK

AL AARERR CRELEEPORERERAZE RS RENREEE
PERELBEN AN BRI E R NERENEALEEA
GEsERARDBEEMBRIAELRAL -

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

longterm  Yes Yes As of the date of
disclosure, Jingcheng
Holding has urged
Beiren Group to
repay the liabilities
and has undertaken
that if Beiren Group
cannot repay
liabilities in time,
Jingcheng Holding
will be responsible for
the repayment and
provide guarantee.
The Company has
not suffered from
any loss arising from
claims. Jingcheng
Holding has not
performed any act
in violation of the
undertaking.
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HERDERIEA
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) AREREZEHA - BRR - B
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not

performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe

Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in

Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAEREET DRERE
AERE  RE RERR ERBAZR  EOENE

R Hrgl i) HHERE RER BETER  BRET ROWARRR T-Sid

Other Lock-up Counterparties  Undertaking in relation to share lock-up From the date  Yes Yes

commitments of The Counterparties of Reorganisation (Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Wang Xiaohui, ~of acquisition

Reorganisation  Qian Yuyan) undertake: of sharesin the

(LiHong, Zhao 1. I shall not transfer shares of the Listed Company acquired under the listed company
Qing, Wang ~ Transactions within 12 months from the Issuance Completion Date for the  untl the expiry
Xiaohui, Qian Reorganisation. After the expiration of the aforementioned lock-up period, for ~ of the lock-up
Yuyan) the shares of the Listed Company acquired under the Asset Acquisition by way  period

of Share Issuance and Cash Payment, it shall be unlocked in phases according

to the following arrangement:

1st phase: After 12 months from the Issuance Completion Date of the

Reorganisation and upon performance of my corresponding compensation

obligations (if any) for the year of 2021 under the Performance Compensation

Agreement and its supplemental agreement (collectively the "Performance

Compensation Agreements”), the remaining portion of 40% of the newly

acquired shares received less the number of shares (if any) compensated for

the year shall be unlocked;

2nd phase: If | have fully performed the compensation obligations (if any)

for the year of 2022 under the Performance Compensation Agreements,

the remaining portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the

number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

3rd phase: If | have fully performed the compensation obligations (if any) for

the year of 2023 under the Performance Compensation Agreements, the

remaining portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the

number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

it RioRE KRERRS  BRROERRE ERELAL R 7
N FREERBHS(RN BE IRE AREGE: Az AiE

BE IRE. 1 AARARRSBGHOLHAARG  AAREERGRHALEAR EHEHER
&8 ARER MEEEERR TREARDRNREREAERTAG
B EHARRG - SR TR R
-4 BRREAR TR AR 2EA RN (RERERE) kiR
e (R RI(REREGS) )R 0N FRHENRERS (08) LR
T2 EARRRGARERNTH0%ERHEFCRERDZE (I
BIRORSED TR ETE
B AAEGRERRGZETHANFRERORREE (WA)CR
TS AARRBEIRERDPO0%IERHEFORERNYE
() RHRBBITRRRE
2B AAEGERRGZETHABFREEORREE (WA)CR
TS AARRBEIRERDPO0%IERHEFORERNYE
() RHRBBITRREE
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background undertaking  party
HHER AR RER

Content of undertaking

EHAE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE

dth phase: If | have fully performed the compensation obligations (if any)
corresponding to the entire performance commitment period under the
Performance Compensation Agreements (i.e. the five financial years of 2020,
2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024), the remaining shares in the newly acquired
shares received that have not been unlocked shall be unlocked.

I warrant that | will not create any pledge or other encumbrance of rights in
respect of the Consideration Shares acquired by me through this Transaction
after the expiry of the 12-month lock-up period and until such shares are
unlocked in accordance with the aforementioned lock-up period agreement.

2. During the above-mentioned share lock-up periods, the additional shares
acquired due to the issue of bonus shares and conversion of capital reserve
into share capital of the Listed Company shall also be subject to the regulation
of the above-mentioned lock-up periods. In case the lock-up periods as
required by regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities
requlatory authority are longer than the above-mentioned lock-up periods
or there are other requirements, corresponding adjustments should be made
according to such regulatory opinions or relevant provisions.

3. I undertake that the shares of the Listed Company acquired in the
Transactions shall srictly conform to the restriction of the lock-up periods and
be issued in priority to satisfy the performance compensation obligations. |
undertake not to avoid the compensation obligations by any means including
share pledges.

F0E: FNE(ERERE)E T 2DREAAS EN00% 20015
W05 - NBFNNWELREHFR - TR FEEOHERS (18)E2
2HETEN  AARRDEOMERD T A REEOFBRO TR
Fo

AARE - HREABARRR AFRGENEHERD - EREAHEEER
REXZROE LA BRBOTREN - AATERTENE A ME
fgE-

2 BaRhEESEA - IR IHARERAIR  AARECEERAER
gkt LARRG - ET LAHFEROOE - ERFEEHINE
ERREERE BN ET RN LR R RN 2R - BRI
BEEEIRNEEE ANREAENIEERR -

3 RAERARRAPIEN LA ARARERETRESRA  YBE
RRBTEERESH - AARRTBBAREMRARRMIAN AR
filEEH -

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE



Section 8 Important Matters Il
ENE EESE

gL If‘ ,

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) 2RIEBREHFA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
BRER ARE ] T EHR EEOHR  BRET REODARERE TS5

4. Before completion of performance compensation obligations, if | need to
pledge the shares acquired in the Transactions (including additional shares
held after completion of the issue due to conversion of capital reserve of the
Listed Company into share capital, distribution of dividend, etc.), | undertake
to inform the pledgee in writing that the shares to be pledged are subject
to potential performance undertaking compensation obligations under the
Performance Compensation Agreements and express agreement will be
provided in the pledge agreement with the pledgee for the use of relevant
shares for performance compensation, etc. and shall inform the Listed
Company in writing regarding the relevant pledge later than the date of
signing of the pledge agreement.
5. In the event that the Transactions are flled for investigation by the judicial
authorities or the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission due to the false
information, misleading statement or material omission contained in the
information provided or disclosed, | shall not transfer the shares of the Listed
Company acquired in the Transactions before the investigation results are
determined, and shall, within two trading days of receiving the notice of filing,
submit the written application for suspension of the transfer and the stock
account to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors shall apply to the
stock exchanges and the depository and clearing companies for lock-up on
my behalf. If the lockup application is not submitted within two trading days,
the Board of Directors is authorized to submit my identity information and
account information to the stock exchanges and the depository and clearing
companies to apply for lock-up after verification. If the Board of Directors
fails to submit my identity information and account information to the stock
exchanges and the depository and clearing companies, the stock exchanges
and the depository and clearing companies are authorized to directly lock-up
the relevant shares. If the investigation concludes that there are violations of
[aws and regulations, | undertake to lock-up the shares and use them for the
compensation arrangements for relevant investors on a voluntary basis.
6. If the above undertakings are violated, | shall bear all legal liabiltis. I shall
fully compensate the Listed Company with my own funds for any damage
caused to the Listed Company or for any administrative penalty or regulatory
measures suffered by the Listed Compary.
4 ERBEERESRRATEN ﬁAwﬁ¥ﬁ§$K§%%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)
Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,

0]

Important Matters

shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of
undertaking

Undertaking

Background party

ARER AREE ]

Content of undertaking

EHAE

— REBEBITER®

(—) RAIEBRESA - BRER - BB
bR YN ENCE V6 ]
FEREHARIFEZREDRR
H A B I (8)

If not

performed
Whether ~in a timely
strictly ~ manner,
performed describe
inatimely the specific
manner  reasons

AR KA
RERE EREARA
BRET BONARRR

If not
performed
in a timely
manner,
describe
plans in
next steps
DRERE
AR
T-5id

Whether
thereisa
deadline for
performance

Date and
duration of
undertaking

RHERE
RER

=)

BEHR

Counterparty of
Reorganisation
(Qingdao
Eternal)

AREER 7Y
PG G

142 |

Undertaking in relation to share lock-up

The Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes:

1. The company shall not transfer shares of the Listed Company acquired
under the Transactions within 12 months from the Issuance Completion
Date for the Reorganisation. After the expiration of the aforementioned lock-
up period, for the shares of the Listed Company acquired under the Asset
Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment, it shall be unlocked
in phases according to the following arrangement:

1st phase: After 12 months from the Issuance Completion Date of the
Reorganisation and upon performance of the company corresponding
compensation obligations (if any) for the year of 2021 under the Performance
Compensation Agreement and its supplemental agreement (collectively the
"Performance Compensation Agreements”), the remaining portion of 40%
of the newly acquired shares received less the number of shares (if any)
compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

2nd phase: If the company has fully performed the compensation abligations (if
any) for the year of 2022 under the Performance Compensation Agreements,
the remaining portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the
number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;

3rd phase: If the company has fully performed the compensation obligations (if
any) for the year of 2023 under the Performance Compensation Agreements,
the remaining portion of 20% of the newly acquired shares received less the
number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be unlocked;
BRRAEENEE

KREERZEH BRI A

1 FRARRARRSIGN L HARRR - BRREAR TR AE12ER
MAGEE : MLEFRERE  AREARBRIAREREEEE TR
O ETRRRG - RRTARG S BER -
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Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

From the date  Yes Yes
of acquisition

of shares in the

listed company

until the expiry

of the lock-up

period
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not

performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe

Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET ROWARRR T-Sid

dth phase: If the company has fully performed the compensation obligations (if
any) corresponding to the entire performance commitment period under the
Performance Compensation Agreements (i.e. the five financial years of 2020,
2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024), the remaining shares in the newly acquired
shares received that have not been unlocked shall be unlocked. The company
warrants that it will not create any pledge or other encumbrance of rights in
respect of the Consideration Shares acquired by it through this Transaction
after the expiry of the 12-month lock-up period and until such shares are
unlocked in accordance with the aforementioned lock-up period agreement.
2. During the above-mentioned share lock-up periods, the additional shares
acquired due to the issue of bonus shares and conversion of capital reserve
into share capital of the Listed Company shall also be subject to the regulation
of the above-mentioned lock-up periods. In case the lock-up periods as
required by regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities
requlatory authority are longer than the above-mentioned lock-up periods
or there are other requirements, corresponding adjustments should be made
according to such regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the securities
regulatory authority.
3. The company undertakes that the shares of the Listed Company acquired in
the Transactions shall strictly conform to the restriction of the lock-up periods
and be used in priority to satisfy the performance compensation obligations.
The company undertakes not to avoid the compensation obligations by any
means including share pledges.
EIH - ARAE(SEREGE)E T2 BREARH (12020 - 2021
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I.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters
EEEIE

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of
Background  undertaking
BRER AR

Undertaking
party

e

Content of undertaking

EHAE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7 WIBAUE QRS EEEER
FERSHARFEIBERA

MRS IE ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE

4. Before completion of performance compensation obligations, if the
company needs to pledge the shares acquired in the Transactions (including
additional shares held after completion of the issue due to conversion of
capital reserve of the Listed Company into share capital, distribution of
dividend, etc.), the company undertakes to inform the pledgee in writing that
the shares to be pledged are subject to potential performance compensation
obligations under the Performance Compensation Agreements and express
agreement will be provided in the pledge agreement with the pledgee for the
use of relevant shares for performance compensation, etc. and shallinform the
Listed Company in writing regarding the relevant pledge later than the date of
signing of the pledge agreement.

4 EXERBEBEOREN ALDNEELERRRSMRERN (2
BTRAR T AREALERERA  RARRANESEMENDR
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Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background undertaking  party Content of undertaking

ARER AREE e T

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
EHR BEAER  BRET BEONRERE TSl

5. In the event that the Transactions are filed for investigation by the jucicial
authorities or the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission due to the false
information, misleading statement or material omission contained in the
information provided or disclosed, the company shall not transfer the shares
of the Listed Company acquired in the Transactions before the investigation
results are determined, and shall, within two trading days of receiving the
notice of fiing, submit the written application for suspension of the transfer
and the stock account to the Board of Directors of JINGCHENG MAC, the
Board of Directors shall apply to the stock exchanges and the depository
and clearing companies for lockup on the company's behalf. If the lock-up
application is not submitted within two trading days, the Board of Directors
is authorized to submit the company's identity information and account
information to the stock exchanges and the depository and clearing companies
to apply for lock-up after verification. If the Board of Directors fails to submit
the company's identity information and account information to the stock
exchanges and the depository and clearing companies, the stock exchanges
and the depository and clearing companies are authorized to directly lockup
the relevant shares. If the investigation concludes that there are violations of
[aws and regulations, the company undertakes to lock-up the shares and use
them for the compensation arrangements for relevant investors on a voluntary
basis.

6. If the above undertakings are violated, | shall bear all legal liabilties. I shall
fully compensate the Listed Company with my own funds for any damage
caused to the Listed Company or for any administrative penalty or regulatory
measures suffered by the Listed Company.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters

— REBEBITER®

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Counterparties  Undertaking in relation to share lock-up From the date  Yes Yes
of The Counterparties of Reorganisation (Yang Ping, Xiao Zhonghai, Xia Tao, of acquisition
Reorganisation  Waong Huadong, Xiu Jun, Fu Dun and Chen Zhengyan) undertake: of sharesin the
(Yang Ping, 1. The shares of the Listed Company acquired by me in the Transactions shall ~ listed company
Xiao Zhonghai,  not be transferred within 12 months from the Issuance Completion date of the — until the expiry
XiaTao, Wong  Reorganisation. of the lock-up
Huadong, Xiu 2. During the above-mentioned share lock-up period, the additional Listed ~ period
Jun, FuDunand ~ Company's shares acquired due to the issue of bonus shares and conversion
Chen Zhengyan)  of capital reserve into share capital of the Listed Company shall also be subject
to the regulation of the above-mentioned lock-up period. In case the lock-
up period as required by regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the
securities requlatory authority is longer than the above-mentioned lock-up
period or there are other requirements, corresponding adjustments should
be made according to such regulatory opinions or relevant provisions of the
securities regulatory authority.
3. If the above undertakings are violated, | shall bear all legal liabiltis. I shall
fully compensate the Listed Company with my own funds for any damage
caused to the Listed Company or for any administrative penalty or regulatory
measures suffered by the Listed Company.
AREARAY BRROERMER ERELAR R z
FBET B AREERSHHBT ERE ER IER BE B RUE)E bz
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Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
R Hrgl i) HHERE RHR BETER  BRET ROWARRR T-Sid
Others Counterparties  Undertaking in relation to the Pledge of the Consideration Shares From the date  Yes Yes
of The Counterparties of Reorganisation (Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Wang Xiaohui, ~of acquisition
Reorganisation  Qian Yuyan) undertake: of sharesin the

(LiHong, Zhao 1. As at the date of this letter of undertaking, | do not have any plans and listed company
Qing, Wang ~ arrangements to pledge externally (including setting up other third party rights) — untl the expiry
Xiaohui, Qian  the shares of the Listed Company acquired in the Transaction. of the lock-up
Yuyan) 2. The additional shares of the Listed Company acquired by me through  period

the Transaction will be subject to a lock-up period and phased unlocking

amangements in accordance with the "Agreement on Issuance of Shares and

Payment of Cash for Assets” and its supplemental agreement.

3. For the Consideration Shares acquired by me through the Transaction, | will

not create any pledge or other encumbrances on the Consideration Shares

held by me that are still subject to the lock-up period or yet to be unlocked

during the 12-month lock-up period and after the expiry of the aforesaid lock-

up period until they are unlocked in accordance with the phased unlocking

agreement,
ify AREdRs  EREREERDOAG BORLTR & =
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I Scction 8 Important Matters
ENE EESE

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) 2RIEBREHFA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Counterparty of ~ Undertaking in relation to the Pledge of the Consideration Shares From the date  Yes Yes
Reorganisation  The Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes: of acquisition
(Qingdao 1. As at the date of this letter of undertaking, the company does not have any ~ of shares in the
Eternal) plans and arrangements to pledge externally (including setting up other third listed company

party rights) the shares of the Listed Company acquired in the Transaction. ~ until the expiry
2. The additional shares of the Listed Company acquired by the company  of the lock-up
through the Transaction will be subject to a lock-up period and phased  period
unlocking arrangements in accordance with the "Agreement on Issuance of

Shares and Payment of Cash for Assets” and its supplemental agreement.

3. For the Consideration Shares acquired by the company through the

Transaction, the company will not create any pledge or other encumbrances

on the Consideration Shares held by the company that are still subject to the

lock-up period or yet to be unlocked during the 12-month lock-up period

and after the expiry of the aforesaid lock-up period until they are unlocked in

accordance with the phased unlocking agreement.

ARERRSY BRERUERDOAGE BRELAL R S
HEEUSE) RREARRY) (BEUERAE: Az g

1 BEREENRAZ R ARAMFESNEA GREEMEZNEN) EHEHER
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Section

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to

8 Important Matters IR
ENE BEXRHE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Beijing Undertaking for maintaining the independence of the Listed Company longterm — No Yes
Jingcheng Jingcheng Holdings undertakes: Before the Transactions, JINGCHENG MAC is
Machinery independent of the company. After the completion of the Transactions, the
Electric Holding  company will continue to maintain the independence of INGCHENG MAC,
(o, ltd, a follow the five-civision and five-independence (AAF + HEL) principles
substantial in business, assets, personnel, finance, and organization and comply with the
shareholder relevant regulations of the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission. The
company will not cause JINGCHENG MAC to provide unlawdul guarantees, will
not use the capital of INGCHENG MAC, and will not form peer competition
with INGCHENG MAC. Once the letter of undertaking is signed, it constitutes
an irrevocable legal obligation of the company. If damage is caused to
the rights and interests of JINGCHENG MAC and its small and medium
shareholders as a result of the company's breach of such undertakings, the
company will bear the compensation liablities by law accordingly.
Efy RERIERRS  BNRE LAt RE g R
KERRERE MOBRAR  RARSH  RERABUNARR  ARRSG7AE - &
L7 LEREERERIRNOELL £25K 2E AR BB BELE
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I Scction 8 Important Matters
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) PEIBBEZESIA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET ROWARRR T-Sid
Others Counterparties  Undertaking for not to seek control of Listed Company longterm — No Yes

of The Counterparties of Reorganisation (17 natural persons including Li Hong)
Reorganisation  undertake:

(17 natural 1. Since | became a shareholder of BYTQ, |, as a shareholder of BYTQ, have
persons exercised my voting rights independently and have not acted in concert with
including Li other shareholders of BYTQ in respect of their shareholdings in BYTQ, nor have
Hong) I entered into any concerted action agreement or performed any other acts

that may bind shareholders to exercise their rights as shareholders together
and effectively control or jointly control BYTQ.
2. | undertake to recognise and respect the status of the controlling
shareholder of the Listed Company. | will not seek to increase my shareholding
in the Listed Company directly or indirectly, or seek control of the Listed
Company individually or jointly with my shareholding in the Listed Company,
nor will I influence or seek control of the Listed Company by proxy, solicitation
of votes, agreement, cooperation, affiliation, concerted relationship o in any
other manner; nor do | have any plan to recommend or nominate directors and
senior management to the Listed Company, nor do | have any specific plan to
adjust the composition of the board of directors and senior management of
the listed company after the completion of the Reorganisation.
Eff RREARAY BRTSR LA R R4

FEAETE  RREERFUF (FAZTLERNER
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Counterparty of ~ Undertaking for not to seek control of Listed Company longterm — No Yes
Reorganisation  The Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes:
(Qingdao 1. Since the company became a shareholder of BYTQ, the company, as a
Eternal) shareholder of BYTQ, have exercised my voting rights independently and
have not acted in concert with other shareholders of BYTQ in respect of their
shareholdings in BYTQ, nor have the company entered into any concerted
action agreement or performed any other acts that may bind shareholders to
exercise their rights as shareholders together and effectively control or jointly
control BYTQ.
2. The company undertakes to recognise and respect the status of the
controlling shareholder of the Listed Company. The company will not seek
to increase my shareholding in the Listed Company directly or indirectly,
or seek control of the Listed Company individually or jointly with my
shareholding in the Listed Company, nor will the company influence or seek
control of the Listed Company by proxy, solicitation of votes, agreement,
cooperation, affiiation, concerted relationship or in any other manner; nor
does the company have any plan to recommend or nominate directors and
senior management to the Listed Company, nor does the company have
any specific plan to adjust the composition of the board of directors and
senior management of the Listed Company after the completion of the
Reorganisation.
FREARSY BRTERLmARERIENAG R4 5 7
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I Scction 8 Important Matters
ENE EESE

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
() Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Beijing Undertaking for replenishing the diluted immediate return longterm ~ No Yes
Jingcheng Jingcheng Holdings undertakes: In any event, the company will not act ultra
Machinery vires to intervene in the operation and management activities of JINGCHENG

Electric Holding ~ MAC, and will not infringe on the interests of JINGCHENG MAC. The company

(o, ltd, a will effectively perform the obligations as the Controlling Shareholder, perform

substantial its duties faithfully and diligently, and safequard the legal rights and interests of

shareholder ~ JINGCHENG MAC and its shareholders as whole. From the date of issue of the
undertaking letter to the completion of the Transactions of INGCHENG MAC,
if the China Securities Regulatory Commission makes other new requlatory
requirements on replenishment return measures and its undertakings, and the
above-mentioned undertakings cannot meet the requirements of the CSRC,
the company undertakes that it will then issue a supplementary undertaking in
accordance with the latest regulations of the CSRC. If the company violates or
fails to fuffill the above undertakings, the company will:
1. publicty apologize to the shareholders of INGCHENG MAC and the public
investors for not fulflling the above-mentioned undertakings at the general
meeting of JINGCHENG MAC and on the newspapers designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission;
2. within 5 working days from the date of confirming the breach of the
abovementioned undertakings, terminate to receive dividends as a shareholder
of INGCHENG MAC, and JINGCHENG MAC shares held by the company shall
not be transferred until the company fulfills effectively its undertaking or its
breach of undertaking s eliminated;
3. if the Company fails to perform the above undertakings for reasons
other than force majeure, and fails to provide appropriate and reasonable
explanations, the gains obtained by the company therefrom will belong
to JINGCHENG MAC, and JINGCHENG MAC has the right to require the
Company to remit the proceeds generated from the breach of undertaking to
the designated account of JINGCHENG MAC within 10 working days from the
receiving date of such gains.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)
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Section

Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking

Background undertaking  party

BRER

ARE e

Content of undertaking

EHAE

8 Important Matters IR
ENE BEXRHE

— REBEBITER®

(—) RAIEBRESA - BRER - BB
bR YN ENCE V6 ]
FEREHARIFEZREDRR
H A B I (8)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE

Directors
and senior
management
of the Listed
Company

TS
SHERAR

Undertaking for replenishing the diuted immediate return

Directors and senior management of the Listed Company undertake:

1. Not to transfer benefits to other entities or individuals at nil consideration or
under unfair terms, and not to damage the interests of JINGCHENG MAC in
other ways;

2. Torrestrain the duty consumption behavior;

3. Undertake not to utilize the assets of JINGCHENG MAC to engage in
investment and consumption activities which are unrelated to the performance
of duties;

4. That the remuneration system formulated by the Board of Directors or
the remuneration committee will be linked to the implementation of the
replenishment retur measures of JINGCHENG MAC;

5. That if INGCHENG MAC implements equity incentives, the exercise conditions
for equity incentives of JINGCHENG MAC to be announced will be linked to the
implementation of the replenishment return measures of JINGCHENG MAC.

If Iviolate or fail to fulfil the above undertakings, I

1. wil publicly apologize to the shareholders of INGCHENG MAC and the public
investors for not fulflling the above-mentioned undertakings at the general
meeting of INGCHENG MAC and on the newspapers designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission;

2. within 5 working days from the date of confirming the breach of the
ahovementioned undertakings, terminate to receive remuneration, allowance (if
any) and bonus (if any) as a shareholder of JINGCHENG MAC, and INGCHENG
MAC shares (if any) held by me shall not be transferred until | fulfll ffectively
my undertaking or my breach of undertaking s eliminated;

3.if I fail to perform the above undertakings for reasons other than force
majeure, and fal to provide appropriate and reasonable explanations, the gains
obtained by me therefrom will belong to JINGCHENG MAC, and JINGCHENG
MAC has the right to require me to remit the proceeds generated from the
breach of undertaking to the designated account of JINGCHENG MAC within 10
working days from the receiving date of such gains.
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I Scction 8 Important Matters
ENE EESE

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) 2RIEBREHFA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Counterparties  Undertaking regarding avoidance of funds appropriation longterm — No Yes
of Counterparties of Reorganisation (17 natural persons including Li Hong)

Reorganisation  undertake: From the Valuation Date of 80% equity interests of BYTQ to the
(17 natural date of registration under the name of JINGCHENG MAC (that is, the date

persons when competent industrial and commercial department of BYTQ changed the
including Li ownership of 80% equity interests of BYTQ to the name of JINGCHENG MAC),
Hong) I will not appropriate BYTQ's funds and conduct other actions that affect the

integrity and compliance of BYTQ. After the completion of the Transactions,
[ will strictly comply with the relevant rules of the CSRC and the SSE and the
relevant requirements of the Articles of Association to equally exercise the
shareholders' rights and fulfill the shareholders" obligations. | will not seek
improper interests by using the position of shareholders and quarantee the
Listed Company and BYTQ will continue to be completely separate from other
enterprises under my control in terms of personnel, assets, finance, institutions
and business to maintain the independence of the Listed Company in terms
of personnel, assets, finance, institutions and business. After the completion
of the Transactions, | will comply with the rules of the Notice on Several Issues
concerning Regulating Fund Transactions between Listed Companies and Their
Affiliates and the External Guarantees of Listed Companies and the Circular
of China Securities Regulatory Commission and China Banking Regulatory
Commission on Regulating the External Guaranties Provided by Listed
Companies, to requlate the external quarantees of the Listed Company and
its subsidiaries. Other companies under my control (if any) will not appropriate
the Listed Company's or BYTQ's funds by any means such as reimbursement of
expenses or other expenditures, direct or indirect borrowings, debt repayment,
etc,, o avoid any flow of funds with the Listed Company or BYTQ that is
not related to normal business operations. If | breach the above-mentioned
undertakings, causing any impact or loss to the Transactions, | will bear the
compensation liabilities in accordance with laws accordingly.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Section

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background undertaking  party

ARER AREE ]

Content of undertaking

EHAE

8 Important Matters IR
ENE BEXRHE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
EHR BEAER  BRET BEONRERE TSl

Huang Xiaofeng

Undertaking regarding avoidance of funds appropriation

Huang Xiaofeng undertakes: From the Vialuation Date of 80% equity interests
of BYTQ to the date of registration under the name of JINGCHENG MAC
(that is, the date when competent industrial and commercial department of
BYTQ changed the ownership of 80% equity interests of BYTQ to the name
of JINGCHENG MAC), I will not appropriate BYTQ's funds and conduct other
actions that affect the integrity and compliance of BYTQ. After the completion
of the Transactions, other companies under my control (if any) will not
appropriate BYTQ's funds by any means such as reimbursement of expenses
or other expenditures, direct or indirect borrowings, debt repayment, etc.,
to avoid any flow of funds with BYTQ that is not related to normal business
operations. If | breach the above-mentioned undertakings, causing any impact
orloss to the Transactions, | will bear the compensation liabilities in accordance
with laws accordingly.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) 2RIEBREHFA - BRE - BB
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEREHRARISFEZNREDRA
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
BRER ARE ] T EHR EEOHR  BRET REODARERE TS5

Counterparty of  Undertaking regarding avoidance of funds appropriation longtem  No Yes

Reorganisation ~ Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes: From the

(Qingdao Valuation Date of 80% equity interests of BYTQ to the date of regstration

Eternal) under the name of JINGCHENG MAC (that is, the date when competent
industrial and commercial department of BYTQ changed the ownership of
80% equity interests of BYTQ to the name of JINGCHENG MAC), the company
will not appropriate BYTQ's funds and conduct other actions that affect the
integrity and compliance of BYTQ. After the completion of the Transactions,
the company will srictly comply with the relevant rules of the CSRC and the
SSE and the relevant requirements of the Articles of Association to equally
exercise the shareholders' rights and fulfll the shareholders' obligations.
The company will not seek improper interests by using the position of
shareholders and guarantee the Listed Company and BYTQ will continue to
be completely separate from other enterprises under the company's control in
terms of personnel, assets, finance, institutions and business to maintain the
independence of the Listed Company in terms of personnel, assets, finance,
institutions and business. After the completion of the Transactions, the
company will comply with the rules of the Notice on Several Issues concerning
Regulating Fund Transactions between Listed Companies and Their Affiliates
and the External Guarantees of Listed Companies and the Circular of China
Securities Regulatory Commission and China Banking Regulatory Commission
on Regulating the External Guaranties Provided by Listed Companies, to
requlate the external quarantees of the Listed Company and its subsidiaries.
Other companies under the company's control (if any) will not appropriate
BYTQ's funds by any means such as reimbursement of expenses or other
expenditures, direct or indirect borrowings, debt repayment, etc,, to avoid any
flow of funds with the BYTQ not related to normal business operations, the
Listed Company's or BYTQ's funds by any means such as reimbursement of
expenses or other expenditures, direct or indirect borrowings, debt repayment,
etc., 50 & 10 avoid any flow of funds with the Listed Company or BYTQ that is
not related to normal business operations. If the company breaches the above-
mentioned undertakings, causing any impact or loss to the Transactions,
the company will bear the compensation labilities in accordance with laws
according!
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Section

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background undertaking  party

ARER AREE ]

Content of undertaking

EHAE

8 Important Matters IR
ENE BEXRHE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
EHR BEAER  BRET BEONRERE TSl

Others Beijing
Jingcheng
Machinery
Electric Holding
Co, ltd, a
substantial
shareholder

Ef RBREERTA
EARERA
AR

Undertaking regarding avoidance of peer competition

Jingcheng Holdings undertakes:

1. Unless the company no longer directly or indirectly holds the shares of
JINGCHENG MAC, the company and the enterprises effectively controlled or
influenced significantly by the company shall not engage in, participate in, or
assist others to engage in any business activities that are directly or indirectly
in competition with the businesses of JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries
by any means (including but not limited to independently operating or jointly
operating and cooperating with other parties within or outside China), nor
directly or indirectly invest in economic entities which are in direct or indirect
competition with the businesses that INGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries are
engaged in.

2. If the company breaches the agreement in item 1 above, which causes
losses to INGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries, the company wil be liable for
compensation based on the actual losses to be suffered by JINGCHENG MAC
and its subsidiaries at that time.

BRBSEERRAE

RAARE

1 BERRATBERAHERARIROORG - BUAAARALTSE
BEREHESEAT BN A RIEMYA (REETRMERERAL
EREIEHARE  APIE  2EABHEAREEAERIRAR
ETRAEREREENZHRERIMERIAANELERED 0T ER
IREREANERIRA REF AR EERSHFHAERARER
FHRNEEER -

1 ERRTEER HREVE RS AR REF ARER AR - B
ARAREERIRDRAT AR BN ERER NRAABRERL -

longterm  No Yes
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)
Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,

0]

Important Matters

shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of
undertaking

Undertaking

Background party

ARER AREE ]

Content of undertaking

EHAE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RRAEBREZEHA - BRE - BEE
7 B ALK A RS RAEEE
FEBREHARFERREHRA
H A B I (8)

If not
performed
in a timely
manner,
describe
plans in
next steps
DRERE
AR
T-Fitdl

If not

performed
Whether ~in a timely
strictly ~ manner,
performed describe
inatimely the specific
manner  reasons

AR KA
RERE EREARA
BRET BONARRR

Whether
thereisa
deadline for
performance

Date and
duration of
undertaking

RHERE
RER

=R
EROAR

Counterparties
of
Reorganisation
(Huang
Xiaofeng, Li
Hong, Qian
Yuyan, Tao
Feng, Wang
Xiaohui, Zhao
Qing)

BREERAY

158 |

Undertaking regarding avoidance of peer competition
Counterparties of Reorganisation (Huang Xiaofeng, Li Hong, Qian Yuyan, Tao
Feng, Wang Xiaohui, Zhao Qing) undertake:
1. Iand the other enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly
by me currently doles) not own and operate any business directly or indirectly
competing with the businesses engaged by the Listed Company and BYTQ in
terms of business.
2. During the period | directly or indirectly hold the shares of JINGCHENG MAC,
the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly by me and |
shall not engage in, participate in, or assist others to engage in any business
activities that are directly or indirectly in competition with the businesses of
JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries by any means (including but not limited
to independently operating or jointly operating and cooperating with other
parties within or outside China), nor directly or indirectly invest in economic
entities which are in direct or indirect competition with the businesses that
JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries are engaged in. | and the enterprises
effectively controlled or influenced significantly by me have the same or similar
business opportunities as those in BYTQ, and those business opportunities
may directly or indirectly cause business competition between the enterprises
effectively controlled or influenced significantly by me and | and BYTQ, I shall
notify BYTQ immediately after noticing those business opportunities and strive
to procure the offering of those business opportunities to BYTQ in priority on
terms no less favorable than those offered to me and the enterprises effectively
controlled or influenced significantly by me.
3. If I'breach the agreement in item 1 and item 2 above, | shall retum the
shares of JINGCHENG MAC received from the Transactions to JINGCHENG
MAC at ni consideration. JINGCHENG MAC wil cancel those shares returned
by me in accordance with its internal decision-making procedures (for
shares which have been transferred, the proceeds from the transfer shall
be retured); if | breach the agreement in item 1 and item 2 above, which
causes losses to JINGCHENG MAC and its subsidiaries, | will also be liable for
compensation based on the actual losses to be suffered by JINGCHENG MAC
and its subsiciaries at that time. Upon signing of this letter of undertaking, my
imevocable legal obligation is formed. This letter of undertaking is valid for a
period from the date of signing this letter of undertaking to the date on which
[amno \ongera direct or ndirect shareholder of JNGCHENG MAC.
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Section

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Background

BRER

Type of
undertaking

ARE

Undertaking
party

&

#h

Content of undertaking

EHAE

8 Important Matters IR
ENE BEXRHE

— REBEBITER®

(—) RAIEBRESA - BRER - BB
bR YN ENCE V6 ]
FEREHARIFEZREDRR
H A B I (8)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE

Counterparty of
Reorganisation

@

ingdao

Eternal)

Undertaking re?ardmg avoidance of peer competition
Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes:
1. The company and the other enterprises effectively controlled or influenced
significantly b?/ the company currently dofes) not own and operate any
business directly or indirectly competing with the businesses engaged by the
Listed Company and BYTQ in terms of business.
2. During the period the company directly or indirectly holds the shares
of JINGCHENG MAC, the enterprises eﬁectwel* controlled or influenced
significantly by the company and the company shall not en%age in, pamcwfate
in, or assist others to engage in any business activities that are directly or
indirectly in competition with the businesses of JINGCHENG MAC and
its subsidiaries by any means (including but not limited to independently
operating or jointly operating and cooperating with other parties within or
outside China), nor directly or indirectly invest in economic entities which
are in direct or indirect competition with the businesses that JINGCHENG
MAC and its subsidiaries are engaged in. The company and the enterprises
effectively controlled or influenced significantly by the company have the
same or similar business opportunities as those in BYTQ, and those business
opportunities may directly or indirectly cause business competition between
the enterprises effectively controlled or influenced significantly by the company
and the company and BYTQ, the company shall notify BYT(% immediately
after noticing those business opportunities and strive to procure the offering
of those business opportunities to BYTQ in priority on terms no less favorable
than those offered to the company and the enterprises effectively controlled or
influenced significantly bﬁthe company. }
3. If the company breaches the agreement in item 1 and item 2 above, the
company shall return the shares of JINGCHENG MAC received from the
Transactions o JINGCHENG MAC at nil consideration. INGCHENG MAC wil
cancel those shares returned b}{ the company in accordance with its internal
decision-making procedures (for shares which have been transferred, the
proceeds from the transfer shall be retured); if the company breaches the
agreement in item 1 and item 2 above, which causes losses to JINGCHENG
AC and its subsidiaries, the compan¥ will also be liable for compensation
based on the actual losses to be sutfered by JINGCHENG MAC and its
subsidiaries at that time. Upon signing of this letter of undertaking, the
comFanP/‘s irrevocable legal obligation is formed. This letter of undertaking
is valid for a period from the date of signing this letter of undertaking to the
date on which the company is no longer a direct or indirect shareholder of
INGCHENG MAC.
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I Scction 8 Important Matters
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
() Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET ROWARRR T-Sid
Others Beijing Undertaking regarding reduction and regulation of related party transactions ~ Longterm ~ No Yes
Jingcheng Jingcheng Holdings undertakes:
Machinery 1. After the completion of the Transactions, the company and other companies

Electric Holding  and other related parties effectively controlled or significantly influenced by the
(o, ltd, a company, excluding JINGCHENG MAC and its controlled subsidiaries (including
substantial BYTQ which is to be tumed into a subsidiary controlled by JINGCHENG MAC)
shareholder will try to avoid to have related party transactions with INGCHENG MAC and
its controlled subsidiaries. For related party transactions that are necessary
and unavoidable, they will be conducted in accordance with the principles
of faimess, justice, and price equality. The consideration shall be determined
at a price generally accepted as reasonable by the market, and shall perform
transaction approval procedures and information disclosure obligations in
accordance with relevant laws, regulations, rules, and requlatory documents to
effectively protect the interests of INGCHENG MAC and its small and medium
shareholders.
2 The company quarantees that it will strictly follow the relevant laws and
regulations, the rules and requlatory documents issued by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission, the relevant rules issued by the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, and the “Articles of Association of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited” to exercise its rights as a shareholder and fulfil its
obligations as a shareholder. The company will not seek improper benefits
through its position as Controlling Shareholder, and will not damage the
legal rights and interests of JINGCHENG MAC and its small and medium
shareholders. If the company breaches the above-mentioned undertakings to
enter into transaction with JINGCHENG MAC and its controlled subsidiaries,
and incurs losses o JINGCHENG MAC and its small and medium shareholders,
the company will bear the compensation liabilities in accordance with laws

accordingly.
Eff RERERRS, BR RASERR AR R4 g Rz

EANARR iRk

fERR 1 RERR SR ARARSAARREREHELBAYENE A
RIBRABRT AR AEREE ARBRNERT AAMLERE) A
pARRABER R EEES RN RARRT AN AREERS
7 UNERLZAELRENERRS BERRAT  DANSERRN
REES  RABRETROANAREREE LREELE R A
EHUERBEXHREROIRAELRFRERRESH  IERERN
RO R R
1 ARARERRERADERER THRSEEEREACRANOAS
ARAEXE - LERARAMEANERRAR G RRAERERD
AR EMRE - fOETRRREN  BOREEE  AHRERRES
RFRBAENE - ARERIRARAT MERDAEES - DER L
EREIRNRARRT ANETRAMERARN AT MR ER R
% IAARKERERROBERL -
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

0]

23

Section

Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking

Background undertaking  party

BRER

ARE e

Content of undertaking

EHAE

8 Important Matters IR
ENE BEXRHE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
EHR BEAER  BRET BEONRERE TSl

Directors,
supenvisors
and senior
management
of the Listed
Company

LiRREE

55 BER
A&

Undertaking regarding reduction and requlation of related party transactions
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Listed Company
undertake: During the period when | act as a director/supervisor/senior
management staff of INGCHENG MAC, I will not illegally appropriate funds
and any other assets of JINGCHENG MAC by any reason and way, and wil
try my best to avoid having related party transactions between me and
enterprises directly or indirectly controlled by me (if any) and JINGCHENG
MAC. For unavoidable related party transactions, | will strictly abide by laws
and regulations and the provisions on related party transactions in the " Articles
of Association” of JINGCHENG MAC; and through the corporate governance
and legal decision-making procedures suich as the approval at the Board of
Directors/general meeting, | will reasonably procure the enterprises directly
or indirectly controlled by me (if any) to strictly abide by the "Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China", the "Articles of Association of
Bejing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited" and other relevant
requirements, and follow the general market transactional rules to conduct
related party transactions with JINGCHENG MAC in accordance with laws.
F%A)@*c RSB SMG
MARES BT BRERARAE: Mﬁfﬁ%?%ﬁﬁxﬁﬁ/?

%/ni&afﬁ}\ﬁ i RABTUEMREAF A EER RO

SRABENAE - JIMMMA&ZMEM &‘"%'JM%(&DE)

R uwh % UM TESHBRR S RARRRET
&éiﬁﬁ&ﬁkﬁﬂx EyRERERRSNAT  BAARREES
ﬁ&ﬁx%/ﬁx%@%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂ ENARES  ABTEIAR
& %“%W] £(B) BEET(PEARLAELTE) - (PRRA
%%Hﬂ AER)ERERE  VER-BTHRARN RAERN
Mﬂiﬁﬂﬂaﬂw% °
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters

— REBEBITER®

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Counterparties  Undertaking regarding reduction and regulation of related party transactions ~ Longterm —— No Yes
of Counterparties of Reorganisation (Huang Xiaofeng, Li Hong) undertake: After
Reorganisation  the completion of the Transactions, other companies and other related parties
(Huang effectively controlled or significantly influenced by me and I will try to avoid
Xiaofeng, Li 10 have related party transactions with JINGCHENG MAC and its controlled
Hong) subsidiaries (including BYTQ which is to be turned into a subsidiary controlled
by INGCHENG MAC). For related party transactions that are necessary and
unavoidable, they will be conducted in accordance with the principles of
fairmess, justice, and price equality. The consideration shall be determined at
a price generally accepted as reasonable by the market, and shall perform
transaction approval procedures and information disclosure obligations in
accordance with relevant laws, requlations, rules and regulatory documents
to effectively protect the interests of JINGCHENG MAC and its small and
medium shareholders. If | breach the above-mentioned undertakings to enter
into transaction with JINGCHENG MAC and its controlled subsidiaries, and
incurs losses to JINGCHENG MAC and its shareholders and the subsidiaries of
JINGCHENG MAC, I will bear the compensation liabilities in accordance with
laws accordingly.
AREERSY BINED RREERR AN & 5 7
FEEE T IREERAHS(BRE PR EAARGRAE  FAREAR
i) BERBHEIEAT BN ERELBR S HRSHERRIRIRE
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BRTAR(BEREERRIRNART RAZLERE) CRRLRBR
7 URRELZEEEERNBERG UERAT DAAEEEEN
RAER  RABRETROANARERET  LRAELR 2R A
ENERBEX ARG BLRFRESRESH - NERERN
BARERNREAE - mER CHARERARA REAR T ARETR
ARERIBRDRARR - RERDFAAENERE  KABRKEAZR
ENRERL:
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (—) RRAIEBESA - RER - BE
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Huang Undertaking regarding reduction and regulation of related party transactions 2 years from ~ Yes Yes
Xiaofeng, Huang Xiaofeng, Li Hong, Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng, Ying Rucai undertake:  the date of
Li Hong, Xu Unless otherwise agreed i writing by the Listed Company, Huang Xiaofeng, issue of the
Binglei, Yang  Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying Rucai shall continue to work for the - Undertaking
Lunsheng, Ying ~ Target Company or the Listed Company and perform their due diligence o the date of
Rucai obligations during the performance undertaking period (i.e. the five ~expiry of the
accounting years of 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, the same below) and  Performance
for a period of two years from the expiry date of the performance undertaking  Pledge Period
period as stipulated in the “Share Issue and Cash Payment for Assets Purchase
Agreement”, “Performance Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental
agreements thereto. If | leave my employment with the Target Company on my
own initiative without the written consent of the Listed Company before the
expiry of the term of office, or if | am dismissed by the Target Company or the
Listed Company in accordance with the law due to misconduct or malpractice
or other intentional acts prejudicial to the interests of the Target Company or
the Listed Company, the Listed Company shall be entitled to hold Party B and
Party C liable for the following:
(1) Term of employment requirements of Huang Xiaofeng and related
undertakings
1. If Huang Xiaofeng leaves his employment on his own initiative before
the expiry of the performance undertaking period, or if his employment is
terminated by the Target Company or the Listed Company in accordance
with the law due to misconduct or malpractice or other acts prejudicial to
the interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company, then Huang
Xiaofeng and Li Hong shall compensate the Listed Company for 100% of the
consideration received through the transaction.
Efy BRE B BRERREERR SN BEGIEAY R R
BNE B ERE 2 RAE BRE EATEE: REGLABEREN B ARREAE
BoEAT BEBRE BREREAMEETRORXARLEEAERZ) - BERZAR
(RERERE) REBRBADENZEAZHR (M20205 20015 - 2F

2022% - 03EMOUFRESHER - TH) REEAZSERZ A2
Ry BEEERAELAN L TANTRYECARROENRESE
IESERIAELAANEARE IHNEELARE  JRABULT
ENSEN NS EER BN LT AANENTARREARL AT
BT REBAMREEAARLARAKEREY  LRATHESLL
FRARARENTHEES

() ZREHTBIRER A

1 ERAEEEAGEERITEEE  SRA AT BN A EER
ERRE AR BRRERAR L ATEN T BEEATRA
BARK EDAAGEERN - AERERFIEENLBAT R FER
HER100%E LD AETHE -
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

Important Matters
EEEIE

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of
Background  undertaking
BRER AR

Undertaking
party

e

Content of undertaking

EHAE

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

BV AR S TH ()

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps
NAERRAET  WARRE
EEE  RE RERE EHBARA  BOENH
RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE

2. If Huang Xiaofeng's employment is terminated by the Target Company
or the Listed Company in accordance with the law due to dereliction of
duty or malpractice or other acts detrimental to the interests of the Target
Company or the Listed Company, restlting in his term of office being less than
one year from the date of expiry of the performance pledge period, Huang
Xiaofeng and Li Hong shall compensate the Listed Company at 40% of the
consideration received through the transaction.

3. If Huang Xiaofeng or Li Hong has been dismissed by the Target Company o
the Listed Company in accordance with the law due to dereliction of duty or
malpractice or other acts detrimental to the interests of the Target Company
or the Listed Company, resulting in his term of office being more than 1 year
but less than 2 years after the expiry date of the performance undertaking,
Huang Xiaofeng and Li Hong shall compensate the Listed Company at 20% of
the consideration received through the transaction.

(I Term of employment requirements of Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying
Rucai and related undertakings

1. If Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng or Ying Rucai leave the Company on their own
initiative before the expiry of the Performance Pledge Period, or if they are
dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company in accordance with
the law due to misconduct or malpractice or other intentional acts detrimental
to the interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company, they shall
compensate the Listed Company for 100% of the consideration received
through the Transaction.

2 MERERIBES  JRRBI A EIIANRZERRRA TR
ANENTAGREBRAR L HARER T RERATREELTL LA
ARERE  SRACRERRRAREER BN ES  BRER
RS ERAARL S ERHEMA%R LT ARETHE -

3 MERERTIEE - JRREL LU BN AN ERERAT LT
AMENTREE RIS LTARNEN T RERATRERLALLAA
AR SHAARERE X EAENERZ RREMERRIEY
ERERFRE BB ARG HE0%A LHAFETHE -
(D)RRE - Bk A7 HEREREL AR

1 WARE - Bk AATEXEAERERIIIRE  JRKEE
IEEFAMHEREERART LR ARNENTARERATNLHA
AR TRERAMRARADL LARAKERES  WEAARENUA
BARRZ S EEHEN00%E LT ATETRE

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE



23

Section 8

ENE EESE

l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — AGEBEETER@

(i) Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Type of Undertaking
Background undertaking  party Content of undertaking

ARER AREE e T

(—) RAIEBRESA - BRER - BB
bR YN ENCE V6 ]
FEREHARIFEZREDRR
H A B I (8)

If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely

Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,

Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE

EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH
EHR BEAER  BRET BEONRERE TSl

2. If Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng or Ying Rucai resign on their own initiative or
are dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company in accordance
with the law due to misconduct or malpractice or other acts detrimental to the
interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company, resulting in their term
of office being less than one year from the date of expiry of the performance
undertaking period, they shall personally compensate the Listed Company at
40% of the consideration received through the Transaction.

3. If Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and Ying Ruicai leave their positions on their
own initiative, or are dismissed by the Target Company or the Listed Company
in accordance with the law due to misconduct or malpractice or other acts that
are detrimental to the interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company,
and as a result, their term of office has expired for over one year but less than
two years from the date of expiry of the Performance Pledge Period, they
shall compensate the Listed Company for 20% of the consideration received
through the Transaction. If Huang Xiaofeng, Xu Binglei, Yang Lunsheng and
Ying Rucai have caused serious losses to the Target Company or the Listed
Company s a result of malpractice or other acts intentionally prejudicial to the
interests of the Target Company or the Listed Company, they shall, in addition
to fulflling the above compensation abligations, be liable for full compensation
for the losses caused.

1 ARE BRE  RATRIIEE dRABIIELIENES
BEATS EHARNGENHT AR ERARS LHATENR T RERXME
BRATRLTARMERE  SHACRIREFEAREENZART
RIEH ERARENERARAR SEGHENI0%M LTRAETE
3 ARE Bk EATRIIER IRRBIENELIAMES
BERAY LHARNGNT AR ERARA LT AREN T RERATH
BEARR L ARARERR  SUAEEERE RBAGHENZERE
RUERRES - ARARENERBARRZERHEN0%RM LHTAR
ETRE - NERE  BRE  BRBERENTRELELIANHEES
BEATS EHARNGENHT AR BRARS LHATENR T RERRH
REOLOBESHN  RERUAFERNBAAALEREAL
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued) — REBEBITER®
() Undertakings made by the beneficial controller, (=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the 7 WA R A R E & E RS
relevant parties of the Company during or up to FEHEHASFEIREDRR
the Reporting Period (Continued) M AFESTE (@)
If not If not
performed performed
Whether  ina timely ina timely
Whether ~ strictly ~ manner, manner,
Dateand  thereisa  performed describe describe
Type of Undertaking duration of  deadline for inatimely the specific plans in
Background  undertaking  party Content of undertaking undertaking performance manner  reasons next steps

NAMREET DAREE
EaBE  RE RARE EHAARH  EOERH

HHER AR RER HERE RHR BETER  BRET BEINABRR T-5HE
Others Counterparties ~ Undertaking in respect of the Second Cash Consideration offset for Listed ~ From the Yes Yes
of Company date of the
Reorganisation  Counterparties of Reorganisation (17 natural persons including Li Hong), Undertaking
(17 natural Huang Xiaofeng, Tao Feng undertake: Firstly, | will perform the corresponding — until the
persons obligations and liabilities in strict accordance with the terms of the Transaction  expiry of the

including Li Agreement and if | am required to undertake cash compensation/compensation  Performance
Hong), Huang  obligations to the Listed Company, | will perform such cash compensation/ Pledge Period
Xiaofeng, a0 compensation obligations to the Listed Company in strict accordance with  and the
Feng the terms of the Transaction Agreement and the deadline required by the ~ fulfilment

Listed Company; Secondly, the Second Cash Consideration of RMB20 millon — of the

of the Listed Company will be applied to offset the additional performance - compensation

compensation in priority. In the event that the Guarantors of Performance  obligations

(i.e. Li Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao Eternal Economic Information Consulting

Co., Ltd., Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan, the same below) are required to

pay additional performance compensation to the Listed Company during the

Performance Pledge Period, the second installment of the cash consideration

of RMB20 million of the Listed Company will be applied in full to offset the

additional performance compensation. Upon expiry of the Performance Pledge

Period, if the Guarantors of Performance are not required to pay the Additional

Performance Compensation to the Listed Company, the Listed Company

shall be entitled to directly deduct the other outstanding compensation/

compensation amounts (if any) due from the Counterparty when paying

the Second Cash Consideration to the Guarantors of Performance, and the

Counterparty and Huang Xiaofeng and Tao Feng shall continue to perform

their compensation/compensation obligations as agreed.

Eff FREERSY BREIHARZ_HREHEENSENLE BEGIHAY % z
FEAETE AREARSEH(FIFURANA)  ERE BERE: - A\ HEREAE
BRN) BB  BERERRZRENERTEEEANZE MERLTADARRSE BERARE
(] [B/BERRE  AABRRERRSBENER LPRAEINERA L BRE1RE

MARNETHERSRE/BESH 2 IHRTEZERLUEL000
ETARERRENNNZERES - FEEREERM  NREREAE
HEFD BE  BERRAEESFABRAT  IRENERE
TRVERLTRIXNNNEERESHEY  LTRIZ_BREHE
2000ETHRBRRNENNNEERES - $EREHRER  NEEAH
HEANMAAZNMNEERES A ARAEREREERERY
NE_BRSUERERTRR U ADERTMARANBE,/HES
B(g) TRIFBRBUNRERE  BEEERUTEARE/BE
B
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l.  Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)
Undertakings made by the beneficial controller,

Section

shareholders, connected persons, buyers and the
relevant parties of the Company during or up to
the Reporting Period (Continued)

Background

BRER

Type of
undertaking

ARE

Undertaking
party

e

Content of undertaking

EHAE

8

ERER

— REBEBITER®

(=) RAEREFA - BRR AR
7~ BB AR A REEHAER
FERSHARFEIBERA

By

Whether
thereisa
deadline for
performance

Date and
duration of
undertaking

RHERE
RER

=R
EROAR

FEETH ()

If not
performed
in a timely
manner,
describe
plans in
next steps
DRERE
AR
T-5id

If not

performed
Whether ~in a timely
strictly ~ manner,
performed describe
inatimely the specific
manner  reasons

AR KA
RERE EREARA
BRET BONARRR

Others

Ef

Counterparty of
Reorganisation
(Qingdao
Eternal)

RREARSY
H(BEEE)

Undertaking in respect of the Second Cash Consideration offset for Listed
Company

Counterparty of Reorganisation (Qingdao Eternal) undertakes: Firstly, we
will perform the corresponding abligations and liabilities in strict accordance
with the terms of the Transaction Agreement and if the company is required
to undertake cash compensation/compensation obligations to the Listed
Company, we will perform stich cash compensation/compensation obligations
to the Listed Company in strict accordance with the terms of the Transaction
Agreement and the deadline required by the Listed Company; Secondly, the
Second Cash Consideration of RMB20 million of the Listed Company will
be applied to offset the additional performance compensation in priority.
In the event that the Guarantors of Performances (ie. Li Hong, Zhao Qing,
Qingdao Eternal Economic Information Consulting Co., Ltd., Wang Xiaohui
and Qian Yuyan, the same below) are required to pay additional performance
compensation to the Listed Company during the Performance Pledge Period,
the second installment of the cash consideration of RMB20 million of the
Listed Company will be applied in full to offset the additional performance
compensation. Upon expiry of the Performance Pledge Period, if the
Guarantors of Performance are not required to pay the Additional Performance
Compensation to the Listed Company, the Listed Company shal be entitled to
directly deduct the other outstanding compensation/compensation amounts (if
any) due from the Counterparty when paying the Second Cash Consideration
to the Guarantors of Performance, and the Counterparty and Huang Xiaofeng
and Tao Feng shall continue to perform their compensation/compensation
obligations as agreed.

BREPRIE_SREUBENERNAE

AREARHHF BENRHAH £ ARIRERERRABEN
EROEEEEASE NEMLADARERLHE/ BEERN 4D
ARERER *%tﬁwi&ﬁ AREROBRA L TARETERS
BE/RBEER: £2 0 IHRAE_HRSHE 0BT RELAREN
lngEmHEs - E%i‘% SR R EREAGER (IR BB F
SURREBESANARAA - IRENERE TR AR LARAXA
WNEEREESNEY  LARIE-HREHEL0ETA2ERNEN
WNZERES - $EREHRER  WERAEHEEAR LHARRAN
nEEmES B LFARNEREREEAE NS Hﬁfﬁﬁ‘ff’ﬁ%ﬁf
MERBHFELERATARANHE/ BESE(WA)  FRYAH
FHUARERE BEBEROTROME BESE-

From the Yes
date of the
Undertaking
until the
expiry of the
Performance
Pledge Period
and the
fulfiment

of the
compensation
obligations

BAGHA7 &
HEREBA
HERAAE
SHETRE

Yes
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Important Matters
EEEIE

Fulfillment of Undertakings (Continued)

(ii) There have been profit forecast for the assets
or projects of the Company and the Reporting
Period is still in the period of profit forecast,
explanations as to whether the profit forecast

has been met and its reasons
\'Yes [ No [ Notapplicable

During the Reporting Period, BYTQ (as the guarantors of
performance) has undertook to make a committed net profit of
RMB27.5 million, RMB38 million, RMB41 million, RMB43 million and
RMB46 million in 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively,
which are determined according to the principle on the lower of the
net profit attributable to the owner of the parent company before
and after the deduction of non-recurring gains and losses.

As specifically audited by ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership), the audited net profit after the
deduction of non-recurring gains and losses of BYTQ for 2022 was
RMB43,425,600.

BYTQ completed its performance commitment of RMB41,000,000
in 2022, with a completion rate of 105.92%, and BYTQ was not
required to make any performance compensation.

(iii) Completion of results undertakings and the impact

on goodwill impairment testing
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

No impact on goodwill impairment testing was involved.

— REBEBITER®

(

D) AREBEREBFERNER

BEREHNEERFFNEE
RAREERNHERBEIRR
TR R H R B H 83

ORES O T™ER

WA LFERSIEABEEARER -
HAGETE20204F ~ 20214F ~ 20224 -
2023F 2024 @ LB IELEH IR
AT RBREARIFTAERFFIER
EFRAEENERFFED R ABARE
2,75087C - ARM3,8008 T« AR
4,100870 « ARM4,3008 AR
4,6008 7T °

L KRMEMERHA (FRLTRE
B EEAHEIERZ - LFKREF2022F
EERMCENNBRIECTE HIBER%
RFFEABARE4,342 568 7T °

ILFRE20224F F e EffGE AR
4,1008 7T » ERE105.92% * LIRS
MR EITEERE -

v EER

() FEARNTRBEREEEEE

BRI R R
ViR O Ess

NEREEHERENRNTE -

Il. Non-operating funds occupied by Controlling =~ ¥R 8 ph 3% A% A% 3R &2 HL fth 8 B
Shareholders and other related parties during FHLEMHEAERER

the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not Applicable O@EA N TER

lll. lllegal guarantee = ERERER
[ Applicable v Not Applicable O@EA N TER

U REIEESHSETAMSHE
BRESRETRE |HHA

O@Em N TEmR

IV. Explanation of the Board of the Company on
“Non-Standard Auditors’ Report” issued by

the auditors
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
T REREERGBERAR
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VI.

" C

" s P
Cd P 2%
V.

Analysis and explanation of the Company
on the reasons and impact of the change in
accounting policy, accounting estimates or

correction of significant accounting errors
(i) Analysis and explanation of the Company on the
reasons and impact of the change in accounting

policy and accounting estimates
(0 Applicable v Not applicable

(ii) Analysis and explanation of the Company on the
reasons and impact of the correction of significant
accounting errors

[0 Applicable v Not applicable
(iii) Communication with previous accounting firm

(1 Applicable v Not applicable

(iv) Other descriptions
] Applicable v Not applicable

Appointment and dismissal of accounting
firms

Currently appointed

REBME

Section 8

ENE EESE

B RAYEHIE « B2

ERERGHEHEEREM
BN DA
(=) RAYEFBER - FEHETEE
RE R ZEH 7 A
O@EA T Em

(Z) REHEAEHEZEHREERAR
FENDHH A
DEm Tl

(2) HEFEETMmERETNER
B
OEm Tl

() E 35 A
D@Em T

N BE - BEEE R A ERATER

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
By T B ARE

Name of domestic accounting firm

BANGRTRNEB A ke
Remuneration of domestic accounting firm 1 million
EANE=RNES AT 1008
Number of years of audit by domestic accounting firm 16 years
BANGR AN EBAETFR 164

Name of certified public accountant of domestic
accounting firm

BAGET RSB e HEE - @R
Continuing service year of certified public accountant of 16 years
domestic accounting firm
BN R ERS T M &5t M EsT R A EEFR 165
Name
=L

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership)

o

TR EBPT (SHREBAE)

Ma Chuanjun, Guan Huan

Remuneration

Accounting firm for internal control audit
NEBEHIE A SR BT

Description of appointment and dismissal of accounting firms
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants
(Spegial General Partnership)
REGFAEEAT (R EmRe %) 358

BBfE - BEEMEBANERHEA
ViEs O ™~EA

0.35 million
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Important Matters

EN\E BEZRHE
VI. Appointment and dismissal of accounting

firms (Continued)

There has been no change to ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) for audit of domestic financial reports and Da
Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General Partnership) for audit of
internal control reports engaged by the Company.

Description of change of accounting firms during the audit period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

VII. Risk for delisting

VIII.

XI.

(i) Reason for delisting risk warning
1 Applicable v Not Applicable

(i)

Countermeasures to be adopted by the Company
1 Applicable ' Not Applicable

(iii)

Possible termination of listing and reason thereof
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Matters relating to bankruptcy and

reorganization
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Material litigations and arbitrations
[J The Company has material litigations and arbitrations during the year
\ The Company has no material litigations or arbitrations during the year

Punishment and Rectification against Listed
Company and its Directors, supervisors, senior
management, Controlling Shareholders and

beneficial controller
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Description of the reputation of the Company
and its Controlling Shareholders, beneficial

controller during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

| Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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Section 8 Important Matters Il
ENE EESE

P | -
XIl. Material connected transactions o ERBEERS
(i) Connected transactions related to daily operation (—) EHAEKEEANEETS

1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1+ BEBRRAGEEEREERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERSBLNEE
implementation
[ Applicable v Not applicable O@Em N TNEA

2.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with 2y EEBRAGEE BERESR
progress or change in the follow-up implementation BHERSBENEE
[J Applicable v Not applicable O@Em N TNEA

3.  Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary 3- BRRAGERBEENSE
announcements
[ Applicable v Not applicable O@Em N TNEA

(i) Connected transactions in relation to the (Z) EETIREWE HERENE

acquisition or disposal of assets or equity BR5

interests

1.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements 1+ BEBRAGEEEAEERSE
without progress or change in the follow-up ERIBILNSE
implementation
\ Applicable 1 Not applicable ViR O REA

Summary of matter Index for enquiry

i Bz

The Non-public Issuance of A Shares which constitutes connected transaction: On 16 November 2022, Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited and Beijing wwww.sse.com.cn Announcement No. of the Company:

Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co,, Ltd. entered into the "Conditional Share Subscription Agreement in relation to the Non-public Issuance of Shares of Bejing Lin 2022-061 and the HKEXNews website of the

Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited”  The Company intends to raise proceeds of not exceeding RMB1,172 millon (inclusive) in total from the Non-public ssuance Stock Exchange (www. hkexnews.hk)
of A Shares to not more than 35 specifc investors, who meet the conditions p escnbed by the CSRC, including Jingcheng Holdings

FLRBTARRESRE WX% AEVA16E SARRARERGERATM A RABELRARA AR T (B RRABBENERATALAEARE  wwwssecom nAFRE : B2022-061 RERA
ZW %ﬁ){mwm LAEmaERIRRERRA W?ﬁ‘i@ﬁm R BB AR E R A A AR AR R A 41 %WUB/\EW 17200 HEZHE wawhkemewshk
2.  Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with 2. CDEBRAGEE BEEAEE
progress or change in the follow-up implementation TERER N E L NEIR
O Applicable v Not applicable D@EA N TNEs
3.  Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary 3- BRRAGEREENSE
announcements N N
[ Applicable v Not applicable D@EA N TNEs
4.  Results which are relating to result agreements and 4 DREBHOTEN EERERS
shall be disclosed for the Reporting Period HANREERER
[ Applicable v Not applicable O®@A TEA
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Important Matters

Xll. Material connected transactions (Continued)
(iii) Material connected transactions relating to

com
1.

(iv) Rela
1.

mon external investments

Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements
without progress or change in the follow-up
implementation

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with
progress or change in the follow-up implementation
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary
announcements
O Applicable v Not applicable

ted creditor’s right and debt transactions
Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements
without progress or change in the follow-up
implementation

O Applicable v Not applicable

Matters disclosed in extraordinary announcements with
progress or change in the follow-up implementation
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Matters which were not disclosed in extraordinary
announcements
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Provision of funding to related party

T -BEREERS @

(2) AREMRENEXBEBR S

1 EEGRBASHEERAERSE
ERFBLNER

O@EA N Em
2. CHEBRAEHE BRERHESE
HEHERRBLHNER
O@B N TEms
3 BRRASRKRENSEH
O®Am @A

(M) EAEKEREEHER
1 EBEBBASHBAXERES
ERAB(HER
O @M N TEm
2. CEBHALRE BARER
HEHERDBLNER
&R T Em
3+ BEASREBNEE
ViR O TEm

Unit: Yuan  Currency: RMB
Bl T BEARE

Provision of funding by related party
to listed company

nEELRLES BEARLTAARMES

Beginning Amount Ending Beginning Amount Ending
Related party Relationship balance occurred balance balance occurred balance
BEn i BIBR BEE BreR B BiE BRER
Jiangsu Tianhai Spedal Equipment Co,, Lid. Associate 4082180 286594209 290676389 398523387 300899456 699422843
THAERERAERAR /|
Bejing Jingcheng IndustralLogistcs Co,, Lt Subsiciiary of Shareholders 90222127 902,201.27
ERRATIENRERAR RRHFAR
Bejing Jngcheng Machinery Hectric Holding Co,, Lid. Controlling Shareholders 808472 Te466067 77275139
KR HERERAEAR BHRRR
Be@gLantiaﬂdaVehide(\earnFue\TechnoIogyCo‘,Ltd. Others 770654398 390273155 380381243 2938163859 -17,772,03684  11,609,601.75
KRERE BRI ERAR Eft
Bejing First Machine Tool Plant Subsidiary of Shareholders 1359.09 7359.09
bt ] REMFAF
Be@lin%chengHaitongTechno\ogy(uhureDevelopment(o.,Ltd. Controlling subsidiary 353981575 -3539815.75
IRRERRE U SRR A i SEG
Zheng Guoxiang Others 17492690 -174926.90
LI g
Guo Zhihong Others 17492689 -174926.89
Eh Eft
Kuancheng Shenghua Pressure Container Manufacturing Co, Ltd. ~ Others 156788390 91818540 649,698.50
HHRER AR HEARAR g
Tianjin Seamless Investment Co. Ltd. Others 574060511 121419997 452640514
REAZERERRALLA At
Beiging Znichuang (Beijng) New Energy Automobile Technology Co, Lid.  Associate 7,000,000.00 7,000,000.00
JEREIOb R AR R A ERAT B2
Li Hong Others 1086043338 10,860433.38
M Ef
TAOE\ 12,85,06543 549479061 73602748 4737500244 -4,701995.99  42,673006.45
=k

Reasons for occurrence of related creditor'sright and debt transactions: Under normal operation

BRERRBTARR ez
Effects of related creditors' rights and debts on the Company None
BRREERELRNTE &
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Xll. Material connected transactions (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Financial business between the Company and its
related financial company, and between financial
company controlled by the Company and related

parties
[0 Applicable v Not Applicable

Others
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has entered into connected
transactions with the following entities which are regarded as the
connected persons of the Company according to the Listing Rules.

(1) Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd. is the
Controlling Shareholder of the Company, holding 45.32%
of the equity interest in the Company. As such, Jingcheng
Machinery Electric is a connected person of the Company.

(2)  Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jingcheng Machinery
Electric, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company,
and thus the Asset Company is a connected person of the
Company.

(3)  Beijing Beiren Printing Equipment Co., Ltd. is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Jingcheng Machinery Electric, the Controlling
Shareholder of the Company, and thus the Asset Company is
a connected person of the Company.

The details of the connected transaction and the continuing
connected transaction for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
set out below:

Section 8

Important Matters IR

ENE EESE

T2 BEREERS @
() PRIEGEETHEBRRNEED

8 REERMBEATREES
ZENERER
DEm T

Hith
ViEm O fEm
HZ202212A318 - REBEBE T

RIE EMARREEAERNARIBEEALTH
BRI ERS

() il:????i)ﬁ% BEREREER

BARNBIERRRE - B Al Té'rﬁ
A)45. 32%&’]1&1 L R
BAAARIBEAL ©

) tﬁaﬁ% BEEBIEAREME

DEFERIR R WAL TR

%ﬁ? 7 Hit - EERAA
AR EAL -

(3)  dERAL AEIRIRBEER D F R
AERBRR R BN 2 E T
A FHit - BEERARARTA
EAL e

B22022512A31 AILFERRIER
RIFERER SFBEHI T -

255

/

2
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XIl. Material connected transactions (Continued) T2 ERBEERS @
(vi) Others (Continued) (7%) EAh @)
Connected transactions BERS
1. The connected transaction involved in the implementation of 1. BHEANRIFLRBEITARKEIES
the project of the non-public issuance of A shares BRAER S
On 16 November 2022, the nineteenth extraordinary meeting 2022%11A168 * AFRIFTEE
of the tenth session of the Board of the Company considered FERTNRRREREFRDB
and approved the “Resolution in relation to the Proposal for T (BN R AIBE AR ITARAR SR
the Company’s Non-public Issuance of A Shares” and other NE)ERE  RE(PEARK
resolutions, pursuant to the relevant requirements of the MBI RFADE)  (PEARILME
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Securities ER) (LM RRIESEITE
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Administrative Bix) <iﬂ@ﬁ%F’&5ﬂ?§ﬁ
Measures for the Issuance of Securities by Listed Companies”, BREEMMAD ZEEERNIEH
“Detailed Implementation Rules for the Non-public Issuance BT - AEIBEEIE AR EITAR
of Shares by Listed Companies” and other laws and EHR o wif R A RAIR2022
regulations, the Company proposed a plan for the non-public F11 716 ARB Pk FE 5 Auk
issuance of A shares. For details, please refer to the relevant WEAREAE -
announcements disclosed by the Company on 16 November
2022 on the HKEXNews website.
2. The connected transaction involved in the renovation of the 2> %EE VEEEITRE Y K
leased property X
On 19 January 2022, the property leased by the Company b”éZ\PZZiiﬁ 19 El,; ~RIEEH
is located in Yichuang Park, Beijing for office use. Necessary 12 1 PRAE SR I 7 Bl [ 8 #O 5 22
> 18 ‘ ' X N BRMEENTYE
fitting out work will be needed before the Company moves {ﬁﬁfﬁfégﬁé%mﬁ%gm
in and the Company has entered into agreement with Beiren ?5&2%‘??{]2‘?1@ ' L\fz/\jti\
Equipment that such fitting out work will be undertaken “X{% R§Tg’%9§ : Eﬁgt tﬁ*fﬁga
b - : i PLREE - (EMRBEREEER
y Beiren Equipment, such that the quality of work and YA e M) e e
completion time can be ensured. The prepayment for fitting “f‘ﬁa,&? PR ST - Z‘if'?};g%;
out work is RMB1,668,434.64 and the final payment will be Z%/\\E%J f§§'i3\4;§t475i’ i
based on actual settlement. For details, please refer to the ﬁﬁ%f‘*[\%\”‘ﬂg BR%E - 1A ﬁif‘;
relevant announcements disclosed by the Company on 19 $/’\§E§\QZZ¢% A19 EI/F\\;E’FX
January 2022 on the HKEXNews website. PR E8 5 M0, ERAMBRA R E -
Continuing connected transactions o= B s s
1. Continuous connected transaction relating to lease of Beiren 1. E%%@%ﬁ?étﬁé;i%%ﬁ@%%
Equipment’s property for office use “ b
N =453 = BE yE i S A
The Company intends to lease the property of Beiren ﬁg—%ﬁ%‘@%ﬁébﬁé\%gkﬁg
Equipment, our connected person, located at Yichuang Park WARE ((ZEE])  UERA
Area, Yizhuang, Beijing (the “Property”) for office use to TR AE ko ZEERSEELS
satisfy the Company’s office needs. The Property has a gross 1.102F 75 K ; FAER= & - ﬂ%
floor area of 1,102 sq. m. and the lease term is three years. B FERET S KEEmBER
Rental for the first year is RMB2.55/sq. m. of GFA, and from SR AR 5570 #E —F i
the second year onwards, rental will be increased by 2% per &%ﬂ%&i*iﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ’%zﬁi
year. Beiren Equipment will also provide property services at a 2% ;) E RS R Ar A LB 12
property fee of RMB264,480 per year. Gt - R B AGE ARK264 480
T o
2. Continuous connected transaction with the property leasing 2. BN EREEHSHEERE
of Jingcheng Haitong )
Beijing Tianhai and Jingcheng Haitong entered into the “Lease 1t RGBS @R 2018498
Agreement” on 4 September 2018 with a leasing term of 18 ARZEETCGEESR) - HEHIR
years. While transferring the property, Beijing Tianhai, Asset BI18E - R EEEEMEE -
Company and Jingcheng Haitong will sign an "“Agreement tRKE  BEAFTNLAHERA
on the Change of Party of the Lease” which will transfer all —HEEZ2GIEARTRETH
rights and obligations of Beijing Tianhai under the “Lease 2y B(EESR)EBE MR
Agreement” to Asset Company in general. On 6 July 2022, RGN EREIEEET
the Company issued the “Announcement of Completion of BENT 2022%F786H 0 A7)
the Project of Acquisition of 2% Equity Interest of Jingcheng BH(EAA AR FARIERKET
Haitong by a Subsidiary of the Company Beijing Tianhai 2 PR N TS B E 82 % IR R
Industry Co., Ltd.”. Upon completion of the acquisition, the BHMTHR ALY RKEEET
Company holds a 51% equity interest in Jingcheng Haitong Kig ARBBRAETIEEAR
through Tianhai Industrial, pursuant to which, Jingcheng B 1 % B IRE © BRUL - R
Haitong became a controlled subsidiary of the Company. In B AR A TIHIERFAT o
accordance with the Listing Rules, as Jingcheng Machinery TR FTEE AR RIS A
Electric is the controlling shareholder of the Company, Asset ARATIHIZERRSE  SEATAE
Company is a connected person of the Company. Accordingly, ARATIHEEA - At r HES
the transaction contemplated under the lease agreement FIETRET X 5RIKEEE
became continuing connected transaction of the Company EREKARNABRSERER
upon completion of the acquisition. 20
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Section 8

Xlll.Contracts of significance and their execution

(i) Trus
1.

t, contracting and lease matters

Trust

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Contracting

[ Applicable v Not applicable

Lease

\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Amount  Date of

Important Matters IR
ENE EESE

= BEREGRIREBEITER
(=) RS ARER

EEER
O@m N TEm

2. EEFER
O@A VT EA

3. HERFR
ViEA O fEm

Unit: Yuan Currency: RMB
By T BE:AEK

Basisof  Effectof  Related

determination lease income  party/ Related party/

of lease  commencement  Date of expiry of oflease  onthe connected ~ connected
Name of the leaser Name of lessee of asset  of lease lease Leaseincome income ~ Company transaction ~ relationship
HEERY HENE  AEhaY
b REL HEREE REE HERWR  EERLR HEGE ERGE 09PE  RAEERZ EBEA
Bejjng Jingcheng Haitong ~ Shenzhen Tenglong Holdings 110092588791 21 February 2021 18 0ctober 2036 63,747,17854  Lease Major No i
Technology Culture Co, lid. (RAIEEARR Ageerment  operating
Development Co, L. {(ERAR) fevenle
IERESENAIER  PIEEERRGERLE  MAEESB6T 110958791 NNEANE  NBENABE @48 BEAE  IEEERA T 8

BROT

Description of leasing
Not applicable

(i) Guarantee

[ Ap

plicable v Not applicable

HEBRHHA
TEA

(2) BRER

O@Em T Em
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Important Matters

Xlll.Contracts of significance and their execution

(Continued)
(iii) Cash assets entrusted to be managed by others

1.

Entrusted wealth management

(1)

)

3)

Overview of entrusted wealth management
[0 Applicable ~ Not applicable

Others
] Applicable v Not applicable

Single entrusted wealth management
[0 Applicable  Not applicable

Others
] Applicable v Not applicable

Impairment provision for entrusted wealth
management
] Applicable v Not applicable

Entrusted loans

(1)

)

3)

Overview of entrusted loans
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Others
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

Single entrusted loan
] Applicable v Not applicable

Others
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

Impairment provision for entrusted loans
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

Others
[J Applicable v Not applicable

(iv) Other contracts of significance
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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(Z) EXMAETRESEEETENS
wn
1. ZEEHER
(1) ZrEREEER
O ER N TEs
HibER
O@Em N TEm
(2) EEZTEHER
O ER N TEs
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O@Em N TEm

(3) ZEAEHREERE
O@Em T Em

2. EXERER
(1) ZTXEHARIER
O@Em T Em

HihER
O ER N TEs

2) ERZIZEMER
O@Em T Em

HihER
O ER N TEs

(3) ZFEEMBEER

O@Em N TEm
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XIV. Description of other major matters that
have a significant impact on investors' value

Judgment and investment decision
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

1.

Changes of the subsidiaries that included in the consolidation
scope during the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Company completed the below
acquisition and reorganisation projects, resulting in BYTQ and
Jingcheng Haitong being included in the consolidation scope.

Completion of the acquisition and reorganisation project of
BYTQ

The Company commenced the acquisition of 80% equity interest
in BYTQ in August 2020. The Company and BYTQ jointly promoted
the asset delivery arrangement and completed the transfer of shares
and the industrial and commercial registration of the equity interest
in BYTQ on 17 June 2022, and the issuance and listing of shares
in relation to the asset purchase was completed on 27 June 2022.
The core work of this major asset reorganization transaction was
successfully completed within 2022. All of the subject assets of the
asset acquisition by way of share issuance and cash payment and
raising of supporting funds have been changed to be registered
in the name of the Company, and the Company directly holds
80% equity interest in BYTQ. BYTQ officially became a controlled
subsidiary of the Company and was included in the consolidation
scope of the Company.

Acquisition of 2% equity interest in Jingcheng Haitong

The Company held the eighth meeting of the tenth session of the
Board on 28 April 2022 and the general meeting for the year of
2021 on 9 June 2022 respectively, which considered and approved
the “Resolution in relation to the Project on Acquisition of 2%
Equity interest in Beijing Jingcheng Haitong Technology Culture
Development Co., Ltd. Held by Beijing Nengtong Lease Company
by Beijing Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd.”, and agreed that Beijing
Tianhai Industry Co., Ltd. (“Tianhai Industry”), a subsidiary of
the Company, acquires 2% equity interest in Jingcheng Haitong
held by Beijing Nengtong Lease Company (“Beijing Nengtong”),
with a transfer price of RMB461,732. After the completion of the
transaction, the registered capital of Jingcheng Haitong remains
RMB80 million, and the amount of capital contribution and equity
ratio of shareholders of both parties are changed to: Tianhai Industry
contributes RMB40.80 million, with a shareholding of 51%, and
Beijing Nengtong contributes RMB39.2 million, with a shareholding
of 49%.

Jingcheng Haitong has completed the industrial and commercial
change registration procedures on 4 July 2022 such as change of
capital contribution and the equity ratio of shareholders and filing
the "Articles of Association”, and obtained a new business license.
On the same day, both parties completed the delivery of assets,
and Tianhai Industry obtained the controlling interest of Jingcheng
Haitong and included it into the consolidation scope of the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company started the project of
non-public Issuance of A Shares, which has been considered and
approved by the Board of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Company’s subsidiaries were
subject to applicable enterprise income tax rates of 25% and 15%.

Review of financial statements for the Reporting Period by
the audit committee

The audit committee of the Board of the Company has reviewed and
confirmed the annual financial report for 2022.

Section 8

ENE EESE

T E v ¥ 3% & & 1F L EE I A
RERRBEEAREZENEKRS

T8 {95 BR
ViR O A

1 BEPFLAMASHEERERR

WEMA - DAITEACA T OHE RUE IR
E CEAEFRERRBERAAS GHE
ER

STHILFXEHBEEARR

NAIA2020F8 AMBE M EIL ¥ X
H80%MRIEIER - NAIEILFREEN
HEMER E X2 - 10202246 H17R
TERALFRERENBFANIHELT
1E - 202266 A27A TR A EB B
M 84T B T - FE2022F AKX
NERANRERNEESERZHNZ LT
1B o RRBEITRNHEENESBELE
WHEREESHENEED 2 HEE
BREQATAAT  AREERFAILFXR
E80%HIRHE o I F R E FRBLARA
BRI F AR - MARAMEITEE -

Y8 T I B2 % IR R
NElDRIR2022F4 8288 BHE T E
BEELE)/\XDE - 2022F6A9HA
F202 1 FFERBEAT - Fiimib(E
RIERRESIEGRA KRB ReEB
MEQFFANIE R MR UE
BREMBAA2%BIEBBENER) -
RAEARRTRARULRRETIEBRA
Bl ([REBIEDWEILReEBHER A
([HEaEm]) 358 BRI 3E2 % A -
HRERAAREL46.17328 70 - KX
RS E  RHEBEMENDABA
FR#8,0008 7T « 77 % R i & R M
LB S A 0 KRBT EHEARRE4,080
B0 FR51% - dtREEBEEARE
3,9208 7T © ##849% -

PHBRE 0202257 HAHEREE I
REBBEMBREL P RER(AREIE)
SIRETELTE MEMNEER
BB BHEREERSE - KEL
ERS RS BOIERE - MARF
apteEE -

2> WREHA - REMEIEAFHBEITARKE
R BERCDEARERFSEARE -

3¢ HEHAFRCXMAEHMOBEARESR
25% > 15% ©
4. BHERFENREPUBRERER

NAEEE BN LZESEEMUER
2022F BAFE3RE ©
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Corporate Governance Code

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its
corporate governance code. The Board considers that the Company
has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG
Code throughout the year during the year.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors and
Supervisors

During the Reporting Period, the Company has adopted the model
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by directors and
supervisors on terms no less exacting than the required standards
set in the “Model Code” in Appendix 10 of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. After making specific enquiries to all Directors and Supervisors,
the Company confirmed that, each of Directors and Supervisors
has complied with the required standards on securities transactions
by Directors and Supervisors as set in the Model Code for the 12
months ended 31 December 2022.

Pre-emptive rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the
PRC and the "Avrticles of Association” of the Company.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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l.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL — RAZEENR
(1) Statement of changes in Shares (—) ROEEBBERE
1.  Statement of changes in Shares 1 BROSEFERE
Unit: share
Bz R
Before change Increase and decrease (+,-) in change After change
LY LI KREERE(+ -) LYY L
Proportion Issuance of Conversion Proportion
Amount (%) newshares  Bonusissue from reserve Other Subtotal Amount (%)

HE BB BGER R ORSER Eft it BB A

() Sheres subjectto trading - BRERERG 3,000,000 1299 457265988 457265988 120,265988 016
moratorium

1. State-onned shares 1 Bk

2. State-onned egalperson shares 2 EBEA#R 63,000,000 1299 63,000,000 1161

3. Other domestc shares 3 EfomERR 455,450,106 455450106 55,450,106 1022

Including: Domestic non-tate-owned 2 - ERFEEEEAER +3655,7%2 H365575 13655752 19

legal person shares

Domestc naturalpeson shares—~~ EARASTR +41794354 AT 47935 m

4. Foreign shares 4 5ERsR +1815882 H805882 18158 03

Incuding: Overseas legal person shares £ - AR +81588 H81588 181588 03

Overseas naturalpersonshares—— SEJMEFRARSRR

) Ciculating shares ot subjectto =~ EREBERERS 422000000 8701 422,000,000 78
trading moratorium

1. Renminbi ordinary shares 1 \EEEER 322,000,000 66.39 322,000,000 5938

2. Forein shares sted domestically 2 570 £ ER:

3. Foregn shares sted overseas 3+ 501 L ASVAR: 100,000,000 082 100,000,000 1844

4, Others 4 ﬁﬁﬂ

(1) Totalshares i 485,000,000 100 457,265,988 57265988 542,265,988 100

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, RBWEBRAN - ARAIREME LG ERE

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities g e KEREAARNR) ZRE -

during the Reporting Period.

2022 ANNUAL REPORT | 179
2022 FERE




PRD 2B R IR R R

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued)

Explanation on the changes in the Shares
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

The Company issued 46,481,314 ordinary shares (A shares)
denominated in RMB to 12 persons, including Li Hong, and
completed the registration and sales restriction of the issuance
of Shares at Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation Limited with the approval by the
CSRC in the "Approval of the Asset Acquisition by Way of
Issuance of Shares and Raising of Supporting Funds to Li Hong
and Others by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company
Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2022] No. 586). The Company
issued a total of 10,784,674 ordinary shares (A shares)
denominated in RMB as part of the raising of supporting
funds by way of non-public issuance, and has completed the
registration and sales restriction of the issuance of Shares
at the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited. For details, please refer to
the “Jingcheng Holdings: Announcement in relation to the
Issuance Results of the Asset Acquisition by way of Share
Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds
and Change in Share Capital” (announcement no.: Lin 2022-
041) disclosed by the Company on the Shanghai Securities
News and the website of the SSE (www.sse.com.cn) on 28
June 2022; and the "Jingcheng Holdings: Announcement
in relation to the Issuance Results of the Asset Acquisition
by Way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising
of Supporting Funds and Change in Share Capital”
(announcement no: Lin 2022-055) disclosed on the Shanghai
Securities News and the website of the SSE (www.sse.com.cn)
on 23 August 2022, or refer to the announcements on
27 June 2022 and the “Announcement in relation to the
Issuance Results of the Asset Acquisition by Way of Share
Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting
Funds and Change in Share Capital” on 22 August 2022
disclosed on the HKEXNews website of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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. CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) — RAEEE R @
(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued) (=) H"ﬁﬁiﬁ’%—/ﬂ% ()

3.  Effect of the change in Shares on financial indicators RO EHHEE—FNHEE—H
such as earnings per share and net assets per share for BRWKE EBERFEESVEIE
the latest year and the latest period (if any) EHTE (R)

\ Applicable [ Not Applicable ViER DTER
As considered and approved at the first extraordinary general LNTF2022FF —RBRERKRE
meeting of 2022, the First A Share Class Meeting of 2022 RE,2022F & — RARERIR
and the First H Share Class Meeting of 2022, and approved RAREK2022FF— KHREER
by the CSRC under the “Approval of the Asset Acquisition by RREAGEZBR  WEFEHE
Way of Issuance of Shares and Raising of Supporting Funds g*’°"§E§§.:1F—J[2022]58651“<<Fﬁ?5’\
to Li Hong and Others by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric AL R R EERG BRA
Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2022] No. 586), the méil—rﬁéﬁﬂﬂ‘ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁjr%
registration of the additional 46,481,314 shares issued to 12 EREE ST ZE
persons including Li Hong was completed on 24 June 2022 Fﬂ?%l%12/\?§ﬁﬁ'\]46,481,314
and the registration of the additional 10,784,674 ordinary A&R2022F 6 A24 B IR T 25
shares (A shares) denominated in RMB non-publicly issued AR B - ARIAFERFAETT
by the Company was completed on 19 August 2022. During FAREITHARE L BERAR)
the Reporting Period, the total share capital of the Company 10,784,674/ 72 2022F8 A19H
increased from 485,000,000 shares to 542,265,988 shares. ##Iiru%%ﬁi‘ f&in &R - FREH
A - A E#PEZR R 485,000,0000%
i7]1]5542,265,988]& °
According to the above changes in share capital, the basic IR Ll fR A B15H2022
earnings per share for 2022 was RMB0.04 and the net assets Erﬁ$tﬁxﬂﬁlﬁn/‘%)\ﬁﬁﬁo.04
per share was RMB2.59. T BRFEERARKE2.59
7T e
4.  Basic information of the raised funds 4. EBEESEHAER

After the issuance of the “Approval in relation to the Non-
public Issuance of Shares by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2019] No.
2551) by the China Securities Regulatory Commission, on 30
June 2020, Zhong De Securities transferred the raised funds
after deducting the relevant underwriting sponsorship fees to
the raised funds special account designated by the Company.
In accordance with the “Capital Verification Report” No.
XYZH/2020BJA40505 issued by ShineWing Certified Public
Accountants LLP (Special General Partnership) on 2 July 2020,
the Company non-publicly issued 63,000,000 A Shares with
the total proceeds amounted to RMB214,830,000, which
after the deduction of issuance expenses (tax exclusive)
of RMB7,104,802.04, the net proceeds amounted to
RMB207,725,197.96. As of 30 June 2020, the Company has
received the above-mentioned funds of RMB207,725,197.96,
of which RMB63,000,000 was the new registered capital
(share capital) and RMB144,725,197.96 was the capital
reserve increase.

KAEEFEEERZES(E
Rz R R ERMNDBER A
APERAHBITRENIE) (B2
FFA[2019]2551%%) - zozoﬁeﬂ
30H  REELEAAD JE B AR
/A%Eéféﬁﬁ%?ﬁ;ﬁuﬁﬂa%%
EERBEERENESEES 1B
BEKP MG TS kT
BAHE)N2020F7A2BE AN
XYZH/2020BJA40505%% (52 & %R
£Y 1 ARIN2020F6 A298 I ER
FE1TARR 1% 2263,000,0000% @ %
EESHRTAAREK214,830,000
TT o HIBRBETER(TEH) AR
#7.104,802.0470 - BEESFEE
AR#207,725,197.967C - & &
20206 A30H 1F - AFIEHKEF]
FatE e AR%207,725,197.96
JC - H AR ME A (R4 A
R #63,000,0007T * EINERRD
FEARM144,725,197.967T ©
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CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued)
4. Basic information of the raised funds (Continued)
In 2022, the use of the aforesaid proceeds was as follows:
as of 31 December 2022, the total amount of the aforesaid
proceeds actually used by the Company to invest in related
projects was RMB187,683,100, of which RMB3,963,500
was invested in 2022. The proceeds of the raised funds were
used according to the intentions previously disclosed by the
Company, the situation of the specific usage of proceeds are as

— RABBER w
()JW@EEM%&%uﬁ
HEEESELER (@)

20224 % -
B

A EEESFRE
HZE2022512A3181F -

NR BRI ARBIEE NS
EE S HIALTT AREE18,768.31
Bt HA2002FEERAARYK
396.358 7L - EEESWATFR
TERRARER AL ATIEENR

follows: ZHF - ABFERBREAT
Unit: RMB
By ARK T
Non-public
issuance of shares
Items HH FEABBITRE
I, Net proceeds — EEBESFHE 23,725,987.71
Add: interest income of proceeds after i EEELFBU RS FER
deducting charges 61,296.10
Il Use of raised funds —EEESFH 3,963,516.68
Including: use of proceeds from fund raising Hh BEESINREEESTER
projects upon receipt of proceeds FRESEES 3,963,516.68
Ill. Balance of unused proceeds = MAREANEEESRE 19,803,172.57
IV. Actual balance of the special account for P - ZEEGEHFEERHEE
fund raised 19,803,172.57
V. Difference hEE 20,594.56
Note: The difference refers to the proceeds used for the construction 7 EZERARTANRE R EIE
project of intelligent digital control production line for type EEGERER MERERR
IV cylinders and repayment of debts owed to controlling RESRBEBEGNESEES

shareholder and financial institutions which have been
fully utilised, and the designated account for fund raised
with the account number 10262000000869946 and
10262000000869935 were closed on 17 October 2022,
and the balance of the accounts of RMB20,594.56 was
transferred to the account with an account number of
10262000000431540 of Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua
Xia Bank. As of the reporting date, the above transfer expenses
have been fully transferred back to the designated account for
fund raised (bank: Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia
Bank, account number: 10262000000869924).

5. Deposit and management of raised funds

1.

Non-public issuance of A shares

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the regulations of the “Rules Governing the
Management of Funds Raised by Listed Companies
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange”, and following
the principles of regularity, safety, efficiency and
transparency, the Company formulated the " Fund
Raising Management Measures" to make clear
regulations on the storage, approval, use, management
and supervision of the funds raised in order to
systematically ensure the proper use of the funds raised.

The Company has established a designated account for
fund raised. The Company and Beijing Tianhai Industry
Co., Ltd., its subsidiary, the sponsor and the commercial
bank where the raised funds are deposited signed
a tripartite supervision agreement on 1 July 2020
in accordance with the relevant regulations on the
management of the raised funds of listed companies
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange to jointly supervise the
use of the raised funds.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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I.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued)

BOLBRBEER

— s BRAEZEE R @

(—) BRI #EEREX @

5.  Deposit and management of raised funds (Continued) 5. BEESEMREERER(E
1. Non-public issuance of A shares (Continued) 1 FRBEBRITARKSE ()
As of 31 December 2022, the designated accounts for HZE2022F12A318 * &
fund raised and their deposits of the raised funds are as RRAEEESHBRNEEE
follows: SHARP RAFRHERN
T

Unit: RMB
By - ARK T

Purpose of the

Bank Bank account no. Ending balance  designated account

B FERAT RATHRR HAR$BE ZHFAZ

Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia Bank 10262000000869946 0.00  Construction project of the
Type IV cylinder intelligent
digital control production
line (Note 1)

EERITIL RN ERAT AR B BT AR
EREE )

Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia Bank 10262000000869935 0.00  Repayment of debts owed
to controlling shareholder
and financial institutions
(Note 2)

EERITIL RN ERLT EIEIEARACR f & R
&% (F2)

Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia Bank 10262000000869924 19,803,172.57  Research and development

FERITIL R ELTT

Total
&t

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

As of 31 December 2022, the funds raised used for the construction
project of the Type IV cylinder intelligent digital control production
line had been fully utilized, and the designated account for fund
raised with an account no. 10262000000869946, was closed on 17
October 2022, during which interest income amounted to RMB1.47
and transfer expenses amounted to RMB598.45 were incurred
(counterparty bank: Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia
Bank, account number: 10262000000431540). As of the reporting
date, the transfer expenses have been fully transferred back to the
designated account for fund raised (bank: Beijing Guanghua sub-
branch of Hua Xia Bank, account number: 10262000000869924).

As of 31 December 2022, the funds raised used for the repayment
of debts owed to controlling shareholder and financial institutions
had been fully utilized, and the designated account for fund raised
with an account no. 10262000000869935, was closed on 17
October 2022, during which interest income amounted to RMB49.05
and transfer expenses amounted to RMB19,996.11 were incurred
(counterparty bank: Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia
Bank, account number: 10262000000431540). As of the reporting
date, the transfer expenses have been fully transferred back to the
designated account for fund raised (bank: Beijing Guanghua sub-
branch of Hua Xia Bank, account number: 10262000000869924).

The remaining funds for the research and development project of
hydrogen energy products are expected to be spent correspondingly
with the Company's research and development progress.

project of hydrogen energy
product
[ELEMAEIER

19,803,172.57 -

1 HE2022%F12A318 - AR
ARSI BITEEERR
BREEMNBEEESBER2EE
Axf E5EE2EAKRP
10262000000869946/220224F
10178 8P - BRI EFR S
WAANRM1 470 BEZH
ARBES598.457T (¥ 7 iR1TAEE
BRITIERAESZIT  BRP -
10262000000431540) * HZE
BER BRI HEEEERE
BEEESERER (RPRIT:
EERTIERKEST K
F : 10262000000869924) °

H2: B ZE2022412A8318 A
REEERRE RS R E
EHEONEEELD2HER
T2 - BEESERERP
10262000000869935/A20224F
10178 HP - BRI LR S
WAANREE49.057T RS
AER#19,996.117T (¥ 5 4R7T
BIRSITHERIT  BP -
10262000000431540) * &=
HER EEYHBE2EED
SRECERER (APRT -
EERTIERKELT K
F : 10262000000869924) °

A3 SREERMERERFBESRE
Hfb A AR IR A R B
RIGNAAEH ©
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FENE ROBIFREKRIRER

l.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) — RAZHE R @
(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued) (—) BRI #EEREX @
5.  Deposit and management of raised funds (Continued) 5. BEESEMREERER (@&
2. Asset acquisition by way of share issuance and 2 BITROSNELEELEE
cash payment and raising of supporting funds WEEMELEEL
In order to standardize the management and use of ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%iﬁéﬁﬁ f@fﬂ@i
the proceeds and protect the interests of investors, the RELEE=

Company has formulated the “Administrative Measures
for Raising of Supporting Funds” in accordance with
the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“No.2 Regulatory Guidance on Listed Companies —
Regulatory Requirements for Management and Use of
Raised Funds of Listed Companies”, the “Guidelines
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange for Self-discipline
Supervision of Listed Companies No. 1 — Standard
Operation” and other relevant laws and regulations
and in conjunction with the actual situation of the
Company, to adopt a dedicated deposit system for
the funds raised and regulate the deposit, use and
supervision of the funds raised.

On 27 July 2022, the Company set up a separate
designated account for fund raised at the Beijing
Guanghua Sub-branch of Huaxia Bank Co., Limited and
entered into the “Tripartite Supervision Agreement for
the Deposit of Funds Raised” with Beijing Guanghua
sub-branch of Hua Xia Bank Co., Limited and CSC
Financial Co., Ltd.

There is no material difference between the Tripartite
Supervisory Agreement and the Model Supervisory
Agreement of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and there
is no problem in the performance of the Tripartite
Supervisory Agreement.

As of 31 December 2022, the designated account for
fund raised and their deposits for the funds raised are as

7FE%F<<EP$}\E ﬂ]l
E) - <¢$/\E#\5ﬁu%’§
FE) - (EMRAREE R
SIE2%— EmRaBEE
SEEMEANES ER)
BAEBEHRR G ETR
AEEREERSIFIR—#H
%’@@1’@#7@%@&@&&2
RE  BEARNERE
o HIET(EEESERE
PR HEEESHENEA
FEHHE  HEEESH
TR EH - BEES#ETT
HBIE °

202267 A278 © REINE
BRI ARARIE R
EYTTRUEBNEEES
HAKF - WHEESRTR
HERABEE R ELIT
FERIEESFBRHDER AR

%T(%Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

FEERE)

“HEERRE EEESFR
SPGB MREATNFEE
AER  —HEEHHNE
TIFERRE -

HZE202212A318 ' A
RAEEESHBRNESESE

follows: SHEARP RAEFRHERN
T~
Ending Purpose of the
Bank Bank account no. balance (RMB) designated account
B P ERAT RITRRIR HARSBE(CT) HFRAR
Beijing Guanghua sub-branch of Hua Xia Bank 10262000000953077 48,494,938.86  Payment of cash

FEBRITIL R ERAT

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

consideration, taxes and
intermediaries’ fees and
replenishment of working
capital for the acquisition
of the target assets etc.
S EEIRNEENRZ S
BB HERDIIH
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Changes in Shares and Im‘ormahon of Shareholders Il
0 EhE ROSBRERER
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l.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) — BRAZEER @
(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued) (=) BRI #EERER @
6.  Use of funds raised 6 EEELFEABR
1. Non-public issuance of A shares 1 FRFBITARESE
Comparison table of the use of non-public issuance of shares
FIRETRERABRARR
Total amount of funds raised 207,305,400.64  Total amount of funds raised invested during the year 3963,516.68
BRESHE FEERABRESEE
Totalamountoffundsra|sedsub]ecttoathangeofuse 000 Accumulated total amount of funds raised invested 187,683,102.50
SERENERECER BEIRAERELEE
Percentage of total amount of funds raised subject to a change of use 000
SERRDESAAOELN
Diference
between the
accumulated
invested
amountas of
the end of
the periodand  Progress of
Committed the committed  investment
investment investment ~~ as of the Whether the
Changed amount as Accumulated  amount as of endof Dateofproject  Benefits  Whether the feasibility of
projects, Total committed Total amount  of the end investedamount  theendof  the period  reaches realized expected  the project
including partial  investmentof o invest after ofthe  Investedamount  asoftheendof  the period (%) scheduled during ~ benefits are has significant
Committed investment project ~ changes (ifany) ~ funds raised adjustment ~ period (1) during the year the period (2) (3}2 (2%!;{1*) (=) avalability theyear achieved  changes
Eith\
BEER SEERR  BEER
BREER AREA BEAR  RASE RAEE EREY ERfH
2H08E Fiied Bag £ ] REE EitRALE =] (%) BETRA KEE REEY RARL
ARAEER (&) RERERE bt (1 RALE @@= W= REas BRNNE RiNE  EXEL
1. Construction project of the Type V-~ N/A 52,000,000.00 52,000,000.00 NA 0.00 52,000,000.00 NA 10000 2021-1130  5,036,77873 Yes No
cfinder inteligent digital control
oductionfe
| DEREE ARAESRTEE TER TéR TR 2001130 ® A
2. Repayment of debts owed to NIA 128,020,400.64 128,020,400.64 NA 0.00 128,020,400.64 NIA 10000 NA NA - NA No
controling shareholder and
financl insttutons - . - ~ o
L ERERRERARARER  TER HiER AR Iyl MR fER A
3Researchaﬂddeve\0pmen project A 27,285,00000 27,285,00000 A 39351668 7662,701.86 NIA 2808 NA NA - NA No
hyd %gen energy product
3. EHERHREE TER TER TR Tk TR TER &
Loiﬁl - 20730540064 207,305,400.64 - 3963516.68  187,683,102.50 - - - - - -
AR
Reason fo not meeting the planned progress (b speciic fund rasng project) NA
FENHEMERA(DAREREA) TR
Descrption of swgnmcam changes n the feashiyof the projet NA
BEAAHEEERR AR T
Prir investment and replacement of funds rased investment projects 0n 29 July 2020, the Company held the third extraordinary megting of the tenth session of the Board and considered and approved the resolution in relaton to the
replacement of the self-raised funds pre-invested in investment projects with rised funds from the non-public issuance o shares, and decided to use the proceeds from the
non-public suance of shares of RVB26,821,768 to replace the pre-invested sef-raised funds of the constructon projec of the Type IV ylinder inelligent diital control
producton ine. The independent Director, the Supenvsory Commitee and the sponsor of the Company have fulfiled the corresponding scrtiny procedures and disclosed
them in a timely manner
FEECRARE AR\ RELER ANETRNARLTERR TEESER-NERES  BARE BN ARRORRERR0RARICR B RAR ARCNER RERRELREN
&{ﬁ Q%AE”26821768,W§%§M$§§§E [asEs uﬁﬁfﬁﬁxmﬁaéﬁ% ABIES EReN RRERANERMRRNESRRIE
TemporarLep\ems ment of worki mgcap\ fal with the unused raised funds There was no emporary replenishment of working capital with the unused aised funds during the year.
Etergriaait SRR REREILERRRCRALYY .
Cash  managerment o unused raised funds and investment n related poducs Durm# the year, there was no cash managemento unused raisec funds and nvestment in reated products.
HREREAGENLER REREERER FRNEYEEREESERAEE RERBEER:
Permanent repenishment of work mgcapnalo repayment of bank loans with excess funds During the year,there was no pemanent eplemshmentofworkmgcap\ta\orrepaymentofbankIoanswwthexcessfunds
BREECKARARETERNENER g ERME ﬁﬁiﬂ%ﬁ’fwm EEEET S GERCE
The amount of the balance of the funds raised and the reasons for its formation AsofﬂDecemberZOZZ the funds raised used to repay the debts owed to controlling shareholder and financial nsttutions and the construction projectof the type IV
} ) cl\mde inteligent digita control produc ion fine had been fully utifzed and the corresponding account had been closed on 17 October 2022.
BEESLRNCRRVIRR BENDENAYA BREEARRR R BR R ERANA AR b R R WA R 2IRERE  EHREPERNE0AASP -
Other use offunds rised There are no other cases of use of funds aised by the Company.
FEECEBEARR RRATFEESRSRRNENER
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I.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

— s BRAZEE R @

(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued) (=) BRI #EERER @
6.  Use of funds raised (Continued) 6 EHEELFERABERGE
2. Asset acquisition by way of share issuance and 2 BITROSNELEELEE
cash payment and raising of supporting funds WEEMELEE

Comparison table of the use of asset acquisition by way of share issuance and cash payment and raising of supporting funds

YRORZARERRARUERRERSRARINRE

Total amount of funds raised 193,305,717.40 Total amount of funds raised invested during the year 104,904,044.43
SEGEE KEERAERELEE
Total amount of funds raised subject to a change of use 000 Accumulated total amount of funds raised invested 104,904,044.43
SERENERECER BEIRABRELEE
Percentage of total amount of funds raised subject to a change of use 000
SERENERECAEHN
Diference
between the
accumulated
invested
amount as of
the end of
the periodand  Progress of
Committed the committed  investment
investment investment ~~as of the Whether the
Changed amount as Accumulated  amount as of endof Dateofproject  Benefits  Whether the feasibility of
projects, Total committed Total amount ~ of the end invested amount  theendof  the period  reaches realized expected  the project
including partial investmentof  of invest after ofthe  Invested amount  asoftheend of  the period (%) scheduled during ~ benefits are has significant
Committed investment project ~~ changes ifany) ~ funds raised adjustment ~ period (1) during the year the period (2) (35_%(1*) (@=N01)  availability theyear achieved  changes
X!
EHEIN
BESR SEERT  HEER
BEEER ARAA BEAR  BASE RARE EREY ERfH
2HH8E gxed fi i £ REg BitRALE =] () BETEA REE RREY  RAE:
RiFREER (1) RiREaE hEaE (1) hASE O B=e4 W= ReRE ERbNE BMNE  EAM
WPaymen of cash consideration A 87,433,884.40 8743388440 A 6743388440 6743388440 A 7113 NA B49792%  Yes No
1 ARG HE TER TER Lyl TR = A
2ep\emshmemofwovkmgcapita\ NA 35871,833.00 35,871,833.00 NA 7470,160.03 7470,160.03 NA 208 NA NA - NA No
of the Company, payment of taxes
and intermediares' fees
2 BRLTARRGES RAHE TER 1ER HER TER 8B TER B
T EEER
3. Increase of capitel of the target A 30,00000000 30,000,000.00 NA 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00 NIA 10000 NA NA - NA No
company to replenish the working
capitl
3mm AEEEERDEE TR TER iy TER 8B TER B
TOEFI - 153,305,717.40 153,305,717.40 - 104,904,044.83 104,904,044.83 - - - - - -
=]
Reason for not meeting the planned pr 0ges (by specic fund raising project) NA
FENEERRR(DEEEREE) TR
Descrption of significant changes in the feasiblty of the project NA
BRTARBAEARIMERSE TER
Prir investment and replacement of funds rased investment projects N/A
BEESREZRAER\REARR Nt

Temporary replenishment of working capital with the unused raised funds
RRERRRCERRRRGECEN

Cash management of unused raised funds and investment n related products

URERRACETLEE  REMBERRER

Permanent replenishment of working capitalor repayment of bank loans with excess funds

BEEESAABARIRLIBRATENEN

The amount of the balance of the funds raised and the reasons for ts formation

SRERERNERRTAIRR

Other use of funds rised

ZRELEUEAER

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

There was no temporary replenishment of working capital with the unused rised funds during the year.
RERTRENREERECERRRREE LR

During the year, there was no cash management of unused aised funds and nvestment in related products.
RERTRRHRERRRCEMALRR RARBEREN

During the year, there was no permanent ep\emshmemofworkmgcam tal or repayment of bank loans with excess funds.
RERTRERREASAARRRDECABREAERER

s of 31 December 2022, the unutiized raised funds were due to: 1) falure to pay the intermediaris' fees and other accounts and the replenishment
of working capita; ) the cash consideration of RMB20,000,000 hid not yet reached the payment term in accordance with the *Agreement on Asset
Acquisttion by Way of Shares Isuance and Cash Payment” entered into between the shareolders of the Company and the subject company.
BRNENMIR BEECARARSIRAR | WA FRESIBRERRDES | ) AL AERNDAZBREEN(Bh
BhREHBERELEGE R - BN TRAEESAHTE -

There are no other cases of use of funds aised by the Company.

RATTEEERARANERAR -
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l.  CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) — RAZHE R @
(1) Statement of changes in Shares (Continued) (=) BB EEREX @
7.  Other disclosure deemed necessary by the Company or 7 RRARRVESIRFEEHREER
required by securities regulatory authorities RFBENEMERET
[ Applicable v Not Applicable OEm N EA
(2) Changes in Shares subject to selling restrictions (Z) RERMDEFHER
\ Applicable 1 Not Applicable ViR OTER
Unit: share
By R
Number of Number of Number of Number of
restricted shares  restricted shares  restricted shares restricted shares
atthe beginning  released during increase during attheend Reason for
of the year the year the year of the year restricted sale Release date
Name of shareholder RR#% FYRERY AERBRERY AFENRERY FRRERY RERE BRRERS
Nanhua Fund Management Co,, BEESERERAT 678426 678,426  sale restriction on raising of 20 February 2023
lid. (BEERERERAT) supporting funds 20327208
BENEASRE
Caitong Fund Management Co, BIBESERERAR 4,016,282 4016282 sale restriction on raising of 20 February 2023
ltd. GrRZEEEARAT) supporting funds 20352£ 208
BENEASRE
Nuode Asset Management Co,,  HEESERERAT 4,274,084 4,274,084 sale restriction on raising of 20 February 2023
lid. (EEERERERAT) supporting funds 20327208
BENEASRE
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, JPMORGAN CHASE 1,815,882 1,815,882 sale restriction on raising of 20 February 2023
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION BANK, NATIONAL supporting funds 202352R208
ASSOCIATION BEREASRE
LiHong B 19,099,566 19,099,566  Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock the first two phases
and reorganization on 26 June 2023
i el 0235626 AR
Zhao Qing il 6,540,785 6,540,785 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlack the first two phases
and reorganization on 26 June 2023
hEsdRE 200356 A 2R EEHTE
Yang Ping #E 5,405,865 5,405,865 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 20356 26R8H
hEsERE
Qingdao Eternal ERIGE 4,686,960 4,686,960 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock the first two phases
and reorganization on 26 June 2023
hEsdRE 200356 A26REEHTE
Wang Xiaohui TEE 4,039,404 4,039,404 Sale restriction on the acquisition - Unlock the first two phases
and reorganization on 26 June 2023
i el 0235626 AR
Xia Tao EE 2,015,123 2,015,123 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 00356 26B 8%
HEEaRE
Wang Huadong TER 2015123 2,015,123 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 20356 26R8H
hEsERE
Qian Yuyan HRE 806,048 806,048 Sale restriction on the acquisition - Unlock the first two phases
and reorganization on 26 June 2023
hEsdnE 200356 A 26REEHTE
Xiao Zhonghai g 589,423 589,423 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 20356 26R8H
hEsERE
Xiu Jun BE 526,269 526,069 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 00356 26B 8%
HEEaRE
Fu Dun B 378913 378913 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 20356 26R8H
hEsERE
Chen Zhengyan Rz 377,835 377,835 Sale restriction on the acquisition  Unlock on 26 June 2023
and reorganization 00356 26B 8%
HEEaRE
Total a3 57,265,988 57,265,988 / /
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Issuance and listing of securities

0]

Issuance of securities during the Reporting Period
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

)E&’ iﬁ%,ﬁﬂﬁq%#i‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ViER O7EA

Unit: share  Currency: RMB
By - R OEFE - ARKE

Number
approved Termination
Issue price for listing date of
Types of stocks and derivatives Issue date (or interest rate) Issue amount  Listing date transactions transaction
REREGERSNER B84 BTER R T i BELTRA%E RHRILEH
Type of ordinary shares
LERRER
A Shares Al 2022/6/24 RIMB3.42 per share 46,481,314 2022/6128 0 -
20256A24R 347/ R 20256728H
A Shares Al 2022/8/19 RMB14.74 per share 10,784,674 2022/8/23 10,784,674 -
200258R19H 14747/ 20258A 23R

Description of securities issued during the Reporting Period (please
specify the bonds with different interest rates during their duration):
Applicable [J Not Applicable

The Company issued 46,481,314 ordinary shares (A shares)
denominated in RMB to 12 persons, including Li Hong, and
completed the registration and sales restriction of the issuance
of Shares at Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and
Clearing Corporation Limited with the approval by the CSRC in the
“Approval of the Asset Acquisition by Way of Issuance of Shares
and Raising of Supporting Funds to Li Hong and Others by Beijing
Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke
[2022] No. 586). The Company issued a total of 10,784,674 ordinary
shares (A shares) denominated in RMB as part of the raising of
supporting funds by way of non-public issuance, and has completed
the registration and sales restriction of the issuance of Shares at
the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing
Corporation Limited. For details, please refer to the “Jingcheng
Holdings: Announcement in relation to the Issuance Results of
the Asset Acquisition by way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment
and Raising of Supporting Funds and Change in Share Capital”
(announcement no.: Lin 2022-041) disclosed by the Company
on the Shanghai Securities News and the website of the SSE
(Wwww.sse.com.cn) on 28 June 2022; and the "Jingcheng Holdings:
Announcement in relation to the Issuance Results of the Asset
Acquisition by Way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising
of Supporting Funds and Change in Share Capital” (announcement
no: Lin 2022-055) disclosed on the Shanghai Securities News and the
website of the SSE (www.sse.com.cn) on 23 August 2022, or refer
to the announcements on 27 June 2022 and the “Announcement
in relation to the Issuance Results of the Asset Acquisition by Way of
Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds
and Change in Share Capital” on 22 August 2022 disclosed on the
HKEXNews website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

BERERNELBTIHERNHA (FE
HAMEARNES - FHRFH)
ViR OTEs

e B 2 B 2B S 1 [2022]586 57 (A
R R ERN AR D BAZF
MERTRGREAETERREE S

RHLEY 0 - RRIAIFAE12 ANET
AEM%%@H&(AH&)%,%L&zMHﬁ i

FEBESECEEEREARAA LGS
@Eﬂ%ﬁ@Tmﬂéﬁﬂﬁ@mﬁﬁwﬁ%
FEEET - DAINIER Sﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁt‘%ﬁ
m%‘i@aﬁéﬁ*ﬁﬁ LT AR T
Hx (AR%)10,784,674f% » WFEFE ‘%%7*
SHEEREAAT BN ARRET
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Il. Issuance and listing of securities (continued)

(m

Changes in the total number of Shares of the
Company and Shareholders’ structure and
changes in the asset and liability structure of the

Company
\ Applicable [ Not Applicable

During the Reporting Period, as considered and approved at the
first extraordinary general meeting of 2022, the First A Share Class
Meeting of 2022 and the First H Share Class Meeting of 2022, and
approved by the CSRC under the “Approval of the Asset Acquisition
by Way of Issuance of Shares and Raising of Supporting Funds to Li
Hong and Others by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company
Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2022] No. 586), the Company issued a
total of 57,265,988 ordinary shares (A Shares) denominated in RMB
through the asset acquisition by way of issuance of shares and cash
payment and raising of supporting funds. After the completion of
the issuance, the total share capital of the Company increased from
485,000,000 shares to 542,265,988 shares and the shareholding
ratio of the Company’s controlling shareholder changed from
50.67% to 45.32%. The Company’s control rights were not
changed, of which 46,481,314 additional shares were issued to
12 persons including Li Hong by the Company and completed its
registration on 24 June 2022; an additional 10,784,674 ordinary
shares (A shares) denominated in RMB were non-publicly issued by
the Company and completed its registration on 19 August 2022.

On 17 June 2022, ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special
General Partnership) issued the capital verification report No.
XYZH/2022BJAA30975, which verified that, as of 17 June 2022,
the Company has obtained new registered capital from Li Hong by
6,480,762 shares of BYTQ, from Zhao Qing by 2,219,384 shares of
BYTQ, from Yang Ping by 1,834,289 shares of BYTQ, from Qingdao
Eternal Economic Information Consulting Co., Ltd. by 1,590,354
shares of BYTQ, from Wang Xiaohui by 1,370,629 shares of BYTQ,
from Xia Tao by 683,761 shares of BYTQ, from Wang Huadong by
683,761 shares of BYTQ, from Qian Yuyan by 273,504 shares of
BYTQ, from Xiao Zhonghai by 200,000 shares of BYTQ, from Xiu
Jun by 178,571 shares of BYTQ, from Fu Dun by 128,571 shares
of BYTQ, from Chen Zhengyan by 128,205 shares of BYTQ, from
Zhang Li by 68,376 shares of BYTQ, from Xu Binglei by 44,444
shares of BYTQ, from Yang Lunsheng by 1,709 shares of BYTQ, from
Xin Lan by 1,709 shares of BYTQ, from Ying Rucai by 1,709 shares
of BYTQ and from Li Wei by 504 shares of BYTQ with the addition
of 46,481,314 new shares at a price of RMB3.42 per share. After
the equity changes, the paid-up capital (or share capital) increased
by RMB46,481,314 and the remaining RMB112,484,779.88 was
included in capital reserves.
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Il. Issuance and listing of securities (continued)

(m

(1)

lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers

(M

PRD 2B R IR R R

Changes in the total number of Shares of the
Company and Shareholders’ structure and
changes in the asset and liability structure of the

Company (Continued)

On 5 August, 2022, ShineWing Certified Public Accountants
(Special General Partnership) issued the capital verification report
No. XYZH/2022BJAA31027, which verified that, as of 4 August
2022, the Company non-publicly issued 10,784,674 A Shares with
the total raised fund of RMB158,966,094.76. After deducting the
related brokerage expenses (tax exclusive) of RMB15,027,480.15
incurred in the Issuance, the net proceeds raised amounted to
RMB143,938,614.61. As of 4 August 2022, the Company has
received the above funds of RMB143,938,614.61, of which
RMB10,784,674.00 was included in the registered capital (share
capital) and the rest was included in capital reserve after deducting
the transaction costs for the issuance of equity instruments by the
Company.

Existing internal employee shares
1 Applicable v Not applicable

Total numbers of Shareholders

Total number of ordinary Shareholders as at the end of the Reporting Period

BERSHREBREREE(F)

Total number of ordinary Shareholders as at the end of the month preceding
the date of publication of annual report

FEREWE A L — AR EBREEREE(F)

Total number of Shareholders of preference shares with restored voting right
as at the end of the Reporting Period
BEREHARRAERIENB LR R EE(F)

Total number of Shareholders of preference shares with restored voting right
as at the end of the month preceding the date of publication of annual
report

¢F$ﬁ¢?&s§l§|ﬁut ARFIREMENBEBBIREE(P)

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE
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lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers = BREMEMEIESAER @

(Continued)

(i) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (Z) BEREFHRA+ERE ~ AT+
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of BB R (SRR EHRERR)
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at BFRERE
end of the Reporting Period

Unit: share
TRy
Shareholding of top ten Shareholders
HTARRERER Increase/ Number Number
decrease of Shares of Shares  Pledged, marked or frozen
during the held at held subject ER - BRAREER
Name of Shareholder Reporting  theendof  Percentage to selling Share Shareholder(s)
(full name) Period the period (%) restrictions status Number ~ Nature
KRARE
RRER (28 REOMEE BREREE iehice) HARHEE Rt HE RRME
Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electic St R RABERREREFA 245,735,052 4532 63,000,000 Nil State-owned legal-person
Holding Co, Ltd £ BEEA
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 99,419,027 1833 Unkn;m;a U*nknown
il
Li Hong =) 19,099,566 352 19,099,566 Nil Domestic natural person
i BEMERA
Zhao Qing il 6,540,785 121 6,540,785 Nil Domestic natural person
i BEMERA
Agricultural Bank of ChinaLimited—  RELEXBHIRIVERAR -5 6,466,697 119 Nil Unknown
China Post Core Forward Strategy ~ LEZEERERAREAR E b5l
Advantage Dynamic Mived Securities &£
Investment Fund
Yang Ping 7T 5,405,865 1.00 5,405,865 Nil Domestic natural person
i BEMERA
Qingdao Eternal Economic Information & & & EERE S AHAR AT 4,686,960 086 4686960 Nil Domestic non-state
Consutting Co., Ltd. i owned legal person
BNFEREA
Wang Xiaohui TEE 4,039,404 074 4,039,404 Nil Domestic natural person
E BFMERA
Caitong Fund - Huatai Securities Co,,  BE% -EREHRHERD 2,238,806 041 Unknown Unknown
Ltd. - Caitong Fund Junxiang Yongxi 7] -EiBESEZ K RE—4E A A
Single Asset Management Scheme ~ &25t]
Xia Tao - 2015123 037 201513 Nil Dornestic natural person
i BFRERA
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lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers = - BRERMEBEEE| AR @&
(Continued)

(i) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (Z) BEREPRAT+BRE ~ AT+
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of ERBERR (HEREERFRR)
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at BFRER R (@)

end of the Reporting Period (Continued)

Shareholding of Top Ten Shareholders not subject to Trading Moratorium

AT EERERHRRERER
Number of circulating
shares not subject to (Class and number of shares
trading moratorium RHEERHE
Number of
BEERERE  Class shares
Name of shareholder RREE nERNEE EE g8
Bejing Jingcheng Machinery Flectric Holding Co., Ltd. St R ERRAREAAA 182,735,052 RMB ordinary shares 182,735,052
AREEBR
HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 99,419,027 Foreign shares listed overseas 99,419,027
i FohER
Agricultural Bank of China - China Post Core Forward ~~ FEIEZRARHERAT -+ 6,466,697 RMB ordinary shares 6,466,697
Strateqy Advantage Dynamic Mixed Securities Investment EW/L\@‘WEEEE/%@% ARBERR
Fund FRERE
He Yong B 1,301,200 RMB ordinary shares 1,301,200
ARBERR
Ji Shangaun ERle ] 980,817 RMB ordinary shares 980,817
ARBERR
Bejjing Zhongjin Xinyuan Asset Management Center St RFEEREEEERD 557,159 RMB ordinary shares 557,159
(Limited Partnership) (BRA%) ARELRER
Liu Yufei A= 551,700 RMB ordinary shares 551,700
ARBERR
Zhou Xinling A 550,082 RMB ordinary shares 550,082
ARBERR
Wang Yue T 550,000 RMB ordinary shares 550,000
ARBERR
Lu'Yong [ 532,200 RMB ordinary shares 532,200
ARBERR
Description of special account for repurchase among the N/A
top ten Shareholders NER
AT ARRTEEEFERNHA
Explanations on the entrusting voting right, entrusted N/A
voting right and waive of voting right of the aforesaid TR
Shareholders
FRRREARNE - TARRE  HERAMENHR
Explanation on the related relationship of the Shareholders The Company is not aware of any related relationship among the aforesaid Shareholders, nor is
and action in concert among the aforesaid Shareholders the Company aware of any parties acting in concert as defined in "Measures for Management on
BRI e e Gt Information Disclosure of Changes in Shareholdings of Listed Company s Shareholders”.
ARAFALARR HEEBREE v ANEARABR( LA AIRRHRED EERAE RN
EVRER-HITBA -
Explanation on preferred Shareholders whose voting rights N/A
has resumed and their shareholdings TER

RAERENBARRR RS REENHS
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lll. Shareholders and beneficial controllers
(Continued)
(ii) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at
end of the Reporting Period (Continued)

BROBBRBRRIER

= RERMEMBREZESABT@®

(Z) BEREHRAT+BRE ~ A1+
BREBERER (REREFRHFRER)
BERER & @

Shareholding of the top ten holders of Shares subject to
selling restriction and conditions of selling restrictions

ATEEREKERRIERBEERRE
\ Applicable [ Not applicable et

ViR OTEms

Unit: share
Bl - R

Conditions of listing and
trading of restricted Shares
BRERERBATLTRZER

Number of
Number of Date of being additional
Shares held permitted Shares available
Name of Shareholder subject to selling  for listing for listing and
subject to restrictions  and trading trading Restricted
No.  selling restrictions BENERE wLWH A LT conditions
Fi AREREBRRERE HUERNBE XZHE RERHBE RERYT
1 Beijing Jingcheng 63,000,000 2023/7/10 63,000,000 The lock-up period is 36 months
Machinery Electric Holding 2023F7H108 from the delivery date of new
Co., Ltd shares
?%Eiﬁ%%%?@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ PREH /s B FTR 2 &I B #3618 A
NS
2 Li Hong 19,099,566  2023/6/26 114,597,400 The lock-up period is 12 months
=318 202356 H26H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
PREMAI12(EA - i H4HRE
- EEEF RN -5 H
AEmRS
3 Zhao Qing 6,540,785  2023/6/26 3,924,471 The lock-up period is 12 months
HEE 202356 H26H and the shares are unlocked in 4

phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period

PREMAI12(EA - i HaHEE
- EESEF RN -5 H
AEmRS
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. Shareholders and beneficial controllers = BREMEMEIESAER @
(Continued)
(ii) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten (
Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at

end of the Reporting Period (Continued)

D) BEREHRA+BRR Al T+
BREBERR (REREFRHFRER)
BERER & @0

Conditions of listing and
trading of restricted Shares

194

EREFREROTLTRZHER
Number of
Number of Date of being additional
Shares held  permitted Shares available
Name of Shareholder subject to selling  for listing for listing and
subject to restrictions and trading trading Restricted
No.  selling restrictions BHENERE wLm A EH  conditions
Fi  ARERTRRERE HREROBE RBKHE REBRHBE RERY
4 Yang Ping 5,405,865  2023/6/26 5,405,865 The lock-up period is 12 months and
5 2023%F6H26H can be listed on the trading day
foIIovving the expiry of the lock-
period
ﬁi’iﬁﬂﬁﬂzflﬂ EHETF RN
—RSHALETRS
5 Qingdao Eternal 4,686,960  2023/6/26 2,812,176 The lock-up period is 12 months
5B EH 2023F6H26H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
REHRI2EA - ikihH4ERER
- EEEFHRER -5 H
AEmRS
6 Nuode Asset 4,274,084  2023/2/20 4,274,084 The lock-up period is 6 months and
Management Co., Ltd. 202392 H20H can be listed on the trading day
(EEESERARA ) foIIovving the expiry of the lock-
HEEASERARA period
ﬁE%HHF% EA - EEETFERNR
—RSAALETRS
7 Wang Xiaohui 4,039,404  2023/6/26 2,423,642 The lock-up period is 12 months
TEE 20236 A26H and the shares are unlocked in 4
phases and can be listed on the
trading day following the expiry
of the lock-up period
REHRI12EA - ikihH4ERER
- EEEFHRER -5 H
A EmRS
8 Caitong Fund 4,016,282 2023/2/20 4,016,282 The lock-up period is 6 months and
Management Co., Ltd. (87 202392 H20H can be listed on the trading day
BESEEARAR) foIIovving the expiry of the lock-
BEESERERAR period
ﬁE%HHF% BA - EEETFERNR
—RSAALETRS

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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lIl. Shareholders and beneficial controllers

(Continued)
(ii) Shareholding of top ten Shareholders, top ten

BROBBRBRRIER

= IRERMEBRREZESAE R @
(Z) BEBREHR+BRE > Al T+

Shareholders of circulating Shares (or holders of
Shares not subject to trading moratorium) as at

BREBERER (REREFRHFRER)
BERER & @

end of the Reporting Period (Continued)

Conditions of listing and
trading of restricted Shares

BRERERBAILTRZER
Number of
Number of Date of being additional
Shares held  permitted Shares available
Name of Shareholder subject to selling  for listing for listing and
subject to restrictions  and trading trading Restricted
No. selling restrictions BENERE wLm A LT conditions
Fi AREHREBRRERE HBUERNBE XZEE RERHBE RERYT
9 Xia Tao 2,015,123  2023/6/26 2,015,123 The lock-up period is 12 months and
BE 2023F6H26H can be listed on the trading day
following the expiry of the lock-
up period
PREMA121EA - FEEHEEHMD
R—RZHAALTHRS
10 Wang Huadong 2,015,123 2023/6/26 2,015,123 The lock-up period is 12 months and
FER 202396 H26H can be listed on the trading day

Explanation on related relationship
or action acting in concert among
the aforesaid Shareholder
J:%%Hﬁ?%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁf%ﬁ—ﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬂ@
i

(iii)

Strategic investors or general legal persons who
have become one of the top ten Shareholders as

following the expiry of the lock-
up period

REH/12ER - EEEHTHHH
R—RFEA TR S

The Company was not aware of any connected relationship among the aforesaid shareholders,
nor was the Company aware of any parties acting in concert as defined in the “Measures for
Management on Information Disclosure of Changes in Shareholdings of Listed Company's
Shareholders”.

ARFIARM R 2 6 BEBAR - hARMEEEBR (T ARRRHRESHEERE
EBRIEREN—BITBA -

(Z) BREREES —REARGEH
B AERM0EIKRE

a result of the placing of new Shares

(1 Applicable v Not applicable

O@A N T~EA
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IV. Controlling Shareholders and beneficial

controller

0]

Controlllng Shareholder
Legal person
\ Applicable [ Not applicable

Name

=5

ERRRKRERS

(—) ?*H&‘FEE-E%,R
1.
¢@% O EA

ZHABR

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co., Ltd.
TR EEREREE AT

The person in charge of the unit or legal representative

BUBEATEEREA

Date of establishment

[PavASE:

Principal businesses
EE%’Z«( M%ﬁ%

the Company during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Ruan Zhongkui
frizE

8 September 1997
199749 A8H

Within the scope of authorization, management of state-
owned assets; management of property rights (equities);
external financing and investment. The Company has six
major business sectors including numerical control machine,
engineering machine, storage and transportation of gas,
environment protection industry, new energy and thermal
power generation. It has six business units including logistics
industry, hydraulic industry, switch industry, printing machine,
electrical machine industry and electric wires and cables.
It combines engineering design, product development,
manufacture of equipment and technical service, together,
provides high quality professional integrated mechanics and
electrics equipment and services to industrial fields such as
electricity, metallurgy, shipping, transportation, engineering
construction, manufacture of machines and aerospace.
RRANBEAEESLERE  EE (BB KL BIEE -
WEETNHEBEIEHIR - TREEW - REMRE  BRE
% HRER Kﬁ%%%ﬁk%ﬁ%wiﬂ CIRERE - REBE
% FBEZE - BRI &%F% - BRBELZNRER
BT &I%”‘”;Hr B - RERENBM ARG/ —

BR8N AT ﬂ’uﬁﬂ T TR - MWELE - M
EMASZEATI X B RNEEENTERE —RIRER
BR7 -
Shareholdings in other domestic and overseas listed None
companies of which it has holding rights and joint- i
stocks during the Reporting Period
HERRIERMS AN EMBEARI ETHRBNBEER
Other matters None
H 55 i3
2. Natural person 2. BRAA
[ Applicable v Not applicable Oi@Em N AEA
3. Special description concerning no Controlling 3. RAATFEERBRRERMOE5
Shareholder of the Company HEA
[ Applicable v Not applicable Oi@Em N AEA
4. Explanation on changes of Controlling Shareholder of 4,

?E%’% RERBRREEERHE
B
O@m N TEA



,Mr’&?ﬂ;‘w
Pk

Changes in Shares and Im‘ormahon of Shareholders Il
0 ENE BROSEBREFRER

x )P

V. Controlling Shareholders and beneficial M- R REBERESIABR @
controller (Continued)

(i) Controlling Shareholder (Continued) (—) EREBRRER @
5.  Ownership and controlling relationship between the 5. AFHEERBRRZENERERE
Company and Controlling Shareholder HIRBRN S EE
\ Applicable (1 Not applicable VER OTER

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of People’s Government of Beijing
Municipality
TEFTARBNEEEEEEEEZSS

100%

\i

Beijing State-owned Capital
Operation and Management Centre
tREFELAZEEEHL

100%
\/

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Holding Co., Ltd.
TR EERAREEAT

45.32%

A 4

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery
Electric Company Limited

ERFTEEERDERDE
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IV. Controlling Shareholders and beneficial

controller (Continued)
(ii) Information on beneficial controller

1.

Legal person
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Natural person
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Special description concerning no beneficial controller
of the Compan\?/
[J Applicable v Not applicable

Explanation on changes of beneficial controller of the
Company during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Ownership and controlling relationship between the
Company and beneficial controller
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beneficial controller exercises control over the Company
through trust or other asset management plan
[ Applicable v Not applicable

(iii) Other information on Controlling Shareholder

and beneficial controller
[0 Applicable v Not applicable

V. The cumulative number of Pledged Shares
of the Company's Controlling Shareholder
or the largest Shareholder and its concerted
actors accounts for more than 80% of the

Company's shares
[ Applicable ™ v Not applicable

VI. Other legal person Shareholders with 10% or

more shareholding
[ Applicable v Not applicable

198 | Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

2

AN
7

PR IR R R B S A B R @)

(=) ;B%—EP%IJA%‘/R
Dm% N E A

2. BAA
OiEm| N A

3. AR EHEEREZESAB RN
B8R
OiEm| N A

4, WMEBRAAREHERLEREN
&35 35 B8
OiEm| N A

5. ARHEEBEREHAZENERER
EHBERNSER
OiEm| N A

6. BERZEHABBEEIIHEMEE
EEARNESAT
OiEm| N A

(Z) ERBRREREZESHAEMER

N4
OiEm N T

PAERBRIE-ABRRER
H-FITHAZBRTTERRDE
ENMEMEBEATRMDEE LA
Z280% LA E

O@m N T

HEREE 2 2T A E8E
Aﬁiﬁ

@B N TEA
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of
shareholding

\ Applicable

1.

] Not applicable

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding of non-public
issuance of A shares

As approved by the CSRC in the “Approval in relation to the Non-
public Issuance of Shares by Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric
Company Limited” (Zheng Jian Xu Ke [2019] No. 2551), the
Company non-publicly issued 63,000,000 Shares of RMB ordinary
Shares (A Shares), and registration and sales restriction procedures
for the issuance of Shares were completed at the Shanghai Branch
of China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited
on 10 July 2020. The lock-up period of Shares subscribed by the
issuance target Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Holding Co.,
Ltd was 36 months. For details, please refer to the “*ST Jingcheng:
Announcement on the results of the Non-public Issuance of
Shares and changes in the shareholding” (Announcement No.:
Lin 2020-037) disclosed on the “Shanghai Securities News” and
the SSE website (www.sse.com.cn) and the announcement on the
“Completion of the Non-public Issuance of A Shares” disclosed on
the website of the HKEX (www.hkexnews.com.hk) on 10 July 2020.
As at the end of the Reporting Period, the issuance target Jingcheng
Holdings has not reduced its shareholding in the above-mentioned
Shares.

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in asset acquisition
by way of share issuance

On 27 June 2022, the Company issued the “Announcement on the
Implementation of Asset Acquisition by Way of Share Issuance and
Cash Payment and Raising of Supporting Funds and Listing of New
Shares”, which made the following arrangements for the partial
restrictions in the reduction of shareholding in respect of the asset
acquisition by way of share issuance:

The additional shares in the Company acquired by Li Hong, Zhao
Qing, Qingdao Eternal, Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan through
the acquisition shall not be transferred in any manner, nor shall
they be pledged or otherwise encumbered with property rights for
a period of 12 months from the issuance completion date of the
reorganisation; upon expiry of the above-mentioned 12-month
lock-up period, the additional shares in the Company acquired by Li
Hong, Zhao Qing, Qingdao Eternal, Wang Xiaohui and Qian Yuyan
through the acquisition shall be unlocked by phase in accordance
with the following arrangements:

1st phase: After 12 months from the issuance completion date of
the reorganisation and upon performance of their corresponding
compensation obligations (if any) for the year of 2021 under the
"Performance Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental
agreement, the remaining portion of 40% of the additional shares
received by them less the number of shares (if any) compensated for
the year shall be unlocked;

2nd phase: If they have fully performed their compensation
obligations (if any) for the year of 2022 under the “Performance
Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental agreement, the
remaining portion of 20% of the additional shares received by them
less the number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be
unlocked;

BOLBRBEER

€ R RFRIFE R

ViER OTER

1.

FARMBITARRRREREF

ROBBEEEEREE@BEHA
[2019]2551 5% KR #Z L R Rk E
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A36M@EA - FRARN202067A10H
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F—H BARBHEITEREER2
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VII. Description of restrictions in reduction of
shareholding (Continued)

2.

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in asset acquisition
by way of share issuance (Continued)

3rd phase: If they have fully performed their compensation
obligations (if any) for the year of 2023 under the “Performance
Compensation Agreement” and the supplemental agreement, the
remaining portion of 20% of the additional shares received by them
less the number of shares (if any) compensated for the year shall be
unlocked;

4th phase: If they have fully performed their compensation
obligations (if any) corresponding to the entire performance
commitment period under the “Performance Compensation
Agreement” and the supplemental agreement (i.e. the five financial
years of 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024), the remaining shares in
the additional shares received by them that have not been unlocked
shall be unlocked.

The shares of the Company received by Yang Ping, Xiao Zhonghai,
Xia Tao, Wang Huadong, Xiu Jun, Fu Dun and Chen Zhengyan under
the Transactions shall not be transferred in any manner nor pledged
nor encumbered within 12 months from the issuance completion
date of the reorganisation.

Restrictions in reduction of shareholding in raising of
supporting funds

The targets of issuance for the Raising of Supporting Funds are
Nanhua Fund Management Co., Ltd., Caitong Fund Management
Co., Ltd., Nuode Asset Management Co., Ltd. and JPMORGAN
CHASE BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, according to the relevant
agreements entered into between the Company and the above
targets of issuance, the A shares subscribed by the above targets
of issuance shall not be transferred within 6 months after the
completion of share issuance.

On 13 February 2023, the Company issued the “Announcement on
the Listing and Circulation of Certain Restricted Shares for the Asset
Acquisition by Way of Share Issuance and Cash Payment and Raising
of Supporting Funds”, the number of restricted A shares listed and
circulated was 10,784,674 shares. On 20 February 2023, some of
the restricted shares for raising supporting funds were fully released
from the restriction in reduction of shareholding and were listed and
circulated.

VIIl.Specific implementation of share repurchase

during the Reporting Period
[ Applicable v Not applicable

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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To all shareholders of Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.:

Auditor's Opinion

We have audited the attached financial statements of Beijing Jingcheng
Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as Jingcheng
Company), including Consolidated and Parent Company's Balance Sheets
dated 31 December 2022, 2022 Consolidated and Parent Company's
Income Statements, Consolidated and Parent Company's Cash Flow
Statements, Consolidated and Parent Company's Statements of Changes in
Shareholders’ Equity, and related Notes to Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the attached financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated and parent company'’s financial positions
of Jingcheng Company as of 31 December 2022, and its consolidated
and parent company’s financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises.

Basis for Auditor's Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for
Certified Public Accountants of China. The section in the Auditor’'s Report
titled “"CPAs’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”
further describes our responsibilities under these standards. We conduct
our audit independent of Jingcheng Company in accordance with the
China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants and fulfil other
responsibilities in ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that are deemed most important
to the audit of the financial statements for the current period based on
our professional judgment. These matters are addressed by auditing the
financial statements integrally and forming the audit opinion, so we do not
express the opinions for them separately.

Accrual for Provision for Inventory Impairment

Key Audit Matters Countermeasures in the audit

1. Provision for inventory depreciation

Please refer to Note IV.15
“Inventories”, Note V.39 “Other
significant accounting policies
and accounting estimates — (1)
Provision for impairment of
inventories” and Note VI.8
“Inventories” to the financial
statements. Jingcheng Company

is mainly engaged in the gas
storage and transportation  (2)
and equipment manufacturing
industry. As of 31 December
2022, the book balance of
inventories was 360,077,242.43

yuan, the balance of provision for
impairment was 49,278,796.99

yuan, and with a book value of
310,798,445.44 yuan.

The main audit procedures executed
are as follows:

Evaluate and test the design
and operating effectiveness of
key internal controls related
to the provision for inventory
impairment;

Select a sample of finished
goods and compare the
estimated selling price of the
products with the actual selling
price in the latest or later
period;
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Accrual for Provision for Inventory Impairment

Key Audit Matters

The inventory of Jingcheng
Company is valued by the lower
one between the cost and net
realizable value. Net realizable
value is determined according
to the estimated selling price
of the inventory minus the
estimated costs to be incurred
by the time of completion, the
estimated sales expenses and
the related taxes. The process
of such determination involves
significant judgments and
estimates of the management.
Whether the provision for
impairment of inventory is
adequate and appropriate
has a significant effect on the
financial statements. Based on
the above reasons, we determine
the provision for inventory
impairment as a key audit
matter.

Countermeasures in the audit

3)

Select samples for raw materials
and products in process, and
review the reasonableness
of the costs estimated by the
management to be incurred
by the time of completion, the
sales expense and the related
taxes by comparing the costs
still incurred by the time of
completion of the same kind
of raw materials and work
in progress and the sales
expenses.

Implement the inventory
monitoring work, and check
the quantity and condition of
inventory;

Obtain the list of inventory
ageing at the end of the
year, carry out an analytical
review of inventories with a
longer inventory ageing in
combination with the product
status, and analyse whether
the provision for inventory
impairment is reasonable.

2. Impairment assessment of goodwill

Please refer to Note IV.26
“Long-term Asset Impairment”,
Note IV.39 “Other Significant
Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates-
Accounting Estimates of
Provision for Goodwill” and Note
VI.15 “Goodwill” in the financial
statements. As of 31 December
2022, the net goodwill of
Jingcheng Company was
RMB168,996,039.10 resulting
from the acquisition of Qingdao
BYTQ United Digital Intelligence
Co., Ltd., which is an important
asset of Jingcheng Company and
is material to the entire financial
statements.

The main audit procedures executed
are as follows:

)

@)

Compared the estimates
adopted by the management
in calculating the present value
of the expected future cash
flows in the previous year with
the actual performance of the
current year, and evaluated
the historical accuracy of the
management's forecast results;

Evaluated whether the methods
for determining the recoverable
amounts of asset groups and
asset group portfolios meet
the relevant provisions of the
Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises;

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

FRBEERIR
B B A

t

it 33F 50
WS
< 20w Tk O Bt 8

i 558 S m ER A TF AR B S A A SS

N
T

RE 3

[ \==]
o

- DS O Iy B R 3 3B B TR IR

i 5 R 2

*

- %@ﬂ%ﬁ&%ﬂl%ﬁ

B
Nas g
- Wb oo e R o o 3 H

ﬁ
< i 25 0 A 2 24 N D it el 2 D

=
i

v
L

S D W BE Fn it > [
i it A5 e Bk 24 2 i

A
S o SOESR

L
+
o

2R R
"o Fi f} b b T B O H A SR e o e o)

i

eyl
il

2. EERENGE

2 BB mEME
.26l REBEER
&l - Mﬁimﬁg[ﬁ

=
I
2
T
i3
B

—
[e)]
Ne)
N
o

BO
D HE S B oE O

84 2 5l

ey
P B
anp

- SR HE:

=
-

S e % 5 o Ty B
i m 35, 3 i k.0
B SR H = 8

S B B ot =

\
/

° S SOF DD OH -

s

= FEARBTEE®

FErth RS

©)

HREMR - £
Efm o BEE
K BBLEE
FRAEREME -
FERETIHN
YB3 E R AR
MIEER ¢
EEBMHTNE
TEIRE2EE
RN - HEER
Elans okey
LT

BEFas®T
1E lrEFEMN
HE - MhE

SFERTFEDE
lﬁ?/iﬁ EEE
ik - EE R
BROGFEHETT
AIUEEZ - 5
T ERELER

ERAE -

BT EEE
BFRoT:

M

BEEBELSF
ETEIERT R
TREHERIR
B E T EEAE
BB RETH
8 ETEERE
TEREROES
el

HEEEMAME
EAAE A
RAREETE SR
RENALES
st E R AE B AR

i

il



Key Audit Matters (continued)

Section 12

Accrual for Provision for Inventory Impairment

Key Audit Matters

According to the provisions
of the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No.
8-Impairment of Assets,
Jingcheng Company should
conduct a goodwill impairment
test at the end of each year. Such
impairment test has a complex
process and needs to rely on the
judgments and estimates of the
management on the expected
future income and cash flow
discount rate of asset group
portfolio (including goodwill) of
any subsidiaries acquired by it,
and other assumptions. Due to
the above reasons, we identified
the impairment assessment of
goodwill as a key audit matter.

Other Information

Countermeasures in the audit

3)

()

Analysed the key assumptions,
parameters, methods and
judgments adopted by the
management in identifying the
asset group to which goodwill
belongs and conducting a
goodwill impairment test, and
examined the reasonableness of
such assumptions, parameters,
methods and judgments;

Obtained a goodwill impairment
test report from the external
evaluation agency engaged by
the management, and evaluated
the independence, impartiality
and competence of the external
evaluation agency;

Reviewed the valuation method
of the asset group adopted and
appraisal report issued by the
external evaluation agency, and
checked the calculation process
and results of the goodwill
impairment test;

Examined the appropriateness
of presentation and disclosure
of the information related to
the impairment of goodwill in
the financial report.

The management of Jingcheng Company (hereinafter referred to as
management) is responsible for other information. Other information
includes information covered in 2022 annual report of Jingcheng Company,
except the financial statements and our auditor’s report.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit on the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.

Based on the work that we have executed, we should report the fact in
case of determining the material misstatement of other information. In this

regard, we have nothing to report.
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V.

VI.

Responsibilities of the Management and the

Governance for the Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises to achieve fair presentation; and designing, implementing
and maintaining necessary internal control to make sure that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparation of the financial statement, the management is responsible
for assessing Jingcheng Company’s going-concern ability, disclosing the
going-concern related items (if applicable) and applying going-concern
assumptions, unless otherwise the management plans to liquidate
Jingcheng Company, stop operation or it has no other practical choice.

The governance is responsible for supervising Jingcheng Company’s
financial reporting process.

CPAs’ Responsibility for Audit of Financial

Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it
does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing
standards can always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions users would take on the basis of these financial
statements.

We exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism in
carrying out our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards. At the
same time, we also:

(1) Identify and assess risks of material misstatement of financial
statements due to fraud or error, design and implement audit
procedures to address these risks, and obtain adequate and
appropriate audit evidence as a basis for issuing audit opinions.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraudulent practices is higher than that resulting from mistakes,
as fraudulent practices may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Understand the internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design appropriate audit procedures, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of the Management's selection of
accounting policies and the rationality of accounting estimates as
well as related disclosures.

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited
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CPAs’ Responsibility for Audit of Financial

Statements (continued)

(4)  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting, and conclude, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast a significant doubt on Jingcheng
Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our Auditor's Report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on information available as of the
date of the Auditor's Report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Jingcheng Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

(5)  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements and evaluate whether the financial statements
fairly reflect the relevant transactions and events.

(6)  Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
Jingcheng Company to express an opinion on the financial
statements. We are responsible for guiding, supervising, and
performing the group audit, and assume all responsibilities for our
opinion.

We communicate with the Governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Governance with a statement regarding compliance
with ethical requirements related to independence and communicate
with the Governance about all relationships and other matters that could
reasonably be considered to affect our independence, as well as related
precautions (if applicable).

From the matters communicated with the Governance, we determine
which items are most important to the audit of the financial statements for
the current period and thus constitute a key audit matter. We described
these matters in our auditor's report, except in those cases where public
disclosure of such matters is prohibited by law or regulation, or in those
rare cases where we determine not to communicate with the Governance
about a matter in our auditor's report if we reasonably expect that the
adverse consequences of communicating about such matter in our auditor's
report would outweigh the benefits in the public interest.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants LLP

Certified Public Accountant of China: Ma Chuanjun
(Engagement Partner)

Certified Public Accountant of China: Yan Huan

Beijing, China
30 March 2023
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31 December 2022
2022F 12 A31H

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Item ER BisE 2022%12A31H 20219 12A31H
Current assets: RENEE :
Monetary fund i VI 1501 336,627,993.24 105,776,763.72
Settlement reserves EEENS
Placements from banks and other financial FHES

institutions
Financial assets held for trading RoteRmEE VI 2152 2 30,675.01
Derivative financial assets TESREE
Notes receivable EWEE VI35 3 8,603,853.52
Accounts receivable FEUBRFR VI 4GS~ 4 315,652,015.26 175,225,191.63
Receivables financing FEUGRIARLE VI.5/75+ 5 29,790,417.72 10,465,061.76
Advances to suppliers ERHIE VI.6/75 * 6 46,525,117.75 53,915,051.53
Premiums receivable EWIRE
Reinsurance accounts receivable P {RER TR
Reinsurance contract reserves receivable BN REREES
Other receivables Hofth iR VI 715~ 7 4,809,858.44 9,636,026.09
Including: interest receivable B AR
Dividends receivable FEUARF
Financial assets purchased under agreements to resell & ARE&REE
Inventories FE VI. 8/75 + 8 310,798,445.44 324,694,186.81
Contract assets EREE
Held-for-sale assets BEGEEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FRIBNIEREEE
Other current assets HihmEEE VI 9/75 9 10,221,016.45 27,386,862.15
Total current assets REEEAT 1,063,028,717.82 707,129,818.70
Non-current assets: FRBEE
Disbursement of loans and advances to customers BEHERAERK

Debt instruments at amortised cost BRRE

Debt instruments at fair value through other EERRE

comprehensive income

Long-term receivables REARUK
Long-term equity investment RORERE VI 10/75 + 10 83,828,193.76 79,947,483.76
Equity instruments at fair value through other HiplEm TRRE

comprehensive income
Other non-current financial assets Hi3ERB o EE
Investment properties BEMEE
Fixed assets BT EE VI 175 11 594,584,383.38 618,317,885.27
Projects under construction IR VI 12/75 12 59,457,140.18 38,592,075.56
Productive biological assets EEUEMEE
Oil and gas assets HREE
Right-of-use assets FCRERE VI 13/75 + 13 220,518,068.16
Intangible assets BREE VI, 14175 ~ 14 192,378,307.38 120,037,115.68
Development expenditures R
Goodwill B VI, 15/75 ~ 15 168,996,039.10
Long-term deferred expenses REGFEER VI, 16/75 * 16 16,622,473.45 4,372,745.88
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSHERE VL7517 8,340,599.88 51,632.65
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE VI 18/7% - 18 26,835,176.42
Total non-current assets FREBEESH 1,371,560,381.71 861,318,938.80
Total assets EEMAG 2,434,589,099.53 1,568,448,757.50

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE




Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

Consolidated Balance Sheet I

BHEERER

31 December 2022
2022F 12 A31H

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Item EH BisE 2022%12A31H 20214124318
Current liabilities: REaE:
Short-term borrowings REIER VI 19/75 19 100,000,000.00 83,825,972.96
Borrowings from the central bank Al RIRITIE K
Placements from banks and other financial institutions #F A& &
Financial liabilities held for trading RHEcRaE
Derivative financial liabilities MTELREE
Notes payable A= VI, 20/7% ~ 20 77,497,454.43 50,693,681.14
Accounts payable JERBRFR VI 21775~ 21 242,600,960.24 263,096,766.13
Advances from customers B IR
Contract liabilities AEAE VI 22/75 ~ 22 60,289,757.30 68,094,818.68
Financial assets sold under agreements to repurchase & HEIBE & B EE T
Customer bank deposits and due to banks and other  TRU T 2 K [ 27 1
financial institutions

Customer brokerage deposits REBEEZEHNK
Securities underwriting brokerage deposits RIBAGHEF K
Employee compensation payable e B T VI, 23/7% ~ 23 25,714,018.81 27,257,688.27
Taxes payable ERHB VI, 24/% ~ 24 21,834,560.15 6,186,732.62
Other payables HAERTRR VI. 25/7% ~ 25 63,942,916.44 25,960,072.78
Including: interests payable Heh: ERFIE
Dividends payable e AR 349,853.79
Handling charges and commission payable ENFEELRAS
Reinsurance accounts payable FERT D RER R
Held-for-sale liabilities BFEGEARE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREHRIEREEE VI 26/75 ~ 26 21,127,930.84 7,000,000.00
Other current liabilities Hin#a s VI 27/75 ~ 27 6,677,447.44 4,613,930.02
Total current liabilities RBEESE 619,685,045.65 536,729,662.60
Non-current liabilities: FRBEE :
Insurance contract reserves REaREES
Long-term borrowings REIER
Bonds payable EfES
Including: preferred stock Hep: BEK

Perpetual bonds KEE
Lease liabilities HEHE VI. 28/75 ~ 28 248,801,063.86
Long-term payables REERTR VI 29/7% + 29 113,207,700.00 30,000,000.00
Long-term employee compensation payable AR T 5 M VI.30/7% 30 30,779,454.07 29,193,698.39
Provision EaE VI 31775+ 31 8,020,131.96 5,794,470.12
Deferred incomes R VI. 32/75 + 32 358,604.17 5,318,879.05
Deferred income tax liabilities REFEHARE VI 17/75 2 17 7,255,633.01
Other non-current liabilities HiIERBAE
Total non-current liabilities *RBEESE 408,422,587.07 70,307,047.56
Total liabilities &ESs 1,028,107,632.72 607,036,710.16
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31 December 2022
2022F 12 A31H

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Item = BsE 2022%12H31H 20214 12H31H
Shareholders’ equity: IR RS :
Share capital R A VI 33/7% + 33 542,265,988.00 485,000,000.00
Other equity instruments HipfEm TR
Including: preferred stock Hep: BERK
Perpetual bonds AL
Capital reserves BARRE VI.34/55 - 34 1,151,111,016.32 835,353,861.68
Less: treasury shares A B
Other comprehensive incomes Hibgra s V1. 35/7% 35 2,128,736.81 -1,030,194.20
Special reserves SIEFE VI. 36/7% ~ 36 124,960.21
Surplus reserves BHAE VI 37/7% ~ 37 45,665,647.68 45,665,647.68
General risk provision —RE R EE
Retained earnings RO B V1. 38/7% ~ 38 -669,031,286.39 -687,333,700.32
Total shareholders' equity attributable to parent BENEARRRERE
company 1,072,265,062.63 677,655,614.84
Non-controlling interests DHIR R S 334,216,404.18 283,756,432.50
Total shareholders’ equity BRRERE 1,406,481,466.81 961,412,047.34
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BENRRESE 2,434,589,099.53 1,568,448,757.50

Person in charge of the Company
REJBEA

Person in charge of accounting:
FESIHTIERAEAN -

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

EiTHBRAN



Balance Sheet of the Parent Company Il
BRAREEEER

31 December 2022
2022F 12 A31H

~/ )
P -

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. _ Unit: Yuan
REEA LR R ERDER AR B ARBTT

Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Item ER BisE 2022%12A31H 20219 12A31H
Current assets: RENEE
Monetary fund EkEs 53,043,574.83 1,639,496.85
Financial assets held for trading RHUSHEE
Derivative financial assets TESREE
Notes receivable ERER
Accounts receivable JEUER SR XVIL1/A+ 1 51,455,610.49 9,988,552.80
Receivables financing FEWIERIE
Advances to suppliers BRI
Other receivables Hofh ik XVIL2/++ 2 382,107,891.53 383,434,539.72
Including: interest receivable Hep: IF B 37,918,353.69 40,433,548.12
Dividends receivable e AR F
Inventories &
Contract assets SREE
Held-for-sale assets REGEEE
Non-current assets due within one year —FRIBNIERBEE
Other current assets Hingh&eE
Total current assets REEEAT 486,607,076.85 395,062,589.37
Non-current assets: FREBEE :
Debt instruments at amortised cost BRRE
Debt instruments at fair value through other HEERE
comprehensive income
Long-term receivables REAREUK
Long-term equity investment RORERE XVIL3/4+ ~ 3 1,239,348,125.05 902,148,125.05
Equity instruments at fair value through other HiplEm TRRE
comprehensive income
Other non-current financial assets Hi3EnB o EE
Investment properties BEMEHE
Fixed assets BT EE 139,583.28 25,874.44
Projects under construction IR
Productive biological assets EEMEMEE
Oil and gas assets R EE
Right-of-use assets CRERE 2,119,466.54
Intangible assets BREE
Development expenditures R
Goodwill EES
Long-term deferred expenses REGEER 1,298,753.68
Deferred income tax assets EEFTSHERE
Other non-current assets HM3ERBEE
Total non-current assets FRBEES 1,242,905,928.55 902,173,999.49
Total assets EEMAG 1,729,513,005.40 1,297,236,588.86
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SRREEEER

31 December 2022
2022F 12 A31H

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

T,

|

\

2
=

£ §

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Item EH Hifat 2022512A31H 2021412 A31H
Current liabilities: RBaE:
Short-term borrowings SRR
Financial liabilities held for trading RHtcRaE
Derivative financial liabilities TEEmaR
Notes payable eSS
Accounts payable JEERFR 53,462,653.20 10,050,480.00
Advances from customers AW
Contract liabilities cRAE 1,274,336.28
Employee compensation payable e B T 2,655,500.86 2,404,190.20
Taxes payable R E 614,941.03 668,487.27
Other payables HA R 23,710,531.21 4,008,172.41
Including: interests payable B gRALE

Dividends payable FERTARFI
Held-for-sale liabilities BEGERE
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREBNIFREEE 889,946.63
Other current liabilities HipREaE 165,663.72 203,759.43
Total current liabilities RBAEET 82,773,572.93 17,335,089.31
Non-current liabilities: FRBEAME
Long-term borrowings REIER
Bonds payable FEfES
Including: preferred stock Hep: BEK

Perpetual bonds KEE
Lease liabilities HEHE 952,735.10
Long-term payables REERR
Long-term employee compensation payable £ HAE T B T 5 M
Provision i EE
Deferred incomes RIEW
Deferred income tax liabilities RIS AE
Other non-current liabilities HiIERBAE
Total non-current liabilities ¥ RBEESH 952,735.10
Total liabilities GESE 83,726,308.03 17,335,089.31
Shareholders’ equity: PR
Share capital RRA 542,265,988.00 485,000,000.00
Other equity instruments HipigEm TR
Including: preferred stock Hep: BEK

Perpetual bonds KER
Capital reserves ERRIE 1,123,816,744.17 811,365,185.81
Less: treasury shares A B
Other comprehensive incomes Hihtr e W
Special reserves ZIEGEE
Surplus reserves o YN 38,071,282.24 38,071,282.24
Retained earnings ROBFE -58,367,317.04 -54,534,968.50
Total shareholders’ equity BRRERE 1,645,786,697.37 1,279,901,499.55
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BENRRERALT 1,729,513,005.40 1,297,236,588.86

Person in charge of the Company:

RABEA

Person in charge of accounting:

FESSIEBEA -

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

BiTHBREA




Consolidated Income Statement I
EPAER

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.

BB LR R E R AR AR

FY 2022
2022 FF

Unit: Yuan
Bfi - ARMIT

Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE i sE 2025 202158
. Total revenue — - EEARA 1,372,261,232.14 1,182,664,494.03
Including: operating revenue Hep: &%IA VI. 39/75 ~ 39 1,372,261,232.14 1,182,664,494.03
Interest income FEMA
Earned premiums BERRE
Handling charges and commission FEERASBA
income
Il. Total operating cost o EEARK 1,384,549,487.08 1,227,324,128.28
Including: operating cost Hep o ZERKR VI. 39/75 ~ 39 1,186,461,657.86 1,053,267,942.82
Interest expenses FIESH
Expenses of fees and commissions FEERASIH
Surrender value ERE
Net payments for insurance claims BTS2
Net provision for insurance liability RORBETEES
reserves FEE
Policy dividend expenses REAFIZH
Reinsurance expenses DIREM
Taxes and surcharges Bie KK VI, 40/75 + 40 7,512,492.91 5,534,307.59
Selling expenses HEEM VI 41775~ 41 31,940,023.66 34,036,511.06
Administrative expenses EHEA VI 42/7% ~ 42 101,820,649.76 95,132,712.12
R&D expenses MEER VI. 43/7 ~ 43 47,649,016.32 26,536,621.86
Financial Expenses B %A VI. 44175 ~ 44 9,165,646.57 12,816,032.83
Including: interest expenses Hep: FEEA 12,931,363.31 8,926,217.03
Interest income FEUA 994,136.53 1,186,644.27
Add: other incomes o Eeles VI, 45/75 ~ 45 15,304,144.59 10,065,386.91
Investment income (loss to be listed with ”-") RE W (BRIAT-15%
1831)) VI. 46/75 + 46 25,075,531.62 19,146,786.10
Including: investment income from associates Heh: {EE NS
and joint ventures ShEMREWE 20,659,931.05 18,591,872.49
Revenue from derecognition of financial LA SRR A G 2R 2 R
assets at amortized cost BELK IR
Exchange earnings (loss to be listed with “-") Eéﬂ%é(?ﬁi?&u [-15%
b=
Net exposure hedging income FOE B = Bk
(loss to be listed with “-") PA[—5%1851))
Incomes from fair value changes AR EEE B (8
(loss to be listed with “-") KUAT-15%3851) 30,675.01
Credit impairment loss f=RRERE (BRI
(loss to be listed with “-") Rk VI 47/75 ~ 47 3,594,695.68 199,499.78
Asset impairment loss BEREERLR RN
(loss to be listed with “-") [- 55851 VI, 48/75 + 48 -19,531,341.09 -21,618,520.66
Income of assets disposal BERE W R (BRI
(loss to be listed with “-") [-15R51) VI 49/75 ~ 49 324,288.25 197,317.56
ll. Operating profit (loss to be listed with “-") = - & £R8 (FRU[-15FE
51) 12,479,064.11 -36,638,489.55
Add: non-operating revenue s EEIMEA VI. 50/75 + 50 12,213,843.95 872,734.66
Less: non-operating expenses o N VI 51/75 + 51 3,340,210.19 1,311,245.38
IV. Total profit (total loss to be listed with “-") ~ FUBEE (BRAREMN- 15
1E50) 21,352,697.87 -37,077,000.27
Less: income tax expenses W FTETRER VI. 52/75 ~ 52 7,298,542.11 4,158,891.52
V. Net profit (net loss to be listed with “-") T BRECRERUI-1RE
1)) 14,054,155.76 -41,235,891.79
() Classified by continuity of operation (IR EFEEDE 14,054,155.76 -41,235,891.79
1. Net profit from going concern 1. FHEEEFAE
(net losses to be listed with “-*) (CFEENl-5E
5l)) 14,054,155.76 -41,235,891.79
2. Net profit from discontinued operations 2. RRIHEEEAE
(net losses to be listed with “-") (?ﬁ‘EﬂélﬁA [- 5748
3l
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SOFRE &R
FY 2022
2022 F/E

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE Pzt 2025 202158
() Classification by ownership (DEMEESBYE 14,054,155.76 -41,235,891.79
1. Net profit attributable to owners of the 1. BENRERAMAE
parent company (net losses to be listed EOFRECFE
with *-") BUAT-1573E51) 18,302,413.93 -23,282,271.43
2. Non-controlling interests (net losses 2. DHRERER(F
indicated by “-") EELAT-)55E5) -4,248,258.17 -17,953,620.36
VI. Net after-tax amount of other comprehensive 7~ » Efti4R& 1 HH % B4
income 3,486,077.88 -773,087.38
Net after-tax amount of other comprehensive FEEARMEENEMR
income attributable to the owner of the parent & lEnTiEFE
company VI. 53/7% + 53 3,158,931.01 -704,769.61
() Other comprehensive income that cannot be (— )7F ENEEERENE
reclassified into profit or loss Hﬁlm
1. Changes arising from re-measurement of 1 . FEREX @
the defined benefit plan |& 85
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot 2. #EEANTEERE
be converted to profit or loss under the mAE MRS W
equity method
3. Changes in fair value of equity 3. HitEmIARA
instruments at FVTOCI DR BEEZE
4. Changes in fair value of the Company's 4. BEESERER
credit risk DREEE
5. Others Hith
() Other comprehensive income reclassified into (= )Hﬁé/\*ﬁi’ﬁﬁ S E A
profit or loss fre s 3,158,931.01 -704,769.61
1. Other comprehensive income that can 1. EmATAEER
be transferred to profit or loss under the B EfsR e e
equity method -6,087.45 -8,093.01
2. Changes in fair value of debt instruments 2. HuEBRERAR
at Fv10C| BEY
3. The amount of financial assets reclassified 3. SRMAEESM
into other comprehensive incomes é\?f&i BlEE
4. Provision for impairment of credit in debt 4. HEEREREH
instruments at FVTOC| / AEEE
5. Cash flow hedging reserve (effective 5. RensEMEE
portion of profit and loss arising from (Ren=EHE
cash flow hedging) =@mHIBRE D)
6. Translation difference arising from the 6. HNEBIBEmETE
financial statements of foreign currency =5 3,165,018.46 -696,676.60
7. Others 7. Hiff
Net of tax of other comprehensive income FEN DB E A
attributable to minority shareholders FENEEOTEFE V53553 327,146.87 -68,317.77
VII. Total comprehensive income + - REWBEE 17,540,233.64 -42,008,979.17
Total comprehensive incomes attributable to m%ﬁ’\l AR AAR A I
shareholders of the parent company 21,461,344.94 -23,987,041.04

Total consolidated income attributable to
minority shareholders
VIII. Earnings per share:
(I)  Basic earnings per share (yuan/share)
() Diluted earnings per share (yuan/share)

Person in charge of the Company:
REJBEA

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

%‘EH\ %&Hx?ﬁ’]ﬁw\

i %,E
N SRR

() EAGRYE (/1)
(D) mEERE (T /K)

Person in charge of accounting:
FESHTIEBEAN -

-3,921,111.30

0.04
0.04

-18,021,938.13

-0.05
-0.05

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

EiTEREN



Income Statement of the Parent Company R
(SE/NCIFSIVEES

. FY 2022
B -~ 2022 fF
PN ‘*)L i OI e
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE Pzt 2025 202158
l. Operating revenues — EERA XVIL4/+E 4 3,776,116.07 3,054,790.45
Less: operating costs 7% XVIL4/+E ~ 4
Taxes and surcharges Bl KN 184,255.17 133,735.04
Selling expenses HEEMR
Administrative expenses EREA 18,601,073.92 14,622,004.58
R&D expenses MEER
Financial Expenses BisE A -12,429,246.51 -13,709,345.73
Including: interest expenses Heh: FISERA
Interest income FEMA 12,488,249.09 13,717,545.05
Add: other incomes e Bl 37,375.00 21,000.00
Investment income &AWz (BRIAT-15%
(loss to be listed with “-") H7)
Including: investment income from Hep : S ERNE
associates and joint ventures B ENIRE W
Revenue from derecognition of DB ENEE
financial assets at amortized cost BELILER N
Net exposure hedging income FOE B = Bk
(loss to be listed with “-") LAT—]5R1E51)
Incomes from fair value changes R BEZHE (B
(loss to be listed with “-") KLAT-15571871)
Credit impairment loss ERREBRX(BXL
(loss to be listed with “-") [-15RIE71) -1,289,757.03 -163,455.60
Asset impairment loss BEREERLR RN
(loss to be listed with “-") [-15R3E71)
Income of assets disposal BERE W R (BRI
(loss to be listed with “-") [-15R3E71)
Il. Operating profit (loss to be listed with “-") = - & #£RH (FRU[-15HFE
7)) -3,832,348.54 1,865,940.96
Add: non-operating revenue s EEIMEA
Less: non-operating expenses o N
ll. Total profit (total loss to be listed with “-") = - R4 % (FRAEU-15%
- 0))) -3,832,348.54 1,865,940.96
Less: income tax expenses W FTETRER 624,566.43
IV. Net profit (net loss to be listed with “-") SRR CRE R I5RE
i) -3,832,348.54 1,241,374.53
() Net profit from continuing operations (net () HEEEFE 03B
loss to be listed with “-") HBAL-J57IEF) -3,832,348.54 1,241,374.53
() Net profit from discontinued operations (net (D) R IHEEFFE CFE
loss to be listed with “-") 1BIAT-157E51)
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(SEYNSIVVEES

FY 2022

2022 F/E

Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.
REBLEENL - AL R BRI AR AT

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item EH ior 20225 20215
V. Net amount of other comprehensive incomes T + Ef4R &N HE M % B
after tax
() Other comprehensive income that cannot be (D) P REEDFEBRNE
reclassified into profit or loss e
1. Changes arising from re-measurement of 1. BFEERERH
the defined benefit plan BEEEE
2. Other comprehensive income that cannot 2. MEmANTREE
be converted to profit or loss under the i E A AR & W
equity method
3. Changes in fair value of equity 3. HiEmTARKRSE
instruments at FVTOC| NREEES
4. Changes in fair value of the Company's 4. EBSERRR
credit risk NREEED
5. Others 5. Efth
(I Other comprehensive income reclassified into (D) BESREBENEM
profit or loss foR=gliGn
1. Other comprehensive income that can 1. EmEATAEER
be transferred to profit or loss under the R E AR e
equity method
2. Changes in fair value of debt instruments 2. HEmERRELR
at FVTOC| BEEZ
3. The amount of financial assets reclassified 3. eMEESHEG
into other comprehensive incomes AEMERE W=
2%
4. Provision for impairment of credit in debt 4. HtbERERERER
instruments at FVTOCI HEER
5. Cash flow hedging reserve (effective 5. RensEEHEE
portion of profit and loss arising from (RensEHE
cash flow hedging) =AM S)
6. Translation difference arising from the 6. INEHBIRRITE
financial statements of foreign currency ZH
7. Others 7. Eff
VI. Total comprehensive incomes N RENEEE -3,832,348.54 1,241,374.53

Person in charge of the Company:
REJBEA

Person in charge of accounting:

FEEIIEBAEA

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

EiTEBREAN



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement IR

BREMER

‘ FY 2022
W C E E,, 2022 FF
e, - g
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE Pzt 2025 202158
Cash flows from operating activities: - REFBELENEERE:
Cash received from sales of goods and provision HEAEMR - RHSHKKEW
of services Ae 1,166,309,184.06 1,014,603,864.60
Net increase in deposits from customers and @)5 Tmfﬂ@%ﬁﬁﬁklﬁ?%
placements from banks and other financial 2N
institutions
Net increase in borrowings from the central bank (AR R AR TS T I N EE
Net increase in placements from other financial REMERMBEBRTALZSF
institutions 2N
Cash received for receiving premium of original LISZ |RRRE A RRERGH
insurance contract Bé
Net cash received from reinsurance business b 2| BRI AR &5
Net increase in policyholders’ deposits and f%}fkﬁ%&&,\ SO AR
investments
Cash received from interests, fees and commissions LBZHX@«%' - FEEBERASH
e
Net increase in placements from banks and WAB®FILINE
other financial institutions
Net increase from repurchasing business funds [lfE 2754 &L g
Net cash received from securities brokering REBEEZHFLINE 5
]
Refund of taxes and surcharge WEIMTRERE 67,644,125.20 48,086,536.47
Other cash received relating to Y B E fh A R BB Y
operating activities Be VI. 54/75 ~ 54 26,032,432.49 23,975,624.96
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating REFBRSTANG
activities 1,259,985,741.75 1,086,666,026.03
Cash paid for goods and services EERG  BEXBBEIAN
Be 937,922,441.54 832,038,926.50
Net increase in loans and advances to customers BPERRBIFIEINGE
Net increase in deposits in the central bank and TERP R RITANR ERIEF
other financial institutions 2
Cash paid for claim settlements on original S RRRA R ZUER
insurance contract Re
Net increase in placements from banks and FHESFEMNE
other financial institutions
Cash paid for interests, fees and commissions SEHEE - FEERASH
Bé
Cash paid for policy dividends SHRELAFMR S
Cash paid to and for employees TR T AR AR T
bl 208,360,179.61 200,929,839.53
Payments of taxes and surcharges XM EERE 45,037,047.53 27,544,590.01
Cash paid for other operating activities Siﬁﬁfﬂiﬁiﬁé‘é 2EEEHN
Ae VI 54/7 63,442,314.33 58,847,382.34
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating REEERSTA /N
activities 1,254,761,983.01 1,119,360,738.38
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHELNRSRET
] VI, 54/75 ~ 54 5,223,758.74 -32,694,712.35
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FY 2022
2022 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARMTT
Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE i sE 2025 202158
Il. Cash flows from investing activities: Z REFBELENELRE:
Cash received from the return of investment WEEEWEI RS
Cash received from acquirement of investment SR E IR EINRE
income 518,145.39 327,428.24
Net cash received from the sale of fixed assets, RERTEE BEAEM
intangible assets and other long-term assets HiRHEEKBNERSE
et 54,502.29 668,908.41
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and & & F 72 ] & E A & S B (T
other business units Y B 631 & 88
Other cash received relating to investing activities ﬁ@‘lﬁf@iﬁi&;ﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ"]
62,297,104.92
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing Eﬁ)ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmu iy
activities 62,869,752.60 996,336.65
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets, intangible BRETEE  BYEE
assets, and other long-term assets MEMRBEEZ(THR
& 95,078,830.73 41,827,867.87
Cash paid to acquire investments BALZNER S 18,540,454.46
Net increase in pledge loans ETEFQW\/%&“BD%E
Net cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries S FARREME BN
and other business entities S‘Zﬁﬁ'\]ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ 31,200,530.18
Other cash paid relating to investment activities iﬁ%ﬁlﬁi&ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ
Re
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing REFBRLSTE N
activities 126,279,360.91 60,368,322.33
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHELENELSHRET
# -63,409,608.31 -59,371,985.68
ll. Cash flows from financing activities: = EEFRELENBEERE:
Cash received from absorbing investment R ERBINRE 153,305,717.40
Including: cash received by subsidiaries from He : FRARRMADEAR R
minority shareholders’ investments BEWKIE S
Cash received from borrowings S ESRMRENERS 188,652,560.00 83,870,000.00
Other cash received relating to financing activities Llﬂl@]ﬁf@ﬁiiﬁéiﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ@
Re VI, 54/75 ~ 54 83,207,700.00 30,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing SETHRSH/ADE
activities 425,165,977.40 113,870,000.00
Cash paid for repayment of debts BEEBMZHHRS 172,706,940.00 178,340,511.00
Cash paid for the distribution of dividends, profits D AECRF] « FEERF 2
or interests T (S HE & 4,637,906.47 6,719,667.01
Including: dividends and profits paid by subsidiaries ~ E& : T2 Tiﬁi DER
to minority shareholders REVARF - A
Other cash paid relating to financing activities TR EMEEEEEAEN
Re VI. 54/75 + 54 4,934,422.32
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing SEEHRLST/E N
activities 182,279,268.79 185,060,178.01
Net cash flows from financing activities EETHELENELSRET
# 242,886,708.61 -71,190,178.01
IV. Effects from the change of exchange rateon [ - EREHUBERBESE
cash and cash equivalents L1 E7 -790,492.80 -2,997,388.11
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents  H - HE&RESZEYFEME V. 54/5 54 183,910,366.24 -166,254,264.15
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash m: BYRE RREEEY
equivalents B VI, 54/75 ~ 54 79,891,833.74 246,146,097.89
VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 7~ SRBEERBELZSEYWHE VI 54/5 54 263,802,199.98 79,891,833.74

Person in charge of the Company:

RABEA -
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd.
BB LR R E R AR AR

BARRERER

FY 2022
2022 FF

Unit: Yuan
B AREETT

Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE i sE 2025 202158
I.  Cash flows from operating activities: - REFBELENEERE:
Cash received from sales of goods and provision HEAEMR - RHSHKKEW
of services e 67,573,880.00 21,228,000.00
Refund of taxes and surcharge WEIWH B RE
Other cash received relating to operating activities U2 fth E2 48 & R BV B RERY
Be 1,486,318.12 1,057,331.91
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating REFBRSTANG
activities 69,060,198.12 22,285,331.91
Cash paid for goods and services EERG  BXBBEIAN
Be 62,408,728.80 15,075,720.00
Cash paid to and for employees TR T AR AB TN
bl 10,293,090.05 6,048,326.53
Payments of taxes and surcharges ZRHEIERE 266,321.77 1,953,644.19
Cash paid for other operating activities TR EMEEEB AN
Re 9,538,827.03 10,291,186.01
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating REEEHRSTE N
activities 82,506,967.65 33,368,876.73
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHELNRASRET
] -13,446,769.53 -11,083,544.82
Il. Cash flows from investing activities: ZoREFHELNRERE
Cash received from the return of investment e E W E R e
Cash received from acquirement of investment FHRE KRS R
income
Net cash received from the sale of fixed assets, REBETERE BREEN
intangible assets and other long-term assets HREEEREHER S
Pk
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and & F 72 7] R EA &£ BT
other business units W EH3R & F 5
Other cash received relating to investing activities YR E A 4% VR BB AR
Be 15,600,000.00 9,447,681.34
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing REFBRLSHANG
activities 15,600,000.00 9,447,681.34
Cash paid to purchase fixed assets, intangible BRETEE  BEAEM
assets, and other long-term assets HhRAEES MRS 1,889,912.64
Cash paid to acquire investments BALNEHRS 97,433,884.40
Net cash paid for the acquisition of subsidiaries HEFRRREMEEEN
and other business entities TREREFE
Other cash paid relating to investment activities FREMEREES AN
Re 83,207,700.00 30,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing RETERSRE /N
activities 182,531,497.04 30,000,000.00
Net cash flows from investing activities RETHELNRSRET
] -166,931,497.04 -20,552,318.66
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SRARHERER

FY 2022
2022 FF
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
BN LRI E RGO BRAA B ARBTT
Notes FY 2022 FY 2021
Item HE Pzt 2025 202158
ll. Cash flows from financing activities: = EEFRELENBEERE:
Cash received from absorbing investment R E R BINR & 153,305,717.40
Cash received from borrowings ?Erfﬁ?ﬂﬁl 6938 &
Other cash received relating to financing activities K2 E B R EN B BN
Iﬁf 83,207,700.00 30,000,000.00
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing SETHRSH/ADE
activities 236,513,417.40 30,000,000.00
Cash paid for repayment of debts BEEFIINRS
Cash paid for distribution of dividends, profits or HECRRF - *‘ EHERFE
interest repayment IROEES
Other cash paid relating to financing activities TR EMEEEEEAEN
e 4,731,072.88
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing EEEHRLSHE N
activities 4,731,072.88
Net cash flows from financing activities EETHELENELTRET
-] 231,782,344.52 30,000,000.00
IV. Effects from the change of exchange rateon [ - EREHUBERBESE
cash and cash equivalents MRS 0.03
V. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents F - BE&RELZEYFEMNE 51,404,077.98 -1,635,863.48
Add: Opening balance of cash and cash mn:EBTReRREEEY
equivalents BhEE 1,639,496.85 3,275,360.33
VI. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 7~ SRKBEERBELSEYEHE 53,043,574.83 1,639,496.85

Person in charge of the Company: Person in charge of accounting:
REJBEA FEEIIEREA -

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Company Limited

ERFHEERDARAE

Person in charge of the accounting firm:

EiTEBREAN
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idated Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity KR
B REREE K

) FY 2022
“ ° E } 2022 F/&
o _ S
Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
REEA LR R ERDER AR B ARBTT
Him
NNEE
Sharoldrsquty atrbutele o the arnt company
R
Otherquiynsrmens
ﬁ‘M—ﬁIE lss Ot Nor-
S Prefomed  Pemetul Gptd  teasuy compehense— Specdl  Suplus Genenl s Retaned antoling  Sharholder
il o bonds Miseleneows  msemes b omes  owsenes  resenes  Prpanton  eamings Miselaneows  Subtoldl  intests  Toalequiy
fem B B OBR O OKE M BOR WERD MRME SR DR -RRRER ROMR % 0 JMEREE MREEM
I Ending hlnce o the revios year 00 BI8616 13013420 gE5 68 M3 ETIASS A8 275648050 40N
Adt canges inacund i oucs
Coreinofporperod s
Busnes mmbmauon e common conol
Micelines 3
I Beginingbelaeeof the urentyear 2o REEHE 0 935386168 10301940 465668 M3 TESSEMAB DTSHARL0 SRtAILIMTM
I Movementsinthe Curent e 2 REARRBAER
(deeaseto e iedwit ") 512658800 3575715464 3B 1% 18304898 JAOMITY SIS US98
() Totd compeersie reomes e 351 1330488 A3 M3 NG
(I ol et sty s 512658800 3575115464 TR0 3B 13543050
1. Common s y et 512658800 3451593 TN ML 92
1 Gotd e \emﬂo e e i
unens
3. Amourtof e e pamet included
a0y
L Otes 355%2 355%2 355%2
(I Poft itbion
1. Aorortionto suls esenes
1 oopitinto qenem\ L
3 Diuton o faehales
4 Otes
(1) el carpover  shaehocesequty
1 [ap\ta\ sups e o e ot
S e st e
3 Supls p\u TSENeS 0 e s
4. Retared eamings o ot fom hnges
e et pln
5 etamedea'mng G fovd fom ot
Ompefense omes
b Obes N
) Specl estnes (meae %021 1PV V1]
1 Ryrorton et 1. 1680 683406988 OA00085  3MABA0  9ERIMTS
1 Uenrentyear ) 156 101084 SI0I004 2015649 S5 A
(1) Otes (i
. Ending belance of the urent e B KEERHE 6380 15101632 LOBTS TSI SSERENE 840312638 TS06L63 SALIGAMAB 1405816
Person in charge of the Company: Person in charge of accounting: Person in charge of the accounting firm:
REIBEA - FESIIEBEA - DIEEREA ¢
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
REEA LR R ERDER AR B ARMTT
ra
g
Shaehoers qutyatuiableto thepaent compny
5 el
Oerqutyunens
EhERTR
= by O N
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fem H Bt BR O xE M BE ONOER MmN SR BUE BB ORRE 0 o o JRE MR
I Ending hlnce o the revios year - [EERHE & mmmn 51888 RIATILN bHIR HBA1488 S0ATLE3000 30213030341 1101649335
Aot cogshacentng ol B
Coreiof gt o b
Bt oo e commn corel R-flftsal
Hiselrens i
1. Beginning blance o the curet e TREERE & mmn 31888 RTINS 65618 Ho40514889 S9AE00 013230341 10016493349
I Movementsinthe Curent e 2 REARRBAER
(derease o beIstedwith ™) L1058 SRS L8052 8354091 4019288611
() Tt comortesie eames [-ifanass SRS DYTMLE RIS 008990
{1 Cotlmestedad ety ol ()RR & 28 N N
1 (omnon s mve el daeoles 1. REReaER
1. Cytdconshiedhyholesof ot ey ) MERTEREERARS
iunent
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1 urp\u s e e 0 a[ecap\ta\
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
REEA LR R ERDER AR B ARMTT
m
NEE
Oter ety stuments
B
ZEL L Ot Totd
e Pefered et Gyl treasuy - comprfensive Specil Sipls~~ Retaed shareholers!
il stk bonds~ Miselaneows e sares  Momes reens rensseamingg  Miselaneoss ity
fem B BB i B BN OMER MRME BEE OB AR LU ]
I nding b ofhe revos ar - [EERRE Hmn 1138518581 ROMU SIS 17950149955
Aot s g ol - SRR
Coreimof et s fBEERT
Hielrens )
N, egoing el of e curent e T BEERE Hmn 1138518581 ROMU SIS 17950149955
Il Movenertsinthe Crent Ve e obelitedwit™) = mxam ) S0 3045138830 B85 W8
(1 Tt compeesie cames 313485 JH34854
(I Cotel s dcoese y el 58556800 453 EANIRTE S
1 Eommon st by e 5126588100 31046155830 397054636
1. Captd ottt by bl of ot euy st
3. Amountof e pjment ncded i shenoder's ety
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(I Poft itbuion
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3 Oes
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6. Oes
) Spec s
I, Aopropieion ncrent e
1 Weinaurentyea
V) s
I, Endingbelece o the urent ear iR SL26538800 1B BMMA - BRI 18578688137
Person in charge of the Company: Person in charge of accounting. Person in charge of the accounting firm:
NAIBEA FERIIFEAEA - DIEEEEA -
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Prepared by: Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. Unit: Yuan
REEA LR R ERDER AR B ARMTT
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Oteequy rsfumens
EhERTE
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I Ending hlnce o the rvios year - [EEREE 0000 4113651881 BBU - 57380 1.8660,1500
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Person in charge of the Company: Person in charge of accounting.
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Company Profile

Beijing Jingcheng Machinery Electric Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company”, collectively referred to as the Group if it includes subsidiary),
formerly Beiren Printing Machinery Co., Ltd., is a limited company
established by fund solely initiated by Beiren Group Corporation. Registered
on 13 July 1993, it was transferred to a limited liability company that could
publicly offer the stock and be listed in mainland 